


ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN TO THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS FOR THE TERM OF ONE YEAR Pursuant to Storey County Code
2.04.008

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the Agenda for January 2, 2018.
CONSENT AGENDA

I Consideration of re-appointment of Dr. James C. McLennan to serve as County
Health Officer per NRS 439.310.

I For possible action, update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including 100 Personnel Policies and Acknowledgments, 101 Administrative
Directive, 102 Computing Time for Notice, 103 Employee changes of Address, 104
Personnel Files Contents, 105 Personnel Files Confidential Information, 106 Disposal
of Personnel Records, 501 Worktime and Workweek, 502 Pay Periods, 503 Overtime,
504 Rate of Pay, 505 Longevity Pay, 506 Acting and FTO pay, 507 Step Advancement,
601 Holidays, 602 Annual Leave, 603 Sick Leave, 604 Catastrophic Leave, 606 Leave
Without Pay, 608 Bereavement Leave, 610 Emergency Conditions, 611 Leave for
Parents, 612 Leave for Nursing Mothers, 701 Health Insurance Coverage, 702 Life
Insurance Coverage, 703 Retirees, 704 Retiree Health Benefits, 705 Workers’
Compensation and Transitional Duty, 706 Education Assistance, 901 Performance
Management, and Policy 1002 Definitions.

III For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $1,084,574.77 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $3,637,520.11.

IV For possible action, approval of Business Licenses Frist Readings:
A. AIR GUYS LLC - General / 1211 Avian Dr. ~ Sparks, NV
B. NEW ELECTRIC STERLING HEIGHTS LLC- General / 6475 19 ¥2 Mi. ~ Sterling
Hghts, MI
C. URTON LTD - Contractor / 1512 Hwy 395 N ~ Gardnerville, NV
D. SUGINO CORP - General / 1380 Hamilton Pkwy ~ Itasca, IL
E. LIBERTY INDUSTRIAL GROUP INC - Contractor / 1132 S 500 W ~ Salt Lake
City, UT
F. AQ&B, LLC - General / 5470 Sidehill Dr ~ Sun Valley, NV
G. KYYBA, INC - General / 28230 Orchard Lk ~ Farmington Hills, MI
H. YBD TECH MOVING, LLC - General / 1 East First St ~ Reno, NV
I. SHRED IT USA - General / 28161 N. Keith Dr - Lake Forest, IL
J. COMSTOCK COPYWRITING - General / 21335 Saddleback ~ VC Highlands, NV
K. GO SOLAR GROUP, LLC - Contractor / 4892 S Commerce Dr ~ Murray, UT
L. TANAMERA CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 5560 Longley Ln ~ Reno,
NV
M. GULF COAST PROTECTIVE WRAP, LLC - General / 5301 Longley Ln ~ Reno,
NV




10.

11.

N. MASKINE LLC - General / 704 Mill Rd ~ Webster, IN

O. THE JAMO TRUCK, LLC - General / 1416 Canyon Creek ~ Reno, NV

P. AMAZON.COM.KYDC, LLC - General / 410 Terry Ave N ~ Seattle, WA

Q. COSCO FIRE PROTECTION INC - Contractor / 3620 W. Reno ~ Las Vegas, NV
R. COMSTOCK CRITTER TAXIDERMY - Home Business / 2247 S. Main St ~
Virginia City, NV

S. THERMAL RESOURCE SALES, INC - General / 750 Yellow Pine Rd ~ Reno, NV
T. ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC - Contractor / 6265 San Fernando ~
Glendale, CA

U. TESLA, INC - General / 3550 Deer Cr Rd ~ Palo Alto, CA

V. APPLIED MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGIES LLC - 219 Kay Industrial Dr ~
Orion, MI

W. CALIFORNIA-NEVADA ILLUMINATION, INC - General / 4000 Executive
Pkwy ~ San Ramon, CA

X. QUALITY TELECOM CONSULTANTS, INC - Contractor / 3740 Cincinnati Ave
~ Rocklin, CA

Y. EAGLE NEST PARTNERS - General / 2255 Green Vista ~ Sparks, NV

Z. ELWEMA AUTOMOTICE GMBH - General / 21 Schneider-Strasse 21 ~
Ellwanger Wagst, Germany

AA. SPARKS ELECTRIC MOTOR REPAIR, LLC - General / 845 Marietta Way ~
Sparks, NV

BB. INMAN’S JEWELRY - Home Business / 204 Wagon Wheel ~ Dayton, NV

CC. BOURQUE ENTERPRISES - General / 5017 S 36th St ~ Phoenix, AZ

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Resolution 18-480, honoring In memoriam Susanne (Sue) Ayres Graves of Virginia
City.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of Storey County Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended June 30, 2017.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

2018 Appointments to serve on State, County and Regional Boards:

1. Safety Committee - Vanessa Stephens - Chair (No Change)

2. Legislative Representative - Marshall McBride with all others, including staff as
needed (No Change)

3. Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board - Jack McGuffey (No Change)
4. NACO - Jack McGuffey with Austin Osborne as alternate (No Change)

5. Nevada Works - Lance Gilman with Austin Osborne as alternate (No Change)




12.

13.

14.

15.

6. Virginia City Senior Center - Cherie Nevin (No Change)

7. Lockwood Senior Center - Lance Gilman and Cherie Nevin (No Change)

8. St. Mary’s Art Center - Jack McGuffey with Cherie Nevin as alternate (No Change)
9. Western Nevada Development District - Austin Osborne (No Change)

10. Carson Water Subconservancy District - Austin Osborne with Kathy Canfield as
alternate (No Change)

11. State Land Use Planning Advisory Council - Austin Osborne with Kathy Canfield
as alternate (No Change)

12. Natural Resources Conservation District (USDA) - Kathy Canfield with Austin
Osborne as alternate (Was Dean Haymore)

13. Truckee River Flood Management Authority (Technical Advisory Committee) -
Lance Gilman with Austin Osborne and Kathy Canfield as alternates (No Change)
14. Comstock Historic District - Marshall McBride (No Change)

15. Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V& T Railway - Jack McGuffey
(No Change)

16. Virginia City Tourism Commission - Lance Gilman as Commissioner designate
(No Change)

17. Oversight of Fire and Public Works - Marshall McBride (No Change)

18.  Economic Development

a. EDAWN - Pat Whitten (No Change)

b. NNDA - Lance Gilman and Austin Osborne as alternate (No Change)

19. Storey County Wildlife Advisory Board - Confirming continued appointments of
Greg Hess Sr., Greg “Bum” Hess, Jim Clark Rob Dufresne and Rich Bacus (No
Change)

20. Washoe-Storey Conservation District - Kathy Canfield with Austin Osborne as
alternate (No Change)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration of letters of interest for reappointment of a planning commissioner or
appointment of new planning commissioner to serve a term representing Precinct 2
Virginia City/Gold Hill position on the Storey County Planning Commission.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval and acceptance of a National Park Service Historic Preservation Grant
(HPF) award dor $80,000.00 to assist the St. Mary's Art Center with a building and Site
Assessment Project and the Comstock Cemetery Foundation with the Visitor Center
Porch Rehabilitation Project.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of rights-of-way license agreement for power line transmission granted to
Switch Business Solutions, LLC.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

24.

USA Parkway Tower Project Inter-Local Agreement.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Virginia City Tourism Commission Appointments:

a. Appointment of Corrado DeGasperis, with the Gold Hill Hotel, to the vacant
“Hotel” seat on the Virginia City Tourism Commission effective January 2, 2018.

b. Reappointment of Ron Gallagher (at-large position) and Angelo Petrini (business
district representative)

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BROTHEL LICENSE BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Work card appeal for Justine Hadera.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Work card appeal for Jason Pillmore.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Work card appeal for Mikala Enriquez.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion of a potential change to the County Code and a proposed process for
consultation with County Staff regarding such a change. Requested by Donny
Gilman and Joey Gilbert.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading for General Business License. Applicant is Jonathan Deitrich, owner
of a home based business, The Supply SGT, at 450 S E St., Virginia City, NV,

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-279 amending Storey County Code Title 16
Subdivisions to adopt new codes for land subdivisions, parcel maps, division of land
into large parcels, surety requirements, land readjustments, boundary line
adjustments, and reversions to acreage/lot consolidations. In addition to provisions of
the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission
a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code.
Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-




1144 or planning @storeycounty.org. This item will be continued to the January 16,
2018 Commission meeting to be convened at 10:00am in the Storey County District
Courtroom in Virginia City, NV.

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-278 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning,
including Chapter 17.56 Planned Unit Developments to revise the procedure for
approval and standards of planned unit developments. In addition to provisions of
the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission
a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code
and zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning
Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org. This item will be
continued to the January 16, 2018 Commission meeting to be convened at 10:00am in
the Storey County District Courtroom in Virginia City, NV.

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-280 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning
including chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.10 Definitions, 17.12 General
Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone, 17.24 Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.30
Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone, 17.34 Light Industrial Zone, 17.35
Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning Review Zone; and
17.84 Signs and Billboards. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may
complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting or
opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance.
Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-
1144 or planning @storeycounty.org. This item will be continued to the January 16,
2018 Commission meeting to be convened at 10:00am in the Storey County District
Courtroom in Virginia City, NV.

27.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-281 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning
including Chapter 17.06 Nonconforming Uses pertaining to legally nonconforming
uses and adding language pertaining to substandard development. In addition to
provisions of the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning
Commission a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the
county code and zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the
Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org. This item will
be continued to the January 16, 2018 Commission meeting to be convened at 10:00am
in the Storey County District Courtroom in Virginia City, NV.

28. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-282 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning
including Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions to revise the procedure for the




expiration of development permits. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person
may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement
supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning
ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at
775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org. This item will be continued to the
January 16, 2018 Commission meeting to be convened at 10:00am in the Storey
County District Courtroom in Virginia City, NV.

29. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-276 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning
to provide for design criteria and improvement standards for certain types of
development and a design review process with review by the planning director with
appeal to the planning commission and board. In addition to provisions of the NRS,
any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a
statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and
zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning
Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org. This item will be
continued to the January 16, 2018 Commission meeting to be convened at 10:00am in
the Storey County District Courtroom in Virginia City, NV.

30. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution No. 18-481 determining and consolidating all planning fees,
including removing certain fees from code and placing them into resolution. This
item will be continued to the January 16, 2018 Commission meeting to be convened at
10:00am in the Storey County District Courtroom in Virginia City, NV.

31. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution No. 18-474 to the Board of County Commissioners with
recommendation by the Planning Commission adopting a design criteria and
improvement manual setting forth certain development and design standards and
guidelines for residential and non-residential planned unit developments, multi-
family residential complexes, and other uses. This item will be continued to the
January 16, 2018 Commission meeting to be convened at 10:00am in the Storey
County District Courtroom in Virginia City, NV.

32.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Division of Large Parcels Map 2017-055 by Tahoe Reno Industrial Center. The
applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-055. One
existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels
over 40 acres. The subject property extends west from USA Parkway, having
Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-171-16, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a
division of Parcel 2016-25 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 125044, and as




described in Document Number 125418, within portions of Sections 28, 31, 32, 33 & 34,
T19N, R23E, M.D.M.

33. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Division of Large Parcels Map 2017-054 by Tahoe Reno Industrial Center. The
applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-054. One
existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels
over 40 acres. The project is a division of parcel 2016-24 as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 125044, and as described in Document Number 125418, within
portions of Sec. 1, 2, 3,10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 22, 23, 27 & 28, T19N, R24E, M.D.M. The
subject property is located along USA Parkway at the Storey/Lyon County line and
extends northeast along the county boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-
171-14, Storey County, Nevada.

34. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Business Licenses Second Readings:

A. TACTICAL CONTROLS - General / 943 W. Overland Rd ~ Meridian, ID

B. VERTECH INDUSTRIAL SYSTEMS, LLC - General / 4409 E. Baseline Rd ~
Phoenix, AZ

C. ZERO CHAOS - General / 420 S. Orange Ave ~ Orlando, FL

D. EXPRESS JANITORIAL - General / 418 S. Rock Blvd ~ Sparks, NV

E. DELTA MOLD - General / 9415 Stockport Pl. ~ Charlotte, NC

F. HDR - General / 6805 Double R Blvd ~ Reno, NV

G. APEX - General / 4400 Cox Rd ~ Glen Allen, VA

H. CONCRETE VALUE CORP OF NEVADA - General / 695 Edison Way ~ Reno, NV
[. JOHN GHILIERI - Contractor / 3455 Thornhill Ct ~ Reno, NV

J. MY ERIENDS - General / 2995 Scottsdale Rd ~ Reno, NV

K. MOORE THAN LOCKS - General / 7565 Halifax Dr. ~ Reno, NV

L. SILVER SAGE WATER CO, LLC - General / 129 Ashley Way ~ Reno, NV

M. KNA SOLUTIONS LLC - General / 2035 Sunset Lade Rd ~ Newark, DE

N. FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICE CENTER - Contractor / 260 Freeport Blvd ~
Sparks, NV

O. EDDIE CAN DO - Handyman / 44 “G” St. ~ Virginia City, NV

P. ELRINGKLINGER SILICON VALLEY, INC - General / 2 Max-Eym-Strasse ~
Dettingen Erms, Germany

Q. NORTHSTAR ELEMENTS, LLC - General / 1215 Alexandria ~ McCarran, NV
R. PEARLY CAKES MERCANTILE - General / 465 S “C” St ~ Virginia City, NV
S. PAC VAN INC. - General / 9155 Harrison Park Ct. ~ Indianapolis, IN

T. SAN-EI TECH LTD. - General / 7-1-15 Kashiwa ~ Chiba, Japan

U. RAPID CONSTRUCTION INC - Contractor / 3072 Research Way ~ Carson City,
NV

V. PRECIOUSE HOLDING, DBA: BAM!DOG HOT DOGS - General /1795 Laurel
Ridge ~ Reno, NV




W. SOFTWARE SPECIALISTS INC - General/ 401 Smith Dr ~ Cranberry Township,
PA

X. PRISM SYSTEMS SOFTWAREM, INC - General / 200 Virginia St ~ Mobile, AL
Y. ESC, Inc. - General / 1922 N. Broadway Ave ~ Springfield, MO

Z. CALLE TACOS - General / 2880 Kieztke Ln ~ Reno, NV

35. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
36. ADJOURNMENT
37. New Agenda Section

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:




(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 12/26/2017; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia
City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By _ M
Vanessa StephensEle k-Treasurer







CONTRACT FOR SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
A CONTRACT BETWEEN

STOREY COUNTY
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF STOREY COUNTY
(COUNTY)

AND

DR. JAMES C MCLENNAN, MD
(CONTRACTOR)

WHEREAS, Storey County (hereinafter County), a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada, from time to time requires the services of independent contractors; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services of JAMES C MCLENNAN, MD (hereinafter
Contractor) herein specified are both necessary and desirable and in the best interests of County;
and

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is duly qualified, equipped, staffed, ready, willing
and able to perform and render the services as the Storey County Health Officer hereinafter
described;

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements herein made, the parties mutually
agree as follows:

1. EFFECTIVE DATE OF CONTRACT. This contract shall be effective January 1, 2018 through
December 31, 2020.

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. The parties agree that Contractor, his associates and
employees shall have the status of an independent contractor. As an independent contractor,
Contractor is not a Storey County employee and that there shall be no:

(1) Withholding of income taxes by the County;

(2) Industrial insurance coverage provided by the County;

(3) Participation in group insurance plans which may be available to employees of the

County;

(4) Participation or contributions by cither the independent contractor or the County to

the public employees’ retirement system;

(5) Accumulation of vacation leave or sick lecave;

(6) Unemployment compensation coverage provided by the County if the requirements

of NRS 612.085 for independent contractors arc met.

3. RIGHTS. Contractor and County agree to the following rights consistent with an independent
contractor relationship:

a. Contractor has the right to perform services for others during the term of this
Agreement.
b. Contractor has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner and method



by which the services required by this Agreement will be performed.

¢. Contractor shall not be assigned a work location on County premises.

d. Contractor, at Contractor’s sole expense, will furnish all equipment and materials
used to provide the services required by this Agreement.

e. Contractor, at Contractor’s sole expense, has the right to hire assistants as
subcontractors, or to use Contractor’s employees to provide the services required by
this Agreement.

f.  Contractor or Contractor’s employees or contract personnel shall perform the
services required by this Agreement, and Contractor agrees to the faithful
performance and delivery of described services in accordance with the time frames
contained herein; County shall not hire, supervise or pay any assistants to help
Contractor.

g. Neither Contractor nor contractor’s employees or contract personnel shall receive
any training from County in the skills necessary to perform the services required by
this Agreement.

h. County shall not require Contractor or Contractor’s employees or contract
personnel to devote full time to performing the services required by this Agreement.

Contractor further certifies the following:

i. Contactor is licensed by the State of Nevada or other political subdivision to
provide similar services to other clients/customers.

j. Contractor’s federal tax identification number is 20-2744902

k. Contractor understands that it is solely responsible to pay any federal and state
taxes and/or any social security or related payments applicable to money received for
services provided under the terms of this contract. Contractor understands that an
IRS Form 1099 will be filed by County for all payments County makes to Contractor.

4. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE. Contractor shall, as a precondition to the performance of any work
under this contract and as a precondition to any obligation of the County to make any payment
under this contract, provide the County with a work certificate and/or a certificate issued by a
qualified insurer in accordance with NRS 616B.627. Contractor also shall, prior to commencing
any work under the contract, complete and provide the following written request to a qualified
insurer:

James C McLennan, MD has entered into a contract with Storey County to perform work
from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2020 and requests that the insurer provide to
Storey County 1) a certificate of coverage issued pursuant to NRS 616B.627 and 2)
notice of any lapse in coverage or nonpayment of coverage that the contractor is required
to maintain. The certificate and notice should be mailed to:

Storey County Manager

Post Office Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440



Contractor agrees to maintain required workers compensation coverage throughout the entire
term of the contract. If contractor does not maintain coverage throughout the entire term of the
contract, contractor agrees that County may, at any time the coverage is not maintained by
contractor, order the contractor to stop work, suspend the contract, or terminate the contract. For
each six month period this contract is in effect, contractor agrees, prior to the expiration of the
six month period, to provide another written request to a qualified insurer for the provision of a
certificate and notice of lapse in or nonpayment of coverage. If contractor does not make the
request or does not provide the certificate before the expiration of the six month period,
contractor agrees that County may order the contractor to stop work, suspend the contract, or
terminate the contract.

Contractor agrees to maintain required workers compensation coverage throughout the entire
term of the contract. If Contractor does not maintain coverage throughout the entire term of the
contract, Contractor agrees that Storey County may, at any time the Contractor does not maintain
coverage, order the Contractor to stop work, suspend the contract, or terminate the contract. For
each six-month period this contract is in effect, Contractor agrees, prior to the expiration of the
six-month period, to provide another written request to a qualified insurer for the provision of a
certificate and notice of lapse in or nonpayment of coverage. If Contractor does not make the
request or does not provide the certificate before the expiration of the six-month period,
Contractor agrees that Storey County may order the Contractor to stop work, suspend the
contract, or terminate the contract.

Contractor may, in lieu of furnishing a certificate of an insurer, provide an affidavit
indicating that he is a sole proprietor and that:

A. In accordance with the provisions of NRS 616B.659, has not elected to be
included within the terms, conditions and provisions of chapters 616A to 616D,
inclusive, of NRS; and

B. Is otherwise in compliance with those terms, conditions and provisions

5. MEDICAL LICENSE.  Contractor agrees to maintain their medical license(s) in active status
and good standing for the State of Nevada during the term of this Contract. Failure to maintain
these licenses will result in immediate termination of this contract. Any complaints filed against
Contractor arising out of their duties as a medical provider must be reported to the County within
ten days of being filed with an appropriate medical licensing board. Copies the medical licenses
must be sent to the Storey County Manager and the Storey County Social Services.

6. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE. Storey County’s liability coverage will extend to the
Storey County Health Officer as an officer of Storey County while acting within the course
and scope of his/her duties as such. Storey County Health Officer’s coverage by virtue of this
written contract includes coverage such as is included in Storey County’s liability coverage
including general or automobile liability and wrongful acts as defined in the policy form, but
only with respect to operations by or on behalf of Storey County as Storey County Health
Ofticer. Coverage does not apply to any liability arising in any private capacity as a physician
out of the rendering of or failure to render professional services (including furnishing of food
or beverages in connection therewith) including medical, surgical, dental x-ray or nursing
service or treatment and furnishing or dispensing of drugs or medical, dental or surgical
supplies.



7. MEDICAL MALPRACTICE INSURANCE. Contractor agrees to acquire and maintain medical
malpractice insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 during the term of this contract.
Proof of medical malpractice insurance must be sent to the Storey County Manager and the
Storey County Social Services. Such proof of medical malpractice insurance must be
provided at least annually throughout the term of this contract and Storey County must be
notified at least 30 days in advance of any cancellation or nonrenewal of such insurance.

8. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The parties agree that the services to be performed are as
follows: the Contractor will serve as the Storey County Health Officer pursuant to Storey County
Code 2.14 and NRS 439.280-360 as specified in Attachment A.

9. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES. Contractor agrees to provide the services set forth in Attachment A
at a cost not to exceed $500 per month and a total cost of $6,000 annually.

Contractor shall be responsible for all other expenses incurred while performing services under
this Agreement, including without limitation licenses fees, memberships and dues; automobile
and other travel expenses; insurance premiums; and all salary, expenses and other compensation
paid to Contractor’s employees or contract personnel Contractor hires to perform the services
described by this Agreement.

10. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT. This contract may be revoked without cause by either party
prior to the date set forth in paragraph (2), provided that a revocation shall not be effective until
30 days after a party has served written notice upon the other party. The Contractor shall submit
invoices for work performed to the date notice was given.

11. CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACT. This contract shall be construed and interpreted according
to the laws of the State of Nevada. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be resolved by
binding arbitration, with an arbiter selected from a list maintained by the Nevada Supreme Court
of senior/retired judges, with both parties to pay their own attorney fees. If the parties cannot
agree on an arbiter, then the party defending the controversy shall make the ultimate decision on
the arbiter. There shall be no presumption for or against the drafter in interpreting or enforcing
this Contract.

12. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS. Contractor shall fully and completely comply with
all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations, orders, or requirements of any sort in
carrying out the obligations of this contract, including, but not limited to, all federal, state, and
local accounting procedures and requirements and all immigration and naturalization laws

13. ASSIGNMENT. Contractor shall neither assign, transfer nor delegate any rights, obligations or
duties under this contract without the prior written consent of the County.

14. COUNTY INSPECTION. The books, records, documents and accounting procedures and
practices of Contractor related to this contract shall be subject to inspection, examination and
audit by the County.



15. DISPOSITION OF CONTRACT MATERIALS. Any books, reports, studies, photographs,
negatives or other documents, data, or other materials prepared by or supplied to Contractor in
the performance of its obligations under this contract shall be the exclusive property of the
County and all such materials shall be remitted and delivered, at Contractor's expense, by
Contractor to the County upon completion of the project, or termination or cancellation of this
contract.

16. PUBLIC RECORDS LAW. Contractor expressly agrees that all documents ever submitted,
filed, or deposited with the County by Contractor, unless designated as confidential by a specific
statue of the State of Nevada, shall be treated as public records pursuant to NRS Ch. 239 and
shall be available for inspection and copying by any person, as defined in NRS § 0.039, or any
governmental entity.

17. INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor agrees to indemnify and save and hold the County, its agents
and employees harmless from any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising from the
performance of this contract by Contractor or Contractor's agents or employees.

18. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT. This contract constitutes the entire contract between the
parties and may only be modified by a written amendment signed by the parties and approved by
the Board of County Commissioners.

19. NOTICES. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given 3 days after mailing
by United States, postage prepaid, first class mail addressed to the other party at the addresses set
forth below:

FOR COUNTY:

Storey County

P.O. Box176

Virginia City, Nevada 894440
(775) 847-0968

Fax: (775)847-0949

FOR CONTRACTOR:

James C. McLennan, MD
513 Hammill Lane

Reno, Nevada 89511
(775) 358-3522

20. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that this Agreement incorporates the
Health Information Portability and Accountability Act attached as Attachment B.



21. SEVERABILITY. The illegality or invalidity of any provision or portion of this Agreement
shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement and this Agreement shall be
construed as if such provision did not exist and the non-enforceability of such provision shall not
be held to render any other provision or provisions of the Agreement unenforceable.

22. NO APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS. All payments and services provided under this agreement are
contingent upon the availability of the necessary public funding. In the event that Storey County
does not receive the funding necessary to perform in accord with the terms of this Agreement, this
Agreement shall automatically terminate and all fees due and owing shall be paid.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be signed and
intend to be legally bound thereby.

Pat Whitten, date
Storey County Manager

James C McLennan, MD date



ATTACHMENT A

STOREY COUNTY HEALTH OFFICER DUTIES

The county health officer shall be the executive officer of the county board of health.

The county health officer is empowered to inspect for conditions that pose a threat to the health,
welfare and safety of the public’ may cause the reasonable and immediate abatement of such
condition.

As the executive officer of the county board of health, the county health officer shall:

a)
b)

c)
d)
e)

f)

2

Oversee all sanitary conditions of the county in which the board is created

Make such rules and regulations as may be necessary for the prevention, suppression and
control of any contagious or infectious disease dangerous to the public health.

To abate nuisances in accordance with law;

To establish and maintain an isolation hospital or quarantine station when necessary;

To restrain, quarantine and disinfect any person sick with or exposed to any contagious or
infectious disease dangerous to the public health;

To appoint quarantine officers when necessary to enforce quarantine; and shall provide
whatever medicines, disinfectants and provisions which may be required; and shall
arrange for the payment of all debts or charges so incurred from any funds available; but

each patient shall, if able, pay for his food, medicine, clothes and medical attendance;
Subject to the prior review and approval of the county commission, to adopt a schedule

of reasonable fees to be collected for issuing or renewing any health permit or license
required to be obtained from such board pursuant to state law or ordinance adopted by
any political subdivision. Such fees shall be for the sole purpose of defraying the costs
and expenses of the licensing and permit procedures and investigations related thereto

and not for general revenue purposes

The county health officer shall fulfill all other duties or requests as directed by the Storey County
Board of Commissioners.



ATTACHMENT B

HEALTH INFORMATION PORTABILITY AND
ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

1. DEFINITIONS.

1.1 Contractor shall mean James C McLennan, MD and his associates or employees.

1.2 Covered Entity shall mean Storey County.

1.3 Individual shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR §
164.501 and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with
45 CFR § 164.502(g).

1.4 Privacy Rule shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable
Health Information at 45 CFR part 160 and part 164, subparts A and E.

1.5  Protected Health Information shall have the same meaning as the term “protected
health information” in 45 CFR § 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Contractor from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

1.6 Required by Law shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in
45 CFR § 164.501.

1.7 Secretary shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human
Services or his designee.

1.8 Service Agreement or Agreement shall mean that certain agreement between
Contractor and Covered Entity.

All other capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned in the
Privacy Rule.

2. OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR.

2.1  Contractor agrees to not use or further disclose Protected Health Information
other than as permitted or required by the Agreement or as Required by Law.

2.2 Contractor agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of the
Protected Health Information other than as provided for by this Agreement.

2.3 Contractor agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is
known to Contractor of a use or disclosure of Protected Health Information by Contractor in
violation of the requirements of this Agreement.

2.4  Contractor agrees to report to Covered Entity any use or disclosure of the
Protected Health Information not provided for by this Agreement of which it becomes aware.

2.5  Contractor agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it
provides Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Contractor on
behalf of Covered Entity, agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this
Agreement to Contractor with respect to such information.



2.6 Contractor agrees to provide access, at the request of Covered Entity, and in the
time and manner designated by Covered Entity, to Protected Health Information in a Designated
Record Set, to Covered Entity or, as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to

meet the requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524.

2.7 Contractor agrees to make any amendment(s) to Protected Health Information in a
Designated Record Set that the Covered Entity directs or agrees to pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.526
at the request of Covered Entity or an Individual, and in the time and manner designated by
Covered Entity.

2.8  Contractor agrees to make internal practices, books, and records relating to the
use and disclosure of Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by
Contractor on behalf of, Covered Entity available to the Covered Entity, or at the request of

the Covered Entity to the Secretary, in a time and manner designated by the Covered
Entity or the Secretary, for purposes of the Secretary determining Covered Entity's compliance
with the Privacy Rule.

2.9  Contractor agrees to document such disclosures of Protected Health Information
and information related to such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond
to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in
accordance with CFR § 164.528.

2.10  Contractor agrees to provide to Covered Entity or an Individual, in time and
manner designated by Covered Entity, information collected in accordance with Section 2.9 of
this Agreement, to permit Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an
accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528.

3. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR.

3.1 General Use and Disclosure Provisions: Except as otherwise limited in this I
Agreement, Contractor may use or disclose Protected Health Information on behalf of, or to
provide services to, a Covered Entity for the following purposes, if such use or disclosure of
Protected Health Information would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity, or
violate the minimum necessary policies and procedures of Covered Entity, for the purpose of
performing the Service Agreement.

3.2 Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions:

3.2.1 Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Contractor may use

Protected Health Information for the proper management and administration of the

Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Contractor.

3.2.2 Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Contractor may disclose

Protected Health Information for the proper management and administration of the

Contractor, provided that disclosures are required by law, or Contractor obtains

reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is disclosed that it will

remain confidential and used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the
purpose for which it was disclosed to the person, and the person notifies the Contractor of
any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has
been breached.



3.2.3 Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Contractor may use
Protected Health Information to provide Data Aggregation services to Covered Entity as
permitted by 42 CFR § 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B).

3.24 Contractor may use Protected Health Information to report violations of
law to appropriate federal and State authorities, consistent with § 164.502(j)(1).

4. OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY.

4.1 Covered Entity shall notify Contractor of any limitation(s) in its notice of privacy
practices to the extent that such limitation may effect Contractor's use or disclosure of Protected
Health Information.

4.2  Covered Entity shall provide Contractor with any changes in, or revocation of,
permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Information, if such changes affect
Contractor's permitted or required uses and disclosures.

4.3 Covered Entity shall notify Contractor of any restriction to the use or disclosure
of Protected Health Information that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR §
164.522, to the extent that the same may effect Contractor's use or disclosure of Protected Health
Information.

44  Permissible Requests by Covered Entity: Covered entity shall not request
Contractor to use or disclose Protected Health Information in any manner that would not be
permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity (unless permitted for a Contractor
under the Rule for data aggregation or the management and administrative activities of
Contractor.)

5. TERM AND TERMINATION.

5.1  Term. The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the date first written
above, and shall terminate when all of the Protected Health Information provided by Covered
Entity to Contractor, or created or received by Contractor on behalf of Covered Entity, is
destroyed or returned to Covered Entity, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy Protected
Health Information, protections arc extended to such information, in accordance with the
termination provisions in this Section. Termination of this Agreement shall automatically
terminate the Service Agreement.

5.2 Termination for Cause. Upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a material breach by
Contractor, Covered Entity shall provide an opportunity for Contractor to cure the breach or end
the violation, and Covered Entity shall:

5.2.1 Provide an opportunity for Contractor to cure the breach or end the
violation and terminate this Agreement if Contractor does not cure the breach or end the
violation within the time specified by Covered Entity, or

5.2.2 Immediately terminate this Agreement if Contractor has breached a
material term of this Agreement and cure is not possible.

5.2.3 If neither termination nor cure are feasible, Covered Entity will report the
violation to the Secretary.

5.3  Effect of Termination.

10



5.3.1 Except as provided in the following paragraph, upon termination of this
Agreement, for any reason, Contractor shall return or destroy all Protected Health
Information received from Covered Entity, or created or received by Contractor on behalf
of Covered Entity. This provision shall apply to Protected Health Information that is in
the possession of subcontractors or agents of Contractor. Contractor shall retain no copies
of the Protected Health Information.

5.3.2 In the event that Contractor determines that returning or destroying

the Protected Health Information is infeasible, Contractor shall provide to
Covered Entity notification of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible.
Upon mutual agreement of the Parties that return or destruction of Protected Health
information is infeasible, Contractor shall extend the protections of this Agreement to
such Protected Health Information to those purposes that make the return or destruction
infeasible, for so long as Contractor maintains such Protected Health Information.

6. MISCELLANEOUS.

6.1 Regulatory References. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the Privacy
means the section as in effect or as amended, and for which compliance is required.

6.2  Amendment. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this
Agreement from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the requirements
of the Privacy Rule and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law
104-191.

6.3 Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Contractor under Section 5.3 of
this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

6.4 Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved in favor of a
meaning that permits Covered Entity to comply with the Privacy Rule.

Reviewed and Acknowledged by:

By:
James C McLennan, MD (date)

11



AFFIDAVIT

I, James McLennan, MD, being duly sworn, depose and declare:

1) I am a Sole Proprietor;
2) I'will not use the services of any employees in the performance of this contract;

3) I have elected to not be included in the terms, conditions, and provisions of NRS
Chapters 616A- 616D, inclusive; and

4) I am otherwise in compliance with the terms, conditions and provisions of NRS
chapters 616A-616D.

I release Storey County and Storey County from all liability associated with claims made against
me and my company, in the performance of this contract, that relate to compliance with NRS
Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive.

Signed this _ day of

James C McLennan, MD

State of Nevada
County of Storey

On this day , before the undersigned Notary Public,
personally appeared James C McLennan, MD having proved on a satisfactory basis to be the
person whose name is subscribed to this instrument and acknowledge that James C McLennan,
MD executed it.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Notary's Signature

12





























































































Policy Update 2018-01
employer suspects abuse, it may require substantiating evidence which may include, but is not limited to, a
certificate from a healthcare provider.

2.1.4 lliness during Annual Leave

If an employee on annual leave suffers an illness or injury which requires medical treatment from a licensed
physician or health practitioner, s/he may elect to charge that time to his/her accumulated Sick Leave
provided that the employee furnishes the employer with a certificate issued by the licensed physician or
health practitioner providing treatment.

2.1.5 Placing an employee on Sick Leave

An employer may place an employee on Sick Leave if s/he has an illness that appears to be contagious, or
due to a known or suspected illness or injury the employee is not able to perform the essential functions of
their position with or without reasonable accommodation.

2.1.6 Return to work

An employee on Sick Leave shall notify his/her supervisor as soon as the employee is able to return to
work. An employee returning from an extended absence shall give as much advance notice of return as
possible.

a. The Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer may require a statement from a licensed
physician or health practitioner certifying the employee’s fitness to return to work (fit-for-duty)
when an employee has been absent from work for three contiguous work days or longer.

b. An employee requesting Sick Leave lasting longer than three contiguous work days may be
required to provide the elected-official; department head or supervisor with acceptable evidence
to substantiate the request.

2.1.7 Sick Leave alternative

If an employee does not have adequate accrued Sick Leave time, the employee may be granted the use of
Annual Leave or other accrued leave time for this purpose. In no case, however, may Sick Leave time be
used or granted for use as Annual Leave or Vacation time.

Employees may donate their accrued Sick Leave to those employees that do not have adequate accrued Sick
Leave as provided for in Policy No. 604 governing Catastrophic Sick Leave.

2.1.8 Sick Leave at separation

Upon separation from employment due to resignation, termination, layoff, retirement, disability, or death,
an eligible employee with a total of accrued hours at 360 or more shall receive a one-time recognition
payment based upon the amount of unused Sick Leave remaining in the employee’s sick leave account.
Compensation for his/her total Sick Leave hours shall be at the following rates up to a maximum amount of
$ 5,000.00.

a. 5 years but less than 10 years of service shall be paid 12.5 cents on the dollar;
b. 10 year but less than 15 year of service shall be paid 25.0 cents on the dollar;
¢. 15 years but less than 20 year of service shall be paid 40.0 cents on the dollar
d. More than 20 years of service shall be paid 50.0 cents on the dollar.

2.2 Procedure

2.2.1 Leave Approval

Page 30 of 53













































10.

11.

12.

Policy Update 2018-01
Health Insurance: Health insurance means insurance coverage for medical, dental, and/or
vision consistent with active employee coverage.

Initial Date of Hire: The first date on which a regular employee in a position which is
considered more than half-time (21 hours or more average per week) is employed.

Medicare Eligible: The point at which the retiree or dependent of the retiree is eligible to
enroll in Medicare Part A and Part B; this may be because the retiree has reached age 65 or
because s/he has been granted Medicare Part A and Part B due to a disability before reaching
age 65. All questions about Medicare should be directed to the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Service.

Open Enrollment: A period designated annually by the Personnel Director/Administrative
Officer during which changes in coverage under county plans may be made by participants.
The retiree must enroll in Medicare Part A and Part B immediately when eligible; failure to do
so may cause the county to stop paying its portion of costs.

Participant: Persons who are eligible to participate in the program:

a. A retired officer or employee as provided by NRS 287;

b. A surviving dependent of a deceased retired officer or employee of a Storey County
as provided by NRS 287,

¢. A surviving spouse or child of an employee who was killed in the line of duty as
provided for in NRS 287.

Plan year: The period set forth by the Storey County Board of Commissioners in which
program benefits and rates are offered for enrollment.

Retired Officer or Employee: An officer or employee of Storey County who has as met the
requirements to receive, and is receiving any retirement distribution of, benefits from:

a. The Judges’ Retirement System; or
b. The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS); and
¢. An elected official who has completed the term in which they were duly elected.

Retiree Subsidy: An amount contributed by the county toward the cost of retiree health
insurance premiums purchased through the county. The benefits under this program are
determined based upon the rules regarding years of service with Storey County. The years of
service are calculated at the time of service retirement or the date Disability Retirement is
granted, and do not change after that date. For retirees meeting the participant guidelines and
who retire on or after July 1, 2012, subsidies may not be applied in whole or in part to
dependent coverage.

9.2 County responsibility

1.

Retiree Subsidy: The county shal-will pay the same portion of the cost of health benefits
coverage as-the that the Nevada State Public Employees” Benefits Program (PEBP) at that time
pays for retired persons covered as participants under their its eotnty state health benefits
program. The subsidy is limited to the employee’s consecutive years of service with Storey
County; no credit will be given for years of service earned at another public employer, except
for service with the Storey County Fire Protection District. Any remaining balance of the cost
of coverage will be cash payment to the county by the retiree or qualified beneficiary.

Page 45 of 53






Policy Update 2018-01

the Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer and submit the proper paper work for the claim with
in seventy-twe-(72) hours.

The following provisions are adopted pursuant to and are intended to implement the requirements of NRS
281.390:

a.

When an employee is eligible at the same time for benefits for temporary total disability under NRS
616A to 616D, inclusive, or NRS 617, and for any sick leave benefit s’/he may, by giving notice to the
department head or supervisor er-ranager, elect to continue to receive his/her normal salary instead
of the benefits under those chapters until his/her accrued sick leave time is exhausted. The employer
will notify the Workers’ Compensation Administrator of the election. The employer will continue to
pay the employee his/her normal salary, but charge against the employee’s accrued sick leave time as
taken during the pay period an amount which represents the difference between his/her normal salary
and the amount of any benefit for temporary total disability received, exclusive of reimbursement or
payment of medical or hospital expenses under NRS 616A to 616D, inclusive, or NRS 617 for that
pay period.

When the employee’s accrued sick leave time is exhausted, payment of his/her normal salary under
subsection +-(a) above must be discontinued and the employer will promptly notify the Workers’
Compensation Administrator so that it may begin paying the benefits to which the employee is
entitled directly to the employee.

An employee who declines to make the election provided in subsection +(a) above may use all or any
part of the sick leave benefit normally payable to him/her while directly receiving benefits for
temporary total disability under NRS 616A to 616D, inclusive, or NRS 617, but the amount of sick
leave benefit paid to the employee for any pay period must not exceed the difference between his/her
normal salary and the amount of any benefit received, exclusive of reimbursement or payment of
medical or hospital expenses under those chapters for that pay period.

If the amount of the employee’s sick leave benefit is reduced, pursuant to subsection 3-(c), below the
amount normally payable, the amount of sick leave time charged against the employee as taken
during that pay period must be reduced in the same proportion.

An employee may decline to use any part of the sick leave benefit normally payable to him/her while
receiving benefits under NRS 616A to 616D, inclusive, or NRS 617. During that period of time, the
employee will be considered on leave of absence without pay.

In the event an employee is absent from work due to an accepted job-related injury, as the sole
discretion of the Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer, the employer may pay the
employee the difference between awarded Temporary total Disability (TTD) payments and the
employee’s full salary for a period of 60 calendar days; however, such payment must be made by the
employer to the employee who has suffered a job-related injury as a result of workplace violence or
during the performance of a hazardous duty in response to an officially declared county emergency.
Such payment maybe extended an additional 60 days at the sole discretion of the Personnel Director
and/or Administrative Officer unless the following provisions apply:

1. The employee is able to perform all of the essential functions listed in the job description;

2. The employee is able to perform temporary modified duties; or

3. The employee becomes qualified to receive permanent disability compensation.

B. Transitional Duty

1. PURPOSE: To provide temporary transitional duty in case of a workplace injury qualifying the
employee to workers’ compensation.

Page 47 of 53
























YHANSYIIL

YETTOELAWOD

YANOISSIWWOD YINOISSTWAWOD NVWATYHD

_—

ISIBUCTSSTWWOD FO paeog Ajunod Aarols ayz Aq paasoxddy

€8°9SS°L6E :pPIsSINQSIA TeIOL
IS°LZZ € :I1030MpPaQ ©3 I3ISuea] IISN TEIOL
SZ°BZT'9T 3714 daag x1Q uc piazx spag s2Lorduy TelOL
I9°vZE 962 :31sodaq 308a17Q @sKo7dwz Te3OL
887 €68 :sy)03yD 9akoTdum Te3O0L
9Z°890'ST 18)03Y) I03DoNpad TeIoL
BE°806°'59 ‘8dlLd¥ I03 IIJSURIL I3SN TeIoL
Junowy s3iegd # pea # aa

/# dwa  /x08ud

6 8 L 9 S ¥ € 2 1 :sdnoxp troxfkeqg
LT/O0T/2T :33eQ PuU2-pOTIa4 LT/ST/ZT :93eq oauyd zeTnbay :adAy Troxleg

AUYNIWITIIG 1a3s1bey o8y LYP:E€E:2T LTI/ET/2T ‘uny
S abeq WELSAS TTO¥AVA ALNAOD AXIOLS W0T50¥d :3day



WIANSVHAL

YETTIOELENOD

YINOISSIWWOD HANOISSIWWOD NYWEIVHD

1SIBUOTSSTWWO) JO PIeOE Ajuno)d A3x1015 aulr Ag paaocaddy

Ty 291697 :pasangsIg 12301
¥LTSSL'E :I030Mpag O3 iA2FSUBI] IS TBICL
SZ'0€8°ST 19114 dag xT@ uo praIxX spag 224ordwz [elor
sz uee'LLe :31sodaq 30extq @24ordwz Telol
88 668 rg)yoey) a3forduzg Telol
86 ELE'ETT :S)09YD) Jo3onpag [e3I0L
ZE'SS6°LS 184143 103 I83SueIil IIS[ TBIOL
Junouy @2Ara % pag # aa

/# dwm  /329ud

6 8 L 9 S % € g T :sdnoap [roaheq
LT/92/1T :83eQ PUS-POTIad LI/T0/2T :o3e@ XO9YD zernbay :adAl Troakeq

AYYNIWITEEd z83sTbay oaud PSTPSTET LTI/62/11 uny
S abeq WELSAS TT0¥AVd ALNNOD XTJOLS Y01S0¥g :3dexy



FIANSVALL

YTTIOULAWOD

YENOISSIWNOD YANOISSIWNOD NVWEIVHD

SIJUOTSSTUWO) JO pIevog Ajuno) Aaxols ay3 Aq paasoaddy

BZ €EBE’Z 1pP3IsSANGSTJ TE3IOL
00" :I030Uped O IaIsuel] I8S[ TBIOL
00" 19714 dag ITa uo pxaix spag 224Aorduz TejOL
00" :3tsodag 3091TQ 92A0TdwE TeRIOL
08 ET6'T e)oayD a3koTdmm TeloL
06" F8X03yD I010MpaQ T1BI0L
8Y 69% :§dLJE IOI IIFSuea], IIs) Te3IOL
Junowy aadeg # pag # aa
/# dwuzg  /yoeyd
:sdnoan [r10xhed
LT/%0/21 :93eQ pu3-poOTIad LT/%0/2ZT :33eq Xoayd Teroads :addy TroxAeq
TYNId z238Tbey oayp L¥:L00T LT/%0/2T :uny

4 abeq WILSAS TTO¥AVd ALNNOD AXZIYOLS VOTSO¥a :adex



JYTANSYEEL

JATTOELANOD

YIANCISSIWWOD YANOISSINNOD

NYWATITHD

96°850 ‘IST

00~

Junowy

LT/Lz/TT :31eq ¥0ayd

REYNIWITHEG I9381b9y XoayD
[4 abea WELSAS TTOHAVd ALNNOD AFAOLS

:SIJUOTSSTWWOD JO paeod Ajuno) A3x035 9y3 Ag pasoxddy

F803YD I030Np3@ [e3oL

154148 X103 I8IFSUBIL I9SM [EIOL

@sded 4 peu  # d4g
/# duz  /x09ud

xo3onpag :a9dAL TTOoxAegd

9T €¥:60 LT/LZ/TT :uny
WOTS0¥d :aday



YFTANSVIEL

ATTTOELANOD

YANOISSTIWWOD YENOISSIWWOD NYIWITVHO

1SI2UOTSSTWWOD JO paeog Ajuno) Aazolg ayl Aq pasaocaddy

Z9'EED‘S9 EX23UD X030Mpad TRIOL
00" 1SdlL3dF I0F I3FSUBILY A2S[] TEBIOL
junowy aadea # peq # aa
/# dug  /329yd
LT/LZ/TT :@231ed %223yd zo03onpag :adii 11ozdeg
AYUNIWITEEG x93stbay xo3uyD GZ:€0:0T LTI/LZ/TIT :uny

4 sbeq WELSAS TTO¥AWd AINNOD XHAOLS ¥oTS0¥d :3dsy



T

C0*0T0’ST

60°STT
2" L81

95%¥SS

00-zoz
ocTetw
6L°9%L'T
0s*39¥
0Z°2vE

05" v99

vL SL

00" %»SE'TT
¥9'L

00°sL
0S°€8Z %1
zEe°T2T ‘219
9t°8S

9" 9%9

00 vz
00°SLY'vZ
00°00S‘%

00°5Zs’¢S

TYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

00°000°ST
00°0T

60°STT
[ARZR-19

zo'os
S vLy

g0-zoz
00°6E¥
6L°9%L'T
0S5'9%
02" 2Zve
05 2z9
00-Lz
00°'ST

LS 11T
LT P9

00" ¥SE'TT
b9 L
00°S¢L
0S°€8Z¥PT
(48R S A kAL ]
9t"8S

6v° 86

yL wL
SZ°1¥
bLowL

ST 1Y
b6°ST¢E
00- %2
00°SLY 92
00°005¥%
00°LET E
00-82e‘z

LNOOWY

€9928  LTI/80/TT WSIVNOL ID/M 17IdS 000CES
L¥SZ8  LT/6C/TT SEFI IMNOD HN¥A 0D AFVOLS
90928  LI/60/TT SEITddNS dIV LSYUIL
E£LSZ8 LT/60/T1 SHITddNS ¥Y
€928  L1/60/11 AHO WWOD ZE6BIEVELEANT
T€9Z8  LT/60/11 FATII ZEGBIEVELEANT
96528 LT/60/TT 1y¥0ddns Dada
61928  LT/60/TT TYOIAEN FIVWNI
69528  LT/60/TT WSTHNOL ¥00£Z-8%206-2T
88SZ8 LYI/60/TT AIMIS /EHLYM AOOMADOT
0t9ze  LI/60/T1 QISUNASIA INFWHSINIVD

Tsses LT/60/1T
z5528 LT/60/TT

z5s28 LT/60/T1 LT0Z ‘T AON-6T IDO
vZoce LT/60/T11 QIDYINY 'SA¥d TOHODTY IIWL
vzs9ze LT/60/11 J0UANEI ‘SEWOD ‘ SIJOdS TIVL
svsee LT/60/T1 LHDISYEAO dOTIAHA WWOD

6L528 LT/60/11

08528  L1/60/TT TYDISAHE 104 ZILT3dS
LISZ8 LT/60/TT NOISNIIXE 1S O
55928 LT/60/11T L0-26 vasn
69528 LT/60/TT ZSS6EQTOZ
9TSZ€8  LTI/60/TT dOHS
91S2Z8 LT/60/T1 dOHS
3TSZ8 LT/60/TT HD
91528  LI/60/T1 GOHS
91SZ8  LTI/60/11 HD
91528  LTI/60/11 dOHS
62928 LT/60/TT SAEX -dOHS
ST1SZ8  L1/60/1T V¥OO¥HS SYIANITAD VHIS S2Z
€928  LT/60/TT ID0d INEWIAOUAWI dHALUM
SESZ8  LTI/60/1T TTO¥AYd ‘VES -INIVW OW
S€5Z8 LT/60/1T L¥04dNS SATWIS I WHI
#SNVEL a1va # 0/d NOILAI¥DSEA HDIIOANI

LT/60/TT YALSIODIE ADEHD
ALNOOD AFJOLS

¥O0ALNO TIANNVHD AYETO

YHANSYIAL NOS¥VO 40 ALID
Z "ON NOILYIO4A0D SYINID

ATTddNS A¥YLINVS TWELNHED

dTHSUINLIVd ODTTID

ONI ETTISWO

VIH TYNOIDE¥ HOHVI NOS¥WD
0D NOILYLINVYS TVLIAVD
NEWIACHAWI TVEIANAD NOANVD

TUNOISSIJ0¥d ® SSANISNE

SIMIT LLODS 'TTIAANE

ONI ANVAWOD dIAYVE €OH
ES ONILINSNOD NJOd HTLLWE
900a ‘Snove

SSENTTEM OGNV HLTVEH DNV
ONIAVE 7 ONIQVED XddY
NOILONELSNOD SHWY

dT ENVAO¥d SVYDINAWY

ONI CDSTV
ONI D071 FNIdTV
INIWAINOA F¥IJ JYISTIV

01T ADOLSWOD 1TV

ONI SWELSAS YLV JIDNVAQY
JOaNIA

LT/80/11
STETEd

%906

0vv06
EEV06

BEVO6

LEVOE
9EV06
SEV06
yeEvOeE
EEV06

ZEV06

TEY06

0Ev06
6Z%06
8Zv06
LZV06
9Zv06
SZvose

vevoe

€Zv06
[44 443
TZv06

0Z%06

6Tv06

HTEWON

ADFHD
¢ 97%eq uny
:oN 3xoday



00°80E £5928 LT/60/1T SANOHd HAOW/WWNO0ONd=H
OTT ‘SNOILYDINOWWOD D4 £SP06

ZETEET ZETEET LY9Z8 LI/60/1T qOOMMD0T -FIJA0D
0D SO¥E JAWNVI ZSv06
TLTITLT Z9°¥LI 61528 LT/60/TT Sa¥d ‘¥OXOY -%06850S
0T TE9 6TS5Z8 LT/60/TT 0560 S2ZSZBET 9062EUA
TL6Y 61528 LT/60/1T SaQ¥d-MD01S 0S
0" LY 61528 LT/60/1T YALTIA /HENT Z6LLSMA
02°1¢ 61528 LT/60/1T AATYA 0009908
€2 12T 61528 LT/60/TT dNHMI ZE£8L90S
-86'%2 61528 LT/60/1T AMELLVE 0PE9SHAIA
¥0T0LT 61528 L1/60/1T 8071 HINAS €0vBZMd
8v 12 61528 LT/60/1T NVATO HAVEE SZ0990S
8v- 12 61528 LT/60/TT NYETD EXWdE $P0TS FNIJ
8p 12 61528 LT/60/1T NYATD EXVHE £0V8ZMd
12° 12 61528 LTI/60/TT YALTIA ¥IV $P8TSHAUIL
-1e"2Zy 61528 LT/60/TT LASD YHFTO0D ¥OIT 0PE9SANIA
26" 8% 61528 LT/60/TT SH¥ AT1INI PPOTSENIZ
¥v*zse 61528 LT/60/TT 0S6D STSZBET €S5STVAL
19°'v8 61528 L1/60/11T YOSNAS vP8T1SIUIS
8981 61528 L1/60/T1 SYILII4 -08
LS 2% 61528 LT/60/1T SYELIId -FOMIOVE
12° 12 61528 L1/60/1T JYILITI AIV TPETSTAIAL
ONI A7ddNS OLOV LLOITIH TS%06
69°0LY 69°0LY 58528 LT/60/TT HONVYNZINIVW d¥3AavVT
d¥0D YEAAWT ALIIVS-0Nd 0S¥%06
96765 96°6S 8LSZ8 L1/60/1T 23Na SEIVL FAWYN
arava ‘@ana 6¥Y06
00°S2T 00°SZ1 0z9ze LT1/60/TT ILAEDHY STV
LI¥W ‘NOXIQ 8YV06
00" v0S 00" ¥0S sz928 LT1/60/TT B80EB0TO0 NAY
ONALAETIL ‘ONIA LY¥06
SE° 69V S6°¥S £2928 LT/60/TT HOIANES JALUM JOOMMDOT
$8°28 £€Z32Z8 LTI/60/TT HOIAYMES ¥ELYM OOMIDOT
$6°62 Zv9ze LT/60/1T TYLNIE OCTH
061§ B8ISZ8 LT/60/1T SLIN N AFLYM HO
$6°SC 9vszZs L1/60/TT
S6° %S zesze L1/60/TT INIVW dINd3 St 1S
S6°0€ zgsze LT/60/1TT HALYM SL IS
S6°9€ z8sze LT/60/TT ¥ALYM YL IS
S6°0E 8528 LT/60/TT WELYM TL IS
S6°€EL Z8S2Z8 LT1/60/TY ¥ELYM ZL 1S
ONI VSN SHOIVA 9PY06
00" 21T 007211 LS5Z8 LT/60/TT LI0Z ‘T AON-6T 1LDO
OTT TIIW dT09 MDOLSKOD SP¥06
00" €8 00" €8 [FA-14:] LT/60/TT
(DA) ETOINOYHD MDOLSWOD v¥v06
T% 0LE TV 0LE 60928 LT/60/TT JISANESIA LNIWHSINUYD
AZN S0 EDIANES NOILDIATIOD €EP¥06
SS'8TIE’Z oV 82ZL 8z9z8 L1/80/11 STYIL -Morvar
9" LbL 8z9z8 L1/60/TT SHAIL -0T1999AHUNOD
00°9L9 87928 LT/60/TT SFUIL £209908
157991 8z9ze LT/60/TT FATL -ZHBTSHTALL
ONI HJIL DWD Zyr06
00°0S¥% 00 szz 96528 LT/60/TT FANHOO¥H TVILLZ
00522 95528 LT/60/TT TANHDO¥H THYTLLZ
TYLOL LNOOWY #SNYYL cRA (e # 0/a NOILdI¥DSTEA HDIOANI JOANHA AIEWNN
MOEKD ¥DFHD
LT/60/TT ¥EALSIOAA NDIHD LT/80/1T : 33eq uny

z abeq XAINNOD ATNOLS STETEd :ON 3x0dsy




€

90°sT
0L 9L

TT 996

00°vvZ

Y2 PS0°€

0Z°116°2

00°0%¢€

00°50%

957 0€L

06°€E9L'T

€EB SE6E

00°9S¥%°‘9

6S°€C

Lezez'e

05°565°9

00°80¢€
TYLOL
ADFHD

abeq

8Y EL
90°ST
oL 9L

SL"EZT
sg'ove

00°52¢2
000t
00°6

80°8T0°T
zZL"8LY
PP LSE’T

0Z'116°2

00" 5S¢
00°s3
00°SE
00°SE
00°SE
00'SE
00° 00T

00°S0%

P1°00T
21°681
By 91T
vvove
BE" 062

99°621°T
VT VES

00°0%
€8°GSE

0072181
00°bv6'Y

65" ET

29911
te'ocy
DE"TCS
vo°ove
9L ¥ec
¥1°0s2

00°88%°T
0S°L0T’S

LNOOWY

zo9cze
Tisze
6€928

0s9zsg
05928

8s8sZ8
8S85Z8
85528

€2528
€262Ze
€2s28

68SC8

£voze
zesee
(444 "]
zzszs
[44%4:]
[4414°]
[44°34°]

15 4-24:]

1Zsze
1Zsze
12szese
1esee
12528

$0928
s09zs8

91928
91928

6¥sz8
£vsz8

gzgzs

v¥aze
26528
Logze
L09zs
L03ze
L8528

ozses
ozszs

H#SNWVIL

LT/6C/11
L1/60/11
LL/60/11

LT/60/1T
LT/60/T1

LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT

LT/60/T1
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT

L1/60/11
LT/60/1T
LT/60/11
LT/60/11
LT/60/TT
LT/60/T11
LT/60/T1

LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LI/60/TT
LT/60/T1
LT/60/T1

LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T

LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT
L1/60/1T

LT1/60/1T

LT/60/1T
LT/60/11
LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T
LT/60/T1

LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT

qIva

# 0/4

SNIVIYEND ¥AMOKS TIWL
ON1d SSWNd /dV¥D MOId
S)X00€ 3d0D

SINFWIDVIdET ONILHOIT
ONTH00Td AALNZED VIVd

LT0Z ‘T AON-6T IDO

qT00 "d Savox
Savod
Savod

¥OLOEUTIA TYIIAINW

a¥ TI0L O0TT IXH/INI
ATYELEVAD JDIW
INYTd HEIUM

TIOL 00T

D zZLE

200A

HO

Sv$ X 6

1738 A -SL IS
dWYT-SIHOIT JLALS
SEAOTO 'SLSEA'SLVYH QAVH
140 NI 90N71&8-d0LS I1STY
dIYL HSIW

T0Z “ISA / 1TE SHA-INL
SIQ 29T DY vZT AMMDT

SEILITILA
INY Ad ANOd

AOVTE
NIWAY-vads

SEVL SONIS HLVKWNI

gy TI0L OTT

TIND ANVAOud

LE'T ISNOH 13N0D

ZE'T ¥ 71701 00T

6Z°T LNVId dILM

AN¥d0¥d HDONEJISHY 2L LS

SIdVd INYIUAH
ATA FANLILIV TYA-YTIO

NOILEI¥DSHA FDIOANI

LT/60/TT ¥HLSIOFA ADIHD

ALNNOD AZ¥0LS

ONI ‘S3ITE4NS TIVL SOI
Old SONILLIZ % HSOH

SI¥HD ‘dOOH

HOIA¥ES LICHND LOdEd FWOH

OHOS (Q¥V¥M HI¥N0d DI¥OLSIH

Q1T ‘I¥H

O ENAYM ‘MDIMANVYH

S3d ¥ FLIWYEL NISVE LVIUD

WOL ‘AYIASNVAD

UIONIVHED

WNITOALEd LHS/ELVO NIATIOD

0T ¥IAMOL TYEOTD

'Y Q¥YMAE ONIAAYIOD

@NITINC SHITAdNS IV LS¥Id

dT SYOTTIYNTS

ONI SESTYAYALNIT NOSNOUFA
HOANIA

LT/80/11
STETEd

69%06
89706

L9V06

99%06

S9%06

v9706

€9706

29706

19706

09v06

65%06

85706

LS¥06

95706

SS¥06

vSv06

HIEWNN
MDEHD
t 33eq uny
:ON 3xoday



00°Se6eZ
TZ°s¢

E0°TY¥Y

00 6€E

SZT°6€6°9
0S°0ST
0S°"€00°‘6%
00 0BL

96°€89°'1

66766
00°SET
08°609

€B8°9€9'T

80 ¥9T°€

86°CET
0L LOD'E6T
8V tL
TYLOL
MDFHD

v abeg

00°008°9
00°sez
12°S¢€

otT*%e
9612
0P 9T
9S5°0¢€
29°' 9%
20" zL
vZ ey
Lz 61
00" ZET
Y6 6€E
12t ey
€T22E

0s-vZe
00" TT
0S¢
SZT°6€6°'9
0S°0ST
0S"€00'6V%
00" 08L
oy 91

Py ST
G X4

vy 98L
89°189
8Z°vs
957801
€666
00°S¢eT
087602
ZE 8¢

26 TIEV'T
65° 991

9€° €9L
ZLe o0y’

86°2tC

oL LOO’€6T

15928
¥6528
SE928

gvoes
8v9cs
8v9¢Z8
15528
95928
9s9z8
959¢8
zr9zs
Z19ze
953928
95928
sysgze

65528
65SC8
65528
ovses
£8¢5e8
LLSZB
TLSZ8
€£65C8
£E6SCH
€652Z8
£652Z8
€£6528
£6SZ8
£65SZ8
[X4-k4]
oeszs
85928
5zsze
szsze
sgsce

65928
65928

sLSZ8

veszs

#SNVAL

LT/60/T1
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T

LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T
L1/60/1TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
L1/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
L1/60/TT
LTI/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
L1/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/T1
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LI/60/TL
LT/60/11
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT

LT/60/1T

LT/60/11

COA (et

ONITIIE JIEOLDO
T ¥dOI340 INII
WI

SEX0€ dFOVHE0LS
X0d HSYD

OWAQ Y04 STHEVT
HALYA ZOYSSHW JALVA

STIDNEd FIWWNI
SAVANATYD ‘S¥da1od F1I14

SIITddNS

LT0Z ‘T AON-6T 1LDO

dWNVD

SAYVD AVAITOH

NOISSIWWOD SEOVY TAWYD
¥NAS LNAE JYILSAO Av¥d-Hd¥d
SdI11d4dNs SWd

SEITddNS SKWE

SEITddNS SWZE

SEITddNS SKWH

Sd11ddNS SWaE

S417ddNS SWE

SAITddNS SWH

¥HOILH0 NOILOE¥IOD ‘Sloog

SATIATHS UIATONITN/NIAEN

LIANSYD ‘d¥D -t0v8ZMd
SEOHS 'WNAA €0Vv8ZMd
INEWLSNLAY LICIAD 4na

EDIJA0 LIOSOUDIW HONH Ivd
VIQAOFY MO¥d WWIA

DLS WId AON XHAOLS/LPTIN

EYHEY aVv0d LW

NOILAI¥YDSEA IDIOANI

LT/60/TT ¥ILSIOIE MDIHD

AINNOD ATHOILS

I LIFEOY ‘SINWOW
ZDA¥E ‘WAOLNOW

YAYWYL 'NYOIW

NI SNOILNTOS HADIAA0 OJLIW

NOISNYW AWADUW
VATTOULANOD 0D NOXT
ANYdWOD JEVYD NNAT

OTT SINIAY HN16 AINDIT

OTT SINIAZ INTE QINDIT

ONI LSISSY-3JIT
ANOHLNY ‘04471
SNOS 3 SILIND N 1

NOSNEOL ¥ aiyvMad =Ioane

21T d€r

07T aANOS TLI

NI LOW O3NI NIVINNOW NO¥I
TYES A¥ANTS NIVINNOWNILINI
"YOANIA

LT/80/11
STETEL

98%06
S8%06

v8voe

£8v0e6

Z8v06
18%06
08V06
6LY06

8LY06

LLYO6
9L%06
SLY06

vLY06

€ELV06

ZLvo6
TLv06
oLv06
HAGWNON
ADEHD

33eg uny
ON 3z0day



96°E6T

LA AR 400

00°L86°8

Py 9ST’T

£6'€0Z°8S
€67 LEY
007 00T
00°0%
00°s¢
05°959'9

§s*sLL’‘e

BT L6
527906
¥0°TILS'E

00"€£0°6

CELLL
00° 0S¥
S8 EL
8Z°9%0'Y
007008°9
TYLOL
JOFHD

S abeg

91 8¢t
v6° €2
v6 'tz
€T°L
00" 9V
86 ET
86" €T
[4: B 4
0§ 1€
LS°8Z

ST°00T
62776

00°LBE'B

88218
9S Ev¢E

£6°£02°8S
£6°LED
00°00T
00°0%
00°5¢€
06°969°9
09°L9L
0% %59°1
§S'ESE
BT LE
SZ2° 906
YO TILS'E
00" €6L"9
00°68T'T
00°0S
00" 928
00°SLT
ZELLL
00° 0S¥
B EL

8Z°9%0°%

LNNOWY

vLSZ8
Lzses
Lzszs
LZses
LZSZ8
LzZsze
LTSTH
LTST8
LzZsSze
L2s28

z99ze
29928

(14

SS5Z8
sssze

£€e9zs
€£5528
25928
9€928
9LSZ8
LESZE
6€£SZ8
6EGZ8
6€S28
09s28
va8ses
9zszs
8€92Z8
gegee
8e928
8€92Z8
BESZE
vssee
pvsze
v09Z8

S6528

#SNVAL

LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
L1/60/1T
LI/60/1T
LT/60/T1
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/11
LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T

LT/60/T1

LT/60/11
LT/60/1T

LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LTI/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
L1/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
L1/60/1T
L1/60/TT
LT/60/TT

L1/60/TT

aiva

# 0/d

§7dNS ADIAJ0 DSTIW/AINOL
ZYAILNV -XJvd

ZYATIINY O34

ONTd ¥IV¥ -dOHS

SWOOT ZAIM -AJA WOD
dITO ¥ NId vS0T1ZMd
F00YD -dWna

oN1d ¥IV -dOHS

170¥ ALTITILN

TVdS vr8tTsiad

IDad JIAMES

YIAAO TVIDAAS -SNOIS S DA

NOISSIWWOD OSNINNYIJ
Ldaa I¥Id

SNAY ETdILTINW
daLOd 1700 s3dd

SNYTd IAVOTdN DHD ATHLNW

HNAYENOQ ‘NIAAN
20-DS-MD¥-BTAJS

L1/z/v

LT/Z/6-L1/T/L
L1/€z/6-L1/61/8

WSIANOL ALID VINIDNIA
SANNOYOMNOVE ¥ INIUAYEONIS

LddS HOLWYW AINNOD

SEE4 1

AQ/RAOD 1¥ID ¥IAIOIEN TW
8T/2T OL 8T/T sand
HZEEAI TLNV

SYIVATY/LSEL MOTd VHOS

NOII&I¥DSHA FDIOANI

LT/60/TT YALSIDIY AIFHD

ALNOOD XZJOLS

ONI LOd2d FDISA0

SESIYGYALNT OLOY ATTIIFA.O

ILANEYA TIVW 3 LEOSTAd AN

OTT ONILINSNOD NOLJON

ONTI VIN¥OSITYD 40 TALXAN
SANYIdN VAVAEN

ONI FDIA¥ES TYDIT YAVAIN
(ONY) QLT ENTE YAVAAN
YHANSYIIL AAN

AIVIS J0 XAYLEUOHES AIN

SEOUNOSEE NVWAE AIN

ALTANDES INAWAOTAWE AIN
NOILVXVL Id3d AIN
ALFAVS OITENd 1d43d AIN

SEOUNOSIY NVWNH IJIC AEN

YITTOALINOD AN
YATIOULAWOD AEN

SEIINNOD SO NSSY TYNOILYN
SI¥Vd ¥OMML % OLOY WAWN
L2)3S AONID¥IWT TYdIDINOW
AOUNEA

LT/80/1TT
STETEd

90506

S0S06

v0soe

€0506

20506
T0S06
00506
66706
86706
LEVOE

96v06

56906
v6%06
£E6Y06

Z6v06

16v06
06706
68906
88706
L8Y06
YSEWON
XOEHD

a3eq uny
oN jxoday



S

00° 0L
88° 8L
0L*ZT¥ oL z1y
0086 Q08¢
00-09
0818 08" 18
00" o0s 00" 0S
86°LLOT B6°LLO'T
00° L2 0S¥
052z
02 60T 00°3Ss
0Z'es
00 LozZ 00°LQ2T
08°68 0868
00" v¥Y9 00*vv9
LE" 9L LE*SL
ST- €61 vz Lz
T6'S9T
00°<s2Z 00°s2
00°SLe 'Y 007008
co"o0D’Z
00°'000‘2
00°SLE
66°699'Z 66°699'2Z
00'szcz 00°SL
00°s¢L
00°sL
00°0€L 00°0€EL
vE“69 VE"69
-99°8¢€%'9
99°8Ev ‘9
00°'9¢€T 00°2€T
00V
0s-eg9z 0s°2Z9z
80°¥9¢€ 26°S2Z
TY.LOL LNOOWY
ADFHD
abeag

£0928
£09Z8

zLsze

zesZe
zegze

[24°F4:]
TZ9zZe
oo09ze

zgszs
z9528

18s28
14:3:14"

86528
Lesze
96528
ov9zZs

19928
19928

6esee
[44°%4:]
zvszs
[44°¢4:]
cvses
Le9gze
v1928
y192Z8
v19Z8
S19¢Z8
82528
gzsze
BZST8

T19sz8
T9sz8

o0sses
vLSZe

BSNWAL

LT/60/11
LT/60/11

LT/60/TT

LT/60/1T
L1/60/1T

L1/60/11
LT/60/1TT
L1/60/11

L1/60/11T
LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT
L1/60/TT

LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT
LT/60/11

LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LI/60/1T
L1/60/11
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/T1
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LI/60/11

LT/60/TT
Lt/60/11

LT/60/11
LT/60/TT

dLva

# 0/d

dl TIVL
TLIOHAVNGS ' SOVEHSWNL TIVD

HO¥HW dOHS 14ID

ATENYIL
ATV dOOTd

NOS ‘XO0€ ZONIAIAF
TOALNOD LSdd TOOMIDOT
NOTIWD €S

LTOZ ‘8T-5 LDO
LT0Z ‘T AON-6T 1DO

ATIN ELYKWNI
ATIN SLVANIT

SHI1T44NS SWA

SYIVAEE ISVHD dIZOA
WELSAS ONILYOJEN SWH/TATA
JdTZ0000DOSLT LNY¥YM HOWVES

NONYD ENS TOoOMMDOT
SI9 ¥OSSASSV JYIALLOTA

FO0IA¥ES WOOQULSHY -IW
SNOIIWTIHN DITHNd-NID
LINSNOD

DIAW DOS/SNOILVIEH
ISVEYIVA

L ‘¥OoIdav

OINVE TLLS

DINVd 9NS aM3O1T
WIVTY XATIWODDDOW
I¥ED NIVIL aWd

W3TT ¥IALTIL
HAYTIEMONS

HAVIIMONS

LI0Z ‘T AON-6T IDO
HOVE SL°€ 099S€L 1SnD
SY008IION

NOTLAI¥NOSAA HDIOANI

LT/60/1T WELSIDAY ¥DIHD

ALNOOD XHENOLS

III £ DINIWOQ ‘INOTIVAS

S ® INIM SARZVID NNEFHLNOS

VET OTT SIIALSNANI ADITS
‘00 NOILILSINDOV FIHDYIS
ONI TOYLNOD LS3Ed WMIAIS

ANVYAWOD TYOIWAHD YHNIIS

NATIV NVINE 'JYOHS

ONI SUOLAEIVYISIA NAVWNIHS
ONI 0Dddny

HONVINEWY NIVINNOW AMDOd
ONI ‘SWELSAS ONILIOJFY

dLEd ‘anVNIX

(¥D) ONI OD NVDHOW AW

O7TT 3D¥4S ardvy

ONI SAIDILVALS vy

INEWANTLIY ATdWE DITENd

ONI SHDIAHO NOIJIDHLO¥d

HOLIVASIO ALIVNOIY¥A TWOIAAW

N 1d33IM0d

Q OTIONVY ‘INIY¥ILAL

ONI LHSISNIWAIAO

d0aN=A

LT/80/1T
stTeETEd

LZS06

92506

SZs06
¥2soe
£2S06

22506

1Zs0e

0Zs06
61506
81506
L1506

91506

STS06

YIS06

€1S06

Z1506

T1S06

0T1s06

60506

80506

L0S06

UIEWON
ADIHD
a3eq uny
ON 3x0day



L

0s 8Ly

ZE"ZoL ‘e

£€0°2S

00°9%6 ‘T

00°005°2

96°LBS

00°69%

LT ESE’E

96 " VIE LY

92°6£0°ZEY

007001
Sv'S19
96° 169
88 871
TY.LOL
ADFHD

abeq

oo0-szt
0SS 8LY

g L1t
6£°098
I9°'vL9‘z
~76°6%

£0°2s

00°2%
00°v8
00°0ze't

00°00S‘e

L7062
be"ve
ssTeoc

00°69%

96°¥%¢

Zg 99

657821
S6"E€E
2S°LTT
[420% 44
0T°S9T
6S°BZT
62°16%
0Z°BL

6L°8ST
91602
LT oL

6S°8CT
6S°82T
LS 0%
SL"2ST
6S°82T
L8'OLT
0z 8L

96°ZLLTE
00°2Z¥S’'ST

00°0T
92°620°CEY

00°00T
SV ST9

95" 169

LNOOWY

BESCZS
0s9ze

oesce
oegsee
oegsze
0egsze

66SZ8

99528
99s¢8
99sZ8

9€£5¢Z8

8v5Z8
8v¥52Z8
8vsee

£9s28

[4 314 ]
[43-74-]
[43-74:]
zesze
[43-74:]
cesze
Zesee
zesze
zeses
Zeses
[A%14:]
[4334"]
[£2-24-]
zeses
[43-74-]
zesee
zgsece
[42°74"]
59528
€9528

81928
81928

vasce
EVSZe

Ls9ze
£1928

16S2Z8

H#SNWAL

LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T

LT/60/TT
LT/60/11
L1/60/1T
LTI/60/T1

LT/60/TT

LT/60/7T
LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T

LT/60/1T

LT/60/11
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT

LT/60/1T

LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T
LY/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/T1
LT/60/1T
LI/60/1T
LY/60/1T
LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/11
LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT

LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T

L1/60/TT

JLYda

NOIIDHATTIOD WOANWY FIJ
ZO0LTAD

00T T8d -HOA

09T 18a / 0€Z DIU-Md
1Sy 18a/ S8L 9FU-Md
LIAIAD TI0 IOSIK
SHIVAEY TLL

LT0Z ‘T AON-6T LDO

LIDANE 8T-LTI0Z ¥dd 4SVAT
H9Id
1IN

€/2 Jd4I¥HHS

EATM AAAYIIS

1s D ZLE

Te 802
zZ0-8se

LSNQOD MEN-XVI dO¥d IML
ISNOD MAN-XVI dO¥d TiL

LT0Z 'T AON-6T L1DO
JIATIOEE XWIL ALYEd0dd

LHOdSNWVAL FLYWNT

L¥0ddns 1Loo

NOILAI¥DS3A FDIOANI

L1/60/1T JIALSIOIY MDIHD

ALNNOD AZIOLS

QLT ONILSEL XTIWIL

‘ATEA ONOVLSWEY ‘ TYANSOHL

07T WOFTOMLAd SYWOHI

INFWGINDI YOIHIANS

SESTYA¥IINT AVAd NNS

FS50d ddEL ALNNOD AFIOLS

' SNOILUDINNWAOD ¥VISZAVLS

ONI '0OIONY ANNOSYVLS

WHLSAS ¥ELVM 0D 1S

HIEOSYIAL 0D LS

IDINVLSIA TOOHDS 0D 1S
SY¥OM JITENd QD 1S
FONVINEWY 0D 1S

ONI SEDIA¥ES ALITILAN €4S
AOANIA

LT/80/T1
STETEd

T¥S06

0vSs06

6£506

8ESO6E

LESO6

9€S06

SES06

vEsoe

€ES06

ZES06

T€506
0ES06
62506
82506
AIENON
ADEHD

83eq uny
oN 23xoday



8

ZT LLL BES'T

8 ¥8

05" 862

TS LE
00°91sS

00°8€0'T

00186

1S AR4 %
¢o0-segt
TYLOL
MOFHD

abedq

TYLOL SMDEHD
ve"v8
09-°8s
00" 06T
00°0s
1s°LE
00°381S
00°9T
00°9L6
00" 9%

00 9€6
00°sv

12 2¢¢

LNNOWY

veses
€€ses
£EsSZe
£ESZ8
10928
9¥%52Z8
89528
BISZs
89s2Z8

L9szs
L9sZs8

80928

#SNVUL

LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
L1/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT

LT/60/T1
LT/60/TT

LT/60/TT

qLva

SONITANOD HOd SLANSYD
AVAL INVND

E¥Y0 D¥0 TLL ITOD TILYTIVY
WJOATITOD "MVIOL

WOOY ¥HA¥IS 1T

STE°9LT SIUN ONILSEL ¥NA

LTOZ ‘T AON-6T 1DO

LT0Z ‘T AON-6T 12O

QISUNESIA LNIWHSINIVD

NOILAT¥DSEQ FIDIQANI

LT/60/11T ¥ALSIOEA ADIHD

AINNOD AA¥OLS

0D Z7ddNS YAWAIN NAILSEM

VT TYLNTFWNOIIANT NYILSHM
ONI 0DaaM

VAVAEN ‘ALNNOD JOHSYM

ONI S¥ENOL ALID YINIDNIA

0D MY aMIONUL ¥ VINIDAIA
ONI 1DW SEOIANES HSVD ¥Sn
JOoaNan

LT/80/1T
STETEd

8vS506

LPS06
9%s0e

S¥S06

Y¥S06

EVS06
Z¥S06

AHEWNN

MOAHD
ajeqg uny
ON 3x0day



T

TYI0L
qavD

abedq

88°96
0098
S0°T6
2€ 898
92°9s¢
§9°0S¢
L6 9
8L 07
08°6
L8"ST
96°'TT
00°6%
00°
00°6¥%T'T
Se"T
0E"ET
Z6°68
00°TT
SL'6
S6°TT
£8°5¢
TE"ZSE
00°%ST
0S°0T
13 -1
¥9°692
9z ze
9L’ TE
Z6°ET
vi'ee
€57 v
$6°91
99799
0L 6S
o 08P
¥6°61
09°639L°T
0s°029
92°9¢
o0 02
0z L
8L TL
-8z
00°66T
£€6°SS
-9€° 19T
00°S6T
00798
887 SL
00°0S6
86" €S
00°0s6
00°0€E
LT ECT
LETET

LINNOWY

SPZT
S¥21
SvZtT
SPZT
SPCT
SveZtT
92T
SvetT
6ECT
LETT
LETT
LETT
LIST
LTIST
LTIST
v¥el
Evel
LETT
LTST
LTST
LTST
LEZT
LEZT
8ETT
8ECT
8ECT
6€TT
LISt
LIST
LIST
LTIST
S€EeT
9tc1
9¢21
LTST
vt
Ivet
2721
[AZAs
cveT
LETT
BEZT
8ecT
LISt
LIST
0vzl
ozt
0veT
(440
LTST
LIST
LIST
LTST
(4440
LETT

#SNYIL

LT/60/1T TSA ENS dOOMAD0T

LT/60/11 18C vLLS
LT/60/1T 1sa 0SoA
LT/60/TT OILdLOETE AVEATED

LT/60/TT ¥Q LNEWIINOE SDOIHAWEO

LT/60/T1T AZT WOD SHIINIYA
L1/60/11T DSIa IA0D ONIATING
LT/60/TTAYAY ANV LIIX LAVISMOL
LT/60/T1 SAWVLS
LT/60/T1 FOVILSOd
LT/60/TT FHYLS0d
LT/60/TT FOYLS0d

LT/60/TTHOUVES /¥YED HAILDILO¥G
LT/60/TTTD ¥ANIWYXE SNVId OATE
LT/60/1T HOUVESEY
LT/60/TT LT/ST/0T ATB6000UIST
LT/60/1TNS DSIW/ISNON/A¥YOEAEN
LT/60/TT ONILIIN-ONINAVE
LT/60/TT SNEHAALS'L - SIITIINW
LT/60/TT SNIHAILS L - SEITTIW

LT/60/1T TLYPEZ6Z SIITTIN
LT/60/1T SYIVATA ¥IOVE/OTAVYH
LT/60/1T SYIVATI INIWIINOH
LT/60/TT dODEA TTIVE
LT/60/TT AANWD/HZI1¥d NIIMOTIVH
LT/60/1T ONILIEN
LT/60/TT dAISEHAY /QOOMXTd

LT/60/TTHINAYIS/TTUM/JI0-¥0DEA
L1/60/1T SYALSINVE/NOEEIY
LT/60/TTVEAL/XOTHL TOOHIS WITH
LT/60/TININIWIL SIS/ADEIEAON 'S

L1/60/1T M00H IEY
LT/60/1T SAQUYD XIANI
LT/60/1T YANOL WEINIdE
LT/60/1T 65Z€8020TILT0Z NED

LT/60/TT ZSNOH L¥D IAOAW ENOHJ
LT/60/1T aood ELVWNI
LT/60/TT ¥SAD/VYISAN ¥Od TALOH

LT/60/1T d00d FIWWNI
LT/60/1T S3IT4ANS AVANAVT TIVL
LT/60/1T FHYLSOd
LT/60/TT  OLW ONINNYIE ONH ¥X

LT/60/TT ¥AAODTOL LLODS M OIW
LT/60/TT LSHL X3 SNVY1Id 90714
LT/60/1T VILLIAT HONVSINN
LT/60/TTWOOY AATTIONYD -ANNATA
L1/6C/1TY¥D 4EWE SILIND L -DHIY
LT/60/TINAD AOOMXI0T -IINYILNI
LT/60/TTHULS D S ZLE -IINYFLINI
LT/60/TTID VANIWYXH SN¥Id HATE
LT/60/TTINA TOOHDS/ENIHOVW 904
LT/60/TTTO WANIWVXHA SNV1d HAId

LT/60/11 ANOWHIED
LT/60/11 SSYTD 0Id ¥Oi THALOH
LT/60/1T SYIVAaY 2L 1S

a1va NOILdI¥DS3a

YHLSIDIE QIVYD IFSYERING

ALNNOD AZYOLS

a6 7EZ0 A6 MANLINS
NEODZODEMANLIWS
MAXIZOOEMANLLWS
0LE69VIIE

08LSLELT

EEE99BLT

LI/T0/TT

$TOLYO

TE/0T HHAONITAHHES
LTZOTT S4Sn 17ISSNA
LTTEOT S4ASn 1TISSNA
LTSZOT S4Sn TIESSNA
anyNzy

anvnNzy
SYIANIIZTE0Id Md
TOYISOd ALINUOINA
L0d3ad FOIdd0

FIV HOHV.L-ONIE NIAHN
® HONNT/ONINVEL MW
® HONQT/ONINIVAL MW
@ HONNT/ONINIVAL MW
FIIM WIZA EOHNOTINDOW
FNOSHY SWO AUTTONITH
IIDIVL ad

LIDIvL ad
TIINYEddEd aX

TE/OT NYWIOHL
NIEMOTIVH- LAVATYM 30
SYWX-9NTD SWYS 4r
AONYD-€NTO SWYS 30
2SH ONILSVOY dr
¥vZ0Z99™ " "# ANI
ETPSTES " "# ANI
8€8S02Z° " "# ANI
aooH

10430 EWOH

ODNIM ‘NES0d

TELOK 1d OS ‘NEsoa
SHLIWS ‘NEsoa

dEYL JY¥IT00 ‘NISOQ
LTITOTT SdsSn S NOXIQ
10430 3HL aa

FIOYIVd aa

SILNND

SILAND

LINTIOAHINOS -NTIAHN'D
SMOHSZYIJ -NIAEN'D
ILY -NIAEN D

LLY -NIAFN'D
ATEAVIE

ATANVTE

0QIAZZY

SAYVMY NMYAE OV
LEDONNIATOD  OUONILNY
10430 FWOH SNINXAY

LINHNAYd QEVD TVIDYIWWOD IANO STTIM

# EDIOANI Id3Q-aNNd

AOANITA

LT/BO/TT

Tzt

FIEMNN
Jd

2320 uny
LS08%SEJ :ON 2x0day






9€°¥ST ' E9E

9€°¥SZ ' LSE

00°000°9

Te305
¥23YD

ASNJOLLY IOI¥LSIA

ZLVa NOTIVZIYOHLNY ONV METATY J0 INIWIDATTMONIOY

9E " $SZ LSE 9T LT/60/TT
00°000°S ST LT/60/1T
Junowy £I3YoNoA  93eq

¥1S € S 0T

A¥ES J0¥d LTO0Z ACON

uotidrxosag

LT/60/TT S3OaYD SDTUOIISA[F X003 a23stboy
ALNNOD AZ¥0LS

12301 SYoay)

TOA0TO-LSTSOLTO JSE

VYAVAEN 40 FTLIL JODIL 0T

TT-OS-LT ANI
OT1 4N0¥D ¥ALIOA 3

20TOAUT IOPUSA IaquanN
¥03yD

LT/80/TT * @3eQ uny

HO0BETEd ‘ON JxOodoy



1

00°0S7%
€9°16

S9°69¢E

BE'L6T

66" V26 YT

YETPIE
0o0°oe

LS V6S

96°6S

05" SLY

oL 02
00709
§9°81

00" %SE'TT
8Z2'60T
t6°9T%
88°890°L09
9S°EST

S9°LET

00°00S‘¥y
gL ¢ge
00769T
IYLOL
ADFHD

abegq

00" 0S¥
€97 16
09°te6
667 68T
50°98
8E°L6T

66 6VL VT
00°SLT

bE"PIE
00702

9S° ¥SS
T0"0Y

gL' ¥
QzZ°ss

0S°21?
00° €9

oL 0z
00709
G981

00 PSE‘TT
82°60T
c6°9Z%

BB 890°L09
95" €St

e TL
vLTVL
250t

8s" 8L
LL®

08" €T
00°00S’7Y
€L e

C0'69T

INNOWY

L6828
11628
sz8ce
z06z28
zoeze
10628

91828
voézs

ov8Ze
91628

TE82Z8
88828

71828
77828

98LZ8
98LZB

6E828
15828
28828
61828
€6LZ8
[44:k4:]
18828
s8Lze
T08Z8
To08Z8
£9828
£9828
£9828
£9828
26828
19 4:14:]

LSBZB

#SNWEL

LT/80/21
L1/s0/21
LI/80/21
L1/80/21
L1/80/2t
LT/80/2T

LT/80/2t
LT/80/21

Lr/80/2t
LT/80/2T

L1/80/21
tt/8o/zt

LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T

LT/80/2T
LT/80/ZT

Li/80/2t
Lt/80/2t
Li/80/zt
LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T
L1/80/21
L1/80/21
LT/80/2T
L1/80/21
LT/80/2T
LT/80/21
LT/80/Z1
LT/80/2T
L1/80/21
LT/80/2Z1
Lr/so0/et

LT/80/21

aLva

# 0/a

ONILINEYWN ENITNO

SZ$ FFA ILVT TONI

J3IHD NOITVLLVE

a¥y SSIWWOD SNINNWYIL
FDILON OIT€nd

€¥9-€£8¥92T ¥N/ATH WIA-OWI

I¥0ddNS WWEO0¥d LT0Z DEa

ISYNESIA ININSINAYD
SEE4d 1¥N0D 9NAA 0D AFAOLS

HdI4 T0000-LT9LSOZPE
WIVa avdIl

YZLYM NIQIYD TOOMAD0T
JAMES [/ FILUM

LT0Z 6Z/TT1-91/TT

SIHOIT FSNOHLANOD
NOILVHLSININAY DITENd
SWAOJINN MW

LHDISYIAC J0TIAATA WWOD
¥X sSavdr

T¥OISAHd TYNNNY

L0-2Z6 WASN

ZSS6E0T0Z #1DDOY

dOHS

dOHS

AYANOVT 7L LS

AJANQVT SL 1S

AdANOVT 2L LS

A¥ANQYT TL LS

L20d INSWIAOYIWI VALUM
JANVI ¥EIVM Md

ONIIYIH DDIW

NOILJI¥OSEA IDIOANI

LT/90/2T ¥ILSIDIY NOFHD

AINNOD AZAOLS

ONI V¥SN SHOIVA
+ YIOEW SIdIONOD HAIIVIAD

ayavd TYIDYEWOD S¥H OOLSOD

(DA) FTOINOYHD ADOLSWOD

TOS INWONW WND0d ZIFTIWOD

ORI LSEHD ALINOWWOD
ASN 20 IDIAY¥ES NOILDETTIOD

YTIANSYIUL NOSUVD J0 ALID

dIHSYANILIYG ODTT3D

NEWEAQYAWI TVEENID NOANWO

SIMET 1LIODOS ‘TTIawdiNg
NYWET1Ng

a TIESSNE ‘NOANVIE

C(NY ONILNI¥d NIFYOS Fdd
S ONILTNSNOD N¥Of HTLIWL
01T II ALITIEOW L3LY
SSANTTEM ONY HLIVIH O¥W
NOILONALSNOD SEWY

dT ANVdOAd SYOIUIWY

ONI 00STY

OTT ADOLSWOD TIV
QIZI¥OHLNVY SINITHAYD NVTY
d dI¥ldEd ‘Nmoud

YOANIA

LT/90/2T
sTETEd

08906
6L306

8L906

LL906

9L906

SL906
¥L906

£L906

ZL906

TL906

0,906
€9906
89906
L9306
99906
§9906
¥9906
£9906

29306

19906
09906
653906
85306
YIENON
MDHHD

1 @3eg uny
:oN 3xodsy



4

€€°056"

00°09%°

€8°2IL’

0z 0¢

LS LBS’

gL zoz

09 SET”

£€9°LE

00" 96t

0L zZLe”

oV YiY

TYLOL
AUDIHD

abeg

0Z°STT

T ZLtszs't
9 vev

S 00°09%’S

4 0% 9SS
9" veo
T2°SYS
6S°L0L
SE"6LT

gg o€
vE LS LBS'VE

LS 19
12°1%T

3 09°SET’9
€9°LE
00° 96t

T 80" 92
vL"98
86" 6T
00°97%¢€
9" LOT
88" LL
L8
0¥- €S
00°SLT
LT LE
BT 6V

-68°ST
0S°982
SETOE
oL zv
oL zv
6L"S

-90° 602
ve" L6
1332 4

s8'28
S6°S¢
S6° %S
S6's2
S6°0€
S6°9¢
S6°0¢
S6°EL
06" 1S

INNOWY

BoBCZ8

Loeze
Loscs

oveze

BEBLTS
BEBZ8
141:14:
geEgze
998ce

svees
s8gze

16828
16828

S58¢8
s3828
Lv8C8

€08zs
E0BZ8
£E0BZ8
£08Z8
£08Z8
£0828
£08¢8
€£0828
€08ze
€08¢8
£t08zce
€08ze
£08Z8
€0828
£0828
£0828
£0828
€o0ece
£08¢C8
€08ze

osecs
B86LC8
B6LZ8
eveze
voses
v9828
v9ece
voecs
z0ees

H#SNAL

Li/80/2t

Lr/80/2t
L1/80/21

L1/80/21

L1/80/21
L1/80/21
L1/s80/2t
L1/s0/2t
LT/80/2T

L1/80/21
L1/80/21

L1/80/21
L1/80/21

Lt/8o/zt
LT/80/21
L1/80/21

L1/80/2T
Lt/s8o/zt
LT/80/2ZT
L1/80/2T
L1/80/2t
Li/80/2t
Li/8o/zt
LT/80/21
L1/80/21
Lt/8o/2t
L1/80/21
L1/80/2T
LT/80/2T
L1/80/2t
L1/80/21
L1/80/21
Lt/80/21
L1/80/2T
L1/80/21
L1/80/2t

L1/80/2t
LT/80/2T
L1/80/21
L1/80/21
LT/80/TT
L1/80/21
LT1/80/2T
L1/80/21
L1/80/2T

qLYa

S¥ILTIA -0dEd SOLT

Z8Z 1S / 69% "INQ -I¥L
¥ZT 71Sa / 08 TN -MT

FTAT YOEETST

INVId 1M
ESNOHLINOD
INY40¥d

INVTd TId JILUM
ANVdO¥d VL IS

SETNELHOIT
L0-2Z6 Y¥ASN FIVIATA

aoOMdD0T IHA40D AON
QOOMYD01T FFJ30D Ldds

SLHOITS NILLIEM L¥d
YAIEOD 61699202 IOWIINOD
0"0%PE0S LDOV

HIELTIA 2€ENT -SAY0od
ONI¥IELS ¥3IM0d 9ZEBTOS
YELTIA ¥IY 8209934

WSNY ¥ETO0D 92€8Y0S

WSY dilld -9ZEBTOS
FZITEATINY SLENIL

JILTd TINT TYLEOMG

aNZ gO¥ =EIL -8¥%81S0S

LIX aOW "INII ZPLEIMA
SYILTId -SAVOAMd

OSNIS FYNSSEAE HJIL 0L-Dd
SYIAAITYO -¥1ZZ90S

SYILTIS -TLY

Sav¥d Tvdad 05s0Tmd

SEAVIE -9ZEBYOS

SIAVTE ¥IJIM -FAIL
LSO¥JET ¥0d ¥OLOW TT195934
LINIEYD €108

SYALTIL ZL-IM

JALTII ¥IV 0SS0ZMd

qOOMADOT FDIAYIES JILUM
TYLINZY JIT00D
ONHD ¥FALTIA ¥ ONINVITID

AMANOYT SL LS
AAANOYT PL IS
YAILEM TL IS
AMANOYT ZL IS
STVINIY ¥dTO00 HO

NOILAIADSTC FDIOANI

LT/90/2T JYHLSIDIAA XOFHD

ALNNOD XEACLS

YIONIVED

WOETOYLEd 1IS/FIVD NIATOD

‘¥ QuvMdd ‘ONICAVIO

dT SYDTTIEAHA
ANVAWOD TYNHLSVA

ONI¥EHNIONT LISEM WAV

0D SO¥d ¥IAWYVA
¥OISSHr ‘NIVA
NId TYIDEEWWOD MNVHEYEAT

LSNIYMS ¥ IJYOHL NOSHOIdH

ONI X7ddNs OLNY LLOITIE

JOANIA

L1/90/21

16906

06906

68906

88906
L8906

98906

S8906
78906
£8906

28906

18906

AFEWON
ADFHD

a3eq uny

STETEd ‘ON 2x0day



€

00°0§
ez LIT
L9°999°T
0097
TS°"9€E1’2
LE°LS

68°0¢€

BE 692

P¥LBT

00°00S

LL T88

»STVZY I

Y 0671

o009
8% L6T

v ¥S0°¢€

00°S0%

00092

00°sov
BL"90€E
TYLOL
MJFHD

abeq

96°80T
%27 882

00° 0§

zZ L1t
L9°999°1
00°vY
1s°9¢et’'e
L6°LS
-00°L8
-95°80T
00°BET
S¥°T

00" L8
BE"69C

vv-zzZ
-0C"SE

00°00S
vSTLSE
95°0¢T
L3 £6€E
IR ZA AR At

Z0"6¢
ZH IST

00°09

8b L6T
TL BLY
PEILSE’T
§0°8T0"T
00°S0%
00759
00°59
00°59
00°89
00°50%

6L°SE
6L°S6

LINOOWY

|

vS8e8
68828

Loe6ze
€Lges
s1ece
LBLZE
0s8ze
vzeee
iL82e
TLeee
Lees
TL8Z8
T.8Z8
0L8zs

€1828
£1828

L1828
£S8Z8
z58zs
€seze
[44:74"}

[A%:34}
ci8ces

gL8Z8
zLees
60828
60828
60828
89828
Lsezs
L98Z8
L98Z8
L9gzZe
£ET6C8

808Z8
8oBze

#SNWHL

Lr/80/zt
LT/80/21

LT/80/2t
L1/80/2T
LT/80/2T
LT/80/21
LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T
L1/80/21
LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T
L1/80/2T
L1/80/21

L1/80/2T
L1/80/21

Lt/80/z1
L1/80/21
L1/80/2t
LT/80/2T
L1/80/21

LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T

L1/80/21
L1/80/21
L1I/80/2T
L1/80/21
L1/80/2T
Lr/gojet
LT/80/TT
Lt/80/et
Lt/80/2t
LT/80/2T
Lt/so/zt

L1/80/2T
LT/80/2T

FIva

# 0/d

Jdd¥d AdOD
SHI17ddNS ONILWIEI0

¥IVdTE Fdd
LI0ddNS WIO0Hd LT0Z JEA
LT0Z 62/1T-9T/1T
SEALNAWOD HOIVASIA

HATT FEATILEN

$9ELTBANI NINLIY

62¥928 ANI NINLIA
SEIT4dNS SKHA

SEITddNS SHIE

SFITIENS SKHI

SATAIHS D€/1LdVD

FTAYMAUYH DOSIW
LIEEO

¥IDIZI0 HLIVAH LTIOZ D3
SLi¥¥d JALNANOD L¥d

NOEEI¥ ¥OT0D SITOAX
SLY¥¥d ¥ALNLWOD Lvd

SIVINELYIW ENIT ¥IV
OW ‘SIIYILLVE ‘SIHOITHSYI1A

YITIIH IAYILH

qaMs

Savod

Savod

Savod

SYIVAEY JOOd FOWMWD TL IS
TOdLNOD LSEd TL IS
TOALNOD LS3d 2ZL 1S
TO¥INOD LS3Id ¥L 1S
TOMINOD LS3Ed SL IS
S¥$ X S¥H 6

YASNAISIA dOLS Lsad
YISNIASIA dOLSLSIAH

NOILAI¥DSIA ADIOANI

LT/90/2T ¥ALSIDIA MNDIHD

AINNOD AJAOLS

NI SNOILATOS FDIZA0 OULIW
AHLOWIL ‘AHI¥YOOW
SISTUIITLNT NINIVW

YLD ALINNWAOD NIVMI MUVW
NOISNYW XW¥ADVI

ONI SITNEOLWIOEVT VI

d3IT TYNOILVN NTODNIT

ONI LSISSY-HJIT

SNOS % SIL¥ND N 1

LSEMATW TIVENIX

OdanW NYNNETOW O SHEWVL

071 FDAN0S TLI

HLTVEH NMOLIWOH

HDIA¥ES LIAHED LOdEA IWOH
aMVIE ‘¥ITIIH

QLT INIWW TIOVd A7ddNS TH

alr1 “L¥H

00 IOWVYVYO QYIHAIAO NISNVH

S8d ¥ HLIWYEL NISVE LvIdy¥O

WOL 'X¥IESNVHO

FOANIA

L1/90/2t

T1L06
0TLOE
60L06
80L06
LOLOG
30L06

S0L06

¥0L06

€0L06

20L06

10L086

00L0OE

66906

86906
L6906

96306

56906

¥6906

£6906

Z6906

ATENON
ADFHD
23eQ uny

STETEd :ON 3xodax



v

60°0PT

007099

00-00Z'V

00°9871

0S"8BLS

€EL°66T°T

8% L8
B6°LST'T
8S°LTS
00°ST
8Z°89

CL 6SL
85°S8S’E

00°TTI8‘9

T6 ESL'T
00°009‘%

L6°209

TVIOL
ADIHD

abeg

00°2Zs
00°22

60°0%T

00°S¢tE
00°sze

00°00Z'%

00'00T
00°98

0S°8BLS

-68 %%
6V°9
LT°20T
86°SS
LE'TE
£6°€9L
66° %9
LEITT
ov-e2
CE'ET

BV LS8

86 LST'T
86 LTS
00°ST
82°89
TLTBSL
85°58S°¢€
00°S€0°S
00°198
007029
00" SET
00°s¢
00°S2T
26 ESL'T
00°009"%
€V 8T
=Z9°LT
95'89

8T 11T
2z sz

LINOOWY

68LTB
68LZ8

oL8es

L88C8
L8828

vesze

€E82Z8
oceze

vLgze

9zgze
szezs
92828
92828
gzece
aceee
gzees
gzgee
9zeze
ggeee

Lzges
£6828
LT6Z8
606ce
vosze
s08Zs
ozsze
0T6C8
0Teze
oTézZR
otTece
oT6ce
01628
81628
£EvBZ8
0o8zZs
ooszs
68828
»S828
vseze

H#SNWHEL

LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T

Lt/80/2T

L1/80/2T
L1/80/21

LT/80/21

LT/B0O/2T
LT/80/2T

LI/BO/CT

LT/BO/CT
LT/BO/2T
LT/80/2T
L1/80/21
LT/80/21
LT/80/2T
LT/80/et
LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T

Lt/eo0/zt
LT/80/2T
LT/80/21
L1/80/2t
L1/80/21
L1/80/21
L1/80/2T
LT/B0/TT
L1/80/21
LT/80/2T
Lt/so/zt
Li/go/et
Lt/80/2t
Lt/80/z2t
LT/80/2T
Lt/eo0/et
LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T
LT/80/2T

FLva

# 0/d

LTO0Z 62/TT-91/11
AVTIEY SLOLIMG

HSN0H L¥D LDIASNI TVNNNY
I¥L ID4SNI TUYNNNY

L10Z/%0/2T FILVA TIIL

QYVOETTIIE FJINS SVWLSIUHD
STIEVT DONITIVH

STYOISAHE QéA
LIQIED 0409 3¥Id
TENNQA -dOHS

S7100L -dOHS

HONTSEM O¥OL-dOHS
SYHALTIE -SAVOH
SANYLS “XOVL FOWAYO
LNOOK T1IVE

STI¥d ® HOLIH

WAELS TA 0LDE
96TPSES -0LD€

LHOIT IAVOIWAVE ITIWS
NOISSIWWOD ONINNY'Id

QILOITIOD $3TI

NSTENOL ALID VINIDMIA
1¥0 aNZ NOILONAO¥d ISd

HOLVIW AINNOD ¥ILEOLOO

aq

a3

AQ/X30D JYED JAAYODIH ‘IW
LWLS LTOZ HIEWIAON

FIJUYHS /3NSSIL/SNEd
NINLEdE

SHITddNS OSIW

ANI dS - SHX0€ FJOWAOLS
SY3AT04

NOIIAI¥DSIA ADIOANT

LT/90/2T VALSIOFA MNDEHD

ALNNOD AZAOLS

a OTIONY ‘INI¥LIA

SHETYS LININdINDE SNIMO

NOILOALO¥E EY¥Id AVIRIANO

NVOL ‘INNOESO

IS ¥ SOIHAW¥D dAIS JHL NO

FINFD HLTVYEH TYNOILYANDDO

SISTYSYIINT OLOVY ATTIHH.O
07T DNILTNSNOD NOLION

ONI VINNOJITYD 40 THLXEN
ONI EDIA¥ES TIVDIT VAYAEN
YTIANSYIAL AIN

NOILVXVYL LJdad AEN

ALEAVS JITENE J0 ILdEA AAN

SEOUNOSTE NYWNH IdIA AN

YITIOULEN0D A3IN
YITTIOALANOD AIN

L I¥FEH0¥ ‘SIWIOW

JOANZA

Lr/so/et
STETEd

BZLOG

LZLOB6

9ZL06

SZL06

vZL06

€2L06

22Los
12L06
0zLoe6
6TLO6
BTILOE
LTLOSE
9TLO6

STLOE

YIL06
ETILOE

ZTIL06

YIEWON

ADEHD
93eg uny
oN 3xoday



S

v oc
6€°818
LT 9ET
80°521
91" 9L
69°52¢
007091
68°SP
vz-es
66°S0T
B0 €L
SE° 9%
91°06
90°911
EL"968

00°8v8 ‘e 00°80T

oo-ooL‘e

66 9%¥ 66°92L
-00°082

00211 00°89S
0095

veE"€S vEES
2% SS¢ 2y SSE
go'122 00122
00" %99 00" ¥y

6E°9LY ¥ t6¢€
86°28

00°SET‘YV 00°SEZT’'V

00°SL6 ‘S 00°000°T

00°s2
00°s2
00°Ss2T
00°sz

006°000°2
00°000°2

00°008
0C"SLE

00°006°T 00°006°T

oo oLz 00°sL
oo ozt
00°S¢L

L6 06T'T LET06T T

00" vL
TY10L LNNOWY
ADEHD

abeq

A¥V¥d  SNIAWITO WWS 067%
TIVL TPE AME SN 116

veges LT/80/2T
reece LT/80/2T

y€828 LT/80/21 08 I1Is D s Ss0¢
vececs LT/80/2T 08 1S O § €02
veeze LT/80/2T ¥a IS O § 10¢
veEBZE LT/80/2T Z/T d0HS @y 1701 00T
veEezZs LT/80/21 9074 @I TI0L OTT
veEszs LT/80/2T 2078 @I TI0OL 0ET
veeezs LT/80/2T dOLS1SEY 1S O N 18€
veEszs LT/80/21 LINO IS O N SPT1

vEBZB  LT/80/2T
fa%:4:] L1/80/2tT
v€E8T8  LI/80/21
¥€828  L1/80/2T
¥€828  LI/80/ZT

SHY J¥ IHOIAMLIYD ZI9Z

¥ LS AVM NOANVD TE¥
dSHAWNd LHOIEMI¥YD 0192
LHDIT 1S SYINOISSIWWOD OS
SIHODIT IS ALID VINIOAIA

0€8Z8 LI/80/2T
ogses LT/80/21

SAUITOS 48NS 'LLL “Hd ' SA08
D13 'SEESY 'XOIQ'HdL ' STYLIN

d3d ¥ ¥IMIs
ANQ&EEE LISOddd

62828 L1/80/2T
6T8TB  LT/B0O/ZTT

958Z8 LT/BO/ZT
95828 LT/80/2T

ATIW TLWWNI
ATINW FLVWNI
[AL34:] Lr/so/et AETTIOULIWOD
gzece LT/B0O/CT SUFMAVAN MOTd
S6828 Lt/80/2t dOHS LII9-INI¥d SONW NIL
sLeee LT/80/2T WILSAS ONIINO4IE SWE/FAIL

988Z8 LT/80/2t
988z8  LT/80/2T

WIOJINL -AETINS
WIOAINAN AZTINS

868Z8 LT/80/2ZT ¢01s0so00

96LZ8  LTI/80/TT
81828  LT/80/2T
81828  LT/B0/2T
818Z8  LT/80/21
81828  LT/80/2T
81828 L1/80/21
81828  LI/8B0/CT
81828  LT/80/2T
81828 L1/80/21

LT/0E/TT-0€/6 AIW TYIDOS

ONIANYYW TYIDOS SNOILWIZH
HOVIELAO I¥L VIAAW

¥d ANV ONTLINEYW

NIIL¥OdTY ‘ONINOLINOW
668C8 L1/80/21 TIIIFY ¥ILAW
ONINYOLINOW HSNOH I¥N0D
WYVIV F9Id LOdEd HO
WYY H¥Id dAINED SIA

06878  L1/80/21
88LZ8 LT/80/2T
88LZ8 L1/80/21

s0828 Lt/80/zt TLPELLYPOEE ESVIT

H#SNWIL q1va # 0/4 NOI1LdT¥JS30 FDIOANI

LT/90/2T ¥ALSIDIA MDITHD
ALNNOD AZ¥0LS

0D ¥AMOZ DIJIDVd WAUEIS

TYLNEWNNOIIANE WHIIAIS

ANVAWOD TWOIWZHD WE¥HIS

ONI SYOLNEIYLSIA AAYWNHIHS
a7 NI SEOIAYIS TVE0TO D€S

3LLENDOHD HAHLS
SOIHAWEO ¥ €3M (QYYNODEIVS

ONI ‘SW3LSAS ONILIOdFY

"OTT TYOILDOWL SWDEA SV

dTLIVO ® ONYT ONIY

ONI SFIDIIVILS avd

¥IMOd FSVHINNA

ONI SIDIAZA NOILOHALO¥A
(VET) IVEOTIO SEMOE AINLIA
HOANEA

LT/90/21
STET8Ed

27L06

TvLOG

0%LOS6

6ELO6
BELOS
LELOS
9€L06

SELOG

VELOS

EELOG

CELOB

TELOE

0£L06
62L06

WIFWNAN

¥OEHD
23eq uny
ON 3z0day



9

2L %89

6L°8T2 192

6L°LLO'T

00°8
CT"8€Z°T
00" 8E

86°LTZ'0T

TYLOL
ptelceite]

abeg

gz 8L
99°0ST
z6°29
6S°821
6S'8CTT
6Z°0%1
6T v¥L
6S°8CT
0z 8L
66°1ST
00°0S
SL'8TS
LB ES
0T 29
6L°8T1Z 192
£€5°S5%
gz zzes
008
0T "8€Z'T
00°8BE
89°812C
88 865
S¥ 00T
EE"EL
1Z°¢€E
[4 3N 43
YLIOLT
98°L1T
ST°89
T6°S2C6
9Z'921
EIARA NN
2P P1IT
T6°LL
09°02s
Z6°60S'T
€2'LE
§S°9S¢
£€S° 982
v0' €t
00°9LT
99°6¢t
v°'ss
ce'ee
96°2¢
[4: AR %3
91" 8¢
9Z°3961
PL 199
INQOWY

SE8Z8 LT/BO/2T
S€828  LT1/80/ZT
S€828  LT/BO/ZT
s€gzs  LI/80/2T
SE€B8Z8 LT/80/2T
S€EBZ8  LT/80/2T
SEBZ8  LT/80/2T
S€8zs LT/80/21
96828  LTI/80/2T LO04dad HD
96828  LT/80/Z1 DILOA

80628 LT/80/21

11828 LT/80/2T lI
90628 LT/80/2T
90628 LT/80/21
1628 LT/80/21 AIATIIOITE XYL AL¥IJO¥d

8s8z8  L1/80/21
8s8z8  L1/80/21

LY0dSNWEL FLVANI
LIOISNVAL FLVWNI

198¢8 L1/80/2¢1 QHEA¥d L¥OHS ANI IDO

[4%:34] L1/80/21 HO¥IW dOHS 1J4ID

01828 L1/80/21 SEANIVLS

€828  LT/B0/ZT
¥€E828  LT/80/2T
vEBZ8  LI/BO/ZT
vEBZB LT/80/21
vEgZe  LT/80/2T
vE€8Z8  LT/80/2T

HSHEYII LHOIYMLIYEYD 0192
(NIVINNOA) d3d a¥ T70L 00T
SLEOIT ALS HO 40 NMOL

¥ J0 € /LS NOINN 09T
M¥VE 0 HONWY I¥Zd 000T
M¥VAE HOA Q¥ E¥IdWE 1¥12Z
7EBZE LT/80/2T ¥ LINN AM NOANYD 02%
7EBZ8 LT/B0O/TT € LINN AYM NOANVD 0Z2%
v¥E8Z8  LT/80/2T 1S O N S8T
vEBZ8 L1/80/21 ¥a N¥Ed SOLT
vEBZs LT/80/21 ¥ HONYY I¥dd 008
vE8Z8 LT/80/21 SLHO9IT IS O § 1tS
vEBZ8 LT/80/21 SIHOIT 1S D S 2Z¥E
vEBZe8  LT/80/2T SLHOIT 1S O N 9LT
veges LT/80/2T FSNOHIAN0D 1Is d S 92
vegze L1/80/21 NOANVYD dTIW XIS 0222
vE8Z8  LT/80/21 10430 HO LINA 1S NIVW
vE8Z8 LT/80/21 (ONINIVEL) IS O N TI¥I
€828 Lt/80/21 SHIIIJ IS O N
vE8Z8 LT/80/21 MEYATIVE LS NOSHYD
v€828 LT/80/21 DA LINO LS D §
7€828 LT/80/21 IHOIT I¥d/¥00AIN0 LS D S
vE8z8  LT/BO/TT 1S D ZLE/OA LINN IS D §
y€8Z8  LT/80/T1 HOVEYD IS € § %01

i 4%:14:] LT/80/21 LS NOIINS
7€828 LT/80/21 AY¥d DA IS @ N S0T
7€8Z8  LT/80/21 wAw Q¥ ENIAWY TYINVAS 00§

7EBCS8 LT/80/21
veE8Z8 LT/80/21

OWISYD 1§ D S TZ
INTd ¥YIM LS HLNOS MOOT
#SNYIL aJ1va # 0/a NOILAI¥DSHA HDIOANI

LT/90/21T YALSIDAY MOHHD
ALNNOD A¥¥OIS

WELSAS ¥HLYM 0D IS

JJTIYIHS 0D IS

IDIALSIA TOOHDS 0D 1S

JONVTINEWNY OO LS
IITI £ JININOQ ‘INOTIVALS
S 3 ENIM S¥EZVYTIO NJITHINOS

¥ead OTT SATALSNANTI MOITS

JOANIA

L1/90/21

6%L06

8¥vL06

LYLOS

9vLO6
S¥L06
v¥L06

£7L06

HAGWNN
MOFHD
33eq uny

STETEd :*ON 3x0day



00°000°€ £06¢8 LT/80/21 “€NS TVYONNY AJINIOL
ONI ‘HAILWIED NOAT HOVZ 0LLOE

9E°STL 9E°STL LLBZE LT/BO/2T JANVL ¥HLVM Md
ANTHOWW AT0M 69L06
00°SLT 00 SLT LEBZB  L1/BO/2ZT SOINVDEQ TOA
YT TVINIWNOYIANE NIFLSHEM 89L06
00°63€ 00°69€ SI6Z8 LI/R0/2ZT ST6°9LT SAN ONILSHL WNA
VAVAIN ‘AINAQD ZOHSVM L9LO6
00°00T 00°00T 69828 LI/80/TT SEASSYTID ONINIVIL
gDI430 SJJINIHS 0D FOHSYM 99L06
00°00S 007008 8v8z8  L1/80/21 WYXE I¥VS
¥a 0D FOHSYM S9L06
z8° 0S¢ z8°0ST €2828  LTI/80/2T
ONI ‘NVWTd ZOIA¥ES NOISIA ¥9L06
00°%S¥ 00°8¢€ v6LZ8  L1/BO/ZT
00°9TY¥ veLZ8  LI/B0/2T L10Z 62/11-9T/T
ONI S3NOL ALID VINID¥IA E9LO6
vZLLY vTLLY 08gze  LI/80/2T FSVE IT FdAL
ONI “¥004 1 % A Z9L06
00°002 00°002 6L82Z8  LI/BO/2T UILYM
(OA) EdIadoLsod sn T9L06
TL THPT T TL ZYT'T 1Z828  LTI/8B0/2ZT D3d TYINSQ FIIILEN
0D SNI S¥VYOHLIVIHAILINN 08L06
08°58 08°'58 €6LZ8 LTI/BO/ZT Vivd LZA ¥0d ¥¥
N 40 SEJIANES dILIS QHILINO 65L06
00°S66°T 00°S9E'T 61628  LT/BO/TT
00°0€9 61628 LT/80/2T
ONI ‘SEIDOTONHDEL JYFTAL 85L06
00°081 00°08T z6LZ8  LT/B0/TT dOHS L4I9 d0d ENIM
9 ¥OIA ‘HNITESSOIL LSLO6
66°¥92'2 L6°TT10'T 9£828  LT/80/ZT £LT ISA / 00E 99 -Md
20'€S2'T o€z LI/8O/ZT 0€T 118 / 0S¥ 93u-Md
0711 WNITONLIE SYWOHL 95L06
00°56¢C 007562 Z98Z8  LT1/80/21 TIVL -INIVIN ¥EZdF¥d
AW LYWNTHL SSLO6
06°T8L'T 00°0§ o6LZ8 LTI/80/2T SIHDIT S0 FAVYVA
00°059°T 65828  LT1/80/2T 002*dd/S6°¥T$ LT.AYAIIOH
06718 06L28  LT/80/2T SIHOIT 30 FAYHEYL
FSNOH ONIISVON FTHL vSLO6
00°68€ 00" 68€ s6Lz8  LT/80/ZT NDISIEA a¥ AN TIAVEL DA
AONIDVY SOLNY FHL €SLO6
00°sz 0c- sz 50628  L1/80/21
D717 FDILON LSZEL ZSLO6
00°080°T 00-2L 16L28 L1/80/21
00°TE6 16L28 LTI/80/Z1
00°LL T6L28 Lt/80/2t LT0Z 6Z/TT-9T/11
SASTUANIING NVEd NNS 1SL06
$6°202 $5°202 €8828  LI/80/2T €/2 AdIUIHS
‘SNOILWDINAWWOD AYLISZUYLS 0SL06
zZ1°881°2 96" %€ sesze  L1/80/2T
Z8°99 s£gz8  L1/80/ZT
65°82T s€8z8  L1/80/2T IS D 2LE
TS LIT SE8Ze L1/80/21
ZT TYY SE8ze  L1/80/21
65°8ZT SEBZ8 L1/80/21
0z 8L se8ze LT/80/2T
TYIOL INOOWY #SNWHL EIVa % 0/d NOIIJI¥OSEA HOIOANI FOANIA HHANAN
MOHHD MDFEHD
LT/90/TT ¥ALSIDAE MOFHD LT/90/2T * 33eQ Uny

L abeg ALNNOD AZEOLS STETHEd :ON 3xoday




LS"GZE‘BSO'T TYLOL SMDFHD

00°000°¢€
TYLOL LNNOWY #SNWIL JLVa # 0/d NOILAI¥DOSEA IDIOANI JOANIA EIEWNAN
ptelci;te} %OgHD
LT/90/TT VALSIDEY ADIHD L1/90/21 : ®3eq uny
g abed AINNOD AEMOLS STETEd :ON 3x0day




T

abeg

00°000°‘9

00°000°9

®30oL
3osud

3IVa

00°000‘9

Junowy

AGNIOLLY LOIVLSIA

YANOISSIWWOD

YEANOISSINWOD

WHENSYIAL

JATIOULANOD

NOILVZI¥OHLAY ONV MIIAZY JO INIWIDATTMONMDV

LT LI/80/2T

#I3yonop a3eq

QHEIANTY SEDOIAY¥ES

uwotidraosag

L1/90/2T $)08YD OTUOI}DI[F 210J I23STHIAY
ALNQOD AHENO0IS

Te301 SYo8yd

TI-DS-LT ANI
071 dNo¥d ¥ILYOd 1T

SOToAUl zopuap Taquny
3o3yd

L1/90/2ZT : @3ea uny

HO08€T1€d :0ON arxoday



LT/vr/et
-LT/0E/0T LT/0E/IT S0-900LTZ
LT/vt/2T
S¥AdId LS & N ZT  0T0-ZTPZS0LTO#MADSE
LT/PT/TT
LTO0Z ALV SYWLSTINHD ONIANALAVE
LT/vr/e
AL¥d SYWLSINHD JISNW
NOILdINDSEQ #EDIOANI  dLvd
ADAHD

00°60%'80€E

00°00Z°s

00°szL'zoE

00°00T

00" ¥8€E

TYLOL
ADFHD

ANLOL SADIHD

00°002’S

00°szZL'e0E

00°0C0T

00" %8E
LNONOWY

YILSIOEY SMDIHD CAEJAL

abeg

AINOOD KFHOLS

Q3daAL

ONI TYHOTHONO

VaV¥AEN 40 FTLIL ¥0DIL

dI¥VA FLLINIOINY ‘SOVVSI

TV TTYIEWYD

HWYN HOONIA

0ELLOE
Z96% B8TI0Z

PLLOG
£96% 8T0Z

TLLOG
T96¥% 8102

TLLOGE
BSEY 8T0Z

#OY0DEN WWHA  WIGWAN
TYOSId NOIHD

LT/%1/21 * °3eQ uny

06€£TEd *ON 3xodey



T

0o sz
08 zsz't

$9°119

86°¢£C

0S°STT

ov' 1%
00° sz
00° 03
QLT 102
00" 66T
oL Z9
00°02T
S0°0T
00007
00" SET

8E'LBT

SL°Z

00°S0€E

€07 2S

9% LZT

00°6258°S

IYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

00-zoz
00°sz
08°2ZSZ'1

v9 152
007 09€E

86° ¢

00°8T
0s° L6

oy 1%
00°se
00° 08
oL* 102
00" 66T
oL zs
00" 021
S0°01
00° 00V
00° SET
ST 1Y
YL vL
ZL 61T
25701
BS 81
LL'e
08 €T
SL'zZ
00°0S
00521
00°'0ET
€0 TS

9L7 00T
oL® 9z

00-sze’s
0g-oo02Z

LNNOWY

£zeze Li/ee/e L¥0ddNs A¥WNNUL

6L6Z8 Li/zez/zt AD900LT INVIEA
18628 Lt/ze/et dOLETIT MOVWIE
2z628 tt/zz/zt SHSOH -¥0LOVA
[4434°] Lt/ez/zt AFGENY 8/T -ANVL AALVM

16628 Lr/ze/et I3SANESIA LNIWHSINAYO

1£628 Li/zz/et

TEéZ8 Lt/Te/et L10Z ET/T1-0€E/T1T

£L628 L1/ZZ/ZT SIHOIT ESNOHLANOD
9Lez8  L1/2ZZ/TL AD900LT ANVEQ
98628  L1/2Z/2T NOILVMLSINIKAY JITENd
610€8  ctr/TT/CT WYAD0dd YIUOTIXI
0zZ0€8  LT/2Z/2T WYX3 SNTd FdId ¥0d L1SEL
L10€8  LI/ZZ/TT g3d ONITIA WIVID
9z6z8 Lt/zz/et SAVTIA-TLTH
1s6z8  tI/TT/TT FONIHIINODHITEL
8T0€8  LT/ZZ/ZT YAHSHEAATA DIAAWVAVYS

CE0E8  LI/ZZT/ZT

0zé6zes Lt/ze/et HD
0zezs Lr/zz/et dOHS
0zZ6Z8 Lr/ze/et dOHS
€20¢€8 Lt/ee/et AJANOYT ¥L LS
£Z0E8 Lt/ez/zt XJANOYT SL 1S
€20€8 LT/22/2T AJANNVT ZL 1S
€Z0€8 LT/zz/Tt AJANOYT TL IS
1zZ628 L1/22/2t1 AdX

0s628  LT/Ee/et
0s6z8 Lt/ee/er
0s6z8  LT/zz/ZT FSNOISTH

Iv6T8 LT/ee/et LIS LIAD0S ¥FLTIL

»zZOES8  LT/ZZ/21 S417d440S SWH
¥20€8 Lt/ee/et S4I74dNS SWH
19628 Lt/ze/ezt dO¥d S¥EL/TYVIEY

19628 Lt/zz/zt INZWIHIOVY LI0ddNS ATHINOW

#SNVEL aLYa # 0/d NOTLATIYDSHA EDIOANT

LT/TT/TT YHELSIOIA MDHHD
ALNNOD AFJOLS

ONI FTTESYD
T0¥YD ‘LVHOOH

SEHALAOIAN TOLIAWD

TYIYISNANT YINHOAITHWD

TYNOISSIIONd ¥ SSENISNG

SIMET LIODS ‘TTINNNH
NYWEINE

WYITTIM ‘HOVENILIZNE

a ITESSNY¥ ' NOANvdE

AN ¥OINEWY 0 SIN0JDS iod
NIZNVYW ‘OQEAZZY

dl7 INIWJOTIAZA SAY
DNI‘DIYIOETE AONUL * OLOV
IA¥ES JONFYTINODETAL LILY
4ID9NY ' OAO¥UY

00 HAISNIHIIAWOD NVDIVIWY

ONI ODOSTv

ONI ADOT ANIATY

QlT ‘BIZNDADOVW ‘NOSITIV

CHZT¥OHLAV SANITENYD NYIV

ONI NON SWO¥IV

ONI SWELSAS VIVA TIONYAQY
YOUNIA

Lr/tz/et
STETEd

96L06
S6LOE

¥6L06

€6L06

Z6L06

T6L06
0eL0e
68L0E
BBLOE
L8LO6
98LOE
SB8LO6
vBLO6
£8L06
Z8LO6

18L06

0BLOS

6LLOG

BLLOB

LLLDE

SLLOB

SLLOE

JTIUON

ADIHO
ajeq uny
oN 3jxoday



z

-00°991
-00" 9%¢€
ZE"S2
vetet
88°¥0S
S9°VIT
S9°PTT
-8B V0S
I9°vPT
0L°92
88" ¥
98" 8T
667321
Zz ve
vL°ST8
¥9°02
68°Z8T
00°T0T
€198
Y0"EE
ZBEE
02°STT
6L°6S
9%°90T
€T LET
9% 90T
65°8

£0°Z8 t0°z8

S6°¥S S6°vS

00°000°Y
00°¥¥%T 00" 2¢€T
00721

TL°098 TL° 098

TP 1I¥vE TP " 19%€E

0€E°LBE6T 9L 86V
00" BEE
00" 08

0S5°Z6T
¥0°999
00°2Z12
€L LEE’T 9v°86

TE"Z29
LT 89€
08-80L
66°6%C
66°672
10°0%

oo-zoz
TYLOL
ADFHD

LNNOWY

abeqd

00°000°%

SE6T8
SE6Z8
see6z8
SE6Z8
SE6Z8
SE628
SE6Z8
SE6c8
SE6Z8
SE62Z8
S€628
SE6C8
SeE6ce
Sgeze
sege6ze
S€6ce
SE6Z8
SE628
S€628
SE6Z8
StE6Z8
SE628
S£628
SE6C8
SE6C8
SE628
Seeze

£9628
9zZ0€8
scoes

8ZeZ8B
8gece

LBEZB
oeecs

vzezs
vzeze
vZezs
vzezs
vZe6ze
b»Z6Z8

TS0€E8
Ev0ES
£Ep0E8
£v0€S8
68628
68628
Zv0ES8

#SNVIL

LT/2z/et
Ltj/zz/et
IAVEAAAAS
Lr/Te/eT
Lr/zz/et
Lr/zez/et
Lt/zz/et
Lt/ze/eT
Lrjze/zt
Lr/ze/zt
Lrjzz/eT
Lt/ee/et
Lr/eze/et
Lr/2e/et
Lrjze/et
Lr/ez/et
Lr/ezz/et
Lrj/ze/et
Lr/zz/et
IAVEAAEAY
Lrjee/zt
Lt/ze/et
Lt/zz/2t
Lt/eze/et
IAVEAA kAT
Lr/ze/et
Lt/ze/zT

LT/ez/et
Lr/ze/et
Lr/ee/et

Lt/ze/et
tr/zz/eT

Lr/eez/zt
L1/ze/2t

Lr/ze/et
Lt/2zjzt
Lt/ee/et
Lr/ez/ee
Lt/ze/zt
Lt/zz/et

Lt/ze/zt
Lr/zz/zt
L1/zz/2t
Lt/ze/et
Lr/ze/et
Li/ze/et
L1/zz/2t

dLva

dOHS

¥dT00D 9ZE€8¥YOS

aIniid J¥VLS -Savod

F2dNT Z8

ALNTIIVM

0STH 058D -ZLN

DdS9TEA -9LSBI0S

LIAEED ALNVIIVM

Dd98 TIA DLDA

ainTd SNVl S068S0S

ASY ¥EITIL 9LSB90S
YALTIA ¥IV -9LS890S

Od 8% TAA-066TIMd

9 ‘NYd TIO'NAF¥IS S068SOS
TIVE ‘SWEY dSNS 8SZPSLI
SNHL ¥ ¥ITAI S068S0S
SANVEE BSZYSLI

AYILLYVE -I1J4ITHE0d
AYELIVE-A¥IS WOD

ANIT T304 -OLBELAA
HYELTIA SNWAL SB8SSOAEAWOD
SYIATTVD LSG929A4

Savd L592Z9¥4d

AYALIVE 6LTESWOD

WYID “JOLDENNOD -S0v9SA¥dS
DAABLTAQ ~88Z8ZMd

JILIIA LNYIO0D

Qv0¥ HONWY I¥dd 008
JILVM PL 1S
LTAdS LA04dHEY L1SOD IWID

NOQ 1I$ X Z€1
NOQ T$ X TT

LTOZ AZTEWINON
JaISENESIA LNIWHS INAVD

SEDIA¥ES "WOD

SIAIL -TEBLYOS
LNFWNDITY -BVYB8TISOS
JIVdEd -P¥S VIAVOT
SHAIL -STZAIATAWOD
SWELS FATYA -ST6L9XI

B0SP-T6Z-SLL YTTILAWOD
Md ZZBTO06L6LE
YITTIOUIINOD TZBTO6LELE
LI S90678L6LE

HNOHAT SHWYL

HNOHAI WIL

LT/2ZT IAIM TO00-TZBYLPILS

NOIIAT¥OSEA EDTOANI

LT/2Z/21 ¥ALSIDIE ADIHD

ALNQOD AFAOLS

ONI X71ddnNs OLNV LLOITTIA
NOILWVIOdd0D S€d HSIA
ONI ¥SN SHOIVQ

LNTOS ONILTNSNOD HFATIWANED

IVANNOd A¥HLIWID MDOLSWOD
ONI LSTHD ALINNWWOD

AEN Z0 FDIA¥IS NOILDETI0D

ONI H¥IL DWO

dIHSYEANLIVd ODTTIED
JOaANEA

Lt/12/21
STETEd

s0806
v0806
£0806

Z0806

10806
00806

66L06

86L06

L6LOE

JEEWON

AJHHD
ajeq uny
ON 11oday



£

05°28
00 0ET

96°S8

TS €2E’T

00°0s2

ST v00°T

0S°L9é6

gL €82’z

YE TEE‘T

00°52Z8
6L°S52

TI P9E’T

SE"LY9Z

€2°LYO ¥

¥2 0s9

6Z°9%1'C

TYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

08°ZSE
0s°2z8
00°0¢T

00°0%
96°S¢E

YPILSE'L
-£6° €€

00°o0sz

£E°ROS
007 0%
€87 5S€E

00°098€
0S’LEE
00°0cL2T

8%°9¢
00°8ST
69°SLBT
¥8 €9

SL 62T

L0912 1
15°92S
9L°88S

oo-szs
6L°SZ

zL-zst
TE'9TE
0E" %L

€S°SPT
0s°LoT
gL LSE

65" ¥S
98° €8
06°82T1

€Z-2ze8°2
0o"SsTZ 1
vZ° 059
658

98- 52
L0 6

96" %2

LNOOWY

£6628
[A:134-]
9T0ES

Eveze
vL6Z8

svece
Sv628

TTOEB

SL6Z8
€oo0es
€00e8

zs0¢e8
Z50€8
zsoes

Zveze
Zveze
zveze
Zvece
zZreze

ivecs
vezs
Tvezs

Teoes
26628

£T0€EB
oveZs
ogezZe
£eecs
6Z0ES
62Z0¢€8

6£628
6E6ZE
6£62Z8

8£628
8tecC8

LzZoES
SEece
SE6Z8
seeze
SE6Z8

#SNWAL

Lt/zz/et
Lr/ez/et
Lr/ze/et

Ltj/zz/zT
Lr/ez/et

Lr/ez/et
Lr/zz/zt

Lr/ez/et

L1/zz/et
Lt/ze/et
L1/28/2T

Lt/zz/2T
Lrjee/et
Lr/Ce/et

Lt/zz/et
Lr/zT/2T
LI/ez/et
Lt/ze/et
Lr/ze/et

Lt/ze/et
Lr/ee/ezt
Lr/zzj/et

IAYEAAEAS
L1/zz/ZT

Lt/ez/TT
Lt/zz/et
Lt/zz/zT
Lt/ez/zT
L1/ze/z1
L1/zez/et

L1/zz/et
Li/ez/et
Lt/zz/et

Lr/ze/et
Ly/TT/et

Lr/ze/ezt
Lt/eejet
Lt/zzjzt
Lt/zz/et
Lr/ze/et

qLva

# 0/a

L X SQ¥¥D Sn&
2LLS LINYELNI
ONINIVAL ¥0d WAIdudd

TYIYEIVA FAOW JOSSTAIWOD
S9NId JAVINAOW

Savod
LIQ3ED OSTIW SAVOA

NO4VEM ALNA JIOWALNOD ¥dd

LNI¥ ¥IMOL ¥¥Ed ANO4A
SAILITIIN
LNJY ¥XW3d aNOd

LT/ST/2T - LT/TT/2T
LT/LT/TIT - L1/2T/TT
LT/8/2T - L1/¥/TT

SNOIS IIXH

VATO ONIWVOd ‘¥advd 1 D%d
SEITddNS TYINOLINYL O%Fd
HANVATD DILSWYId 9%8
ATWYD HEMES OUd XAILLVE

€TE TSA /00E INA -INL
021 1Sa / S¥T 1IN -MT
00T 7ISA / 00Z 7NN -I¥L

SMOHS HJIJ/HSIUIEN DIAEW
FOVETIW TSANEWITI
AZAWOD ‘a¥ TIOL 01T
ANY40dd DSNT

SNYdO¥d LS O N T%T

INYdOdd EONIAISHE ZL 1S
ENVdO¥d TL 1S

SONILLIA MNVLI dFLVM
S3AA0TD
SETIL FIEVO

&) IOW LSNOD ‘SAavod IW
g8 d3AN DILdHS TIIHD

61699202 JIOVALNOD
¥EITI4 INWIO0D -Savod
aINTd SNYAL TZZ9SDIOA

TANVd ¥ALTIS ¥IVY -DASWOD
dSOH Tdnd 0LBELIA

NOIIJI¥DSEd HADIOANI

LT/2TT/TT WELSIDAA NIHEHD

ALNNOD AZYOLS

SNOISSHIAWI HJALLYAONNI
ONI ANVEAYO¥d LOdS LOH

ST¥HD 'dOOH

HDIA¥ES LICEYD LO4dd IWOH

QL1 ‘LVH

ST¥HD ‘NITHWVH

077 SINIWLSTANI 41D

WOL ‘ANIASNVAD

YIONIVAD

NO3TOXLAd LES/ILVDO NIATOD
dITIIHd 'NNATD

AQNVEE ‘VANIAVD

dT SYDTTaINIL

ANVAWOD TUNILSVA

ONIYITENIONT ISHM WAVd

NId TVIDYEWWOD MNVHAEAT

VOANEA

Lt/te/et
STETEA

1Z806
0Z806

61806

81806

LTBO6

91806

S1806

P1I806

£ET1B06

Z1B06
11806

01806

60806

80806

LOBOE

90806

YTEWON

ADEHD
93eq uny
ON 330day



v

00" %8
00°00S’LE
SZ°1S0°1
Zv 626V
00°Lg
ve S8
00 0%
LO'SLY'T
LS LSE
00852
6b 8
8L 0L
00 sz
S5 LSeT'S
OV LET
9z 6eLZ
0€°85L 82T
00°562
08 2s5¢
TY.LOL
JADFHD
abeg

LL 82
00" ¥8

00 00S'LE
SZ°1S0’'T
(A2 TANE 4
6L°0T
S6°6

9T 91
€9'6%

[{h 44

vy E91
0T " T91
Z5°¥61
06°ST

ST LT

00" €€
0L

LO'SLY'T
2Z°ShL
CL 69¢E
BE PET
-SL 162
00°ssz
6%°8
8L°0L
00°szZ
Z8°SPS
EE°68BE°T
S6°0S6
€€°88E°T
S6°%E
L6988
0Z°16¢
OV LET
9z°6LZ
0€°8SL 821

00°'S62

LNOOWY

$S628
67628
9g£0¢€8
p00E8
syezs
TZ0€8
%6628
Lv6Z8
pTOER
vseegs
vsecs
zooes
BZOES
8zoEs
Stoes

zZeezs
[4134:]

SBeZe
vEOER
VEOES
YE0ES
veoes
L9628
zeoee
€t0Es
8L6CE
88628
88628
88628
88628
88628
88628
8B6Z8
vvece
oToES
gvotce

S6678

H#ENWVAL

L1/zz/zt
Lt/zz/2t
L1/ez/eT
Lt/zz/zt
L1/Tz/et
L1/zz/2t
Lr/ze/et
Lt/ee/et
LI/2Z/21
Lt/ee/eT
LT/ze/et
Lt/ze/et
L1/z2/21
LI/ze/et
Lr/ze/et

Lt/ze/zt
Lr/ee/et

Lt/zz/zt
Ltr/ze/zt
Lt/ze/et
tt/ze/et
Lt/zZ/2t
Lt/ze/et
Lt/zz/21
Lr/ze/et
L1/zz/zt
LT/2z/TT
Lr/zez/et
LI/22/21
Lr/ee/et
Lr/ze/et
Lt/zz/et
LT/2Z/21
Lr/ze/et
Lr/ze/zT
Lr/eez/et

Lr/zez/et

aLiva

NOSIWJOW JIVDIOEW X100
11nd 2 LSIa

INIWIFAOV TYOOTHILINI
ANNO¥ONIVH ¥ LNINJUIADNII
ASYHO¥Nd AFLYM JIEWIAON
FSOH/SEIL

FOIJd40 d04 SAEA

HATVA TTVE “dTddIN SSVdE
S¥OSSIDS/¥ddva

dEdvd Ad0D HONNd

ddava

MNI

SEITddNS FDId440

L10Z €T1/21-0€/TT

YILNAWOD NILLIHM 1Ivd
SdI7ddNS SWa
STITddNS SWI
SEITd4aNS SWE

SNNNLEY

KD¥d FONVITIWOD

YATONITY - LAWTIH 1dVD
FO900LT ENWEA

STANVd HOIVE ¥IILNFIVLIVA
E0S JOOMMDOT HOLIMS
WINOL SSDA

AJO0LS HOLIMS

H7HYD0 €SN HOELYVLS TIVL
ATINIHG TIE WOD

FSNIDIT LWEO¥DV DIDOA
€/T SHITddNS IDIJI0
SOVH NIIMOTTIVH

gYHEE IW LI/¥T/21

ONINIVAL YZOUNEW

NOILATI¥DSHA IDIOANI

LT/Ce/TT YEALSIDEY XDEHD

ALNNOD A3HOLS

FHLNID TTYNOIDEN TYiIN¥ ASN
OVEINE HLIVEH 40 AIQ A3N
AYLISHIOS J0 AL AIN
ALZAVS DITHENA Ld3A AHN

SANNOY¥D ¥ HATH NIWAY AEN

ANTYA ENAL FSNOH ANNOW

NI SNOILNTOS HDIJAJ0 OULIAW

NOISNUW AWMOUNW

ONI SETEOLWHOEVYT WW

ONI LSISSY-3JdIT

d¥0D ATIWVI JONHLIVT

NI SEDIA¥ES ENIT JOVNONVT
SNOS ® SILIND N 1

¥DDHEEE NVad0L

OTT dJ¥N0S TLI

FUOLS ALINNWWOD AW SLI
ONI WOD " ¥ILOWOdAI

TVES AWANTS NIVINNOWEILNI
‘¥ OIAVA ‘NYWMAN

JOANEA

Li/1z/zt
STETad

0v806
6EBC6
BEBOE
LEBOE

9€806

SEBO6

1a%:143

EEBOE

cEBO6

TE806
0€ece
62806
82806

L2806

92806
SZ806
¥ZB06
£2806
ZZ806
AHEWIN
ADEHD

ajeq uny
OoN 3xodey



S

go-cLoz

167052

00°0SZ

66°699°C
00°s8
89°STT
L9°0%

00°L02

0029

09" €E9
68°L0C
SLTELZ
88 LYE

0SS TIP‘2

8Z €6

00°s6
00°S21
00°00T
€6 LY
TVLOL
ADEHD

abeg

ST°1
80°
00°L0T
T6°6T
€675V
ST 6T
16°S91

00°se
00°s522

66°699°'¢2
00°s8
89°STT
L9 0%
0006
0o0'z1
00°S0T
0029
09" €€9
68°LOZ
SL'ELE
88 LYE

0S"6TE’‘T
00°260°T

96" 6¢
8B8°6TT
ve's
69°9
ET"6S

-96°6¢€2

L6°TZT
07" 62

—ELTBPT

00°sS6
oo0°szT
00°00T

8576
8576

LNOOWY

0S0€E8
050¢€8

BEQEB
LLEZB
LLEZ8
LLeTe
LL6Z8

[£49 %]
zzoes

85628
0o0o0€s
B66Z8
z96Cs8
62628
62628
L6628
EE6Z8
nE6ZE
9v0E8
zsézs

65628

LEOESB
LEOER

09628
0seéce
096Z8
03628
09628
09628
09628
09628
0s62Z8

956¢C8
v86Z8
SToESe

SS6t8
SS6T8

#SNWAL

Ly/ee/et
tt/ee/et

Lr/ze/ze
Lt/ezz/et
Li/zz/zt
L1/zz/zt
Lt/zez/et

Lti/zz/zt
Lt/2e/et

Lt/ez/ezt
Lt/ze/et
L1/zz/et
Li/ze/et
Lt/ze/e
L1/ez/zt
Li/ze/et
Lt/ee/zt
Lt/ee/et
Lr/ze/eT
LT/TE/et
Lt/ez/zt

Lt/ze/et
LT/ze/et

Lt/zz/zt
Lr/ze/zt
LtT/ee/et
Lt/ze/zt
Lr/zz/zt
Lr/ze/zt
Lr/ze/en
Lt/ze/et
LT/22/21

Lt/ze/en
L1/2e/Tt
Lx/ze/zt

Lr/ze/et
Lr/ee/zt

dLva

I¥1L FIFIA
INIWESOTEAEA WWOD

SEITIANS SWHE

ATLNTId SHOSSHSSY
YIINI¥d TL IS

JALNI¥G €0S dooM3D0T
SID YOSSASSV-URLLOTA
SAIOMAY FTO00D

L ‘¥OIdav

THNVd H¥I4 OL SYIVdEd
SNId ONY SA¥YVANYTI

FEYMAEYH -¥29 ar

ISYET ENIHOVW FOWLSOd
LT/ET/2T-LT/0E/TT
8T/L/T-LT/TT/2T

WOO¥ TZLOH

HOVE SL € 099SEL 1sSAD
D140 M¥ITD

STVOISAHd ddA
STIVOISAHd Q4A

TIO ¥VED T2C9s¥l

TIO ¥¥ED -ADOLS OS
HdIdTIVLI -LS9Z9¥4

¥HATIIA 1LYE -dOHS

SLTEE A -MOTd I¥L

WIS MOVL “IEANNOA dW -dOHS
NND ESVAND ‘TENNNS -dOHS
WELS 1A TLDE

ULW NVAL -ZLA

ENIDOVA H d3H

H3d ATHINW

NOSI¥MOW dIVOIQIR I14dS
NOSI¥OW AIWDIAAN SNV

NOILAT¥DSEad FDIOANI

LT/ZZ/TT ¥EISIHAY NDIHD

ALNOOD AENOLS

a7 NI SHJOIN¥ES TTYHOTD DES

ONT 0Dddnd

(¥¢D) DONI 0D NVDIOW AW

ONI SIIDILVILS avd
INEWHIILIE ATdWE DITENd
ONTI SHEDIAZA NOILDALONA
ONI DOvdodd

NYTddIMOd

ONI SAMO€ AINLI4
d OTHONY ‘INI¥LAA
071 VIGEW LNO¥ALNO
NILSAV ‘INJOESO
ONI LHOISNIWNIGO

017 '10dEA VIVd HLISAIO0

HINZD HITVIH TYNOILVANDDO

SESTYAUIINE OLOY ATIIFNE.0
HLTH T¥NOILYdNDD0 VAVAIN
SAINVOLIVY LOIVISIA YAVASIN

(ONI) AlT ENTE8 VAVASEN

FOaNIA

tr/tez/zt
STETEd

65806

85806

LSBOE

9c806
55806
¥S806
£SB06

25806

15806
0s806
6¥806
8v806
LYBOE

97806

S¥806

vve06
£V806
Zv806

Tve06

HIEWON
ADFHD
93eg uny
oN 3zoday



9

0o-o08z’2z
co"o0L
00°SBE

00" zZLy

Y0 6€B P

0S°600°S
9L t08

S0°6S¢T

ov'sze
2SSy
00°2¢

00°¢c6z

0S°L

og-zIT

80°120'%

96708

TYIOL
MADFHD

abedq

00'082'2
00°00L
00" <8¢t
00°ve
00" TLE
00 LL

6€£°9502'L
S9°2Z€9°L

0S'600°S
SL" €08

00" 8L
S0° 18T

ov-szs
25°S¥vtL
00-22

00" 06T
00*S0T

0s-L

LNOOWY

SYoE8
¥voEs
S00E8

9€628
stece
9€628

39628
95628

Iv0E8
59628

s00¢€e.
6E0EB

SZeZ8
100€8
LS6Z8

vseéze
v96z8

veezs

66628
66628

8s6Ce
896C8
89628

0so0€es
0s0E8
0sS0€EB
0so€s8
0S0€8
osoes
0S0€E.
0soEs
0soce
0S0ES
0S0€E8
0S0ES
0s0€8
0S0€8
0So€s
0so€e
0S0EB

#SNVAL

L1/zz/ZL
L1/2z/2t
Lr/zz/zt

LT/ZT/2T
Lr/ze/ezt
LT/zZ/21

Lt/zz/et
Lt/ze/zt

Lr/ze/et
Lt/ez/et

L1/zz/2T
LT/zz/et

Lt/ze/zt
Lr/ze/et
Lr/zze/et

LT/TE/et
LI/Zz/TT

Lr/ee/zt

Lt/Te/et
L1/ze/et

L1/zz/z1
Lt/ze/zt
Lt/zz/ezt

tt/ze/zt
Lr/ee/et
tr/ee/et
LT/zz/et
LT/ez/et
LT/zz/et
LT/2e/et
Ltt/zz/2t
LT/2e/et
Lr/ze/zt
Lr/zz/e
Lt/zz/2t
Lt/ze/et
Lr/ez/et
L1/ze/ezt
Lr/ze/et
Li/ez/et

q1va

HONVIVE AL¥Vd AVAITOH
JOSSASSY ¥04

SEILNGEd F02 SEADAVE

LT/€T/2T1-LT/0E/TT

LISOd=a
dNLES JINDE WILSAS MaAN

LY0ddNS ¥IEWIAON

dL TIYC
SHITddNS ONINVITD

NID WID-HOASW JOHS LJAID
SNOTLAI¥OSHId HLVWNI
IADIAZYIIM 'L

vddE A€ §.€Dd
IT0D T¥0Hd ‘O¥LIN

LY/ET/2T-LT/0E/TT

ATIN SLVWNI
ATIN SLYWNI

dOL Z960-L¥8
SNOILLYDINNWWOD-ZT¥%9-2SZ
DIDA 00SL-L¥8

210A

I TTOULAWOD /NIWNAY
JA 9313
YENOISSIMWWOD

va

HOLVESIa

YOSSIDOVY
LINEWIJOTIATA WWOD
Y14

UYITTOALIWOD
JATIIHS

are

Md

OA E¥IJ

JIANODIY

AAHTIO

GSNOHIINO0D JJINIHS

NOILII¥DEHEd IDIOANI

LT/22/TT YELSIDAN MOIHD

ALNNOD AFWOLS

dWELYVINIHL
HSNOH ONILSVYOY EHL
ONTI DSSV LNAWIOVNYW XVI

0T SLYYIOHMAS

SESTHUJNEALNE MVEd NOS

'SNOILVDINOWWOD ¥VISZUVLS
XAV dd0JJVYLS

ONI SADIA¥ES ALITILN €4S

III £ DINIWOd ‘INOTTIVAS
S ¥ ENIM SHEZVID N¥FHLNOS
YALNZD 9N¥d ¥ 003 SHLIWS

VEAd D717 SITALSNANI ADITS

TYINIWNONIANT WNYHIS

NITTY NVI¥E ‘JVOHS

ONI SYOLNEIAULSIA ATYWAIAHS

ONI SEDIAYES TVYH0TD DES

HOUNIEA

LT/1z/2t ;

SLBOE
vLBOE
€L806

L1806

806

0LB806

69806

89806

L9806
99806
S9806

v9806

€9806

29806

19806

09806

YHEWON
ADEHD

23eqg uny

STE€1€d :OoN 3xodey



L

T0"6E8'PLZ

9T ILS

00ro8Z‘1
0S°LBS L

0o*LvzZ’'e

LETT9E

00° 88T

06" T1¢E

00°C0T
08°s8
v0°L99
00°0sv‘e

80°S9¢

00°sz
LT 607

TVLOL
ADEHD

abeq

TYLOL SHDEHD

00°06T
91 18¢€

00°0BZ'T
0S°LB8S’L

oo0-os8
00°L91°2

LE"TOE

00081
00°8
66 EE
SL'60T
ve 1T
00°0ST
zZe'9
00°00T
08°s8
b0 LSS
00°0S7v’2

86°ZLT
0T"261

00°s2
LT 607

LNOOWY

TL6ZS
TL6Z8

oLecs
zroee

£9628
£5628

600€8

LE6ZB
LEEZB

v6628
v6628
veezZe
veeze
Y6628
ZLeZe
LZets
800¢€e
6v0EB

69628
69628

[AJ%:]
L00e8

H#SNVAL

Lt/ee/ezt
Lt/ze/zt

LT/ez/et
L1/zz/T1

Lt/ee/et
[AVEATEA

Lr/zz/z1

Lr/ze/zt
L/zz/zt

Lt/ze/et
Lr/ee/er
LT/ZZ/2T
Lt/ze/et
Lt/ze/zt
Lr/ze/zt
Li/zez/et
Lr/zz/zt
Lt/ez/et

Lr/ezez/zt
Lr/ee/ex

Lr/ze/et
Lr/ee/zt

aLva

# 0/4a

NOENVD S0’ ITO0D "MNTY
AYVANODAS DYONI ‘STYLIW

JILdES HO
SOISNZIOd 0Z¥-LT HSWD

NOZHONNT FAILVISIODAT
SHOTA¥ES LSIXEHOT

do0# HLVANI
LT/ET/2T-LT/0E/TY
INIAE TYIDELS
LNZAY TYIDAAS
INSAT TYIDIAS

OZIAVWIA a
NOSNN¥E ¥

¥¥ SIEDIT A0 FAVIVA
FDONZATAH ¥Od AOVE FOVHUOLS
LT0Z/62Z/TT EIVA ANI

AZE  WHI- N¥Ed SOLT
S/M- N¥IE SOLT

ALOZTLT NOUNHH
INIWW LINO IV

NOILAIN¥DSAA FDIOANI

LT/ZZ/eT YALSIDAY MOEHD

ALNNOD AFHOLS

VT TYINZANOIIANT NJHLSHM
VHA AS JNYI DIL4ES SHELUM

HD0IJ40 SJAIVYIHS 0D HOHSWM

SHLVIDOSSY » WINTIVM

LOE¥H0D 20 LdEd HIVLS WM

ONI S¥NO0L ALID VINIDNIA

J1oA

AA¥d AEDA

N J0 SEDIA¥ES HLIS (ELINN
gNITIN

ONI ‘SEIDOTONHOZAL JEIXL

LNEWZFAOIAWI TYHINID INL

MEAANY ‘SVWOHL

YOANFA

L1/12/2t
sTeTad

88806
L8806

98806

S8806

¥8806

£EB8B06

28806
8806
08806
6L8B06

8L806

LLBOE

SLE06

HTEWAN
ADEHO
i, @3ea uny
:ON 3xoday



-00°LS0’T

-vE"268'T

-T6' 88T

-81°29

B6'ET NITAZYd °S
LEET NITAZNE °S
Z8 ' LZ NVWIOH "D
Y6 ¥8 NVWTIOH "r
LY LIT NVWIOH "I
L6 LLE NVWIOH [
91" 6¢€ NYWIOH "I
0%" Z€S NYWIOH "
BE“FT NYWIOH "¢
96 671 YILIYNS L
00°8ZL'T YILIAAS "1
8T1°2Z9 VLLIAEAS " L
8T°Z9 YLLIAAS "1
-66° 6V

-ST*LZS

-66°22

SL*98 0CEMANLSAS
66°6S SLEESO
86°62 SLEE90
00-s2Z1 -LEPS-SP00
SvTLeT ooeIco
€6°vZ 6L%020
66°6% 6LY020
66°'6V 6L%020
66°2C 6L%0Z0
66722 6L%020
-00°SE

00-S€E OF¥ AVYVLON
“66°6VT

“T1°68%'%

66°6%T H) HSH 1LiD
TT°IT O MO0EIOVI
68" €T 0 A008FDVI
oS0t ONEYVLS a4
LI ¥ NOOEADVS
99°¢ b (ee]:ic o) ]
2T X A00€3IDVA
00°02Z O JOQHIDYA
b6 v X MOOHZOVA
1€ Le EDVIvd da
€012 NILSYOd ad
00'SE 13one aa
66°66 OlS a10 aa
86°61 ¥N0NS ad
86°61 I¥dNonNs ax
¥9°08 IDINVS aX
00°st0‘2 AL ONFA aXd
oL 9802 AL ONIY QX
Junowy # @otToAUT

1 abeq

000-00€01-000-0€Z
000-00£0T-000-T00
000-00€0T-000-020
000-00€EQ0T-000-0SZ

000-00€0T-000-0€2
000-00€0T-000-T00
000-00EQT-000-0S2

000-00€0T-000-T0DO

000-00€0T-000-T0C
000-00€0T-000-0E2

JUNOOOY 3TPeiI]

8102

000-%Z0ES-060-060
000-P20€S-020-0Z0
000-%20€5-020-020
000-¥%Z0ES-0Z0-020
000-LS0ES-0€Z-0€2
000-LS0ES-0EZ-0€Z
000-LS0ES-0EZ-0EZ
000-LSOES-0EZ-0€EC
000-%20£S-30T-T00
000-PZ0ES-BTT-TOO
000-PZ0€S-8TIT-T00
000-0E0ES-0Z0-020
000-0E0ES-0SZ-0SZ

000-ZT0ES-S0T-T00
000-8BZOES-6TT-T00
000-09T#S-TTIT-T00
000-6Z0ES-6TT-T00
000-BZOES-6TLI-100
000-03T¥S-6TT-T00
000-09TbS-0€Z-0€2
000-09T¥S-20T-T00
000-09T¥S-LOT-TOO
000-09T¥S-0SZ-052

000-%TOES-TTIT-TOC

000-00595-50T-T00
C00-090ES-0ET-0ET
006-090ES-0€£Z-0¢€2
000-%0595-0€2-0¢€2
912-090€ES5-0€2-0€2
000-090€S-0€Z-0¢EZ
SZZ-090€ES-0€Z-0€2
000-090ES-0€Z-0€T
SZZ2-090€S-0€Z-0€2
000-P0S95-0€ET-0€2
000-¥0S95-0€Z-0E2Z
000-SS0€S-0€E2-0€2
000-090€S-0€Z-0€2
000-9T0ES-0€ET-0ET
000-9TOES-0£Z-0€E2
000-TTI0ES-0EZ-0ET
000-T90€S-0€EZ-0€2
000-TS0ES-0EZ-0€ET

JUNOSOY 3TgeQ

UVEX TY¥DSIZ ¥0JI

ONILSOd NOILOVWSNWAIL

AILNNOD AS¥OLS

VIDYEWWOD ENO STIEM S6ZV0Y SLZT LI/ZZ/ZT 890S Dd
VIDIIWWOD ENO STTEM S6ZV0% €LZT LI/2Z/ZT 9906 od
VIDYIWWOD ENO STT3M S6TY0V ZLZT  L1/2Z/2T S90S 2d
VIDHEWWOD ANO STIHM S6ZY0v TLZT L1/2Z/ZT 096% o4

Od *‘HEdAL NOILOYSNVAL

QWeN H#PuaA HUBI] IQ IS0 H#PI0OIN 41

11:90:60 LT/TZ/2T :uny
9gzogq, ‘3dey -



4

abeg

8E ¥
91°89¢
0T TET
-05"88
-£6° 112
“ZT ELE
ZE'6
1€°6
LY LT
BV LT
IS°LT
IS°LT
-3 A A
0y 00T
5879
00°6¥
1€°6
68°L0Z
8% LT
0S°LT
86 8BE
€S°TIT
€E6°ET
~86°TEL'S
E0° 0¥
-09°8L
zs sLe'e
-0%" 1L
0% 999
00" 8Lt
-0y 1L
8y 9L9
-08° S8
9L ESL
00" 66T
00°0s
€6° 661
Q0°soz
00°S6L
-06°"SEZ
Y66
96°S¢
00002
-68°LOT
82°95
0o°s
LE'8
00°ST
vzrez
-S€'8c¢C
v’ es
0098
96°TT
LE"LL
-B6 €T
Junowy

LIEYNTEM 40
TEAVIL a0
SOIAVK Md

IXYIL NTASN
IXVYL NIAZN
dTI0 NIAEN
dTI0 NIAZN
ZTIOC NIAEN
TTEO NIAGN
VYW NASWOHL
9L Z1L7E4S
sn TI13ISSNY
8N 11aASSNY
IXWL NIA3N
dTH0 NIASN
HTHO NIAEN
TE0 NIAAN
ZVWV NNZTO
OT W NOXIa
13T OAOUNY

JOOH
SILAND
OdEAIZY
OQIAAFZY
0qAAZZY
aNVNaA
ANYNAA
ANYNII
ATEAVIE
ATENYIE
ATIAVIE
XTANVIE
ATIAVIE
aTdid
a1a1d

BZ ""§ ANI
BZ "'# ANI
STTO0H# ANI

Vil dIroido
4L dIordo
Wil dI0Id40
Yl dIOIdO
YaL dIOIdO

d -NIAZIN'D
¥ -NIAEN'D
OD-NIAEN'D
O -NIAEN'D

# 30TOAUT

000-00€0T-000-T00
000-00€E0T-000-0LZ
000-00€0T-000-052

000-00E0T-000-100

000-00€0T-000-T00

000-00€E0T-000-LBT

000-00€0T-000-T00

000-00EOT-000-060
JUNEDOY 3ITPeI)

8102

000-00S35-S0T-T00
000-€T0ES-TOT-T00
000-2Z¥Y0€ES-TOT-T0O

000-€TOES-TZT-T00
000-€ETOES-SOT-T00
C00-£TOES-TZTI-T00
000-€£T0ES-SOT~T00
000-€TO0ES-TZT-T00
000-€ETQES-SOT-T00
000-0T0ES-052-052
LEL-0P0ES-0LZ-0LZ
000-0T0€S-082-052
000-0T0ES-052-0S2Z
000-£T0ES-052-0S2
000-€ET0ES-052-052
000-€T0ES-0S2-0S2
000-€T0£5-052-0S¢2
000-v20€S-0S2-0SC
L6L-0P0ES-0LZ-0LZ
000-0T0ES-0SZ-0S2

000-€T0ES-60T-T00
000-ET0ES-60T-TOC
000-920€S-60T-100
000-€T0ES-60T-100
000-€£T0ES-60T-100
000-LS0ES-60T-T00
000-€T0ES-60T-T00
000-€T0ES-60T-T00
000-€T0ES-60T-100
000-€T0ES-60T-T00
000-6Z0€£S-60T-T00
000-9T0ES-60T-100
000-9T0ES~60T-T00
000-6Z0€S-60T1-T00
000-6Z0£S-60T-T00

000-TTOES-EQT-T00
000-TTOES-€0T-T00
000-PTICES-E0T-T00

000-P0TSE-000-LBT
000-%0IS€E-000-£4BY
000-%0TSE-000-LBT
000-¥0TSE-000-LBT
000-v0TSE-000~-L8T
000-2T0€S-2Z¥T-T00
v0S-ZTI0ES-9TT-100
LPT1-600L5-STT-100
000-TTOES-Z¥YI-TOO

JUnoooy 119ag

dvdx T¥DSId ¥od

ONILSOd NOILLDOVSNYAL

ALNQOD ARAOLS

VIDYIWWOD ANO SI73M

VIDYIWWOD ENC STIIM

VIDYIWWOD INO STIGM

VIDAHEWWOD 3FNO ST7aM

VIDYIWHWOD ENO STTAM

VIDEIWWOD ENO STIaM

2ueN

S6zZ¥0¥ 0821 Ll/zz/2T
S6Zv0¥ 6L2T LI/ZZ/21
S62Z¥0Y ¥ZST L1I/ZZ/Z1
S6Z¥0¥ B8LZT LI/2Z/TT
S6ZY0¥ LLZT LT/ZZ/21
S6ZVO¥Y 9L2ZT LT/ZZ/2T

#DUSA Hueal 3g sS04

CETS

¥Z1s

€2TS

e21s

1218

0605

#PI003y

T1:90:60 (1/12/21

9EZ0Ed

od

Jd

od

2d

o4

od

dlL

runy
:3dey



abeg

00" 2T
“00 VYl
00" 2TET
go-zt
-08-s8
08°s8
-00°o0eT
00 02T
-0y~ s2Ze
ov-szZ8
-08°28S°1
-0S*v0V
00" 8€tE
9L° 86V
00 o8
¥0° 939
00212
0S°261
-00° 10T
-00° 10T
00° 10T
00" 10T
-¥9° 152
-00°09€
¥9- 182
00°09¢€
-sL°¢
sL'e
~IL'SEZ
T4 4
ZL6TT
YL wL

-LE6 €9
90" v66
L9"ST
99°6T
L9'ST
25791
25°91
S0°6T1
S0°61
90°61
PI 6T
TE T2
eL-et
€L-ct
EL"2ZT
00" 0E
09729z
S6°§
junowy

90v066S00T

JDEHD AZ¥A
MDHHD A®¥4

TTIZ6TTIOPTIT

Z/T1 €6862

SEZILST

96€¥0005

At

Zivvooos
TZEYOOOS
Z¥6£000S
T8GE000S
91€EV000S

T/2Z1 699%8
T/2ZT 699%8

T €229L0-F5
T B8T65L0-S

0T/8 vZ8TZ

TETNIYET-
TEININT-
TETNIAT-

-“vST¥ES”

Y1 ONIX
YL ONI¥
VL ONI¥E
¥I4d400
dF4400
I¥s 191
I¥3 191
I¥3 ID1
¥Fd40D0
¥3dd0D
LIFSIA
Ly3Isaa
L¥Fs3a
[S3%-4 204
Id SNEd
UVWIAYS

Md
Md
Md

91

ov
ov
ov
ov
ov
oY
oY
(9) 4
ov
ov
oY
ov
oY
oY
ar
ar

¢ @oToAuT

000-TOT0Z-000~-0€Z

000-T0T0Z-000-0EC
000-T0T0Z-000-0S2
000-T0T0CZ-000-0€2

000-T0T0Z-000-100
000-T0T0Z-000-020

000-TOTOZ-000-0€T
000-T0OTOZ-000-060

000-T0T0Z-000-020
000-T0T0Z-000-060

000-T0T0Z-000-TOO

000-TO0T0Z-000-TO0Q

S1IAEAD

000-00€ECT-000-0SZ
000-00€£01-000-T00

JUNO2dY 3TPaI)

8102

000-L20eS-0EZ-0EZ

000-190€S-0€Z-0€2

000-TS0ES-0€E2-0€Z I AWIALAWIED ADOLSWOD

000-090€ES-0€Z-0€2 ADIAYAS FLIS ALLINN

000-0€E0ES-052-052 UIDITE AOAWL ¥ 01NV

000-T90ES-0€EZ-0EZ IM SYIZVID NATHLNOS

00C-T¥0ES-LOT-TOO
000-TP0ES-9TT-T100
C00-T¥OES~LOT-TOO
000-T%0ES-€60T-T00
000-T¥0€S-020-020
000-Tv0ES-020-020

000-PZ0ES-OET-0ET
000-vZ0eS-060-060

000-8S0ES-020-020

000-%20€ES-060-060 IMULSNANI YINJOIITWD

000-%Z0£5-90T1-T00

000-€ES0ES-S0T-T00
000-€S0ES-8TT-100
000-€£S0€S-8TT-T00

od PSS PES 9T

000-620€5-052-0S2
000-6Z0€ES-TZT-T00
000-6Z0ES-SOT-TO0
C00-6Z0€S-052Z-0S5¢2
000-6Z0ES-S0T-T00
000-6Z0ES-0SZ-0S¢T
000-6Z0€S-TZTI-TOO
000-6Z0ES-SOT-T00
000-6Z0€S-S0T-T00
000-6Z0ES-SOT-100
000-6Z0€5-05Z-0S2
000-6Z0ES-TZT-T00
000-620€5-S0T-T00
000-Z¥0€ES-TOT-T00
000-00595-S0T-T00
000-00595-S0T-T00

JUNODDY 3I1g8Q

¥VIX T¥OSIA JyOod

ONILSOd NOILDOVSNWVHL

ALNNOD ZATAOLS

ONI SEMOE AFNLId PEPTIOT

066E07

BZLEOY

€L000T

S6T1POY

ONI Z¥IL JOWD PETISOV¥

ONI FTTISYD 0ZL660

6SZE0Y

ONI D07 IANIdTV S6LEOY

ONI ODSIV SETO0T
SLIEEa D4

62628

8z6cs
LZ628
azece

azZezs

vzeze

£2628

zzezs

Tzeze

ozecs

Lu/ze/zt

Lr/ze/zTt
LT/zZ/21
LI/zZ/Z1

Lt/ze/zt

Lr/ze/et

Lt/zz/ezt

LT/22/21

Lr/ze/ex

Lr/ze/et

YA FHEAAL

6VEY A
5434 ¥
LYEY A
9vev dqA
Svev dA
P¥6% A
£V6YD ¥A
Zvev ¥A
ivev an
ovev AN
NOILDOVSNWYEL

SWEN #PUSA #UBI] 3Q 3804 #PI0O8Y 4l

TT1:90:60 LT/12/21

suny
9€z08d :3dsy .



4

¥S PES'9T

PSTPES 9T

T¥LOL
qIYD

abeq

9L°98
66°6S
86 62
sv' Lt
66°22
€667
66° VT
66°22
66 67
00°Ss2ZT
8¥v°Z1T
96 6%
81°29
00°'8zZL'T
8T 29
ov 00T
86 €T
L6 ET
S9°'9
00°6%
00°8LT
80°509
OTU"TET
ve'ee
8Z°9S
LE'S
00°ST
00°S
00°S€
TE'6

LNNOWY

JLva

HINOISSINWOD

NOILVZINOHLOV ONY MIIATY 40 LINZWIDATTMONADY

ELZT
€LZT
€LZT
€LTT
€LZT
ELTT
EL2T
€L2T
£LeT
€Lzt
6LTT
SLZT
SLzt
SLeT
SLet
6LZT
SLZT
SLZT
6LZT
6LZT
pZST
vZst
08zt
LLZTT
LLZT
LLZT
LLTT
LLZtT
ZLZT
6LTT

H#SNVEL

Lt/zz/zt 7Sa 200A
Lr/Te/et YAOUYHD SIWNL
Lr/ze/et FOIN ¥a

LT/2Z2/2TIOUVHD ANV SESVYD ZNOHA

L1/zZ/Z1 SUANVIIS
Lt/ze/zt dNMOVE A¥ELIVE
Li/ee/et FTEYD €SN
L1T/2z/TT SYANYEAS
L1/2z/2t AMNDVE ZJILIVE
LT/Z2/2T  WIL ONINIVEL FUYMWA
AYEAN LAY E9vIsod
Lr/zzjet

L1/zz/21 SIHOIT Qa1
L1/zz/2t FTAYMLIS DILSONOVIQ
L1/ze/et SILHOIT Q41
L1/zz/2t T30 FAII NITAD
ti/zz/zt

t1/zz/et

Lt/ze/et FDYISOd
Lt/zz/et FOVISOd
LT/22/2T SADOT MEN/LOAEZA TWOH

LT/2Z/2ZT SSYID SNYId/Wd/ANVYNIE
LT/ZZ/2Z1 ON¥ 9T Md OV OV WW Od
L1/ez/zt

L1/zz/eT

Lr/ze/et

Lt/ze/zt ONIN¥Yd Ld

LT/ze/et dIl

L1/zzZ/2T SN¥NE w¥EId

L1/zz/Tt €/ v6° LT TIAVIL
HIVA NOIldI¥DSHa

YALSIDEY JavD FSVHOENA

ALNNOD AF3OLS

+[B30L pPIeDs

N6AZEOO6MAWLSAS
SLE6Y0

SLEESO

006120

6L%020

6L7020

6L7020

6L%0Z0

6L¥020
BEIT-LEPS-SVOO

SHX08 TIVW NIESWOHL
TT/ZT WLLEMNS'L
L0/2T YIIIWANS'L
LO/ZT WLLEENS "L
L0/2T WLLZWAS "L
TYWION - 9L ZLTHdS
90/2T WIHNITAHEE 'S
90/Z1T YEONITAF¥E S
LTETZT sdsn T1dssnyd
LTB0ZT §4SN 1TASSON
ANYNIAE

anvNIy

ONIJOLYOd SOIUVH Md
YAEN-ONINIVIL dIOIdO
IXVL-ONINIVIL dIOIJ0
ONOT-ONINIVIL dIOIdO
dATIV-ONINIVEL AIOIG0
FEN-ONINIVIL dIOIdO
NOILWIILSIOAN AJVION
DAS IXVI NIAAN

# EOIOANI L1JdZa-aNng

FOANIA

LT/12/21
LS08V¥SHd

HHEWON
od

ajeqg uny

oN 1xodey .,












Resolution #18-480 in Memoriam of Susanne Ayers Graves,

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

By the Storey County Board of
Commissioners

The Storey County Commission remembers the dedicated service of
Susanne Ayers Graves and is saddened at her passing;

Susanne Ayers Graves served as an employee of the Sheriff’s Office for
26 years and in retirement continued to provide assistance and counsel to
the Office of the Sheriff right up until the time of her passing;

Susanne Ayers Graves was more than just an employee of county
government but had deep ties to our community going back decades,
always having time for family, friends, and neighbors, and even serving
for many years on the board of the Virginia City Senior Center;

Susanne Ayers Graves earned the respect, admiration and high regard of
all who had the pleasure of knowing and working with her, and while in
recent years she could not be a part of the Storey County community, the
County has sustained a great loss in her death;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, on behalf of the citizens, the Sheriff, and

the Storey County Board of Commissioners, extend sincere regret to
Susanne Graves’ family members for their loss and the hope that her
family will be consoled by the memories of her life and contributions to
community.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution be made a part of the official

minutes of Storey County and that an official copy of this expression of
our deepest sympathy be presented to her family.

Dated this 2" day of January, 2018.

Marshall McBride Jack McGuffy

Attested:

Storey County Clerk, Vanessa Stephens






Audit Report
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
June 30, 2017

DRAFT




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements:
Govemmental Funds
Balance Sheet
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund
Roads Fund
474 Fire Protection District Fund
Tri Payback Fund
USDA Bond Fund
Virginia City Tourism Commission Fund
Business Type Activities, Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
Notes to Financial Statements
Supplementary information:
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmenta! Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
Special Revenue Funds:
Equipment Acquisition
Justice Court Fees
Drug Court
Indigent Medical Fund
Park Tax
Mutual Aid
Sheriff Jail
Emergency Mitigation
Indigent Accident
Technology
Federal/State Grant
Fire Emergency
Stabilization
Genetic Marker Testing

12

14
15

17

18

24
25
26
27

28
29
30

31
32

52

55

58
59
60
61
62
63

65
66
67
68
69
70
71




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

FINANCIAL SECTION (cont'd.)
Capital Projects Funds
Capital Projects
Infrastructure Capital Projects Fund
Virginia City Rail Project
Enterprise Funds:
Water System Fund
Revenues and Expenses
Cash Flows
Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District
Revenues and Expense
Cash Flows
Fiduciary Fund Types:
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
All Agency Funds
Schedule of Storey County Abatement Agreements
Schedule of Funding Progress- Other Postemployment Benefits
Schedule of County's Share of Net Pension Liability-Public Retirement System of Nevada
Schedule of County's Contributions-Public Retirement System of Nevada
COMPLIANCE SECTION
Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards
Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicalbe to Each Major Program
Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Notes to Schedule of Federal Federal Awards
Schedule of Findings and Questions Costs
Status of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs

DRAFT

72

73
74

75
76

7
78

79
80
81

83

84

86
88
89
90
94




DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Storey County, Nevada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Storey County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial staternents referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Storey County as of

June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Correction of Errors
As discussed in Note XVIII to the financial statements, as of June 30, 2016 an error occurred in recording accumulated depreciation, long-

term liabilities, and pension liability. Accordingley, the errors have resulted in a restatement of net position/fund balances as of July 1,
2016. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.



Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's dicussi i 5
through 8, the Schedule of Funding Progress-Other Postemployment Benefits on page 81, the Schedule of County's Share of the Net
Pension Liability-Public Employees Retirement System of Nevada on page 82, and the Schedule of County's Contributions-Public
Employee's Retirement System of Nevada on page 83, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Storey County, Nevada's
basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial, and statistical section, are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30, 2017, on our consideration of
Storey County's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions out flows, regulations
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing on internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audition Standards in considering
Storey County's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

DiPietro & Thornton
Reno, NV
December 20, 2017



COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Storey County, State of Nevada, we offer readers of Storey County's financial statememﬂRfAF Tyss of
Storey County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of Storey County exceeded its liabilities by $21,023,000

The County's unrestricted net assets decreased $1,264,000

At June 30, 2017, the unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $9,993,000.

Storey County's bonded debt at June 30, 2017 was $7,048,000 which was $3,908,000 in revenue bonds of the
County's Enterprise Funds, Medium term (7 yr.) General obligation loans of$ 50,000, Virginia City Rail Bonds of
$1,283,000 and $1,807,000 bond of the Storey County Fire Protection District.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Storey County's basic financial statements. These basic financial
statements include (1) Government-Wide Financial Statements (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. Other
supplementary information is also available in this report.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The govemment-wide statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
Storey County's finances in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Assets is information on all of Storey County's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as
net assets. Over time, increases in net assets may serve as an indicator to show if the financial position of Storey County is improving or
declining.

The Statement of Activities notes information as to how the government's net assets changed during the last fiscal year. All changes in net

assets are reported as soon as the event causing the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Revenues and expenses are
reported for some items that result in cash flows in future periods, (e.g. earned, unused vacation)

The Government-Wide Financial Statements distinguish functions of Storey County that are mainly supported by taxes and
intergovemnmental revenues (government activities) from other functions that recover their costs through user fees and charges. The
governmental activities of Storey County included general government, public safety, roads and streets, judicial and, culture and recreation.
The business activities (enterprise funds) are the water and sewer.

The Government-Wide Financial Statements can be found in this report on pages 9 and 10.

Fund Financial Statements. Funds are groupings of related accounts and is used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific
activities or purpose. Storey County uses fund accounting to ensure compliance with state and federal finance related requirements. The
fund types of Storey County are as follows: governmental; enterprise; and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for the functions reported as governmental activities, in the Government-
Wide Financial Statements. Unlike the Government-Wide Financial Statements, governmental fund statements focus on near term inflows of

expendable resources and on balances of expendable resources at the end of the fiscal year. This information helps with decisions as to near
term financing needs.

The focus of governmental funds is narrower than the Government-Wide Financial Statements. It is useful to compare the information for
governmental funds with similar information for governmental activities in Government-Wide Financial Statements. Readers will better
understand the long-term impact of governments near-term financing decisions. The governmental fund Balance Sheet and governmental
fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in fund balances allow this comparison between governmental funds and activities.



Storey County has twenty-three governmental funds. Financial information is stated separately in the govemmental fund Balance Sheet
and in the govemnmental Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in fund balances, for the genegaldfiad.-and othesrfund

considered major funds. Data from the other seventeen governmental funds are combined. Individu
governmental funds are reported in combining statements in this report.

Storey County adopts an annual budget for all the above funds. A budgetary comparison statement has be
show compliance with the budget.

The governmental funds financial statements can be found in this report on pages 12 through 27.

Enterprise funds. Storey County operates two enterprise (proprietary) funds, Water and Sewer. These funds are reported as business
type activities, reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Enterprise funds are presented on pages 28 through 30.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for other entities. Fiduciary funds are not reported in the
government-wide financial statement as the resources do not support Storey County’'s needs. The cash basis of accounting is used for
fiduciary funds.

Fiduciary fund financial statements can be found in this report on page 31.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes in this report provide additional information necessary for a full understanding of the
information provided in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. The notes can be found on pages 32 through 51.

Other information. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules for major governmental funds can be found 'on page
18 through 27 of this report. This same information for non-major governmental funds can be found on pages 52 through 74 of this
report

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NET ASSETS

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017

Current and other Assets $ 50,876,000 $ 2,083,000 $ 52,959,000
Capital Assets 55,594,000 11,169,000 66,763,000
Total Assets £__106470.000 $__13.252.000 .8 __ 119.722,000,
Deferred Outflows $ 9,981,000 $ 59,000 $ 10,040,000
Long Term Liabilities
Outstanding $ 67,805,000 $ 4,421,000 $ 72,226,000
Current Liabilities 26,391,000 82,000 26,473,000
Total Liabilities $ 94,196,000 $ 4,503,000 $ 98,699,000
Deferred Inflows $ 4,908,000 § 175000 § 5,083,000
Net Position
Invested in Capital
Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 11,325,000 $ 7,261,000 $ 18,586,000
Restricted 143,000 289,000 432,000
Unrestricted 5,879,000 1,083,000 6,962,000
Total Net Position $ 17347000 $ ___8633.000 § _ 25980000



REVENUES:
Program Revenues:
Charges For Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grents and Contributions
General Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest Eamnings
Bond Proceeds
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
General Government
Public Safety
Judicial
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Community Support
Highways & Streets
Intergovernmental
Debt Service
Water and Sewer

Total Expenses
Changes In Net Position

Net Position - July 1

Net Position - June 30

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental
Activities
J 2017

$ 5,359,000 § 937,000 $ 6,296,000
1,344,000 - 1,344,000
481,000 - 481,000
12,552,000 - 12,552,000
3,931,000 - 3,931,000
260,000 - 260,000
23,000 - 23,000
1,026,000 41,000 1,067,000
24,976,000 978,000 25,954,000
9,276,000 - 9,276,000
12,225,000 - 12,225,000
1,079,000 - 1,079,000
226,000 - 226,000
115,000 - 115,000
795,000 - 795,000
744,000 - 744,000
45,000 45,000
11,000 . 11,000

- 1,097,000 1,097,000

24,516,000 1,097,000 25,613,000
460,000 (119,000) 341,000
16,887,000 8,752,000 25,639,000

$ 17,347,000 $ 8,633,000 $ 25,980,000







Business Type Activities, Business-type activities decreased Storey County's net assets by $119,446, Depreciation expense for the current
fiscal year was $256,236. Pension expense for the current fiscal year was $95,652.

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds. As noted earlier, Storey County uses fund accounti 1BRAF$S&M¢
compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of Storey County's governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows, and
balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing Storey County's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Budgetary Highlights-Fiscal Year June 30, 2017. The budget statements reflect a comparison of budgeted revenues and expenditures to
actual for the year ended June 30, 2017. The budget statements were prepared from the final budget as filed with the Nevada Department of
Taxation. Budget revenues and expenditures were adjusted for grants received in excess of original amounts budgeted. Augmentations and
line itern transfers were made during the year as approved by the Storey County Commissioners.

The General Fund revenues were more than expectations by $1,300,000, leaving a fund balance of $10,000,000. General Fund budget
information can be found on pages 18 through 22.

Capital Assets. Storey County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 2017 amounts
to $66,762,000 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, and system, improvements,
machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, and bridges.

STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
CAPITAL ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2017
Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017
Land $ 811,000 $ - $ 811,000
Antique Fumniture 75,000 - 75,000
Construction in Process 1,334,000 621,000 1,955,000
Buildings and Improvements 7,113,000 - 7,113,000
Improvements other than Buildings 39,135,000 - 39,135,000
Machinery and Equipment 7,125,000 - 7,125,000
Sewer and Water systems - 10,548,000 10,548,000
Total $ 55,593,000 $ 11,169,000 $ 66,762,000

Tesla Motors:

On November 20, 2014, The Nevada Governors Office of Economic Development (GOED) gave final approval for the tax
incentives and abatements to Tesla Motors for the construction and development of the mile long battery factory, located in
the Storey County, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. The project is expected to employ more than 6,000 people in the plant
located 15 miles east of Reno-Sparks Nevada. See note relating to the tax abatement disclosures.

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Storey County, Nevada's finances for all those with an
interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to Storey County Comptroller, P.O. Box 432, Virginia City, Nevada
89440, telephone number (775)847-1006, e-mail



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

|DRAFT




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017 RAF
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS- T
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIE! F O AR
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 49,349,187 $ 1,984,662 $§ 51,333,849
Accounts receivables (net allowance) 843,316 98,494 941,810
Taxes receivable 123,206 - 123,206
Prepaid expenses : 447,984 - 447,984
Inventory 112,217 - 112,217
Capital assets - nondepreciable
Land 810,921 - 810,921
Antique fumiture 75,000 - 75,000
Construction in progress 1,334,163 620,890 1,955,053
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements 7,113,024 - 7,113,024
Improvements other than buildings 39,135,459 - 39,135,459
Utility system - 10,548,097 10,548,097
Machinery and equipment 7,125,166 z 1,125,166
Total Assets $ 106,469,643 $ 13252143 $ 119,721,786
DEFERRED LOWS O S
Deferred outflows-pension $ 9,981,389 $ 58,739 $ 10,040,128
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 26,391,203 § 81,666 $ 26,472,869
Non-current liabilities
Bonds/Notes payable - due within one year 166,953 140,773 307,726
- due in more than one year 44,102,097 3,767,637 47,869,734
Compensated absences - due in more than one year 723,386 - 723,386
Net OPED obligation 3,813,897 - 3,813,897
Net pension liability 18.998.969 512.486 19,511,455
Total Liabilities $ 94,196,505 $ 4,502,562 $ 98,699,067
DEFERRED INFLOW: S S
Deferred inflows-Tesla $ 380,723 $ - $ 380,723
Deferred inflows-pension 4,527,261 175,411 4,702,672
Total Deferrcd Inflows of Resources $ 4,907,984 § 175,411 § 5,083,395
T ION
Restricted reserve $ 142,640 $ 250,850 § 393,490
Reserved other - 38,021 38,021
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt 11,324,683 7,260,577 18,585,260
Unrestricted 5,879,220 1,083,461 6,962,681
Total Net Position $ 17,346,543 § 8,632,909 § 25979,452

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
9



FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary government:
Govemnmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Judicial
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Community support
Highways and streets
Intergovernmental
Debt service

Total Governmental Activities
Business type activities:
Water
Sewer

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
PROGRAM

DRAFT

OPERA
CHARGES GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPENSES FOR SERVICES  CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS
$ 9,277,201 § 4,060,661 $ - $ ’
12,224,930 990,339 1,344,297 480,803
1,078,958 113,987 . .
225,502 . s -
115,941 24,310 : -
795,970 s & 2
744,077 169,535 - :
44,853 . » -
10,514 i " %
24,517,946 5358832 1.344.297 480,803

635,630 554,700

461,314 382,076 . -
1.096.944 936.776. « =
$ 25,614,890 § 6,295,608 § 1,344,297 § 480,803

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

10



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General govemnment
Public safety
Judicial
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Community support
Highways and streets
Intergovernmental
Debt service

Total Governmental Activities

Business type activities:
Water
Sewer

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government
General revenues:
Property taxes
Various state collected pass-through revenues
Interest carnings
Bond proceeds
Miscellaneous revenue
Capital contributions and grants
Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position
Net Position, July 1
Prior Period Adjustment, See Note XVIII

Net Position, June 30

KT

NET (EXPENSE)
CHANGES IN
BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

$ (5,216,540) $ - $ (5,216,540)
(9,409,491) - (9,409,491)
(964,971) - (964,971)
(225,502) - (225,502)
(91,631) - (91,631)
(795,970) - (795,970)
(574,542) - (574,542)
(44,853) - (44,853)
(10,514) - (10.514)
(17.334.014) - (17,334,014)
E (80,930) (80,930)
- (79.238) (79,238)
. (160,168) (160,168)
(17.334,014) (160.168) (17.494,182)
12,552,481 . 12,552,481
3,930,767 - 3,930,767
260,480 29,623 290,103
23,239 - 23,239
1,026,188 11,099 1,037,287
17.793.155 40,722 17.833.877
459,141 (119,446) 339,695
16,868,503 9,135,521 26,004,024
18,899 (383,166) (364,267)
$ 17,346,543 $ 8,632,909 $ 25,979,452

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
s 1 DRAFT
474 FIRE
PROTECTION
ROAD DISTRICT  TRI-PAYBACK USDA
GENERAL FUND FUND FUND BOND FUND
ASSETS
Cash $ 35431577 § 894,398 § 1,174,808 $ 3,006,111 §$ 29,017
Accounts receivable (net allowance) 385,264 80,289 227,816 - 61,966
Taxes receivable 93,398 - 26,918 - -
Prepaid expenses 293,024 - - - -
Inventory - - - - -
Total Assets $ 36203263 $ 974,687 $ 1429542 $ 3,006,111 § 90,983
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 311,992 § 194,144 § 205,465 $ - 8 61,966
Accrued expenses and deposits 262,517 3,638 210,166 - -
Uneamned income - - - - -
Account payable - Tesla 24,978,933 - - - -
Total Liabilities 25,553,442 197,782 415,631 - 61,966
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable resources property taxes 81,466 23,413
Deferred inflows-Tesla 283,297 - 97,426 - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 364,763 - 120,839 = =
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 293,024 - - - -
Reserved - debt service - - 142,640 - -
Unassigned reported in:
General fund 9,992,034 - - B -
Capital projects funds - - - - -
Special revenue funds = 776,905 750,432 3,006,111 29,017
Total Fund Balances 10,285,058 776,905 893,072 3,006,111 29,017
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances $ 36203263 $ 974,687 $§ 1429542 $§ 3,006,111 $ 90,983

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
12



ASSETS
Cash

Accounts receivable (net allowance)
Taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and deposits
Uneamed income
Account payable - Tesla
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable resources property taxes
Deferred inflows-Tesla

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable

Reserved - debt service

Unassigned reported in:
General fund
Capital projects funds
Special revenue funds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
e DRAFT
OTHER
VCTC GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS FUNDS
$ 96,921 $ 8,716,355 49,349,187
32,146 55,835 843,316
§ 2,890 123,206
154,960 - 447,984
112,217 - 112,217
$ 396,244 § 8,775,080 50,875,910
$ 50215 § 70,215 893,997
6,428 - 482,749
35,524 - 35,524
3 - 24,978,933
B 92,167 70,215 26,391,203
. 2,487 107,366
- - 380,723
. 2,487 488,089
267,177 . 560,201
. s 142,640
36,900 . 10,028,934
- 5,816,378 5,816,378
- 2,886,000 7,448,465
304,077 8,702,378 23,996,618
$ 396244 $ 8,775,080 50,875,910

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

13



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2017

Total Fund Balance - government funds - page 13

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets net of related depreciation are not reported in the
Governmental Funds financial statements because they are not
current financial resources, but they are reported in the statement of
net assets

Deferred outflows of resources for pensions

Property taxes receivable that are note available to pay current
period expenditures and therefore are reported as uncarned in the
funds

Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Pension liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore not reported in funds

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deferred inflows of resources for pensions

Total Net Position - governmental activities - page 9

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
14

DRAFT

$ 23,996,618

55,593,733

9,981,389

107,366

(44,269,050)

(22,812,866)

(723,386)
.. (4.527.261)

17,346,543

-S_i—d—




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEDNITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND B

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 DRAFT
474
FIRE
PROTECTION TRI-
ROAD DISTRICT PAYBACK USDA
GENERAL FUND FUND FUND BOND FUND
REV S
Taxes $ 9,230,497 § - $  2,828999 § - 8 -
Licenses and permits 1,325,535 - 485,718 - -
Intergovemmental 1,661,405 561,672 888,836 - -
Charges for services 2,153,810 169,535 504,621 - -
Fines and forfeitures 6,687 - - - -
Miscellaneous 472,756 21,175 42,511 - 184,868
Total Revenues 14850690 __ 752382 __  4.750.685 - 184,868
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 4,615,591 - - 514,452 -
Public safety 5,274,031 - 5,431,724 - -
Judicial 1,081,615 - - - -
Health and welfare 86,611 - - - -
Culture and recreation 142,596 - - - -
Community service 743,538 - - - -
Highways and streets - 1,562,784 - - -
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Debt service 10,514 - - - -
Total Expenditures 11,954,496 1,562,784 5.431.724 514,452 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures 2,896,194 (810,402) (681.039) (514.452) 184.868
ANCIN C SES
Transfers in - 300,000 - 1,500,000 142,640
Transfers out (1,491,776) - (1,282,500) - -
Federal grants - - 1,344,297 - -
Loan (payments) proceeds - - - - (156,985)
Bond proceeds - - - - -
Other revenue - - - - -
Bond interest = - - - (170,523)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (1,491,776) 300,000 61,797 1,500,000 (184,868)
Net Change in Fund Balance 1,404,418 (510,402) (619,242) 985,548 -
Fund Balance, July 1 8,634.000 1,262,064 1.408.442 2,020,563 29,017
Prior Period Adjustment, See Note X VIII 246640 __ 25243 __ 103.872 = =
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 10,285,058 § 776,905 $ 893,072 $ 3,006,111 § 29,017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

15



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEDNITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND B AL AR e
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 DRAFT
OTHER
VCTC GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ 385,619 § 12,445,115
Licenses and permits 39,862 - 1,851,115
Intergovernmental 501,372 798,285 4.411,570
Charges for services 562,195 80,990 3,471,151
Fines and forfeitures - 29,879 36,566
Miscellaneous 198,695 660,623 1,580,628
Total Revenues 1.302.124 1.955.396 23,796,145
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 1,376,883 800,450 7,307,376
Public safety - 986,573 11,692,328
Judicial - 10,179 1,091,794
Health and welfare - 138,891 225,502
Culture and recreation - 10,040 152,636
Community service - - 743,538
Highways and streets - - 1,562,784
Intergovernmental - 44,853 44,853
Debt Service - - 10,514
Total Expenditures 1376.883 _ _ 1990986 22,831,325
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (74.759) (35.590) 964.820
CES (U
Transfers in - 1,000,000 2,942,640
Transfers out - (168,364) (2,942,640)
Federal Grants - - 1,344,297
Loan (payments) proceeds - (223,535) (380,520)
Bond proceeds - 23,239 23,239
Other revenue - 46,913 46,913
Bond interest - = (170,523)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 678,253 863,406
Net Change in Fund Balance (74,759) 642,663 1,828,226
Fund Balance, July 1 371.879 8.059.715 21,785,680
Prior Period Adjustment, See Note XVIII 6.957 - -
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 304,077 $ 8,702,378 $ 23,613,906

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
16



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES DRAFT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
Net change in fund balances - governmental funds, page 16 $ 1,828,226

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays to purchase capital asscts are reported in

governmental funds as expenditures. However, those costs are

shown in the statement of net assets and allocated over their

estimated useful lives as depreciation expense in the statement of

activities. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded

depreciation, 138,333

Net long-term receipts and payments reported in
governmental funds as expenditures 724,622

Compensated absences are reported as expenses in the statement of
activities but do not require the use of current financial resources
and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental

funds (340,674)

Revenuc from taxes in the statement of activities that does not
provide current financial resources is not reported as revenue in the

funds 107,366

Total pension benefits are reported as expenses in the statement of
activities but do not require the use of current financial resources
and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds

(1,998,732)

Change in net assets of governmental activities, page 11 $ 459,141

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
17



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND B
BUDGET AND ACTUAL RAFT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUES AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Taxes:
Property $ 8,653,623 $ 8,653,623 $ 9,207,108 $ 553,485
Youth services 22,000 22,000 23,389 1,389
Total Taxes 8,675,623 8,675,623 9,230,497 554,874
Licenses and permits
Merchandise licenses 258,300 258,300 299,168 40,868
County gaming licenses - - 2,670 2,670
Utility licenses 190,000 190,000 198,986 8,986
Franchise tax 65,000 65,000 137,121 72,121
Building permits & study 759,277 759,277 687,590 (71,687)
Total Licenses and Permits 1,272,577 1,272,577 1,325,535 52,958
Intergovernmental
Federal and state grants 20,000 20,000 14,231 (5,769)
Payment in lieu of taxes 30,000 30,000 38,392 8,392
State shared revenues
Cigarette tax 16,000 16,000 13,997 (2,003)
Liquor tax 5,500 5,500 5,236 (264)
Gaming licenses 82,000 82,000 134,263 52,263
Basic CCRT 530,000 530,000 493,281 (36,719)
Supplemental CCRT 500,000 500,000 530,175 30,175
Motor vehicle privilege tax 350,000 350,000 334,338 (15,662)
Real property transfer tax 100,000 100,000 97,492 (2,508)
Total Intergovernmental 1,633,500 1,633,500 1,661,405 27,905
Charges for Services
Clerk fees 858,224 858,224 16,126 (842,098)
Recorder fees 32,000 32,000 33,803 1,803
Assessor fees/commissions 190,000 190,000 236,374 46,374
Building department fees 7,000 7,000 23,400 16,400
District court fees 66,000 66,000 14,094 (51,906)
Justice court fees 40,000 40,000 97,992 57,992
JOP court facility fee 14,000 14000 1,901 (12,099)
Sheriffs fees 9,000 9,000 62,437 53,437
Swimming pool admissions/lessons 17,200 17,200 21,410 4,210
Park facilities fees 500 500 (100) (600)
Import tonnage fees 500,000 500,000 596,826 96,826
IT fees 115,000 115,000 29,473 (85,527)
Other fees - Tesla - - 851,224 851,224
BIA housing = - 168,850 168,850
Total Charges for Services 1,848,924 1,848,924 2,153,810 304,886

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
18



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAILANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL DRAFT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Fines and Forfeits:
District fine 500 500 500 -
Juvenile fines/assessments 1,200 1,000 1,888 888
Chemical analysis fees 1,500 2,000 4,299 2,299
Total Fines and Forfeits 3,200 3,500 6,687 3,187
Miscellancous:
Rents 30,000 40,000 37,420 (2,580)
Penalties -taxes - 47,000 114,135 67,135
Penalties - business licenses - - 907 907
Interest 50,000 50,000 234,999 184,999
Tax settlement and sales 5,000 5,000 37,996 32,996
Other - - 47,299 47.299
Total Miscellaneous 85,000 142.000 472,756 330.756
Total Revenues 13,518,824 13,576,124 14,850,690 1,274 566
EXPENDITURES
‘General Government
Commissioners:
Salaries and wages 350,486 350,486 348,414 2,072
Employee benefits 194,928 194,928 178,496 16,432
Services and supplies 103,800 96,800 65,687 31,113
Capital outlay = & - 0
649,214 642,214 592,597 49,617
Clerk Treasurer: B
Salaries and wages 200,174 203,774 205,162 (1,388)
Employee benefits 99,394 99,394 97,145 2,249
Services and supplies 125,800 122,200 113,964 8,236
Capital outlay 7,000 7,000 5,855 1,145
432,368 432,368 422,126 10,242
Recorder:
Salaries and wages 167,026 167,026 156,744 10,282
Employee benefits 78,383 78,383 71,009 7,374
Services and supplies 52,200 50,700 42,196 8,504
Capital outlay = = - =
297,609 296,109 269,949 26,160
Assessor: =
Salaries and wages 260,382 260,382 247,534 12,848
Employee benefits 147,465 147,465 143,400 4,065
Services and supplies 42,625 42,625 31,553 11,072
Capital outlay = N = -
450,472 450,472 422,487 27,985
Administrative: =
Salaries and wages 198,111 198,111 190,029 8,082
Employee benefits 231,393 251,643 93,296 158,347
Services and supplies 657,650 657,650 691,438 (33,788)
Interest expense - - - =
Capital outlay 14,000 14,000 11,681 2,319
1,101,154 1,121,404 986,444 134,960

19

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

) GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL DkAFT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS  AMOUNTS  FINAL BUDGET
EXPENDITURES
General Government (contd.)
Building and Grounds:
Salaries and wages 134,270 129,270 127,157 2,113
Employee benefits 67,957 67,957 55,275 12,682
Services and supplies 234,300 224,300 176,107 48,193
Capital outlay - 15,000 38,995 (23,995)
436,527 436,527 397,534 38,993
Planning Commission:
Salaries and wages 152,991 132,991 125,917 7,074
Employee benefits 67,997 67,997 55,352 12,645
Services and supplies 53,900 53,900 27,545 26,355
274,888 254,888 208,814 46,074
Service:
Salaries and wages 157,364 157,364 139,262 18,102
Employee benefits 78,287 78,287 61,437 16,850
Services and supplies 100 100 38,848 (38,748)
Capital outlay 53,450 53,450 4,665 48,785
289,201 289,201 244,212 44,989
Comptroller:
Salaries and wages 237,530 241,530 238,735 2,795
Employee benefits 108,406 109,006 102,344 6,662
Services and supplies 75,810 79,610 87,579 (7,969)
Capital outlay 2,000 9,000 - 9,000
423,746 439,146 428,658 10,488
Information technology:
Salaries and wages 216,682 218,182 218,549 (367)
Employees benefits 113,614 113,614 106,960 6,654
Services and supplies 149,600 148,100 135,066 13,034
Capital outlay 58,600 184,600 182,195 2,405
538.496 664,496 642,770 21,726
Total General Government 4.893.675 5,026 825 4,615,591 411.234
Judicial:
District Attorney:
Salaries and wages 316,618 316,618 296,646 19,972
Employee benefits 135,086 135,086 121,214 13,872
Services and supplies 419,425 319,375 202,658 116,717
Capital outlay 2,000 2,000 - 2,000
873,129 773.079 620.518 152,561
District Court:
Services and supplies 125,945 142,945 145,025 (2,080)
125,945 142,945 145,025 (2,080)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

20



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

EXPENDITURES
Judicial (contd.)

Tustice of the Peace:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total Judicial

Pubic Safety:
Sheriff:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Community Development
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Emergency Management:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Communications
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total Public Safety

Health and Human Service
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total Health and Human Services

Culture and Recreation:
Swimming Pools & Parks
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total Culture and Recreation

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

DRAFT

ORIGINAL FINAL

BUDGETED  BUDGETED ACTUAT, VARIANCE TO

AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
183,474 194,474 193,491 983
106,244 106,244 95,094 11,150
32,200 32,200 27487 4713
321918 332,918 316,072 16.846
1.320.992 1.248.942 1.081.615 167327
1,873,604 1,873,604 1,859,330 14,274
1,139,621 1,139,621 1,026,734 112,887
423,300 481,800 475,761 6,039
87,500 145,000 160,932 (15,932)

3.524 3640025 3,522 757 117.268
365,617 489,578 493,193 (3,615)
178,987 183,487 178,532 4,955
109,000 87,000 84,854 2,146
7,000 50,000 43,787 6.213
660,604 810,065 800,366 9,699
21,678 21,978 21,909 69
19,172 19,172 11,487 7,685
15,800 15,500 9,145 6,355

6,500 6,500 - 6,500
63.150 63.150 42,541 20.609
527,022 567,722 571,439 (3,717)
246,619 249,469 243,886 5,583
63,350 68,250 81,406 (13,156)
16,000 26,000 11,636 14,364
852,991 911,441 908367 _ 3,074
5100770 ____ 5424681 _____ 5274031 _____ 150650
5,962 6,062 6,059 3

2,760 2,760 2,571 183
124,076 89,576 77975 11,601
132,798 98,398 86.611 11,787
57,993 60,593 60,538 55
13,719 14,619 13,741 878
76,700 73,200 68,317 4,883
148,412 148,412 142,596 5,816

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

21



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

GENERAL FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

DRAFT

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Community Support
Salaries and wages 92,788 92,788 89,387 3,401
Employee benefits 34,073 34,073 30,770 3,303
Services and supplics 657,350 658,550 623,381 35,169
Total Community Support 784.211 785.411 743,538 41,873
Debt Service:
Principle 179,025 179,025 - 179,025
Interest 11,170 11,670 10,514 1,156
Total Debt Service 190,195 190.695 10.514 180,181
Total Expenditures 12571053 12923364 ___ 11954496 ________ 968.868
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over
Expenditures 947,771 652,760 ___ 2.896.194 2243434
OTHER FINANCING SO ES
Transfers out (1,491,775) (1,491,775) (1,491,776) )
Contingency (371,746) 19,435 - (19,435)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,863,521) (1,472,340) (1,491,776) - (19,436)
Net Change in Fund Balance (915,750) (819,580) 1,404,418 2,223,998
Fund Balance, July 1 6,454,570 6,454,570 8.634,000 2,179,430
Prior Period Adjustment, See Note X VIII - - 246,640 -
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 5,538,820 $ 5,634,990 $ 10,285,058 $ 4,403,428

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

22



REVENUE
Intergovernmental
Gasoline tax
Supplemental CCRT
Charges for services
Import tonnage fees
Excavation
Other revenue
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Highways and strects
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits

Services and supplies

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

over Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Prior Period Adjustment, See Note XVIII

Fund Balance, June 30

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
ROADS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAJ
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

DRAFT

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL  VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS  AMOUNTS _ AMOUNTS _ FINAL BUDGET
$ 199,000 § 199,000 $ 225894 § 26,894
300,000 300,000 335,778 35,778
129,000 129,000 168,335 39,335
- . 1,200 1,200
10,000 10,000 15,133 5,133
1,000 1,000 6,042 5,042
639.000 639,000 752,382 113,382
307,162 307,162 264,845 42,317
133,000 113,000 74,923 38,077
169,150 224,150 161,449 62,701
1,315,300 1,280,300 _ 1,061,567 218,733
1924612 _ 1924612 __ 1562784 __ 361828
(1,285,612)  (1,285,612) (810,402) 475210
300,000 300,000 300,000 -
(985,612)  (985,612) (510,402) 475,210
1,263,067 1,263,067 1,262,064 481,440
: s 25243 -
$ 277455 $ 277455 $ 776905 § 956,650

23

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA
BUDGET AND ACTUAL AFT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

REVENUE
Taxes
Property $ 2,659,357 $ 2,659,357 $ 2,828,999 § 169,642
Intergovernmental revenues
Supplemental CCRT 833,000 833,000 888,836 55,836
Licenses and permits
Ambulance program & license fees 509,038 509,038 485,718 (23,320)
Charges for services
Fire/ambulance fees 300,000 300,000 275,422 (24,578)
Inspection fees 203,000 203,000 224,494 21,494
Fire billing and permits 75,000 75,000 - (75,000)
Special events 5,000 5,000 4,705 (295)
Other revenue
Miscellaneous - other 153,000 153,000 42,511 (110,489)
Total Revenues 4,737,395 4,737,395 4,750,685 13,290
EXPENDITURES
Public Safety
Salaries and wages 3,081,789 3,109,789 3,087,363 22,426
Employee benefits 1,739,266 1,760,766 1,681,922 78,844
Services and supplies 638,791 648,791 564,919 83,872
Capital outlay 35,844 53,844 97,520 (43,676)
Contingency 140,000 62,500 = 62,500
Total Expenditures 5,635,690 5,635,690 5,431,724 203,966

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over

Expenditures (898,295) (898,295) (681,039) 217,256

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Federal Grants 1,121,956 1,121,956 1,344,297 (222,341)
Transfer Out (282,500) (282,500) (1,282,500) 1,000,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 839,456 839,456 61,797 777,659

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Other

Financing Sources (Uses) over Expenditures (58,839) (58,839) (619,242) 994,915
Fund Balance, July 1 894,462 894.462 1,408,442 962,051
Prior Period Adjustment, See Note XVIII - - 103,872 -
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 835,623 $ 835,623 § 893,072 § 1,956,966

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
24




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL/

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
474 Fire District

EXPENDITURES
General government
Tri Payback

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Other
Financing Sources (Uses) over Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TRIPAYBACK FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

DRAFT

ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
$ 282,500 $ - 8 282,500
1,500,000 514,452 985,548
(1,217,500) (514,452) (703,048)
1,217,500 1,500,000 (282,500)
- 985,548 (985,548)
1,694,708 2,020,563 325,855
$ 1,694,708 § 3,006,111 § 1,311,403

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

25



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
USDA BOND FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES DRAFT
BUDGET AND ACUTAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous revenue $ 118,884 $ 184,868 $ (65,984)
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Capital outlay - - -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over
Expenditures 118,884 184,868 (65,984)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds
Debt service (116,405) (156,985) 40,580
Interest (148,239) (170,523) 22,284
Transfer in 145,760 142,640 3,120
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Other
Financing Sources (Uses) over Expenditures - - -
Fund Balance, July 1 - 29,107 (29,107)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ - 8 29,107 § (29,107)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
26



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA CITY TOURISM COMMISSION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACUTAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

DRAFT

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Licenses and permits
Licenses - permits $ 33,500 $ 33,500 $§ 39,862 $ 6,362
Intergovernmental
Grant revenue 77,000 77,000 39,000 (38,000)
State licenses 1,200 1,200 2,741 1,541
Room tax 156,000 156,000 149,968 (6,032)
Tourism tax 265,000 265,000 309,663 (18,272)
Charges for services
Special events 382,000 382,000 373,768 (8,232)
CAP service charge (net) 200,000 200,000 188,427 (11,573)
Miscellaneous
Interest 500 500 614 114
Contributions 4,500 4,500 4,427 (73)
Miscellaneous 171,200 171,200 193,654 22,454
Total Revenues 1290900 ____ 1290900 ____ 1302124 __ (S171D)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Salaries and wages 264,401 264,401 256,076 8,325
Benefits 135,450 126,450 120,388 5,562
Services and supplies 877,200 886,200 955,135 (68,935)
Capital outlay 47.000 47.000 44,784 2,216
Total Expenditures 1324051 _____ 1324051 _____ 1376883 ____ (52.832)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (33,151) (33,151) (74,759) 1,121
Fund Balance, July 1 410,993 410,993 371.879 (50.666)
Prior Period Adjustment, See Note X VIII - - 6.957 -
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 377,842 § 377,842 § 304,077 $ (49,545)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
27



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSESTS
o DRAFT
BUSINESS-TYPE E
WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash $ 1,649,537 § 335,125 § 1,984,662
Accounts receivable (net allowance) 64.654 33,840 98.494
Total Current Assets 1,714,191 368,965 2,083,156
Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 4,784,942 6,384,045 11,168,987
Total Assets $ 6,499,133 $§ 6,753,010 § 13,252,143
DEFERRED OUTELOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows-pension $ 37,593 $ 21,146 $ 58,739
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 21,239 § 7221 § 28,460
Refundable deposits 26,505 - 26,505
Bonds payable - current portion 16,927 123,846 140,773
Accrued expenses 18,153 8,548 26,701
Total Current Liabilities 82,824 139,615 222,439
Long Term Liabilities
Bonds payable - net of current portion 482,059 3,285,578 3,767,637
Net pension liability 327.991 184,495 512,486
Total Long Term Liabilities 810,050 3,470,073 4,280,123
Total Liabilities 892,874 3,609,688 4,502,562
DEFE LOWS OF ES
Deferred inflows-pension $ 112,263 $ 63,148 $ 175,411
NET POSITION
Restricted reserve 131,966 118,884 250,850
Reserved - short lived assets replacement - 38,021 38,021
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt 4,285,956 2,974,621 7,260,577
Unassigned 1,113,667 (30,206) 1,083,461
Total Net Position $ 5,531,589 §$ 3,101,320 $ 8,632,909

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

28




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
AND CHANGE IN NET ASSESTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

DRAFT

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 554700 $ 382,076 $ 936,776
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 165,143 87,714 252,857
Benefits 133,707 74,739 208,446
Services and supplies 198,426 75,504 273,930
Capital outlay 1,785 - 1,785
Depreciation 106,217 150019 _ 256,236
Total Operating Expense 605278 387,976 993,254
Operating Income (Loss) (50,578) (5,900 (56.478)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Rent and miscellaneous 10,000 1,099 11,099
Interest income 24,043 5,580 29,623
Interest expense (37,148) (73,338) (110,486)
Miscellaneous 4,296 - 4,296
Grants and capital contributions 2,500 - 2.500
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 3.691 _(66.659) (62,968)
Change in net position (46,887) (72,559) (119,446)
Net Position, July 1 5823702 331L819 9135521
Prior Period Adjustment, See Note XVIII (245.226) (137.940) (383.166)
Net Position, June 30 $ 5,531,589 $ 3,101,320 $ 8,632,909

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

29



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WS FR ACTI

Cash Inflows

Sales of water/sewer fees

Miscellaneous income
Cash Qutflows

Salaries and wages

Benefits

Services and supplies

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON- AL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows

Rent
Customer deposits
Capital outlay

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
'FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Other Revenue
Capital contributions
Cash Outflows
Capital outlay and grant match
Debt service

Interest expense

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOW (0] Al
Cash Inflows
Interest earnings

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash, July 1

Cash, June 30

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

DRAFT

WATER VIRGINIA

SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTAL
$ 550,209 $ 380,904 $ 931,113
4,296 . 4,296
(164,897) (92,123) (257,020)
(71,194) (39,534) (110,728)
(195,233) (75,997) (271,230)
123,181 173,250 296,431
10,000 - 10,000
10,955 - 10,955
« (44,698) (44,698)
20,955 (44,698) (23,743)
. 1,099 1,099
2,500 - 2,500
(38,982) (83,816) (122,798)
(6,247) (73,338) (79,585)
(37,148) < (37,143)
(79,877) (156,055) (235.932)
24,043 5,580 29,623
88,302 (21,923) 66,379
1,561,235 357,048 1,918,283
$ 1,649,537 §$ 335125 § 1,984,662

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

30



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES

Due to other governments

Net Assets

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

DRAFT

AGENCY
FUNDS

731,779

731,779

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
31




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DR AFT
JUNE 30, 2017

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

REPORTING ENTITY

Storey County, Nevada, a local government created under the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes 243.110, is
governed by an elected three-member board of commissioners, As required by generally accepted accounting principles,
these financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the government is
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance,
part of the government's operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary government.

Blended Component Units - The Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District is under the direct oversight of the Storey
County Board of Commissioners. The rates for users charges and bond issuance authorizations are approved by the
County Commissioners, and the legal liability for the Virginia Divide Sewer District's debt remains with Storey County.
The District is reported as an enterprise fund.

Effective July 1, 2014, the Storey County Fire Protection District 474 was created by the Storey County Board of
Commissioners. This entity supercedes the Fire, and Fire District Special Revenue Funds. The governing body of the
new Fire Protection District 474 is the Board of County Commissioners and will be reported as a Special Revenue Fund.

The Board of County Commissioners directly appoints the governing board of the Virginia City Tourism Commission
(VCTC). The county personnel provide essentially all services, accounting, budgeting and other record keeping for the
commission. The VCTC has elected to be reported as a major fund (Special Revenue) in the County financial
statements.

Excluded from the reporting entity - Storey County Schools, Storey County Senior Center, and Canyon General
Improvement District,

These potential component units have separate elected or appointed boards and provide services to residents, generally
within the geographic boundaries of the government. These potential component units are excluded from the reporting
entity because the government does not have the ability to exercise influence over their daily operations, approve
budgets, or provide funding,

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Government-Wide Financial Statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net assefs)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported, separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degrees to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

32



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRE ATION

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as arc proprictary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and
cxpenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as Soon as
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Gross
receipts and sales taxes are considered “measurable when in the hands of intermediary collecting agents or governments.
Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the county considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 50
days after the end of the current fiscal period. Anticipated refunds of taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of
revenue when they are measurable and the payment seems certain. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the County.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Fire Protection District 474 Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received primarily from intergovernmental
sources. Expenditures are for County fire protection including the purchase of machinery and equipment to provide
such services.

The Tri Payback Fund accounts for monies which shall be required to be paid back to the developers of the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center as detailed in Note XV,

The Road Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received primarily from gasoline taxes and other
intergovernmental sources. Expenditures are for the construction and maintenance of County roads and bridges and
other road related infrastructure and the purchase of machinery and equipment required to do such work. (Elected to be
reported as a major fund.)

The USDA Bond Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received from USDA Bonds to improve water and waste
disposal in Storey County and purchase additional fire and ambulance equipment for the Fire Protection District 474.

The Virginia City Tourism Commission Special Revenue Fund promotes tourism for Storey County and Virginia City
through advertising and promotion of special events and aftractions located within the County. (Elected to be reported
as a major fund.)

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water System Fund accounts for the activities of the Virginia City/Gold Hill water distribution system.

The Virginia Divide Sewer System Fund accounts for the operations of the sewage treatment plant, pumping stations,
and collection systems.

33



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017 T

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the Government-W’ >
Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s water and sewer functions. Eliminations of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as Program Revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as General Revenues rather than as progtam revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenucs and expenses
generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with the proprietary funds’
principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses,

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY
1. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, short term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, and the State Treasurer’s
investment pool. Investments are reported at fair value.

2. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal
year is referred to as “due to/from other funds.”

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. No allowance is recorded for property tax
receivables. Property taxes are levied as of July 1 on property values assessed on the same date. The tax levy may be
paid in four installments by the third Monday in August and the first Monday in October, January, and March. There is
a ten day grace period allowed for each installment. Penalties and interest are assessed on all delinquent coliections.
Liens are filed on the property at one year's delinquency.

3. INVENTORIES AND PREPAID ITEMS

No inventories are maintained by the government for either operating or office supplies. These items are recorded as
expenditures when purchased, rather than when consumed. The VCTC maintains an inventory of resale souvenir items
which are presented at cost.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.
4, RESTRICTED ASSETS AND RESERVED FUNDS

At June 30, 2016, the County had the following restricted fund balances: a) 474 Fire Protection District Fund -
$142,640; b) Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District - $118,884; and ¢) Water System Fund - $131,966 and
Reserved Fund Balance-Virginia Divide Sewer District - $38,021.

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (i.e., roads, bridges, sidewalks, storm
drains, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
Government-Wide Financial Statements, Capital assets arc defined by the govemment as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $3000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The cost or normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are
not capitalized.

34



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DR AFT
JUNE 30, 2017

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in proprietary funds as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund fixed assets is reflected in the capitalized value of
the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method over the following useful lives:

ASSETS YEARS
Public and System Infrastructure 20-100
Vehicles 5-10
Office Equipment 5-10
Equipment ' 10-20
Buildings 75-100
Building Improvements 35-50
Computer Equipment 5
Furniture and Fixtures 7-10

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate eamed but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.
Vested or accumulated vacation pay that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is
reported as expenditure and a fund liability of the fund that will pay it. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation pay
that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as long term debt. No
expenditure is reported for these amounts. No liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick
pay benefits. However a liability is recognized for that portion of accumulated sick leave benefits that is required to be
paid upon termination. All employees with a minimum accrued sick leave of 360 hours to a maximum of 960 hours

(except for fire department — no maximum) shall be paid at retirement or termination of service, other than involuntary
termination as follows:

Other Employees Rate of Fire Department Rate of

Years of Continuous Service Pay Pay

5 years but less than 10 years 12.5¢ on the Dollar 20.0¢ on the Dollar
10 years but less than 15 years 25.0¢ on the Dollar

10 years but less than 20 years 35.0¢ on the Dollar
15 years but less than 20 years 40.0¢ on the Doller

20 years or more 50.0¢ on the Dollar 50.0¢ on the Dollar

The maximum sick leave paid upon termination shall be $5,000 for all employees except law enforcement and firemen
Law Enforcement personnel;

Payment for Sick Leave at Termination: Upon an employee’s end of service through PERS retirement or termination
from service (other than involuntary termination) with total accrued hours of three hundred sixty (360) or more, the
Employee shall be paid for unused sick leave at the following rate:

a. 10 to 15 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 20% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to exceed
$2,500 cash or $3,125 toward the purchase of PERS.

b. 15 to 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 40% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to exceed
$3,500 cash or $4,375 toward the purchase of PERS.

¢. More than 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 60% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to
exceed $5,000 cash or $6,250 toward the purchase of PERS.
Fireman: 1,333 hrs. maximum for line employees
952 hrs. maximum for 8 hr. employees

35



10.

11,

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DR AFT

JUNE 30, 2017

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position and Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then. The County reports an amount related to peasions on the government-wide financial statements.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position and Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County
reports an amounts related to pensions on the government wide financial statement. These amounts are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The County also recognizes
payments received from Tesla in the current year, but are used to pay expenses for the next fiscal year.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

The County currently has no long term bonds payable in the governmental funds. The revenue bonds reported in the
proprietary fund types incurred no bond premiums or discounts and therefore have no deferred charges or amortization.

The County has a long-term obligation relating to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (TRI) — see Note XVII for details.

NET POSITION

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is reported as net investment in capital
assets, restricted, or unrestricted. Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on it are either

imposed by external parties (such as creditors, grantors, contributors or other governments) or imposed by law
through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

FUND BALANCE

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, as follows:

Nonspendable fund balances include items that cannot be spent, such as amounts that are not in a spendable form (for
example, inventories and prepaid items) and amounts that are legally or contractually required to remain intact, such
as a permanent fund principal balance.

Restricted fund balances have constraints placed upon the use of the resources cither by external parties (such as
creditors, grantors, contributors or other govemnments) or imposed by law through a constitutional provision or
enabling legislation.

Committed fund balances can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by an ordinance of
the County Commission, which is the County's highest level of decision-making authority. These constraints remain
binding unless removed or changed in the same manner used to create the constraints,

ESTIMATES
Timely preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates that affect reported amounts. Accordingly, these estimates may

require revision in futurc periods. Significant estimates include compensated absences, pension and other
postemployment benefits, collectability of receivables, and useful lives of capital assets.

36



IL

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DR AFT
JUNE 30, 2017

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A, BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all governmental
funds.

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary date reflected in the financial statements:
1. Prior to April 15, the County budget officer submits to the County Commissioners the tentative operating budgets

(4) for the fiscal years commencing the following July 1, The operating budgets include proposed expenditures
and the means of financing them.

2. The tentative budgets are filed with the State Department of Taxation by April 15,
3. A public hearing is conducted at the County Court House to obtain taxpayers comments (3 Monday in May).

4. The final budgets are adopted and filed with the State Department of Taxation, Final budgets must be certified by
a majority of all members of the governing body. The final budgets must be adopted on or before June 1.

5. Budget amounts may be transferred within funds if the governing body is advised and the action is recorded in the
official minutes of the next meeting, Revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by
the County Commissioners. Budget revisions must also be filed with the State Department of Taxation.

6. Budgets for the General, Special Revenues, Debt Service, Proprietary, and Capital Projects Funds are adopted on a
basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

7. Budget augmentations were preparcd for the general, various special revenue funds and enterprise funds during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

8. All budget appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

In accordance with state statute, actual expenditures may not exceed budgetary appropriations of the various
govemmental programs of the General Fund or total appropriations of the Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds,
except as expressly authorized by law.

B. EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended June 30, 2017, expenditures exceeded appropriations as follows:

Expenditures Appropriations
Virginia City Tourism Commission Fund $ 1,302,124 $ 1,290,900
Mutual Aid Special Revenue Fund 444,777 335,500
Emergency Mitigation Special Revenue Fund 142,910 100,000
Water System Enterprise Fund 605,278 484,748
Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District Enerprise Fund 387,976 238,496
General Fund-District Court 145,025 142,945

C. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The Emergency Mitigation Fund incurred a deficit fund equity at June 30, 2017, in the amount of $40,870.

37



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017 F

D. COMPLIANCE - NRS 354.624

Storey County has two enterprise funds: The Water System Enterprise Fund and the Virginia-Divide Sewer
Improvement District Enterprise Fund, Storey County also maintains agency funds as follows: State of Nevada Fund
Storey County School District Fund, Storey County School District Debt Service Fund. The County maintains no
internal service funds, self-insurance funds, or funds whose balance is required by law to be used for a specific purpose

other than the payment of compensation to a bargaining unit as defined in NRS 288.028 or carried forward to the
succeeding fiscal year in any designated amount.

All enterprise and agency funds maintained by Storey County:

a) are being used in accordance with NRS 354.624.
b) are being administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures.
c) all reserves in the funds are reasonable and necessary to carry out the purposes of the funds.

d) reflect the sources of revenues available for the fund during the fiscal year — including transfers from other
funds.

e) are following the statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the funds
f) reflect the balance and retained earnings of the funds.
Storey County has $288,871 and restricted reserved in all funds,

m. CASH

At year end, the carrying amount of the bank balances was $43,782,067. Of the bank balances, $1,000,000 was covered by
federal depository insurance. Additionally, $8,280,481 cash was on deposit with the Nevada State Treasurer. The fair value
of all cash and investments equaled 100% of book value.

Credit risk classification of the County’s cash is as follows:

1. Insured by Federal Deposit Insurance $ 1,000,000
2. Collateralized with securities held by

The Nevada State Treasurer 8,280,481
3. Uncollateralized with the financial institution 42,782,066
4, Uncollateralized - cash on hand 3,079

$ 52,065,626
Cash held by the County is allocated to the various funds as follows:

Major governmental funds $ 40,632,831
Non-major governmental funds 8,662,173
Business-type funds 2,038,843
51,333,847

Fiduciary funds 731,779
Total $ 52,065,626

The County categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1
inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3
inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The County has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017: « Certificates of Deposit of $24
million are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs)

38



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DR AF T
JUNE 30, 2017

IV. RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end for the govemment’s individual major funds and non-major funds in the aggregate, including the
applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

474 Fire Non-Mzjor  Proprietary
General  Roads  Distrie  USDA  VCIC Funds Funds Total
Receivables:
Taxes $ 93398 § - $ 26918 $ -3 - $ 28%0 $ - § 123206
Accounts 385,264 80,280 _ 332,829 61,966 32,146 55,835 98494 1,046,823
Gross Receivables 478662 80289 359,747 61966 32,146 58,725 98,494 1,170,029

Less: Allowance for
uncollectibles - - (105,013) - - - - (105,013)

Total Net Receivables $ 478662 $ 80289 $254734 $ 61966 $ 32,146 $ 58725 § 98494 § 1065016

The delinquent taxes receivable account represents the past three years of uncollected tax levies. No allowance for
uncollectibles has been recorded by the County. Taxes received after 60 days of the year end are recorded as deferred
revenue,

Accounts receivable include intergovemnmental receivables. All accounts receivable, with the exception of the enterprise
fund, were collected within a 60 day period, therefore no allowance for uncollectibles was recorded in those funds.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that arc not considered to be

available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current fiscal year the various components of deferred
revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Delinquent property taxes receivable:

General Fund $ 93,398
454 Fire District Fund 26,918
Non-major funds 2,890

Total $ 123,206

V. INTER-FUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Inter-fund transfers:

Transfer From Transfer To __Amount _
General Fund Road Fund $ 300,000
General Fund TRI Payback $ 1,191,776
Equipment Acquisition USDA $ 142,640
Equipment Acquisition TRI Payback $ 25724
Fire District 474 TRI Payback $ 282,500
Fire District 474 Fire Capital Projects ~ § 1,000,000

$ 2,942,640

39



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

VI. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:

Primary Government
Governmental Activities

Capital Assets not being depreciated
Land

Antique Furniture
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets not being depreciated

Capital Assets being depreciated
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total Capital Assets being depreciated

Less accumulated decpreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Governmental activities capital assets - net

Business type activities
Capital Assets not being depreciated
Construction in progress

Capital assets being depreciated
Water and sewer system
Machinery and equipment
Total Capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water and sewer systems

Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Business type activities capital assets - net

DRAFT

Beginning Ending

Balance Increascs Decreases Balance
$ 810921 §$ - 3 - $ 810,921
75,000 - - 75,000
662,705 671,458 - 1,334,163
1,548,626 671,458 - 2,220,084
9,892,798 79,323 - 9,972,121
46,903,447 786,414 - 47,689,861
12,884,146 972,406 - 13,856,552
69,680,391 1,838,143 - 71,518,534
2,665,369 193,728 - 2,859,097
7,209,359 1,345,043 - 8,554,402
5,898,889 832,497 - 6,731,386
15,773,617 2,371,268 - 18,144,885
$ 55455400 $§ 138,333 § - $ 55,593,733
$ - § 620,890 $ - $§ 620,890
13,090,422 - - 13,000,422
665,086 - - 665,086
13,755,508 - - 13,755,508
2,407,873 226,484 - 2,634,357
543,304 29,750 - 573,054
2,951,177 256,234 - 3,207,411
$ 10,804,331 $ (256,234) $ - § 11,168,987

40



VIL

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DRAFT

JUNE 30, 2017
Depreciation expense was charged to functions programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government $ 441,763
Public safety 286,084

Highways and streets, including depreciation
of general infrastructure assets 1,665,689
Culture and recreation 22,019
Total depreciation expense -

Governmental actvities $ 2,415,555

Business type activities:
Water $ 106,217

Sewer
Total depreciation expense -

150,019

Business type activities $ 256,236
—_——
Long-Term Obligations
The following is a summary of the Long-Term Obligations of the County:
Date Maturity Orginial
[ssue Date Note/issue
Medium Term Loans
Eggenberger Family Trust Loan 3/2/2012 N/A $ 330,000
Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Assoc 6/23/2013  6/30/2017 _200,000.00
$ 530,000
nue Bon
Governmental
Virginia City Rail Bond-Series 2010A 12/28/2010  12/1/2027 § 890,000
Virginia City Rail Bond-Series 2010B 12/28/2010  12/1/2027 859,000
Storey County Fire District USDA Loan 1/8/2015  7/8/1934 _ 2,000,000
$ 3,749,000
Busi viti
Water Revenue Bonds 1/28/1997 1/1/1937 $ 714,000
Sewer Revenue Bonds 5/20/2015  5/12/1955 3,002,000
Sewer Revenue Bonds 12/20/2016 12/20/1956 _ 4,058,000
$ 7,774,000

41

Interest Balance

Rate 6/30/2017
6.000% $ »
0.095% 50,000
$ 50,000
8.000% $ 648,000
5.000% 635,000
3.750% 1,806,593
$ 3,089.593
0.045% $ 498,986
2.500% 2,908,700
1.375% 500,724
$ 3908410



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

DRAFT

The following represents the current activity in the Long-Term Obligations of the County:

Medium Term Loans

Eggenberger Family Trust Loan

Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Assoc

Revenue Bonds

Govemmental

Virginia City Rail Bond-Series 2010A.
Virginia City Rail Bond-Series 2010B
Storey County Fire District USDA Loan

Business Type Activities

Water Revenue Bonds
Sewer Revenue Bonds
Sewer Revenue Bonds

Long-Term Liabilities
Compensated Absences

TRI-Construction repayment

Balance Balance Principle
6/30/2016  Additions  Retired 6/30/2017  Duel7-18
$ 171,965 § - $ 171965 § - 3 -
100,000 - 50,000 50,000 50,000

$ 271,965 $ - § 221965 § 50,000 $§ 50,000
$ 693,000 $§ - § 45000 $ 648000 $ 47,000
677,000 - 42,000 635,000 44,000
1,879,763 - 73,170 1,806,593 75,953

$ 3,249,763 § - $ 160,170 § 3,089,593 § 166,953
$ 505233 § .8 6247 § 498986 § 16,927
2,954,245 - 45,545 2,908,700 46,667

- 538,995 38,271 500,724 77,179

$ 3459478 $ 538,995 $ 90063 $ 3,908,410 $ 140,773
$ 191355 % - $ 191,355 § -
41,485,550 - 514,452 40,971,098 -
$ 41,676,905 $ - 8§ 514452 § 41,162453 § -

The annual requirements to amortize the outstanding revenue bonds are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2042
20432047
2048-2052
2053-2057

Total

Governmental Activities

Business Type Activities

Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 166,953 § 147297 $ 140,773 $ 159,793
174,841 138,294 143,828 157,514
181,839 128,896 146,543 155,557
189,952 119,098 150,116 152,889
198,183 108,857 153,391 150,503
1,128,843 373,947 818,899 715,361
741,168 122,777 915,085 648,392
307,814 14,665 989,295 541,562
- - 926,550 327,701
- - 1,017,516 236,735
- - 1,118,239 136,012
- - 907,150 33,440
$ 3,089,593 § 1,153,831 § 7,427,385 § 3,415,459

42



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

VIII. SEGMENT INFORMATION — PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DRAFT

The County issued revenue bonds to finance its water department and sewage treatment facilities. Summary

information for these funds is presented below:

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ASSETS
Current assets
(Capita) assets (net accumulated decpreciation)
‘l'otal Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows-pension

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
‘I'otal Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows-pension

NET POSITION
Restricted reserve
Reserved - Short lived assest replacement

Invested in capital assets - net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Operating revenue
Depreciation
Other operating expenses
Operating income (10ss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Rent and miscellaneous
Interest income

Interest expense
(3rants and capital contributions

Change in net assets

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Net cash provided (used) by
Operating activities
Non-capital financing activities
Capital and related financing activities
Investing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash - beginning

Cash - ending

43

Virginia Divide
Water Fund Sewer Fund

$ 1,714,191 $ 368,965

4,784.942 6,384,045
6,499,133 6,753,010
37,593 21,146
82,824 139,615
810,050 3,470,073
892,874 3,609,688
112,263 63,148
131,966 118,884
- 38,021
4,285,956 2,974,621
1,113,667 (30,206)

$ 5,531,589 $ 3,101,320

$ 558996 $ 382,076

(106,217) (150,019)
(499,061) (237,957)
(46,282) (5,900)
10,000 1,099
24,043 5,580
(37,148) (73,338)
2,500 -

§  (46,887) 8 (72,559)

$ 121,396 $ 173,250

20,955 (44,698)
(78,092) (156,055)
24,043 5,580
§8,302 (21,923)
1,561,235 357,048

$ 1,649,537 $ 335,125




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DRAFT

JUNE 30, 2017

IX. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The County participates in both Federal and State Grant Programs. The audits of these programs for or including the
year ended June 30, 2017, have not been finalized. Accordingly, the County’s compliance with applicable grant
requirements will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be
immaterial.

The County is currently a defendant in no lawsuits, with no other unasserted possible claims which are probable of
assertion.

X. PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable Jien as of July 1. The tax is levied for the fiscal year beginning July 1 after the
Nevada Tax Commission has certified the combined tax rate for the County on May 25.

Taxes on the property are due on the third Monday in July. Taxes may be paid in quarterly installments, due on the
third Monday of July and the first Monday in October, January, and March, Penalties are added if the installments are
not made within ten (10) days of the due date.

XI. Defined Benefits Pension Plan:

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description; All permanent, full-time cmployecs are provided pensions through the Public Employees Retirement
Plan (PERS). The plan is a multiple-cmployer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees
Retirement System of Nevada. Chapter 286 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) establishes a governing board,
appointed by the Governor, that is responsible for managing the System, including arranging for a biennial actuarial
valuation and adoption of actuarial tables and formulas prepared and recommended by the actuary.

Benefits Provided: Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the
number of years of accredited service at time of retirement and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36
consecutive months with special provisions for members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, Benefit
payments to which participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan include pension benefits, disability
benefits, and survivor benefits.

Monthly Benefit allowances for members are computed at 2.5% of average compensation for each accredited year of
service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of average
compensation, For members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% multiplier. The System
offers several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general, allow the retired employee
to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime and various optional
monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death. Post-retirement increases are provided by the authority
of NRS 286.575-.579

Regular members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with ten years of service, or
at any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible
for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 62 with ten years of service, or at any age with thirty years of
service.



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Police/Fire members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 55 With ten ycars ot service,
at age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age with twenty-five ycars of service. Police/Fire members cntering the
System on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with ten
years of service, at age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Only service
performed in a position as a police officer or firefighter may be counted towards eligibility for retirement as Police/Fire
accredited service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefit allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a member
who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of average
compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon completion of five years
of service.

Contributions; The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions, and member
contribution rates, is set by statute, The contribution rates are based on biennial actuarial valuations and expected to
finance the costs of benefits earncd by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. New hires in agencies which did not clect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan prior to July 1,
1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution plans. One plan provides for matching employee and
employer contributions, while the other plan provides for employer-pay contributions only. Under the matching
Employee/Employer Contribution plan a member may, upon termination of service for which contribution is required,
withdraw employee contributions which have been credited to their account. All membership rights and active service
credit in the System are canceled upon withdrawal of contributions from the member’s account. If EPC was elected, the
member cannot convert to the Employee/Employer Contribution plan.

The County’s contributions to the plan totaled $2,781,291 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

At June 30, 2017, the County reported a liability of $19,511,455 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability,
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The County’s proportion of the plan’s net
pension liability was based on the County’s combined employer and member contributions to the pension plan relative
to the contributions of all participating entities for the year ended June 30, 2016. At June 30, 2016, the County’s
proportion share was .14499% in year 2016, while year 2015 was .13200%.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the County recognized pension expense of $2,390,030. At June 30, 2017, the County
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Reources of Resources

Differnece between expected and actual

experience $ - $ 1,306,537
Changes is assumptions or other inputs - -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 3,396,135
Changes in the employer's proportion and differences

between the employer's contributions and the

employer's proportionate contributions 7,258,837
County contributions subscquent to the measurement
date 2,781,291 -
$ 10,040,128 $ 4,702,672

45



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30:
2018 $ (757,633)
2019 (757,633)
2020 3,240,520
2021 1,567,387
2022 (603,446)
2023 (133,029)

$ 2556165

In addition, $2,781,291 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and represents County’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date. The amount will be recognized as a reduction of the nct pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2017.

Actuarial Assumptions: The actuarial assumptions were based on the results of an experience study for the period from
July 1, 2006, through June 30, 2012. When measuring the total pension liability, GASB uses the same actuarial cost
method, all ectuarial assumptions, and the same type of discount rate as PERS uses for funding.

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation Rate 3.5%

Payrol] Growth 5.0%, including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 8.0%

Productivity Pay Increases 0.75% Plus

Projected Salary Increases Regular: 4.6% to 9.75%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 5.25% to 14.5%, depending on service
Rates include inflation and productivity increases

Consumer Price Index 3.5%
Other Assumptions Same as those used in the June 30, 2016 funding
actuarial valuation

The Board evaluates and establishes expected real rates of retum (expected returns, net of investment expenses and
inflation) for each asset class. The Board reviews these capital market expectations annually. The PERS’ current long-
term geometric expected real rates of return for cach asset class included in the plan’s investment portfolio as of June
30, 2016, are included in the following table:

Long-Term Geometric

Asset Class Expected Real Rate of Retun*
Domestic Equity 5.50%
International Equity 5.75%

Domestic Fixed Income 0.25%
Private Markets 6.80%

*As of June 30, 2016, PERS' long-term inflation assumption was 3.5%.

46



XIIL.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA R F
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2017

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00% as of June 30, 2016. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan contributions will be made in amounts
consistent with statutory provisions and recognizing the plan’s current funding policy and cost-sharing mechanism
between employers and members. For this purpose, all contributions that are intended to fund bencfits for all plan
members and their beneficiaries are included, except that project contributions that are intended to fund the service
costs for future plan members and their beneficiaries are not included.

Sensitivity of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The
following presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of
8.00%, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7.00%) or 1 percentage point higher (9.00%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)
$ 28,599,981 3 19,511,455 $ 11,949,913

Additional Information: Additional information supporting the Schedule of Employer Allocations and the Schedule of
Pension Amounts by Employer is located in the PERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) available on
the PERS website at www.nvpers.org under Quick Links —Publications.

Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB):

In accordance with NRS, the County provides other postemployment benefits by participating in the State’s Public
Employee Benefit Plan (PEBP), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by a nine member
governing board.

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB C

PEBP contribution requirements of the plan members and the County are established and may be amended by the state
legislature. The annual required contribution for financial reporting purposes is based on projected pay-as-you-go
financing requirements, with an option to pay additional amounts to prefund benefits as determined in actuarial studies
contracted for by the County.

As of June 30, 2017, the number of retiree participants in PEBP's was 20, the effective dates of the OPEB valuation.
Because of the sunsetting of PEBP’s enroliment on November 29, 2008, the number of retirees participating in PEBP
will not increase since participation is no longer an elective for retirees. Currently, the County provides other post-
employement benefits to retirees for those which have previously elected to be covered under the PEBP’s plan, or
current or future retirees who may elect to remain under the County’s health plan.

47



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

The annual OPEB (other post-employment benefits) is calculated based on the annual req

employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The County’s
annual OPEB cost for the current year and the related information is as follows:

PEBP County Total
Annual Required Contribution $ 29,240 $ 2,147,755 $ 2,176,995
Interest on OPEB Obligations (19) 73,981 73,962
Adjustments to Annual Required Contributions 28 (75,687) (75,659)
Annual OPEB Cost 29,249 2,146,049 2,175,298
Contributions Made (31,166) (179,284) (210,450)
Change in Net OPEB Obligation (1,917) 1,966,765 1,964,848
Net OPEB Obligation, beginning of the year (479) 1,849,528 1,849,049
Net OPEB Obligation, end of the year ) !2,396! $ 3,816,293 $ 3,813,897

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligations (assets) by the plan for the fiscal year 2017 were as follows:

PEBP County Total
Annual OPEB Cost $ 29,249 $ 2,146,049 $ 2,175,298
Employer Contributions (31,166) (179,284) (210,450)
Net OPEB Contributions $ (1,917) $ 1,966,765 $ 1,964,848
Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed 107% 8% 10%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members)
and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the
County and the plan members to that point. Projections of benefits for financial reported purposes do not explicitly
incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the
employer and plan members in the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods
and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value
of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculation.

XIIL SOLID WASTE LANDFILL - LOCKWOOD

In 1992 Refuse, Inc. received an amended special use permit from Storey County for the operation of a solid waste
landfill, conditioned on meeting all of the requirements of federal landfill regulations (Subtitle D, 40CFR Parts 257 and
258). Under the terms of the agreement Refuse, Inc, is responsible for all closure and post closure costs. Estimated
costs for closure are $3,138,388 and the cost for post closure maintenance is $12,865,241 for a total of $16,003,629.
There are currently no corrective action costs nor other environmental obligations. Refuse, Inc. is in complete
compliance with the Financial Assurance Requirements of 40CFR, part 258, Subpart G, as well as Nevada
Administrative Code 444.685 ~ 444.6859. The closure and post closure costs are insured through Liberty Mutual

Insurance Company. As of this statement date, closure/post closure revisions by Waste Management have not been
completed.

48






XVL

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DRAFT
JUNE 30, 2017

TESLA MOTORS

On September 11, 2014, the Nevada State Legislature passed unanimously Senate Bill 1 which gave Tesla Motors
$1.25 billion dollars in tax abatements in exchange for Tesla investing $3.5 billion dollars in the state within the first 10
years of the agreement. Under Section 13-3, transferable credits will be approved:

(a) In the amount of $12,500 for each qualified employee, up to a maximum of 6,000 qualified employees.

(b) In the amount equal to 5% of the first $1 billion of new capital investment in this State made collectively by
the participants in the qualified project,

(¢) In an amount equal to 2.8% of the next $2.5 billion on new capital investment in this State made collectively
by the participants in the qualified project.

Section 15-2 provides abatement of 100% for the following:

(a) For property taxes, for a duration of not more than 10 years after the date of which application is submitted
and in an amount that equals the amount of the property taxes that would otherwise be owed by cach
participant for the qualified project;

(b) For employer excise taxes, be for a duration of not more than 10 years after the date on which the application
is submitted and in an amount that equals the amount of the employer excise taxes that would otherwise be
owed by each participant for employees employed by the participant for the qualified project; and

(¢) For local sales and use tax, be for a duration of not more than 20 years after the date on which the application
is submitted and in an amount that equals the amount of the local sales and use taxes that would otherwise be -
owed by each participant in the qualified project.

Under Section 25-36, the goveming body of a county or city in which a qualified project is or is expected to be located
to create an economic diversification district that includes with its boundaries the qualified project.

Section 35 notes “the goveming body of the municipality may enter into an agreement with one or more of the owners
of any interest in the property within a district, pursuant to which that owner would agree to make payments to the
municipality or to another local government that provides services in the district, or to both, to defray, in whole or in
part, the cost of local governmental services during the term of the use of any money pledged pursuant to Section 31 of
this act. Such an agreement must specify the amount to be paid by the owner of the property interest, which may be
stated as a specified amount per year or as an amount based upon any formula upon which the municipality and owner
agree.

Subsequently, Ordinance No. 14-260 creating the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 was signed
by the County Commissioners on December 2, 2014, and Ordinance 15-263 providing partial abatements of permitting
or licensing fees was signed by the County Commissioners was passed on June 16, 2015. Additional provisions of
Senate Bill 1 also provided the ability to “abate” partially or in full permit fees and business license fees within the
Economic Diversification District. Tesla and the County mutually negotiated a partial abatement of permit fees but no

business license fees. These actions were codified into Ordinance 15-263. See scparate schedule relating to additional
tax abatements.

50



XVIL

XVIIL

XIX.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DRAF T
JUNE 30, 2017

RELATED PARTY

The County utilizes a Marketing & Public Relations company, RAD Strategies, whose sole owner is married to the
Director of Tourism. Safe guards have been put in to make sure the transactions are transparent. The VCTC board
continues to hear and approve the payments in its annual budget. All monthly retainer fees and sent directly to the
County Manager, for review and approval.

During the year ended June 30, 2017 the County paid the RAD Strategies $85,620.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The beginning net position has been restated to correctly present a long term loan not recorded in the prior year and to
correctly present pension liability in the fiscal year 2017. An adjustment was also made to correct accumulated
depreciation for fiscal year 2016.

\ Business
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
Net position as previousely reported, June 30, 2016 $ 16,868,503 $ 9,135521 § 26,004,024
Adjustment to accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2016 2,361,950 = 2,361,950
Adjustment to long term liabilities at June 30, 2016 (1,879,763) - (1,879,763)
Adjustment to pension liability at June 30, 2016 (463,288) (383,166) (846,454)
Net position, restated $ 16,887,402 $ 8752355 $ 25,639,757

The beginning net position has been restated in the fund financials statements to correctly present compensated
absences in the fiscal year 2017

474 Fire
Protection
General Road District VCTC
Fund Fund Fund Fund

Net position as previousely reported, June 30, 2016 $ 8,634,000 $ 1,262,064 $ 1,408442 § 371,879

Adjustment to compensated absences accrual at June
30, 2016 246,640 25,243 103,872 6,957

Net position, restated $ 8,880,640 $ 1,287,307 $ 1512314 S 378,836

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

The following schedule summarizes deferred revenues at June 30, 2017:

General Fund:

Ad Valorem taxes receivable $ 81,466
474 Fire Protection Fund:

Ad Valorem taxes receivable $ 23413
Equipment Acquisition Fund:

Ad Valorem taxes receivable $ 2,064
Indigent Medical Fund:

Ad Valorem taxes receivable $ 423

51



[45

juauIate)s ST Jo 1red [RASS)UL TR AIE SJUSMWISTR]S [RIOURUL SY2 03 S$3)0U Y],

$ 09Z'TEy $ 18¢0Zl $ pLYSsY $ 0S $ Y0E£EL $ 8SI9SH $
= 86L0CF 18E0C1 EV6LLY (i UTLE  ve0vSF
- 86L°0Cv I8E°0C1 eV LLY 0t TLTLE 60 7St
= = E X472 = : 90T
- - - X414 - - ¥90°C
- 9% 11 - 30TL 0T TE09¢ -
K11 $ 801°L $ 0T $ Z€09¢ $ - $
- § 09Tty S T18¢0Cl $ YLvSsy $ o $ TOEEL S 8SI9SH $
= - - 6¥ - - 86€C
= $ 09ZZer $ 18€°C1 $ 786v8Y $ o¢ $ POEEL $ 09L€Sy $
ONIQTINd arv XVl TVOIAanN N0 HMId LIN0D NOILISINODV
VL TVALOW NVd LNAOIANT FOLLSNSE JINFTNANOT
ANNIATY TVIOAJS
L10T “0€ ANNS

SANNA TVINTNNITAOCD JOLVAINON
LHgHS FONVIVE DNINIFNOD
VAVAEIN ‘ALNNOD ATIOLS

S20UE[Rg PUN,] PUE S30IN0SIY
JO SMO[IU] PALIRA(T ‘SONAIQRIT [eI0]

soue[eg puny [e10],

paudisseup)
s[qepuadsuoN
IONVIVE dNNd

SODINOSIY JO SMOFUT PauY(] [eI0],
B[SO L-SMOPUI paLIsjo(]

saxe} Apadoxd se0In0sal o|qereAran)

SHOYNOSTY 40 SMOTINI d99944ad

SONIIqeI] [e10L,

soxe) poieja

3]qeAed S;UNOYOY

SALLITIEVIT

1955V [€10

9[qeAIa09] SJUNOOY
9]qeA12921 soxe) Auedolg

yse)
SIFSSV



139

JuauISYEs SHY JO Wed [RI30)UT U SJ8 SJUSWSIE)S [EIOUBUT SU) 0] S330U YT

.mmSM E 0007000°1 § 1IpIL0T 60L VS § Peclln $ 8evll $ (oLs‘ov) $
.%lo.nq. 000000T WT'LOT S66°1S POE 111 SEV 1L 016y
65S0°LY 000°000°T I¥I°L0T S66 15 y6ETIL SEV'II (01672H)
0T = e 12 VA4 s ov0<C
¥0T $ = g n- $ PILT $ - $ - $ ovoT $
TOTLY $ 000°000°T $ 1viLoz 60L'%S § peelll $ QEVII $ (0L8°0%) $
€9T'LY $ 000°000°T $ IP1°L0T 60L°VS $ PETII $ Sev'll $ (oLs‘0¥) $

aNnd aNnNAa XONADYANA _ SINWYO 41VIS ADOTONHOAL  INHAIDOV NOLLYDILIN

ONILLSTL NOILVITIEV.LS R ANV TVEaaad JINIOIANI ADNIOYTNH

ATV

ONJANAD

ANNIATT TVIOdS
L10Z “0€ ANNL
SANNA TYINTANIFAOD JOTVANON
LH9HS FONVIVE ONINIENOD

VAvAEN ‘AINNOD ATIOLS

ssouered punj pue $90I0083Y
30 SMO[FU] PoLIAJO(] ‘SATIIGRI'] [eI0L

20uByEg PUNA 8101

paugissenn)
o[qepuadsuoN
HONV 1Ivd AN

$00IN0SY JO SMOFU] PaxIaja( [810],

B[S0 L-SMO[FUL PALIAJA(T

soxe) Ly1adoid s301n0Sa1 S[qRITEARBUN)

SA5ENOSAY 40 SMOTANT AFada49d

SORIMIqe!] TeI0L

saxe} poLIs]a
s1qeded s)umoooy
SHILTIEvIT

SJaSSY [RI0L

3[GeAT992] SHUNOIVY
S[qeAI=0al soxey Apadosd
ysed

SIassv



=
e
<«
=~
o |

143
JUSWRYE]S STy} JO 1red [eISa)ul U JJe SUSWSJE)S [eloUBUY ST 0] SJ0U YT,

0000007  § 628°ER § 7850281 $ L96651C
§Lecors  000000T  &C¥SEs 785028 1 TEE6vIC
8LETOLS 0007000°T 673CES 7850781 TEEEYIT
L8Y'C ? = %
L8vT - . & .
STCOL - € ¥ SE9°01
s1z'oL $ - $ - $ - $ $€9°1 $
080°S4L’8  § 000000TT  § 678°CER § 7850281 $ L9661 $
SE8CS & - CETSS -
068°C
SSE9ILS  § 0000001  § 678'GES $ LYLYOLT $ L96'6S1T  §
TVIOL SIOArO¥d dvD IDAI0Ud VY aNnd SLOEroud
A1 AL VINIDOMIA _ TOLONYISVENT  TVLIAVO
SLOFIO¥d TVLIdVD
L10T ‘0 ANNI
SANNA TVINTWNNITAOD YOLVANON
LHgHS JONVTVE ONINIEINOD

VAVAIN ‘ALNNOD ATJOLS

S30UB[EY PUN,] PUB SIOINOSNY
JO SMOU paLiaJa( “Saul[IqerT [ei0],

20ue[eg puUNJ [0,

paudisseup)
s|qepuadsuoN

AONVIVE ANNA

$30IM0SAY JO SMO[JU] PALIAII(T [BI0L
BISO1-SMOJUI PALIJRQ
soxe) Aradoxd $90In0S3] [qR[IBABUN)
SEOUNOSTY 40 SMOTINT dFadd44d

SORIIQRI] [e10],

$9XE] pauIoy(d
a1qeded s)UNo20Yy
SArnavI1

SI9SSY [BI0],

9[qEAI0I SJUMO30Y
a[qeAra0aI saxe} Apradorg
qsed

SIa85V



199

JuSLISYE)S ST JO Jred [eI3oT UB SIB SJUSWIATE]S [EIOUBLY 31 0) $930U 3T,

i F—
T 9| s6L0TY I18€°0TI S E¥6LLY $ 0f $ TLTLE $ ¥60'vSY $
F $89°86C 688°1C1 00S°€8Y 08 LT 1297LE
< | ci (805°T) (L55°6) (05) 10071 €LY'18

El D - 09L1 - - - (8L To1)

- 09L°T - - - 7859
- - - - - (#9€°891)
€111 (897°¢) (ss%s) G]9) 1001 SST'ENT
LLLVVF 8929 STS'LS ovy 799°L S6v'91
- - STSLS - - -

- 8929 - - - -

- - - ory 799°L -

LLL VY - - - - -

- - - - - S6+°91
068799 000°¢ 89616 06€ £991¢ 0SL°65C
068799¢ - - - - -

- - - 06¢ £99°1Z -

- 000°¢ - = - -

$ - - $ 896°1¢ $ - $ - $ 0SL°65T $
ONIaTING ary XV1 TVOIAQTIN 19000 5Ndd 14000 NOILISINOOV
VL TVNLOW NIVd INFOIANI FOILSNL INTNINOT
ANNIATY TVIDAdS
SANN TYINTAWNITAOD YOIVIANON
FONY'IVE NN NI SHONVHO

ANV STANIIANTIXE ‘SANNTATY 40 LNTNALY.LS ONINITNOD
VAVAEN ‘AINNOD ATIOLS

0€ dun[ ‘souereq pung

1 Anf ‘souereq pund

samypuadxg 1940 (59s()) s30mog uroueuly
19710 PUB ONU2A2I JO (AOUSIOY3P) SS0XH

(s9s0)) §90.mMog Furoueul 9GO [€I0],
SUI0OUT 1$123U]
yusunsnipe pouad Joug
spaasoid puog
92[AI35 349(]
siaysuel],
ANOS

somIpuadxa JOAO SINUIAI JO (AOUSIOYIP) S520XH

soinypuadxy [e0],
1RITAWILIDA0ZIIU]
dreIdM
TOHBLIOAI PUB 2IMI[ND
TerIpnf
Ayayes olqng
JUSUILIAA0S [RISUSD)

Jusun)
STANIIANAdXA

SONURAY [el0],
SaNUAAAI JSYIO
SaIm19JI0} pue Ul
$301A198 10 $93IRYD
[eIUWUILA0TINU]
soxe]

HNNAATY



9¢
1USWAe)S SIG3 JO Wed [er32]01 U S18 SJUSTISYE]S [RIOURUT o1} O} 210U 3],

0000001  § I¥ILOT § S661S § V6ETIL g BEP'II s (0167w 3
000000°T Tv1L0C €0L81 L5811 €06 81 0007001
- - T6TEE (€9v) (s9v°L) (o16°TH1)
- - - T6ET - -
- - - T6E'T - -
6¥L'S - - T67°¢E (ss8°1) (sot'L) (or6zv1)
LL0T - - 11SLbY THE6L 90€'18 0L6T¥I
- E - €S8Py - - -
- - - - - 99€°18 -
- - - TLLE - - -
LLOT - - - - - -
- - - 988°86€ - - 0I6ZHT
" = - = SY8'6L - -
9Z8'L - - £08°08% 066 LL T06 €L -
9Z8'L - - - - - -
- 7 - - 066°LL . .
5 % = £08°08% - - -
- $ - $ = $ - $ - $ 106°€L $ - $
ANNA ONILSIT aNnd AONADIHANE SINVUD ALVIS ADOTONHO3L JINAAIOOY  NOLLVOLLIA
YTRVN  NOLLVITIEVLS I3 ANV TVyaadad INFOIONI  AONADIIANH
OIIANTD
TNNTATI TVIOSIS

L10T “0¢ AN IANH IVIA HHL YOI
SANNA TVINTANIZAOD JOLVIANON
AONVTVE ANNJ NI SHONVHD
ANV STINLIANTIXT ‘SHOANTATE 40 INTNLLY.LS ONINIFINOD
VAVAIN ‘ALNNOD ATIOILS

0f Sun( ‘aouereq pungy
[ A[ng “souepeq pung
semyipuadxy 19A0 (S35()) S90IN0S

Furoweury I9yJ0 PUR NUIALL JO (A5UIOPIP) §S20XT

(sos()) se0Inog 3uoUETL YO €0 L
QWIodUY 1S919)U]
jusumsnipe potred JoLg
spasooid puog
201AT3S 3G90
SIaJsuel],
(sASN) STOWNOS TYIONVNII YIHLO

saImipuadxa I9A0 SONWIAII JO (Aous1olyap) SSIOXY

saIng1puadxy [e10L

TRIUaIWI2A0Z 1)UT

STBII3M

UO[E3Ioa] puE 3IM[BD

felorpnf

Kyoges o1qng

JUWLIAA0F [e1oN90)
juoLIN)

SHINIIANAIXA

SONU2ASY [BI0),
SSNUIAII YLD
SaImoy103 pue 3uly
S201AISS 10F so8Tey)
eluaTIIIS A0 12]0]
soxe],

HNNAATE



LS

JuoWIa)e)s ST JO Ared esS0)UT UR aXe SHUSWISIE)S [eIOURTL o3 0} $3j0U Y1,

:m@ba § 000000  § 6C8°6€8 $ 7850z8’l $ zegevic  §
131 - 0£0986 001'€0S'T SZOTLLT
Uom 000°000°T (10z°0S1) 8¥°LIE (€67°€79)
wmﬁ - 000°000'T (Tozosn - (O16C1)
YEL'G - - - -
6LILE - - - 6LILE
6€T°€T - 6€T°6T - -
(ses‘czd) - (orv'eLT) - (s60°05)
9£9°1€8 000°000°T
(065°5€) - . 8hLIE (LLE'019)
986066 1 - - - 0TLv0L
€S8Py - - -
168°8€1 - - - -
0¥0°01 - - - -
6LT°01 - - - -
£L5986 - = - -
055008 - - - OTI'VOL
96€5S6 | - - Z8VLIE €EL€6
£29°099 - - - €EL'E6
6L8°6T - - - -
06608 - - - -
S8T36L - - T8V LIE -
619°68€ $ - $ - $ - s - $
TVLOL SIDArodd dvD 1OodIodd TIvy ANNA S1OdI0¥dd
CRIES ALID VINIOWIA ~ TINLONILSVAAINI TVIIAVO
SLOAI0dd TVLIdYO

L10Z ‘0€ ANNL AIANT IVHXA GHL 0L
SANNA TY.INTANITAOD JOLYAINON
FONVIVE ANNA NI SHONVHD

ANV STINLIANTIXE ‘SANNTATE 40 INFWHLY.LS ONINIENOD

VAVASN ‘ALNNOD AFIOLS

0€ aun[ ‘2ouejeg punyg

1 Anf “aouefeq pung

samnypuedxy 1940 ($35[]) S92mMOG
SuroueuTy JOYI0 PUB SNUSALI JO (AOURIOTIP) SS20XY

(sos)) sa0mog SuoUeuly J2QQ [XI0L
aw000T 3521330]
ANUIA IO
spesooid puog
01AI38 J92J
sIoysTer],
(sESN) SADUNOS TYIONVNLL YTHLO

somyIpuadxa J9AO SANUADI JO (ADUSIOL2P) SSAIXT

saungrpuadxq feiol
[BIUSWILIDA0S13)U]
QIEJ[OM
UONE3103I PUB M)
feroipng
Kjayes o1[qnd
JUSWITLIDAOS [RISUSD
juaLmn)
STINLIANTdXd

SSNUSAIY [BI0L
SaNUIA3I IBYIQ
SaITIoFI0f pue sl
$991A138 10] SoFIRYD
TeIUSTITLIA0S U]
saxe],
ANONTATE



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANC}

e DRAFT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Taxes
Property taxes $ 243,987 § 259,750 $ 15,763
Other revenues
Interest 800 6,582 5,782
Total Revenues 244,787 266,332 21,545
EXPENDITURES
General govenment
Capital outlay 105,000 16,495 88,505
Total Expenditures 105,000 16,495 88,505
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 139,787 249,837 110,050
CING SQURCES (USES
Transfer out - Tri Payback (25,725) (25,724) 1
USDA Fund (145,760) (142,640) 3,120
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources (Uses) over Expenditures (31,698) 81,473 113,171
Fund Balance, July 1 350,133 372,621 22,488
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 318,435 § 454,094 $ 135,659

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
58



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
JTUSTICE COURT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL

RUDGET D ACTUAL DRAFT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE
Fines
Justice court fines $ 10,000 $ 21,663 $ 11,663
EXPENDITURES
Judicial
Services and supplies 35,000 7,662 27,338
Capital outlay - - =
Total Expenditures 35,000 7,662 27,338
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (25,000) 14,001 39,001
Fund Balance, July 1 25.005 23,271 (1,739
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 5 3 37272 $ 37,267

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
59



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
DRUG COURT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA

BUDGET AND ACTUAL lﬁRAFT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE
Fines and forfeits
Drug court fees $ 600 $ 39 $ (210)
EXPENDITURES
Judicial
Services and supplies 600 440 160
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over E7\pcndimres - (50) (50)
Fund Balance, July 1 30 80 50
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 30 § 30 $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
60



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT MEDICAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL/

= DRAFT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Taxes
Property taxes $ 48,831 $ 51,968 $ 3,137
EXPENDITURES
Welfare
Services and supplies 200,000 57,525 142,475
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (151,169) (5,557) 145,612
Fund Balance, July 1 332,849 483,500 150,651
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 181,680 § 477943 $ 296,263

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
61



+ STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

PARK TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL/
BUDGET AND ACTUAL R AFT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Charges for services
Park fees $ 8,000 $ 3,000 $ (5,000)
Other revenues
Interest 100 1,760 1,660
Total Revenues 8,100 4,760 (3,340)
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Services and supplies 116,000 6,268 109,732
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (107,900) (1,508) 106,392
Fund Balance, July 1 119,254 121,889 2,635
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 11,354 § 120,381 §$ 109,027

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
62



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA '
MUTUAL AID SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND B

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

“'DRAFT

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Other revenues
Fire suppression $ 400,000 $ 458,000 $ 566,890 $ 108,890
Total Revenues 400,000 458,000 566,890 108,890
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Salaries and wages 175,000 200,000 210,657 (10,657)
Benefits 18,500 38,500 37,037 1,463
Services and supplies 50,500 64,500 63,978 522
Capital outlay 13,500 12,500 133,105 (120,605)
Contingency 20,000 20,000 - 20,000
Total Expenditures 277,500 335,500 444,717 (109,277)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 122,500 122,500 122,113 (387)
Fund Balance, July 1 313,178 313,178 298,685 (14,493)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 435678 $ 435,678 § 420,798 $ (14,880)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

63



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SHERIFF JAIL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA
BUDGET AND ACTUAL DRAFT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND VARIANCE TO
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET

QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
$ -3 - 8

Transfer in

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statcment
64



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
EMERGENCY MITIGATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA

BUDGET D ACTUL DRAFT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

REVENUE

None $ - $ <. § >
EXPENDITURES

Public Safety

Services and supplies 100,000 142,910 (42,910)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (100,000) (142,910) (42,910)
Fund Balance, July 1 100,000 100,000 =
Fund Balance, June 30 $ - 8 (42,910) § (42,910)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
65



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT ACCIDENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL DRAFT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Taxes
Property taxes $ 73,247 $ 81,447 § 73,901 § (7,546)
EXPENDITURES
Welfare
Services and supplies 73,247 81.447 81,366 81
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures - - (7,465) (7,465)
Fund Balance, July 1 9413 9413 18,903 9,490
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 9413 § 9413 § 11,438 $ 2,025

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
66



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TECHNOLOGY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

DRAFT

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS _ FINAL BUDGET
Charges for services
Technology fees $ 72,000 $ 72,000 $ 77,990 §$ 5,990
Other revenues
Trans in general contingency - 2,000 - (2,000)
Interest income 700 700 1,392 692
Total Revenues 72,700 74,700 79,382 6,682
EXPENDITURES
General govenment
Services and supplies 79,000 81,000 79,845 1,155
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (6,300) (6,300) (463) 5,837
Fund Balance, July 1 86.267 86.267 111,857 25,590
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 79,967 § 79,967 $ 111,394 $ 31,427

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
67



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FEDERAL/STATE GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL
BUDGET AND ACTUAL RAFT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Intergovernmental
Federal grants $ 733,764 $ 733,764 § 456,073 $ (277,691)
State grants 54,000 54,000 24,730 (29,270)
Total Revenues 787,764 787,764 480,803 (306,961)
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Services and supplies - - 3,772 (3,772)
Public safety
Salaries and wages - 6,000 5,755 245
Employee benefits - 3,500 3,408 92
Services and supplies 733,764 724,264 389,723 334,541
Intergovernmental - State
Services and supplies 54,000 54,000 44,853 9,147
Total Expenditures 787,764 787,764 447,511 340,253
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures - - 33,292 33,292
Fund Balance, July 1 169,700 169,700 18,703 (150,997
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 169,700 § 169,700 $ 51,995 § (117,705)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
68



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FIRE EMERGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL4

BUDGET AND ACTUAL l“inAF"I‘

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

REVENUE

None $ - $ = s .. 3
EXPENDITURES

Public Safety

Services and supplies 204,337 - 204,337

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (204,337) - 204,337
Fund Balance, July 1 207.141 207,141 =
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 2,804 $ 207,141 $ 204,337

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
69



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STABILIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

REVENUE

None

EXPENDITURES
General government

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

DRAFT

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
3 - $ = .3 =
200,000 - 200,000
(200,000) - 200,000
800.000 1,000,000 200,000
$ 600,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 400,000

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

70



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENETIC MARKER TESTING FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND B
BUDGET AND ACTUAL R AF T

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE
Fines and forfeitures $ 8700 § 7,826 $ (874)
EXPENDITURES
Judicial
Services and supplies 6,200 2,077 4,123
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 2,500 5,749 3,249
Fund Balance, July 1 38,322 41,310 2,988
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 40,822 $ 47,059 $ 6,237

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
71



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA!

BUDGET AND ACTUAL DRAFT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE
Capital outlay reimbursement $ 93,733 § 93,733 § -
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Capital outlay 1,700,158 704,110 996,048
Debt service 50,000 50,000 -
Interest expense 72 95 (23)
Total Expenditures 1,750,230 754,205 996,025
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (1,656,497) (660,472) 996,025
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
General government - Other - 37,179 37,179
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources (Uses) over Expenditures (1,656,497) (623,293) 1,033,204
Fund Balance, July 1 2,647,641 2,772,625 124,984
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 991,144 $ 2,149,332 $ 1,158,188

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
72



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL
Sy RAFT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE,
Intergovernmental
1/4% Optional sales tax $ 270.000 $ 317482 $_ 47482
EXPENDITURES
General government
Capital outlay 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (730,000) 317,482 1,047,482
Fund Balance, July 1 1,411,054 1,503,100 92,046
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 681,054 § 1,820,582 $ 1,139,528

The notes to the financial statemnents are an integral part of this statement
13



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA CITY RAIL PROJECT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

REVENUE

None

EXPENDITURES
Culture and Recreation
Capital outlay

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds
Transfer in contingency
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources (Uses) over Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

DRAFT

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED  ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS  AMOUNTS  AMOUNTS  FINAL BUDGET
$ - 3 - 3 - 8 -
700,000 700,000 - 700,000
— (700.000) ___ (700.000) - 700,000
24,000 24,000 23,239 761
- 8,700 - 8,700
(87,000) (95,700) (87,000) (8,700)
(86,440) (86,440) (86,440) -
(849,440) (849,440) (150,201) 699,239
986030 986,030 986,030 .
$ 136,590 $ 136,590 $ 835,829 § 699,239

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

74



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED
AMOUNTS _ AMOUNTS

DRAFT

ACTUAL

VARIANCE TO

AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

0 TING
Sales of water $ 604000 $ 604,000 $ 554,700 $ (49,300)
PE/ EXP
Salarics and wages 148,319 153,319 165,143 (11,824)
Benefits 70,529 74,229 133,707 (59,478)
Services and supplies 160,900 152,200 198,426 (46,226)
Capital outlay - - 1,785 (1,785)
Depreciation __ 105,000 ___ 105000 106,217 (1,217)
Total operating expenses 484 748 484748 605278 (120.530)
Operating income (loss) 119,252 119252 (50.578) (169,830)
N-OPERATING REV XPENSE!
Interest eamnings 14,000 14,000 24,043 10,043
Rents 12,000 12,000 10,000 (2,000)
Interest Expense (23,405) (23,405) (37,148) (13,743)
Miscellaneous - - 4,296 4,296
Grants and capital contributions - = 2,500 2,500
Net Income (loss) $ 121,847 § 121,847 § (46,887) $ (168,734)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

75



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL

FINAL

DRAFT

BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS _AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

VARIANCE TO

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING A ITIE

Cash In flows
Sales of water $ 604,000 $ 604,000 $ 550,209 §$ (53,791)
Miscellaneous income = - 4,296 4,296
Cash Qut flows
Salaries and wages (148,319) (153,319) (164,897) (11,578)
Benefits (70,529) (74,229) (71,194) 3,035
Services and supplies (160,900) (152,200) (195,233) (43,033)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 224,252 224,252 123,181 (101,071)
ASH FLOWS - FINAN C
Cash In flows
Rent 12,000 12,000 10,000 (2,000)
Customer deposits - - 10,955 10,955
Net Cash Provided by Non Capital Financing Activities 12,000 12,000 20,955 8,955
C M CAPITAL TE) ITIE
Cash In flows
Capital contributed : - - - -
Cash Out flows
Capital outlay (158,500) (158,500) (38,982) 119,518
Debt service (15,396) (15,396) (6,247) 9,149
Interest expense (23,405) (23,405) (37,148) (13,743)
Net Cash (Used) by Capital Related Activities (197,301) (197,301) (82,377) 114,924
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING IE
Interest earnings 14,000 14,000 24,043 10,043
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 52,951 52,951 85,802 32,851
Cash, July 1 1,369,547 1.369.547 1,561,235 191,688
Cash, June 30 $ 1,422,498 $ 1422498 § 1,647,037 § 224,539

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

76



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL DRAFT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOQUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
OPERATING REVNUES
Sales of water $ 367,000 $ 382,076 $ 15,076
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 77,689 87,714 (10,025)
Benefits 37,407 74,739 (37,332)
Services and supplies 83,400 75,504 7,896
Depreciation 40.000 150,019 (110,019)
Total operating expenses 238496 387,976 (149.480)
Operating income (loss) 128,504 (5,900) (134.404)
- VE EN
Interest income 1,800 5,580 3,780
Interest expense (118,900) (73,338) 45,562
Debt service -
Other income s 1,099 1,099
Net Income (loss) $ 11,404 $ (72,559) $ (83,963)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
77



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ENTERPRISE FUNDI

SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 DR AFT

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
CASH W. M OP! TING ACTIVITIE!
Cash In flows
Sewer Fees $ 367,000 $ 380,904 §$ 13,904
Cash Out flows
Salaries and wages (77,689) (92,123) (14,434)
Benefits (37,407) (39,534) (2,127)
Services and supplies (83,400) (75,997) 7,403
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 168,504 173,250 4,746
CASH FLOWS FR! N-CAP FINANC ACTIV
Cash Out flows
Capital outlay - (44,698) (44,698)
Net Cash (Used) by Non Capital Financing Activities - (44,698) 44,698
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED ACTIVITIES
Cash In flows
Other income - 1,099 1,099
Capital contributed - - “
Cash Out flows
Debt service (118,884) (83,816) 35,068
Interest expense - (73,338) (73,338)
Net Cash (Used) by Capital Related Activities (118,884) (156,055) (37,171)
ASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ITIES
Interest earnings 1,800 5,580 3,780
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 51,420 (21,923) 16,053
Cash, July 1 325229 357,048 31,819
Cash, June 30 $ 376,649 $ 335,125 § (41,524)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
78






STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF ABATEMENT AGREEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

agreements. These agreements range from 5 years to 20 years depending on the individual abatement.
abatements.

State of Nevada Governor's Office on Economic Development (GOED)

Chapter 271B of the Nevada Revised Statutes created on Economic Diversification District for which Storey County is a participant. Tesla
filed as a Lead participant within the Statue and was granted full abatements on Property Tax for 10 years and Sales and Use Tax for 20
years. The effect of this abatement is as follows:

REAL PROPERTY TAX

ASSESSED VALUE ABATEMENT TOTAL ABATEMENT
$74,627,995 100% $2,478,662
SALES AND USE TAX

TAX COLLECTED ABATEMENT TOTAL ABATEMENT
$33,849,361 100% $33,849,361
PLAN REVIEW AND PERMIT FEES

EEES CHARGED AMOUNT PAID TOTAL ABATEMENT
$8,752,960 $620,315 $8,132,645

In addition, GOED has permitted several companies to abate a certain portion of their personal Property Tax.

PRE-ABATEMENT
TAX AMOUNT ABATEMENT TOTAL ABATEMENT
$2,074,938 31% $645,264

Nevada Governor's Office of Energy (GOE)
The GOE administers the green building tax abatement program based on criteria set forth in the LEED of Green Globes
rating system and certification from the U.S. Green Building Council. This abatement if as follows:

LEED ABATEMENTS

PRE-ABATEMENT

TAX AMO ABATEMENT TOTAL ABATEMENT
$1,122,392 17% $187,580

Grand Total $45.293.512

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
80



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS-OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEF

JUNE 30, 2017 leAFT

Unfunded UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Funded Accrued Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liability Ratio Liability Payroll Payroll
PEBP
5/1/2009 $ - $ 1,097,647 0.00% $ 1,097,647 N/A NA
6/30/2016 $ - 8 495,467 0.00% $ 495,467 N/A N/A
Storey County
5/1/2009 § - 3 8,538,170 0.00% $ 8,538,170 $ 6,669,385 128.0%
6/30/2016 § - $ 14,551,593 0.00% $ 14,551,593 § 7,414,949 196.2%

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
81



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF COUNTY'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY- PUBLIC EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF

NE 30,20 DRAFT
JUNE 30, 2017

2016 2015 2014
County's portion of the net pension liability 0.145% 0.132% 0.129%
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 19,511,455 $ 15,126,431 $ 16,929,912
County's covered-employee payroll $ 7299918 $ 6,354,233 $ 6,040,606
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 267.28% 238.05% 280.27%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total net pension liability 72.20% 75.10% 76.30%

GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until 10 years of data is compiled, the
County will present information only for those years for which information is available.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
82



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF COUNTY'S CONTRIBUTIONS- PUBLIC EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYS1

JUNE 30, 2017 DRAFT

2017 2016 2015
Statutorily required contribution $ 2,781,291 $ 2,458,598 $ 2,037,477
Contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution $ (2,781,291) § (2,458,598) $ (2,037,477)
Contribution (deficiency) excess $ - $ - 3 -
County's covered-employee payroll $ 8,207,871 $ 7,299,918 $ 6,354,233
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 33.89% 33.68% 32.06%

GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until 10 years of data is compiled, the
County will present information only for those years for which information is available.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
83



DRAFT

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Storey County, Nevada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Storey County’s basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Storey County, Nevada’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriated in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Storey County, Nevada’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Storey County, Nevada’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on 2 timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
govemnance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencics in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses, We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Storey County, Nevada’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Govemment
Auditing Standards.

Storey County’s Response to Findings
Storey County, Nevada’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings

and questioned costs. Storey County, Nevada’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

84






INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EA

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada
Reno, Nevada

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Storey County, Nevada's (Storey County) compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Storey County's
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. Storey County's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal
awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each Storey County's major federal programs based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Storey County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However,
our audit does not provide a legal determination of Storey County's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Storey County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Storey County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Storey
County's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for cach major federal program and to test and report on intemel control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Storey County's internal
control over compliance.

86






m&,_m g
B
(<3

s

[4:4%:13
TIETT

8p8°S11

0951

¥z

8¥8'y

000°0€

0s0°0¥

06609 $

SR

Z0L00-HI-Y10T-MINE
£9600-04-5 10Z-MNT

000€-STHLI0L6
000€-¥THLI0L6
91T¥0L6

000€-01L¥0L6

9I-£0-SI~daWH"LI

VIN
VIN
VIN

[E-VMVA-910C

8€£00-ZE

06T1IVI-91-T¢

Y€1 0009880-ST0-€€

ToqunN SUARUSPU]
Anug y3nory-sseq

88

20UB)SISSY [EIoUeuL] [eIapa,] [BI0],
£80°L6 asuodsay AousBrawny pue ailg srenbopy 107 Juigels
£€80°L6 asuodsay Aousiswyg pue a11,] syenbopy 10 SugEIS
Surpun 1923
LI0°L6 wrer3o14 jueln ALMISG PUB[OUIOH
L90°L6 wres3014 L) A1IN0SS PUE|IWOH
ho'L6 JURID) 20UBULIONIS] Jusmageuey Aousdiomy
K3ayes orqnd 30 JusunTeda(] EPeASN JO 18IS Y3noIuY passed
6E0°L6 JUelD) UOITESIN prezeH
JuowaSeuey KousSIowy Jo UOISIAIQ ARJES d1[qnd JO Jusuneda(] BpeASN Y3noIy] passed
KI5 PUe[aWoY JO J0sueds( 511
£0L°0T siein) Furuue]q pue SuruTes], 103998 JT|qnd [EHDIRJAl SNOPEZeH AOUSFRINT]
UOISSTUNIOY) asuodsay AOUSIIAWH 338IS BPeAIN U3noIy) passed
00902 Ayyeg Aemy3IH Qlanuiwio)) pue &g
009'0Z Ajoyes Kemy3ry Ajlunwiwo)) pue 2je)s
0090 Ajoyes KemyiH Ayranunuo) poe jglg
Kiareg orqng o jusunreds( BpeAIN JO 21RIS YEnory passed
ToTjeIodsuely, Jo Jueuneda 'S 11
88601 SJURIL) BNULIO,] USWOA ISURdYy S0UI[OIA
{fOC) somsn[ jo juugiedaq S
916°C1 gurmre[q pue juawdoPAd( “TORISINDIY-UONE2193Yy J00pINQ
SIed 93838 JO UOISIAI( BPRASN YBnoXy) passed
Y06'S1 PIy-U[-Sjuel) pun, UONBAISaI JHOISTH
Surpuny 1000
JOLE)UY U7 JO JuBUneIds S
#98°01 109{014 13jEMI)SEA) PUE I9jBA SUTOURUL] JOF PUNJ V USI[qEISH 03 uelD)
SM[oU3Y JO JuatINeda( 511
ToqUNN VAd0 Tondi5sa( 10eID)WeI301J/107UelD) [eBpaL
Jesspag

L10Z “0€ AN CIANT ¥VIX FHL ¥O0d
SIVMY TVIFAAT 0 STANLIANTIXH 40 HTINATHOS
VAVAEN ‘ALNNOD ATIOLS



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

DRAFT

Note A- Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of Storey County under programs of the federal govemment for the year ending June 30, 2017. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), Because the Schedule present only a selected portion of the operations of
Storey County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash
flows of StoreyCounty.

Note B- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures arc recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, Cost
Principles for Audits of State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost principles contained in the
Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as reimbursement.
When applicable, negative amount shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal
course of business as expenditures in prior years.

Indirect Costs

The County has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance,

Note C — Subrecipients
Storey County did not pass eny federal awards received to any other government or not-for profit agencies.
Note D — Loans with Continuing Compliance Requirement

Outstanding federally-funded program loans, with a continuing compliance requirement, carried balance as of

June 30, 2017 as follows:
CFDA  Program Title Lo ce
10864 Grant to Establish A Fund for Financing Water and Wastewater Project $ 500,724

89



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONS COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 DRAFT

A. Summary of Auditor’s Results:

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial
Statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

®  Material weakness identified? No

®  Significant deficiency identified? Yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

®  Material weakness identified? No

®  Significant deficiency identified? No

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance

for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that arerequired to No

be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA# Name of Federal Program or Cluster

10.864 Department of Agriculture USDA-RD
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes






2017-B Cash and Investment Accounts

Significant Deficiency DRAFT

Criteria Management of Storey County is resporgible for establishing

and maintaining an effective system of Iinfernal control over
financial reporting. Properly valuing investments is a key
component of effective internal control over financial
reporting

Condition During our review of the cash and investment accounts, we
noted that the bonds held with Wells Fargo were not booked
at their market value. The County used the cost basis.

Cause The County has always accounted for bonds using the cost
basis. They have not properly implemented GASB 72.

Effect The County understated their cash accounts by an immaterial
amount

Recommendation We recommend the bonds be recorded at their fair market

value going forward.

Views of Responsible Officials Management agrees with this finding

92






STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 DRAFT

A. Findings Relating to The Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with GAGAS
No prior year material weaknesses or significant deficiencies were report

B. Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Award Program Audit
No audit findings were reported

C. The prior year audit did not contain any material weaknesses or significance deficiencies, but did contain a few

recommendations to improve internal control We have reviewed the status of the recommendations inciuded in
last year’s audit report dated November 21, 2016. This review indicated:

1. Werecommendmonitoring expenditures topreventexceeding budgeted amountsas
expenditures exceeded appropriations in the General Fund and four Special Revenue
Funds.

The monitoring was partially implemented.

2. We recommend account names in the Federal/State Grant Fund be
reviewed and adjusted to further differentiate the Federal and State grant
revenues and expenditures. The County may want to consider establishing
separate State Grant Funds.

This was not implemented during the year,

3. We recommend a cutoff datc of August 30 be established and strictly

enforced for all payables, receivables, and journal entries by any government

employee to prevent complication’s with the audit.

This was implemented by the County,

94






2018 Appointments to Serve on State. County and Regional Boards

1
2.

ZO XNV AW

12.

13.

14.
15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

. Safety Committee — Vanessa Stephens — Chair (No Change)

Legislative Representative — Marshall McBride with all others, including staff as needed
(No Change)

Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board — Jack McGuffey (No Change)
NACO - Jack McGuffey with Austin Osborne as alternate (No Change)

Nevada Works — Lance Gilman with Austin Osborne as alternate (No Change)

Virginia City Senior Center — Cherie Nevin (No Change)

Lockwood Senior Center — Lance Gilman and Cherie Nevin (No Change)

St. Mary’s Art Center — Jack McGuffey with Cherie Nevin as alternate (No Change)
Western Nevada Development District — Austin Osborne (No Change)

. Carson Water Subconservancy District — Austin Osborne with Kathy Canfield as alternate

(No Change)

. State Land Use Planning Advisory Council — Austin Osborne with Kathy Canfield as

alternate (No Change)
Natural Resources Conservation District (USDA) — Kathy Canfield with Austin Osborne as
alternate (Was Dean Haymore)
Truckee River Flood Management Authority (Technical Advisory Committee) — Lance
Gilman with Austin Osborne and Kathy Canfield as alternates (No Change)
Comstock Historic District — Marshall McBride (No Change)
Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V& T Railway — Jack McGuffey (No
Change)
Virginia City Tourism Commission — Lance Gilman as Commissioner designate (No
Change)
Oversight of Fire and Public Works — Marshall McBride (No Change)
Economic Development

a. EDAWN — Pat Whitten (No Change)

b. NNDA - Lance Gilman and Austin Osborne as alternate (No Change)
Storey County Wildlife Advisory Board — Confirming continued appointments of Greg
Hess Sr., Greg “Bum” Hess, Jim Clark Rob Dufresne and Rich Bacus (No Change)
Washoe-Storey Conservation District — Kathy Canfield with Austin Osborne as alternate
(No Change)






Enclosure A: Public Vacancy Posting

STOREY COUNTY PUBLIC NOTICE

PLANNING COMMISSIONER POSTING
Precinct 2 (Virginia City/Gold Hill District)

Position: Storey County Planning Commissioner to represent Precincts 2 (Virginia City/Gold Hill).

All interested parties must live within this voting district. Incumbent Planning Commissioner is eligible to
request reappointment. The Planning Commission is an advisory body to the Board of County
Commissioners. It is responsible for directing the short- and long-range growth and development of the
county through maintenance and implementation of the county master plan, zoning ordinances, and other
applicable land-use policies. It is composed of seven commissioners who serve two or more times per
month on the body and who are compensated pursuant to NRS 278.040. Each commissioner is appointed
by the Board of County Commissioners to serve at its pleasure for a four year term with possible re-
appointment following expiration of the term.

Preferred Qualifications: A Planning Commissioner’s primary duty is to make land-use decisions that
are consistent with the policies and plans formally adopted by the Board of County Commissioners.
Therefore, the first priority of a Planning Commissioner is to have strong decision-making skills and
develop knowledge of county policies and applicable Nevada Revised Statutes. It is not critical to have
training in the fields of planning, architecture, law, civil engineering, geology, economics, or
demography; these are skills that are available to the commissioner from staff, consultants, and
applicants. The Planning Commissioner’s job is to weigh input given in staff reports and other
professional reports, meeting testimonies, and other correspondence. A Planning Commissioner is like a
judge who renders decisions based on the testimony of experts and others who appear as witnesses in a
trial. Minimum qualifications of a Planning Commissioner include: a willingness and ability to research
and report on issues, programs, and policies related to local land-use matters; ability to attend afternoon
and night meetings on a regular basis; ability to sustain harmonious working relationships with
commission members, the Board of County Commissioners, staff, residents, applicants, and the public;
ability to act within the ethical standards set forth by NRS and NAC; and willingness to expand
knowledge related to land-use planning. The new-appointee must successfully pass a criminal background
investigation.

Letter of Interest: All interested parties must submit a letter of interest showing qualifications and reason
for applying for the appointment. An official job application is not necessary.

Closing Date: Letters of interest (originals) must be received by the Storey County Human Resources
Office, Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street (P.O. Box 176), Virginia City, NV 89440 by
5:00 p.m., Thursday, November 30, 2017. Please contact 775.847.0968 for further questions.

Tentative Appointment Date: The Board of County Commissioners will consider letters of interest at its
January 2, 2018 regularly scheduled meeting. Applicants may be asked to speak and should attend.
Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. Posting dates: 11/15/17 — 11/30/17

Page 2 of 6










DAVID LFRALEY

ATTORNEY AT LAW
TELEPHONE (775) 8477026
FAX (775) 847-7268
EMAIL - dfraleyk@aok.com
b1 ax%n p.o’.m K 1130
STQARY COUNTY VIRGINIA CITY WV
VIRGINIA CITY NV 89440
December 7, 2017
Storey County Human Resources Office
Storey County Courthouse
PO Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440
Dear Board of Commissioners:

It is my understanding that Jim Hindle, a member of the Storey County Planning Commission, is
up for reappointment o that position. This letter is to support and encourage the Commission to
make his reappointment,

1 have known Jim for several years, since he and Carolyn became my neighbors with their
purchase of the old Joe Page House. Good neighbors like Jim are hard to find. He is friendly
and always willing to help when we have called upon him. More importantly he has made a
significant effort to maintain and improve the Joe Page House which is am important part of the

history of Virginia City.

| find Jim to be a voice of reason at a time when those are few and far between. He would most
certainly continue to be a stabilizing influence on the Board.

Very truly yours,

David L. Fraley, Esq.

cc: Jim Hindle

Page 5 of 6









= NEVADA
/ol Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
<> STATE HISTORIC Brian Sandoval, Governor
- P PRESERVATION OFFICE Bradley Crowell, Director

Rebecca L. Palmer, SHPO

October 6, 2017

Cherie Nevin

Community Service Officer
Storey County

P.O.Box 7

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: 2017 Historic Preservation Fund (HPF) Grant Notification
Dear Ms. Nevin:

The State Historic Preservation Office finished its HPF grant selection for the 2017 calendar
year and is pleased to announce that your organization has been awarded $80,000.00 for
St. Mary's Art Center and assistance to the Comstock Cemetery Foundation. Enclosed is
the preliminary list of awarded projects for the 2017 grant cycle.

As administrator of this program, the State Historic Preservation Office would like to take
this opportunity to point out several items of importance.

1. The HPF award is from the National Park Service (NPS) and requires a minimum
40% contribution from the grantee; for this award amount your minimum match is

$53,333.33.

2. Each grant has been assigned an HPF project tracking number and SHPO grant
reviewer (see below):

* Your HPF Project Tracking Number is: TBD
Since we are dealing with multiple HPF grant years, it is very important to include
your project number with all of your correspondence - emails, faxes, letters,
memos, progress reports, and reimbursement requests.

* Your SHPO Grant Reviewer is: Elyse Jolly

This individual is your primary contact regarding this grant and all project
communication should be directed to him/her.

3. Project work as well as project costs should not be incurred or obligated until all
participants have signed the funding agreement;

4. Your HPF award of $80,000.00 will be available as soon as the following items have
been completed:

¢ Submission of a Revised Scope of Work
This should include the items your organization is planning on accomplishing with
your HPF award. Please be as detailed as possible and include it in a list format.

e Submission of a Revised Itemized Budget
This should reflect your HPF award and should be as detailed as possible. If the
HPF award is part of a larger budget (e.qg., if you are combining several funding

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 5004 <4~ Carson City, Nevada 89701 <4 Phone: 775.684.3448 Fax: 775.684.3442
www.shpo.nv.gov



Cherie Nevin
Page 2 of 2
October 6, 2017

sources), please make sure to identify the items that will be paid for by the HPF
funds. The remainder will be considered match.

e A Legal Property Description (only if working on a historic property)
This is the legal description of the historic property where the work will be done
and may be obtained from your local recorder’s office.

e Main Project Contact Person
If changes have been made since the application was submitted to our office,
please let your grant reviewer know as soon as possible.

Please mail items to:
Elyse Jolly
HPF Grant Program
State Historic Preservation Office
901 S. Stewart St., Suite 5004
Carson City, NV 89701

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact your grant reviewer at the
number and email listed below:

Elyse Jolly, HPF Grants Manager 775-684-3450
ejolly@shpo.nv.gov

Sincerely,

< (' @ . /\, ( 1'.{_‘_

Elyse Jolly
Historic Preservation Fund Grants Manager



00°000'58$ 00000'€SL  $ SAQUVMY 3dH Z10Z TV1OL
$$3001d Jajsibay [BUOHEN (WSN)
00°000'G$ 00°000'G $ ay} sisse 0} AIOJSIH '@ SWNSSN JO pieog s epeAsN Jo poddng wansni djejs epeAsN | 9
JO3)ON
00'0$ 00'000°S $ aoye | ayeT Jo syoaimdiyg ‘J0D)SJ g BPEASN SY} JO UOBO0T| B AN—SAIQ WNIUSJIN MaN | §
aoye)
00°0$ 00°000'S $ aoye] SS 8y} jo Anpwwelboold|  SS—dMQ WNIUSIN MON| ¥
UONONASUOD JJORSY JIWSIDS BSNOYHNOY) B 1Bjuad) JOUSIA
00'000°08$ 00'000'08 $ Kisjswe) yoojswo) ‘podey suonipuo) (esnonys sliey 1S funo) fai0)s| €
00'0$ 00°000'02 $ SPJEpUE}S UONBAIBSaId JLOJSIH 40 Juawdofeasq uossapusH Jo Ao | ¢z
00°0$ 00'000'8€ $ umelpyim-—uonediddy 8jiqop aul en|g ayj jo spelbdn Ay uosied| |
Y LL0Z spuny
ddH pasodoid paysanbay uondudsaq Josfoud uopeziuebaQ juedyddy

(2102/9/01 jo se) uoynquisiq |euly
spiemy pasodold (4dH) pung uogeAIasald JUOISIH 102




HISTORIC PRESERVATION FUNDING AGREEMENT
This agreement is made and entered into between the State of Nevada, acting by and throu gh its State
Historic Preservation Office, hereinafter referred to as the "STATE," and (the) STOREY COUNTY,
hereinafter referred to as "SUBGRANTEE." This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the authority
contained in NRS 383.081 and provisions of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-665), as
amended.
X/ ATTACHMENT A - Scope of Work/Budget
X/ ATTACHMENT B - Covenant or Letter of Agreement
/X/' ATTACHMENT C - Civil Rights Assurance
X/ ATTACHMENT D - Assurance of Compliance with Procurement Procedures
X/ ATTACHMENT E - Assurance of Compliance with Anti-Kickback Act of 1964
/X/ ATTACHMENT F - Lobbying with Appropriated Funds
X/ ATTACHMENT G - Conflict of Interest
WHEREAS, the STATE will administer a United States Department of the Interior historic
preservation matching grant-in-aid awarded to the SUBGRANTEE in an amount not to exceed

$20,000.00 to assist in COMSTOCK CEMETERY _VISITOR _CENTER PORCH

REHABILITATION PROJECT. The minimum non-federal share required for this grant is
$13,333.33.
NOW, THEREFORE, the SUBGRANTEE in undertaking this project agrees to:
1. Duly and faithfully comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, all
applicable federal and State laws, including OMB Circular (Uniform Administrative
Requirements for Grants to State and Local Governments and Audits of State, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations).  State, Local and Indian Tribal
Governments shall also comply with 2 CFR 225 (Cost Principles for State, Local, and

Indian Tribal Governments). Non-Profit organizations shall comply with 2 CFR 230

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- |



(Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations). Educational Institutions shall comply
with 2 CFR 220 (Cost Principles for Educational Institutions). All subgrantees must also
comply with the Historic Preservation Fund Grants Manual, and The Secretary of
Interior’s Standards and Guidelines for Archaeology and Historic Preservation.
Additionally, subgrantees are directed to comply with all directives issued by the STATE
and the Department of the Interior. The Guidelines, application and reporting forms for
the State Historic Preservation Office are hereby incorporated by reference as part of this
binding agreement.

2. Atall times during regular business hours or at an agreed to time and as often as the
STATE requires, permit authorized representatives of the state and federal government
full and free access to the project and to the accounts, records, and books of the
SUBGRANTEE relative hereto, including the right to make transcripts from such
accounts, records, and books. Such accounts, records, and books must be retained for
three (3) years after the completion of the project.

3.To the extent authorized by law, the SUBGRANTEE agrees to indemnify and hold the
State of Nevada, its agents and employees harmless from any loss, damage, liability, cost
Or expense to the person or property of another which was caused by the negligence of
the SUBGRANTEE, its officers, employees and agents under this agreement.

4. Not use federal money to match grant money offered through this Agreement, unless
specifically allowed to do so under special federal enabling legislation,

5. SUBGRANTEES receiving funds for Development projects are required per NRS
383.121 to consult with STATE if buried or previously unidentified resources are located
during these project activities. If this occurs, the STATE recommends that all work in
the vicinity cease and SUBGRANTEE contacts the STATE immediately.

6. SUBGRANTEES receiving funds for Development projects are required to track the

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 2



number of individuals visiting the resource and the number of events held at the resource
during the current calendar year. This information can be submitted in the third progress
report or in the final reimbursement request.

7. SUBGRANTEES receiving funds for Development projects are required to ensure
that the project sign is displayed in a prominent location at each project site while project
work is in progress. The SUBGRANTEE is required to submit photographs of the
successful project before work begins, while project work is in progress and photos of
the completed project to the STATE that indicates where the sign has been placed and
that it was there for the duration of the project. The project sign will be provided by the
STATE for the duration of the project and will be returned to the STATE upon project
completion.  If any damage occurs to the project sign during the project, the
SUBGRANTEE will be responsible for replacement of the project sign.

8. Provide the STATE with progress and financial reports in a format prescribed by the
STATE during the term of the grant. Due dates are JANUARY 15, 2018 AND APRIL
15, 2018. The first progress report is due JANUARY 15, 2018. Required progress and
financial reports are to be submitted quarterly. If the SUBGRANTEE fails to provide
the required progress reports during the first 180 days (one hundred and eighty)
following notification of the grant award, the STATE reserves the right to revert the
entire subgrant amount from the SUBGRANTEE. If the SUBGRANTEE allows 180
days (one hundred and eighty) to pass without contacting the STATE to submit a
reimbursement request and/or required progress reports, the STATE reserves the right to
revert any remaining subgrant funds from the SUBGRANTEE. A final report shall be
submitted by the SUBGRANTEE in a format prescribed by the STATE within ten (10)
days of the completion of the project named herein. Reimbursement requests shall not

be processed until such reports are received.

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 3



9. Maintain:
a) An accurate record of all cash and in-kind expenditures related to the project.
Records must be supported by source documentation. All volunteer services
claimed as nonfederal share must be documented through time cards or records
signed by both the volunteer and project supervisor.
b) A special account for the project so that an exact itemization of project
expenditures can be submitted by check number along with copies of canceled
checks, itemized invoices, and properly documented time sheets.
¢) A comparison of actual expenditures with budgeted amounts for the
Agreement.
d) If appropriate, please provide summaries of annual tourist attendance at the
facility.
10. Notify the STATE immediately in writing of problems or changes in scope of work,
budget, product, and performance reporting. No changes can be made without prior
written approval from the STATE.
I1. Following the notification of the grant award and before work begins, the
SUBGRANTEE will attend a project meeting with the STATE grants manager. It is the
responsibility of the SUBGRANTEE to coordinate the meeting date and time with the
grants manager.
12. The SUBGRANTEE agrees that timely billing is a requirement of the funding
agreement as the STATE must disburse funds no later than the close of the following
state fiscal year. All billings for dates of service prior to July 1 of the subsequent fiscal
year must be submitted to the STATE no later than the first Friday in August of the same
calendar year,

FURTHER, THEREFORE, the parties to this Agreement acknowledge and will comply with

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 4



the following general terms:

I. Payment of the grant shall be made upon compliance with the terms of the

Agreement, including but not limited to:
a) An inspection by the STATE to ensure that work has been completed
satisfactorily in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.
b) Submission of satisfactory progress reports as referred to above.
¢) Submission of a Financial Report that must be executed by the person in
charge of the project. Copies of all original bills from contractors, suppliers, and
vendors, and proof of payment of those bills to assure evidence of compliance
prior to reimbursement shall accompany the request. Said reimbursement shall
not exceed 60 percent (60%) of the request for reimbursement costs, or the full
value of the grant, whichever is less.
d) The STATE may, at its discretion, retain 10 percent (10%) of the total
federal portion until the STATE receives the final completion report and has
accepted its content.
e) Progress payments may be made at the discretion of the STATE upon
completion of distinct phases of work provided that the above-mentioned
conditions have been met for each phase of work.
f) Any progress payment made by the STATE shall not constitute nor be
construed as a waiver by the STATE of any breach of covenant or any default
which may exist on the part of the SUBGRANTEE, nor shall any such breach or
default impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to the STATE.

2. Both parties understand that a funding-out provision is required by NRS 244.320 and

NRS 354.626. Continuation of this grant is subject to and contingent upon sufficient

funds being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available by the State

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 5



Legislature and/or federal sources. Reservation of funds based upon budget reductions is
included herein. The granting authority may reduce or terminate this grant, and
SUBGRANTEE waives any and all claims(s) for damages, effective immediately upon
receipt of written notice (or any date specified therein) if, for any reason, the granting
agency’s funding from State and/or federal sources is not appropriated or is withdrawn,
limited, or impaired.
3. The STATE may terminate this Agreement for reason of default by the
SUBGRANTEE. Any of the following events shall constitute defau It:
a) Termination of the grant by reason of fault of the SUBGRANTEE;
b) Failure by the SUBGRANTEE to observe any of the covenants, conditions,
warranties of this Agreement and its incorporated provisions;
¢) Failure by the SUBGRANTEE to make reasonable progress on the grant;
d) Unsatisfactory financial conditions by the SUBGRANTEE which endanger
the performance of the grant;
e) Delinquency by the SUBGRANTEE in payment of taxes or of the costs of
performance of the grant in ordinary course of business;
f) Appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for all or a substantial part
of the SUBGRANTEE’s property, or institution of bankruptey, reorganization
arrangement, or liquidation proceedings by or against the SUBGRANTEE;
and/or Commission of an act of bankruptcy.
g) The STATE may terminate this funding agreement, and the SUBGRANTEE
waives any and all claim(s) for damages effective immediately upon receipt of
written notice (or any date specified therein) if for any reason the
SUBGRANTEE's match sources are limited or impaired.

h) This funding agreement may be terminated by either party upon written

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 6



notification for any of the following:

i

iii.

iv.

if SUBGRANTEE or their contractor fails to provide or satisfactorily
perform any of the conditions, work, deliverables, goods, or services
called for by this funding agreement within the time requirements
specified in this funding agreement or within any granted extension of
those time requirements:

if any state, county, city, or federal license, authorization, waiver,
permit, qualification or certification required by statute, ordinance, law,
or regulation held by SUBGRAN’I"EE or their contractor to provide the
goods or services required by this funding agreement is for any reason
denied, revoked, debarred, excluded, terminated, suspended, lapsed, or
not renewed; or

if SUBGRANTEE or their contractor becomes insolvent, subject to
receivership, or becomes voluntarily or involuntarily subject to the
Jurisdiction of the bankruptey court; or

if it is found by the STATE that any quid pro quo or gratuities in the
form of money, services, entertainment, gifts, or otherwise were offered
or given by the SUBGRANTEE or their contractor, or any agent or
representative of the SUBGRANTEE or their contractor, to any officer
or employee of the State of Nevada with a view toward securing a
contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to awarding,
extending, amending, or making any determinations with respect to the
performing of such funding agreement; or

if it is found by the STATE that the SUBGRANTEE or their contractor

has failed to disclose any material conflict of interest relative to the

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 7



performance of this funding agreement.
i) In the event of termination of this funding agreement for any reason, the parties
agree that the provisions of this paragraph survive termination:

i. The SUBGRANTEE or their contractor shall satisfactorily complete
work in progress at the agreed rate (or a pro rata basis if necessary) if so
requested by the STATE;

ii. SUBGRANTEE or their contractor shall execute any documents and
take any actions necessary to effectuate an assignment of this funding
agreement if so requested by the STATE;

iii. SUBGRANTEE or their contractor shall preserve, protect and promptly
deliver into STATE possession all proprietary information in accordance
with paragraph thirteen (13).

4. In the event the SUBGRANTEE fails to appropriate or budget funds for the purposes
as specified in this agreement, the STATE consents to termination of this agreement. In
such event, the SUBGRANTEE shall notify the STATE in writing and the agreement
will terminate on the date specified in the notice. Upon occurrence of any of the above
conditions, the STATE may, upon written notice to the SUBGRANTEE, withhold
further reimbursements for a period of thirty (30) days. After such written notice to the
SUBGRANTEE, the STATE may take the following additional actions as appropriate:

a) Terminate all or any part of the balance of the grant.

b) Demand immediate repayment of all or part of any reimbursements made to

the SUBGRANTEE.
5. If the SUBGRANTEE fails to comply with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards
and Guidelines for Archaeology and Historic Preservation or any of the terms of this

Agreement; the STATE shall have the right to file suit, in law or equity. The purpose of

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 8



the suit shall be to cause the SUBGRANTEE to cure said violations or to obtain the
return of funds granted to the SUBGRANTEE by the STATE. Such suit may be brought
in the District Court of the county in which the property is located.

6. The commencement date for all work to be performed under this Agreement is
DECEMBER 6, 2017. The termination or end date is JUNE 30, 2018. No work
performed at any time other than described in this paragraph shall be considered as an
eligible activity for reimbursement purposes. The SUBGRANTEES and their
contractors agree not to request reimbursement above the National Park Service's
maximum hourly rate of $82.49. Anything charged above this amount will be the
responsibility of the SUBGRANTEE and not the STATE. Financial Reports requesting
reimbursement for activity from DECEMBER 6, 2017 TO JUNE 30, 2018 must be
submitted no later than close of business on AUGUST 1, 2018 and will not be allowable
for reimbursement or as match after that date, Upon receiving reimbursement requests,
the STATE will review the request for completeness and accuracy. If complete and
accurate, the reimbursement request will be processed within fifteen (15) business days
upon receipt. Requests that have not been received at the office of the STATE by this
date shall not be paid pursuant to this funding agreement. Upon successful completion
and acceptance of final product by the STATE, the STATE will issue an official letter to
the SUBGRANTEE to close out the grant.

7. This funding agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of
the State of Nevada.

8. Audits may be required by the STATE. Such audits shall be at the expense of the
SUBGRANTEE.

9. The STATE in accordance with the Office of Management and Budget (OMB)

Omni-Circular (36 CFR 200.501), for the Single Audit Act, requires:

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 9



a) Non-Federal entities that expend $750,000 or more in a year in Federal
awards to have a single or program-specific audit conducted for that year.

b) Non-Federal entities that expend $750,000 or more in a year in Federal
awards shall have a single audit conducted except when they elect to have a
program-specific audit conducted in accordance with paragraph (c) of this
section.

¢) Program-specific audit election. When an auditee expends Federal awards
under only one Federal program (excluding R&D) and the Federal program's
laws, regulations, or grant agreements do not require a financial statement audit
of the auditee, the auditee may elect to have a program-specific audit.

d) Exemption when Federal awards expended are less than $750,000. Non-
Federal entities that expend less than $750,000 a year in Federal awards are
exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year, except as noted in Omni-

Circular (36 CFR 200.501), but records must be available for review or audit by

appropriate officials of the Federal agency, pass-through entity, General

Accounting Office (GAO) and State.

10. In any news release or printed material describing or promoting the project or any
material produced as a result of the grant, appropriate credit shall be given to the STATE
and the Department of the Interior by the phrase: “This project has been funded with
assistance of the Nevada State Historic Preservation Office through a Department of the

Interior grant." Printed material should include language outlined in paragraph eleven

11. An acknowledgment of National Park Service support must be made in connection
with publication or dissemination of any printed, audio-visual, or electronic material

based on, or developed under, a result of this Agreement shall include the following

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 10



statements:
The [insert activity] that is the subject of this [insert type of publication] has
been financed in whole or in part with federal funds from the National Park
Service, U.S. Department of Interior, and administered by the State Historic
Preservation Office. The contents and opinions, however, do not necessarily
reflect the views or policies of the United States Department of the Interior or
the State Historic Preservation Office. This program receives federal financial
assistance for identification and protection of historic properties. Under Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, and Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, the U.S. Department
of the Interior prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national
origin, disability or age in its federally assisted programs. If you believe you
have been discriminated against in any program, activity, or facility as
described above, or if you desire further information, please write to: Chief,
Office of Equal Opportunity Programs, United States Department of the
Interior, National Park Service, 1849 C Street, N.W.; Washington, D.C.
20240.

12. A complete draft project report will be submitted for STATE review to the

State Historic Preservation Office no later than MAY 15,2018. The product must

comply with The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and Guidelines for

Archaeology and Historic Preservation and include a historic context appropriate

for National Register evaluations of all cultural resources present.

13. Any reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs,

negatives, blue prints, plans, maps, data, system designs, computer code (which is

intended to be a consideration under this funding agreement) or any other

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 11



documents or drawings, prepared or, in the course of preparation, by the

SUBGRANTEE or their contractor in perfonnancé of its obligations under this

funding agreement shall be the exclusive property of the STATE and all such

materials shall be delivered into STATE possession by SUBGRANTEE or their

contractor upon completion, termination or cancellation of this funding agreement.

SUBGRANTEE (or its subcontractors) shall not sue, willingly allow, or cause to

have such materials used for any purpose other than performance of

SUBGRANTEE's (or subcontractors) obligations under this funding agreement

without the prior written consent of the STATE. Notwithstanding the forgoing,

the STATE shall have no proprietary interest in any materials licensed for use by

the STATE that are subject to patent, trademark or copyright protection.

14. Final product reimbursement will not be made if the product does not meet The

Secretary of the Interior’s Standards or terms of this Agreement.

I5. The final product/report must be submitted to the STATE no later than JULY 1S

2018.

16. The SUBGRANTEE shall provide the STATE with an acceptable final report of the

project, including a comparison of completed activities and budget to those in the

approved Funding Agreement.
The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executin g this funding agreement on
behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this funding agreement. The
SUBGRANTEE acknowledges that as required by the previously cited statutes or regulations
[NHPA 1966 (P.L. 89-665), OMB A-102, A-133, 2 CFR 225, 2 CFR 230, 2 CFR 220, NRS
244, NRS 320, NRS 383.081, and NRS 354.626] of this funding agreement is effective only
for the period specified in this funding agreement, unless an extension is granted by the

STATE. Any services performed by the SUBGRANTEE or their contractor before this

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 12



contract is effective or after is ceases to be effective are performed at the sole risk of the

SUBGRANTEE.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Historic Preservation Funding

Agreement to be signed and intend to be legally bound thereby.

SUBGRANTEE-—STOREY COUNTY

Signature: Date:

Name (print):

Title (print):

STATE-DEPT.OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES-STATE HISTORIC

PRESERVATION OFFICE

By: Date:

Rebecca Lynn Palmer, State Historic Preservation Officer

REVIEWED AS TO FORM ONLY:
Adam Paul Laxalt, Attorney General

By:

Deputy Attorney General Date

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 13



ATTACHMENT A-1

SCOPE OF WORK
Project Title: Comstock Cemetery Visitor Center Porch Rehabilitation Project using National Park
Service (NPS) funds HPF# 32-17-151352(1).

This project shall support the completion of the following:
©  Once available, Storey County agrees to submit a revised budget and scope of work for
approval before actual construction on the building begins.
e Rehabilitate porch removed during move of building to current location.
o Take at least 5 photos of process (before, during & after) rehabilitation.
o List, photograph & describe planned work for SHPO approval before work begins.
0 When possible, will replace in-kind any materials associated with the porch.
State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) and NPS Project Stipulations:
L. If work is to be contracted out, that contract shall copy and use the exact language as set
forth in the project objectives and funding agreement from this Scope of Work.
2. All work shall conform with the U.S. Secretary of the Interior's Standards and
Guidelines for Archeology and Historic Preservation unless otherwise approved by the
SHPO.
3. All completed work shall conform with visual and/or written specifications submitted

to and approved by the SHPO before work begins. (For Development projects only)

4. If any changes are made to the project, the subgrantee must submit updated visual
and/or written specifications for the proposed work before any work commences and for
written approval from the SHPO.

5. The subgrantee shall provide the SHPO with calendar quarterly updates on project
progress;

6. The subgrantee shall provide the SHPO with full access to all documents necessary for
a comprehensive audit. Should the SHPO find costs that are not allowed by State
accounting practices or that are outside the terms of this agreement; the applicant/grantee
shall refund the amount to the SHPO.

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 14



ATTACHMENT A-2

Project ID #

Itemized Budget

Termination Date:

BUDGET
Participant: Storey County
Project Title: Comstock Cemetery Visitor Center

Porch Rehabilitation Project
6/30/2018

HPF Grant#
32-17-151352(1)

Federal Share
Contractual Services

$20,000.00

Subtotal Federal Share:

$20,000.00

Non-Federal Share
Contractual Services

$13,333.33

Subtotal Non-Federal Share:

$13,333.33

Total Project Costs:

$33,333.33

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 15




ATTACHMENT B
COVENANTS

These covenants are made and entered into between the State of Nevada, acting by and
through the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO), hereinafter referred to as “STATE” and
STOREY COUNTY, hereinafter referred to as “SUBGRANTEE, for the purpose of the property
known as the COMSTOCK CEMETERY VISITOR CENTER and is listed on the National
Register of Historic Places, which is owned in fee simple by the SUBGRANTEE.

The property is comprised essentially of grounds, collateral, appurtenances, and
improvements. The property is more particularly described as follows: CARETAKER'S HOUSE,
LOCATED AT 1 CEMETERY ROAD, VIRGINIA CITY, NV.

In consideration of the sum $29,800.00 received in grant-in-aid through the STATE, from the
National Park Service, Department of the Interior, the SUBGRANTEE hereby agrees to the
following for a period on time ending DECEMBER 31, 2027.

1. The SUBGRANTEE agrees to assume the cost of the continued maintenance and repair
of said Property so as to preserve the architectural, historical, cultural or archaeological
integrity of the same, in order to protect and enhance those qualities which made the
Property eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.

2. The SUBGRANTEE agrees that no visual or structural alterations will be made to the
property without prior written permission of the STATE.

3. The SUBGRANTEE agrees that the STATE, its agents and designees, shall have the
right to inspect the property at all reasonable times, in order to ascertain whether or not the
conditions of these Covenants are being observed.

4. The SUBGRANTEE agrees that when the property is not clearly visible from a public
right-of-way or includes interior work assisted with Historic Preservation funds, the

property will be open to the public not less than twelve (12) days a year on an equitable

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 16



spaced basis and at other times by appointment. Nothing in these covenants will prohibit the
SUBGRANTEE from charging a reasonable, non-discriminatory admission fee, comparable
to fees charged at similar facilities in the area.

5. The SUBGRANTEE further agrees that when the property is not open to the public on a
continuing basis, and when the improvements assisted with Historic Preservation funds are
not visible from the public right-of-way, notification will be published for three consecutive
working days, no less than one week prior to the opening date in one newspaper of general
circulation in the community area in which the property is located. The advertisement shall
give the dates and times when the property will be open. Documentation of such notice will
be furnished annually to the STATE during the term of these Covenants.

6. The SUBGRANTEE agrees to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(U.S.C. 2000 (d)), the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12204), and with Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794). These laws prohibit discrimination
on the basis of race, religion, national origin, or disability. In implementing public access,
reasonable accommodation to qualified disabled persons shall be made in consultation with
the STATE.

7. The agreement shall be enforceable in specific performance by a court of competent
jurisdiction.

8. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE - It is understood and agreed by the parties thereto that is
any part, term, or provision of this agreement is held to be illegal by the courts, the validity
of the remaining portions or provisioﬁszéi;;ilkagt be aff'ected, and the rights and obligations
of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the contract did not contain the particular
part, term, or provision held to be invalid.

9. These restraints shall run with the property and are binding upon the SUBGRANTEE and

any and all successors, heirs, assignees, or lessees.

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 17



10. The STATE shall have the right to file suit in law or equity, if the SUBGRANTEE
violates any of the restraintg 'c_if 'these ‘Covenants. The purpose of the suit shall be to cause
the SUBGRANTEE to cure said violations or to obtain the return of funds granted to the
SUBGRANTEE by the STATE.

I1. The SUBGRANTEE shall record these Covenants in the Recorder’s Office of the

County in which the subject property is located. The STATE’S obligations with regard to
the subject property shall not become effective until the SUBGRANTEE has furnished the

STATE satisfactory proof of the aforementioned recordation.

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 18



These Covenants are entered into this day of , 20

SUBGRANTEE-STOREY COUNTY

Signature:

Name (print):

Title (print):

Date (print);

STATE-NEVADA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE

Signature:

Name (print):

Title (print):

Date (print):

REVIEWED AS TO FORM ONLY:
Adam Paul Laxalt, Attorney General

By:

Deputy Attorney General Date

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 19



Witnessed by Notary Public
State of Nevada

County of

On , personally appeared before me, a Notary Public in

and for said County and State,

Known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument,
who acknowledged to me that executed the same freely and voluntarily and for the uses and

purposes therein mentioned.

Notary Public

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of Nevada

County of

On , personally appeared before me, Notary Public in and for
said County and State, , known to me to be the person described

in and who executed the foregoing instrument, who acknowledged to me that he executed the same

and freely and voluntarily and for the uses and purposed therein mentioned.

Notary Public

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 20



ATTACHMENT C
CIVIL RIGHTS ASSURANCE

As the authorized representative of the SUBGRANTEE, I certify that, as a condition to receivin g any
Federal financial assistance from the Department of the Interior, the SUBGRANTEE will comply
with all Federal laws relating to nondiscrimination. These laws include, but are not limited to: (a)
Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-1), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended (29 U.S.C. 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicap; (c) the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101et. seq.), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age; and applicable regulatory requirements to the end that no person in the United States
shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, handicap or age, be excluded from participation
in, be denied the benefits of, or be othérwise subjected to discrimination under any program or
activity conducted by the applicant. The SUBGRANTEE hereby gives assurance that it will
immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement.

This assurance shall apply to all aspects of the applicant's operations including those parts that have
not received or benefited from Federal financial assistance.

If any real property or structure thereon is provided or improved with the aid of Federal financial

assistance extended to the SUBGRANTEE by the Department, this assurance shall obligate the
SUBGRANTEE, or in the case of any transfer of such property, any transferee, for the period

during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial
assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits. If
any personal property is so provided, this assurance shall obligate the SUBGRANTEE for the
period during which it retains ownership c‘)r 'possession of the property. In all other cases, this
assurance shall obligate the SUBGRANTEE for the period during which the Federal financial

assistance is extended to it by the Department.

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 21



This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal
grants, loans, contracts, property, discounts or other federal financial assistance extended after the

date hereof to the SUBGRANTEE by the Department, including installment payments after such

date on account of applicants for Federal financial assistance which were approved before such date.

The SUBGRANTEE recognizes and agrees that such Federal financial assistance will be extended

in reliance on the representations and agreements made in this assurance, and that the United States
shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the

SUBGRANTEE, its successors, transferees, assignees, and subrecipients and the person whose

signature appears below who is authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the SUBGRANTEE,

Signature of Authorized Certifying Official Title
Authorized Certifying Official (print name)-: Date Submitted
STOREY COUNTY

Applicant/Organization

26 S. B STREET; VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440
Applicant/Organization Mailing Address

NEVADA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE
Bureau or Office Extending Assistance

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 22



ATTACHMENT D
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

This statement is to certify that as a subgrantee of historic preservation funding, 1 am aware of the
following federal policies regarding procurement procedures and contracting with small and minority
firms, women’s business enterprise, and labor surplus area items. It is National policy to award a fair
share of contracts involving Federal funds to small and minority business firms. Accordingly,
affirmative steps must be taken to assure that small and minority businesses are utilized when
possible as sources of supplies, equipmerit, construction and services. Affirmative steps shall
include, but not be limited to the following:

a. Including qualified small and minority businesses and solicitation lists.

b. Assuring that small and minority businesses are solicited whenever they are

potential sources.

c. When economically feasible, divide total requirements into smaller tasks or

quantities so as to permit maximum small and minority business participation.

d. When the situation permits, establish permits; establish delivery schedules,

which will encourage participation by small and minority businesses.

e. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, the

Office of Minority Business Enterprise of the Department of Commerce and the

Community Servicég Aé‘l!;;li;is'tlration as required.

f. Any and all subcontractors shall also take the affirmative steps listed in (a)

through (e) above.
Subgrantees shall take similar appropriate affirmative action in support of businesses owned and
operated by women (women’s business enterprises). Subgrantees are encouraged to procure goods

and services from areas of high unemployment (labor surplus areas).

Additionally, subgrantees shall comply with requirements of 43 CFR 12, subpart E (Buy American

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 23



Act) when purchasing supplies, equipment, and construction materials with Federal funds. The
subgrantee is responsible for determining whether items are available for domestic sources and that

costs are reasonable. Exceptions must be approved prior to purchase.

All procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner that provides maximum open and free
competition. Procurement procedures shall not restrict or eliminate competition. Activities that
can restrict competition include, but are not limited to: (1) placing unreasonable requirements on
firms in order for them to qualify to do business: (2) involvement in organizational conflicts of
interest; and (3) requirement of unnecessary experience and bonding.
Method of Procurement - Procurement under a grant involving Federal funds shall be made by one
of the following methods: (1) small purchase procedures; (2) competitive sealed bids; (3)
competitive negotiation; (4) non-competifiveinegotiation. Small purchase procedures are those
relatively simple and informal procurement methods that are sound and appropriate for a
procurement of services, supplies, or other property, costing in the aggregate not more than
$25,000.00 overall. Price or rate quotations shall be obtained from at least three qualified sources.
1. Competitive sealed bids are required if a procurement of services, supplies or other
property costs in the aggregate of more than $25,000.00. Competitive sealed bids must be
publicly solicited by means of formal advertising in at least one local newspaper of
general circulation once a week for a period of two weeks. A fixed-contract shall be
awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid, confirming with all the material terms and
conditions of the invitation for bids, is lowest in price.
2. Competitive negotiétiéﬁ is an alternate form of procurement that may be employed if
the cost of services, supplies ;)r other property is in the aggregate of more than
$25,000.00. The SUBGRANTEE shall enter into negotiations with two or more potential
contractors that have submitted offers. Either a fixed price or a cost reimbursable type

contract shall be awarded. Award of the contract may be made to the responsible bidder

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 24



whose proposal will be most advantageous to the procuring party considering price and
other factors. Unsuccessful bidders should be notified promptly by the SUBGRANTEE.
3. After solicitation of a number of sources, noncompetitive negotiation may be entered
into if competition is dqtell_'ihjrjle‘dz'to be inadequate. Noncompetitive negotiation may only
be used when the award of a contract is infeasible under small purchase, competitive
bidding or competitive negotiation procedures. Other circumstances under which a
contract may be awarded by non-competitive negotiation are limited to the following;:
a.  The item is available only from a single source.
b. In case of an emergency, or in case of a public exigency when the urgency
for the requirement will not permit a delay incident to competitive solicitation,
¢.  The State authorizes noncompetitive negotiation.
4. Additional innovative procurement methods may be used by grantees with the
written approval of the STATE. A copy of the approval shall be sent by the STATE to
NPS and by NPS to the Office of Federal Procurement Policy.
Subgrantee Procurement Records - St;t)aéfahiee shall maintain records sufficient to detail the history
of a procurement. These records shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, information
pertinent to the following: rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type,

contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for the cost or price.

Contract Provisions - Any recipient of Federal grant funds shall include the following contract

provisions or conditions in all procurement contracts and subcontracts.

1. Contracts other than small purchases shall contain provisions or conditions, which
will allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for the termination of the
contract and any other such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate.

2. All negotiated conttaci:t:s,.(qg(gept those awarded by small purchases procedures)

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 25



awarded by grantees utilizing federal funds shall include a provision to the effect that the
STATE shall have access to any book, documents, papers, and records of the contractor
directly pertinent to that specific contract, for the purpose of examination, audit, and
transcriptions. Subgrantee shall require contractors to maintain all required records for
three years after grantees make final Agreement.
3. Prior to reimbursement grantees shall forward the SHPO evidence documenting
compliance with Federa] competitive procurement requirement for professional services
and contracts.
I hereby acknowledge that I have read the foregoing procurement procedures and promise that I shall
comply with all of the provisions by which the terms of this Agreement apply to my particular

project.

Signature of Subgrantee Date

Subgrantee Name (print)

Title (print) ' S

STOREY COUNTY
Organization

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 26

Ve



ATTACHMENT E

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE ANTI-KICKBACK ACT OF 1934

This statement is to certify that as subgrantee of historic preservation funding, I will abide by the
provisions of the Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. 874). The act provides that each
contractor or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in
any aspect of the project to give up any part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled.

I hereby acknowledge that I will comply, and notify all contractors of their need to comply with this

act,

Signature of Subgrantee Date (print)

Subgrantee (print)

Title (print)

STOREY COUNTY
Organization

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 27



ATTACHMENT F
LOBBYING WITH APPROPRIATED FUNDS

Historic Preservation Fund grants must conform to provisions of 18 USC 1913.

“No part of the money appropriated by any enactment of Congress shall, in the absence of express
authorization by Congress, be used directly or indirectly to pay for any personal service,
advertisement, telegram, telephone, letter, printed or written matter, or other device, intended or
designed to influence in any manner a Member of Congress, to favor or oppose, by vote or
otherwise, any legislation or appropriation by Congress, whether before or after the introduction of
any bill or resolution proposing such legislation or appropriation; but this shall not prevent officers
or employees of the United States or its Departments or agencies from communicating to Members
of Congress at the request of any Member, or to Congress through the proper official channels,
requests for legislation or appropriation which they deem necessary for the efficient conduct of the
public business.”

Thus, costs associated with activit‘;es to influence legislation pending before the Congress,
commonly referred to as “lobbying,” are ﬁnallowable as charges to Historic Preservation Fund —

assisted grants, either on a direct or indirect cost basis.

Signature of Subgrantee Date (print)

Subgrantee (print)

Title (print)

STOREY COUNTY
Organization

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 28



ATTACHMENT G
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Effective October 1, 1990 the following provision will apply:
The subgrantee agrees to the following and will include the following language in any contracts
supported by is grant.
Neither the grantee, nor its subgraptees _or\subcontractors, shall enter into any contract, subcontract,
or arrangement in connection with a project in which any board or commission member, or employee
of the State Historic Preservation Office organization has any financial or private interest.
No member, officer, or employee of the State Historic Preservation Office, including the Board for
Museum’s and History shall have an interest in this agreement or the proceeds thereof, except that
such persons may provide technical, consultative, or oversight assistance in a voluntary capacity (i.c.,

unpaid and the time not charged to the required matching share for the Historic Preservation Fund

grant.)

Signature of Applicant Date (print)

Applicant (print)

Title (print)

STOREY COUNTY

Organization

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 29



HISTORIC PRESERVATION FUNDING AGREEMENT
This agreement is made and entered into between the State of Nevada, acting by and through its State
Historic Preservation Office, hereinafter réf‘erred to as the "STATE," and (the) STOREY COUNTY,
hereinafter referred to as "SUBGRANTEE." This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the authority
contained in NRS 383.081 and provisions of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-665), as
amended.

/X! ATTACHMENT A - Scope of Work/Budget

/X! ATTACHMENT B - Covenant or Letter of Agreement

X/ ATTACHMENT C - Civil Rights Assurance

X/ ATTACHMENT D - Assurance of Compliance with Procurement Procedures

X/ ATTACHMENT E - Assurance of Compliance with Anti-Kickback Act of 1964

IX/ ATTACHMENT F - Lobbying with Appropriated Funds

/X/ ATTACHMENT G - Conflict of Interest

WHEREAS, the STATE will administer a United States Department of the Interior historic

preservation matching grant-in-aid awarded to the SUBGRANTEE in an amount not to exceed

$60,000.00 to assist in ST. MARY'S ART CENTER BUILDING & SITE ASSESSEMENT. The
minimum non-federal share required for this grant is $40,000.00.
NOW, THEREFORE, the SUBGRANTEE in undertaking this project agrees to:
1. Duly and faithfully comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, all
applicable federal and State laws, including OMB Circular (Uniform Administrative
Requirements for Grants to State and Local Governments and Audits of State, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations). State, Local and Indian Tribal
Governments shall also comply with 2 CFR 225 (Cost Principles for State, Local, and
Indian Tribal Govemments).; bﬁlérlx'-Proﬁt organizations shall comply with 2 CFR 230

(Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations). Educational Institutions shall comply

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- |



with 2 CFR 220 (Cost Principles for Educational Institutions). All subgrantees must also
comply with the Historic Preservation Fund Grants Manual, and The Secretary of
Interior’s Standards and:. Guidelines for Archaecology and Historic Preservation.
Additionally, subgrantees are dirééted to comply with all directives issued by the STATE
and the Department of the Interior. The Guidelines, application and reporting forms for
the State Historic Preservation Office are hereby incorporated by reference as part of this
binding agreement.

2. Atall times during regular business hours or at an agreed to time and as often as the
STATE requires, permit authorized representatives of the state and federal government
full and free access to the project and to the accounts, records, and books of the
SUBGRANTEE relative hereto, including the right to make transcripts from such
accounts, records, and books. Such accounts, records, and books must be retained for
three (3) years after the completion of the project.

3.To the extent authorizc‘::(; by law, the SUBGRANTEE agrees to indemnify and hold the
State of Nevada, its agents and employees harmless from any loss, damage, liability, cost
or expense to the person or property of another which was caused by the negligence of
the SUBGRANTEE, its officers, employees and agents under this agreement.

4. Not use federal money to match grant money offered through this Agreement, unless
specifically allowed to do so under special federal enabling legislation.

5. SUBGRANTEES receiving funds for Development projects are required per NRS
383.121 to consult with STATE if buried or previously unidentified resources are located
during these project activities. If this occurs, the STATE recommends that all work in
the vicinity cease and SUBGRANTEE contacts the STATE immediately.

6. SUBGRANTEES rec_:ejving funds for Development projects are required to track the

number of individuals'viéitin'g the resource and the number of events held at the resource

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 2



during the current calendar year. This information can be submitted in the third progress
report or in the final reimbursement request.

7. SUBGRANTEES receiving funds for Development projects are required to ensure
that the project sign is displayed in a prominent location at each project site while project
work is in progress. The SUBGRANTEE is required to submit photographs of the
successful project before work begins, while project work is in progress and photos of
the completed project to the STATE that indicates where the sign has been placed and
that it was there for the duration of the project. The project sign will be provided by the
STATE for the duration of the project and will be returned to the STATE upon project
completion. If any damage occurs to the project sign during the project, the
SUBGRANTEE will be responsible for replacement of the project sign.

8. Provide the STATE with progress and financial reports in a format prescribed by the
STATE during the term of the grant. Due dates are JANUARY 15, 2018 AND APRIL
135, 2018. The first progress report is due JANUARY 15, 2018. Required progress and
financial reports are to be submitted quarterly. If the SUBGRANTEE fails to provide
the required progress reports during the first 180 days (one hundred and eighty)
following notification of the grant award, the STATE reserves the right to revert the
entire subgrant amount from the SUBGRANTEE. If the SUBGRANTEE allows 180
days (one hundred and eigl;tyl): to pass without contacting the STATE to submit a
reimbursement request and/or required progress reports, the STATE reserves the right to
revert any remaining subgrant funds from the SUBGRANTEE. A final report shall be
submitted by the SUBGRANTEE in a format prescribed by the STATE within ten (10)
days of the completion of the project named herein. Reimbursement requests shall not
be processed until such reports are received.

9. Maintain:

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 3



a) An accurate record of all cash and in-kind expenditures related to the project.
Records must be supported by source documentation. All volunteer services
claimed as nonfederal share must be documented through time cards or records
signed by both the volunteer and project supervisor.
b) A special account for the project so that an exact itemization of project
expenditures can be submitted by check number along with copies of canceled
checks, itemized invoices, and properly documented time sheets.
¢) A comparison of actual expenditures with budgeted amounts for the
Agreement.
d) If appropriate, please provide summaries of annual tourist attendance at the
facility.
10. Notify the STATE immediately in writing of problems or changes in scope of work,
budget, product, and performance reporting. No changes can be made without prior
written approval from the STATE.
11. Following the notification of the grant award and before work begins, the
SUBGRANTEE will attend a project meeting with the STATE grants manager. It is the
responsibility of the SUBGRANTEE to coordinate the meeting date and time with the
grants manager.
12. The SUBGRANTEE agrees that timely billing is a requirement of the funding
agreement as the STATE must disperse funds no later than the close of the following
state fiscal year. All bill‘ir{g's.for dates ;)f service prior to July 1 of the subsequent fiscal
year must be submitted to the STATE no later than the first Friday in August of the same
calendar year,
FURTHER, THEREFORE, the parties to this Agreement acknowledge and will comply with

the following general terms:

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 4



. Payment of the grant shall be made upon compliance with the terms of the
Agreement, including but not limited to:
a) An inspection by the STATE to ensure that work has been completed
satisfactorily in acc?‘?rdance with the terms of this Agreement.
b) Submission of satisfactory progress reports as referred to above,
¢) Submission of a Financial Report that must be executed by the person in
charge of the project. Copies of all original bills from contractors, suppliers, and
vendors, and proof of payment of those bills to assure evidence of compliance
prior to reimbursement shall accompany the request. Said reimbursement shall
not exceed 60 percent (60%) of the request for reimbursement costs, or the full
value of the grant, whichever is less.
d) The STATE may, at its discretion, retain 10 percent (10%) of the total
federal portion until the STATE receives the final completion report and has
accepted its content.
e) Progress pés;r'ﬂgr';ts- may be made at the discretion of the STATE upon
completion of distinct phases of work provided that the above-mentioned
conditions have been met for each phase of work.
f) Any progress payment made by the STATE shall not constitute nor be
construed as a waiver by the STATE of any breach of covenant or any default
which may exist on the part of the SUBGRANTEE, nor shall any such breach or
default impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to the STATE.
2, Both parties understand that a funding-out provision is required by NRS 244.320 and
NRS 354.626. Continuation of this grant is subject to and contingent upon sufficient
funds being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available by the State

Legislature and/or federal sources. Reservation of funds based upon budget reductions is

clkwe IS

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 5



included herein. The granting authority may reduce or terminate this grant, and
SUBGRANTEE waives any and all claims(s) for damages, effective immediately upon
receipt of written notice (or any date specified therein) if, for any reason, the granting
agency’s funding from State and/or federal sources is not appropriated or is withdrawn,
limited, or impaired.
3. The STATE may terminate this Agreement for reason of default by the
SUBGRANTEE. Any Qf the following events shall constitute default:
a) Termination of thié':gréht by reason of fault of the SUBGRANTEE;
b) Failure by the SUBGRANTEE to observe any of the covenants, conditions,
warranties of this Agreement and its incorporated provisions;
¢) Failure by the SUBGRANTEE to make reasonable progress on the grant;
d) Unsatisfactory financial conditions by the SUBGRANTEE which endanger
the performance of the grant;
e) Delinquency by the SUBGRANTEE in payment of taxes or of the costs of
performance of the grant in ordinary course of business;
f) Appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for all or a substantial part
of the SUBGRANTEE’s property, or institution of bankruptcy, reorganization
arrangement, or li"q’ti?dation proceedings by or against the SUBGRANTEE;
and/or Commission of a;li;.:aclt of bankruptcy.
g) The STATE may terminate this funding agreement, and the SUBGRANTEE
waives any and all claim(s) for damages effective immediately upon receipt of
written notice (or any date specified therein) if for any reason the
SUBGRANTEE's match sources are limited or impaired.
h) This funding agreement may be terminated by either party upon written

notification for any of the following:

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 6



ii.

iii.

iv.

if SUBGRANTEE or their contractor fails to provide or satisfactorily
perform any of the conditions, work, deliverables, goods, or services
called for by this funding agreement within the time requirements
specified in this funding agreement or within any granted extension of
those time requirements;

if any state, county, city, or federal license, authorization, waiver,
permit, qualification or certification required by statute, ordinance, law,
or regulation held by SUBGRANTEE or their contractor to provide the
goods or services required by this funding agreement is for any reason
denied, revoked, debarred, excluded, terminated, suspended, lapsed, or
not renew;a;i; or.

if SUBGRANTEE or their contractor becomes insolvent, subject to
receivership, or becomes voluntarily or involuntarily subject to the
Jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court; or

if it is found by the STATE that any quid pro quo or gratuities in the
form of money, services, entertainment, gifts, or otherwise were offered
or given by the SUBGRANTEE or their contractor, or any agent or
representative of the SUBGRANTEE or their contractor, to any officer
or employee of the State of Nevada with a view toward securing a
contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to awarding,
extending, amending, or making any determinations with respect to the
performing of sixch .funding agreement; or

if it is found by the STATE that the SUBGRANTEE or their contractor
has failed to disclose any material conflict of interest relative to the

performance of this funding agreement.

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 7



i) In the event of termination of this funding agreement for any reason, the parties
agree that the prov@sions of this paragraph survive termination:

i. The SUBGil.AN.TEE or their contractor shall satisfactorily complete
work in progress at the agreed rate (or a pro rata basis if necessary) if so
requested by the STATE;

ii. SUBGRANTEE or their contractor shall execute any documents and
take any actions necessary to effectuate an assignment of this funding
agreement if so requested by the STATE;

iii. SUBGRANTEE or their contractor shall preserve, protect and promptly
deliver into STATE possession all proprietary information in accordance
with paragraph thirteen (13).

4. In the event the SUBGRANTEE fails to appropriate or bud get funds for the purposes
as specified in this agreement, the STATE consents to termination of this agreement. In
such event, the SUBGRANTEE :shall notify the STATE in writing and the agreement
will terminate on the date specified in the notice. Upon occurrence of any of the above
conditions, the STATE may, upon written notice to the SUBGRANTEE, withhold
further reimbursements for a period of thirty (30) days. After such written notice to the
SUBGRANTEE, the STATE may take the following additional actions as appropriate:

a) Terminate all or any part of the balance of the grant.

b) Demand immediate repayment of all or part of any reimbursements made to

the SUBGRANTEE.
5. If the SUBGRANTEE fails to comply with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards
and Guidelines for Archaeology and Historic Preservation or any of the terms of this
Agreement; the STATE ;h;a:fl ‘hai/g the right to file suit, in law or equity. The purpose of

the suit shall be to cause the SUBGRANTEE to cure said violations or to obtain the

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 8



return of funds granted to the SUBGRANTEE by the STATE. Such suit may be brought
in the District Court of the county in which the property is located.

6. The commencement date for all work to be performed under this Agreement is
DECEMBER 6, 2017. The termination or end date is JUNE 30, 2018. No work
performed at any time other than described in this paragraph shall be considered as an
eligible activity for reimbursement purposes.  The SUBGRANTEES and their
contractors agree not to request reimbursement above the National Park Service's
maximum hourly rate of $82.49, Anything charged above this amount will be the
responsibility of the SUBGRANTEE and not the STATE. Financial Reports requesting
reimbursement for activity from DECEMBER 6, 2017 TO JUNE 30, 2018 must be
submitted no later than close of business on AUGUST 1,2018 and will not be allowable
for reimbursement or as match after that date. Upon receiving reimbursement requests,
the STATE will review the request for completeness and accuracy. If complete and
accurate, the reimbursement request will be processed within fifteen (15) business days
upon receipt. Requests that have not been received at the office of the STATE by this
date shall not be paid pursuant to this funding agreement. Upon successful completion
and acceptance of final product by the STATE, the STATE will issue an official letter to
the SUBGRANTEE to close out the grant.

7. This funding agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of
the State of Nevada.

8. Audits may be required by the STATE. Such audits shall be at the expense of the
SUBGRANTEE.

9. The STATE in accordance with the Office of Management and Budget (OMB)

Omni-Circular (36 CFR 200.501), for the Single Audit Act, requires:

a) Non-Federal entities that expend $750,000 or more in a year in Federal

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 9



awards to have a single or program-specific audit conducted for that year.

b) Non-Federal entities that expend $750,000 or more in a year in Federal
awards shall have a single audit conducted except when they elect to have a
program-specific audit conducted in accordance with paragraph (c) of this
section.

¢) Program-specific audit election. When an auditee expends Federal awards
under only one Federal program (excluding R&D) and the Federal program's
laws, regulations, or grant agreements do not require a financial statement audit
of the auditee, the auditee may elect to have a program-specific audit.

d) Exemption when Federal awards expended are less than $750,000. Non-
Federal entities that expend less than $750,000 a year in Federal awards are

exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year, except as noted in Omni-

Circular (36 CFR 200.501), but records must be available for review or audit by
appropriate officials of the Federal agency, pass-through entity, General
Accounting Office (GAQ) and State.
10. In any news release or printed material describing or promoting the project or any
material produced as a result of the grant, appropriate credit shall be given to the STATE
and the Department of the Interior by the phrase: “This project has been funded with
assistance of the Nevada State Historic Preservation Office through a Department of the

Interior grant." Printed material should include language outlined in paragraph eleven

v ben o
(11).
11. An acknowledgment of National Park Service support must be made in connection

with publication or dissemination of any printed, audio-visual, or electronic material

based on, or developed under, a result of this Agreement shall include the following

statements:

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 10



The [insert activity] that is the subject of this [insert type of publication] has
been financed in whole or in part with federal funds from the National Pack
Service, U.S. Department of Interior, and administered by the State Historic
Preservation Office. The contents and opinions, however, do not necessarily
reflect the views or policies of the United States Department of the Interior or
the State Historic Preservation Office. This program receives federal financial
assistance for identification and protection of historic properties. Under Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, and Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, the U.S. Department
of the Interior prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national
origin, disability or age in its federally assisted programs. If you believe you
have been discriminated against in any program, activity, or facility as
described above, or if you desire further information, please write to: Chief,
Office of Equal Opportunity Programs, United States Department of the
Interior, National Park Service, 1849 C Street, N.W.; Washington, D.C.
20240.
I2. A complete draft project report will be submitted for STATE review to the
State Historic Preservation Office no later than MAY 15, 2018. The product must
comply with The Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines Sfor
Archaeology and Historic Preservation and include a historic context appropriate
for National Register evaluations of all cultural resources present.
13. Any reports, histories, s(tudies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs,
negatives, blue prints, plans, maps, data, system designs, computer code (which is
intended to be a consideration under this funding agreement) or any other

documents or drawings, prepared or, in the course of preparation, by the

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 11



SUBGRANTEE or their contractor in performance of its obligations under this
funding agreement shall be the exclusive property of the STATE and all such
materials shall be delivered into STATE possession by SUBGRANTEE or their
contractor upon completion, termination or cancellation of this funding agreement.
SUBGRANTEE (or its subcontractors) shall not sue, willingly allow, or cause to

have such materials used for any purpose other than performance of
SUBGRANTEE's (or sﬁﬁébntractors) obligations under this funding agreement
without the prior written consent of the STATE. Notwithstanding the forgoing,

the STATE shall have no proprietary interest in any materials licensed for use by

the STATE that are subject to patent, trademark or copyright protection.

14. Final product reimbursement will not be made if the product does not meet The
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards or terms of this Agreement.

15. The final product/report must be submitted to the STATE no later than JULY 15,
2018.

16. The SUBGRANTEE shall provide the STATE with an acceptable final report of the
project, including a comparison of completed activities and budget to those in the

approved Funding A greement,

UONIR

The parties hereto reprcscﬁt and warrant that the person executing this funding agreement on
behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this funding agreement. The
SUBGRANTEE acknowledges that as required by the previously cited statutes or regulations
[NHPA 1966 (P.L. 89-665), OMB A-102, A-133, 2 CFR 225, 2 CFR 230, 2 CFR 220, NRS
244, NRS 320, NRS 383.081, and NRS 354.626] of this funding agreement is effective only
for the period specified in this funding agreement, unless an extension is granted by the
STATE. Any services performed by the SUBGRANTEE or their contractor before this

contract is effective or after is ceases to be effective are performed at the sole risk of the

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 12



SUBGRANTEE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Historic Preservation Funding

Agreement to be signed and intend to be legally bound thereby.

SUBGRANTEE—STOREY COUNTY

Signature: Date:

Name (print):

Title (print):

STATE-DEPT.OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES-STATE HISTORIC

PRESERVATION OFFICE

By: Date:

Rebecca Lynn Palmer, State Historic Preservation Officer

REVIEWED AS TO FORM ONLY:
Adam Paul Laxalt, Attorney General..

By:

Deputy Attorney General Date

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 13



ATTACHMENT A-1

SCOPE OF WORK
Project Title: Creation of St. Mary's Art Center Building Site Assessment & Report & Engineering
Design and Deck & Porch repair to address site water flow & control using National Park Service
(NPS) funds HPF #32-17-151352(1).

This project shall support the completion of the following:
® St. Mary's Art Center Building Site Assessment Report:
o Investigation of deterioration & possible safety issues
o Site survey & grading plan for site water flow & control
©  Preparation of construction documents for urgent repairs to permit effective use of
the deck & porch
© A report of condition assessment & seismic evaluation
©  Once available, Storey County agrees to submit a revised budget and scope of work for
approval before actual construction on the building begins.
©  Repairs to deck & porch based on findings of St. Mary's Art Center Building Site
Assessment Report and SHPO approved scope of work and budget.

State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) and NPS Project Stipulations:
1. If work is to be contracted out, that contract shall copy and use the exact language as set
forth in the project objectives and funding agreement from this Scope of Work.
2. All work shall conform with the U.S. Secretary of the Interior's Standards and
Guidelines for Archeology and Historic Preservation unless otherwise approved by the
SHPO.

3. All completed work shall conform with visual and/or written specifications submitted

to and approved by the SHPO before work begins. (For Development projects only)

4. If any changes are made to the project, the subgrantee must submit updated visual
and/or written specifications for the proposed work before any work commences and for
written approval from the SHPO.

5. The subgrantee shall provide the SHPO with calendar quarterly updates on project
progress;

6. The subgrantee shall provide the SHPO with full access to all documents necessary for
a comprehensive audit. Should the SHPO find costs that are not allowed by State
accounting practices or that are outside the terms of this agreement; the applicant/grantee

shall refund the amount to the SHPO.

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 14



ATTACHMENT A-2

Project ID #

Termination Date:

BUDGET
Participant: Storey County
Project Title: St. Mary's Art Center Building & Site Assessment

6/30/2018

HPF Grant #
32-17-151352(1)

Federal Share

Itemized Budget Building & Site Assessment Report $25,100.00
Deck & Porch Repairs to St. Mary's $34,900.00
Subtotal Federal Share: $60,000.00
Non-Federal Share
40,000.00
Grant Management & Oversight from Storey County »
Subtotal Non-Federal Share: $40,000.00
Total Project Costs:| $100,000.00

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 15




ATTACHMENT B
COVENANTS

These covenants are made and entered into between the State of Nevada, acting by and
through the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO), hereinafter referred to as “STATE” and
STOREY COUNTY, hereinafter referred to as “SUBGRANTEE”, for the purpose of the property
known as the ST. MARY LOUISE HOSPITAL and is listed on the National Register of Historic
Places, which is owned in fee simple by the SUBGRANTEE.

The property is comprised essentially of grounds, collateral, appurtenances, and
improvements. The property is more particularly described as follows: ST. MARY'S ART
CENTER, AKA ST. MARY LOUISE HOSPITAL, LOCATED AT 55 R STREET, VIRGINIA
CITY, NV.

In consideration of the sum $112,000.00 received in grant-in-aid through the STATE, from
the National Park Service, Department of the Interior, the SUBGRANTEE hereby agrees to the
following for a period on time ending DECEMBER 31, 2067.

1. The SUBGRANTEE agrees to assume the cost of the continued maintenance and repair
of said Property so as to preserve the architectural, historical, cultural or archaeological
integrity of the same, in order to protect and enhance those qualities which made the
Property eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.

2. The SUBGRANTEE agrees that no visual or structural alterations will be made to the
property without prior writter;;l;‘)‘ermission of the STATE.

3. The SUBGRANTEE agrees that fhe' STATE, its agents and designees, shall have the
right to inspect the property at all reasonable times, in order to ascertain whether or not the
conditions of these Covenants are being observed.

4. The SUBGRANTEE agrees that when the property is not clearly visible from a public

right-of-way or includes interior work assisted with Historic Preservation funds, the

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 16



property will be open to the public not less than twelve (12) days a year on an equitable
spaced basis and at other times by appointment. Nothing in these covenants will prohibit the
SUBGRANTEE from charging a reasonable, non-discriminatory admission fee, comparable
to fees charged at similar facilities -iln Jth; area

5. The SUBGRANTEE further agrees that when the property is not open to the public on a
continuing basis, and when the improvements assisted with Historic Preservation funds are
not visible from the public right-of-way, notification will be published for three consecutive
working days, no less than one week prior to the opening date in one newspaper of general
circulation in the community area in which the property is located. The advertisement shall
give the dates and times when the property will be open. Documentation of such notice will
be furnished annually to the STATE during the term of these Covenants.

6. The SUBGRANTEE agrees to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(U.S.C. 2000 (d)), the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12204), and with Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (20 U.S.C. 794). These laws prohibit discrimination
on the basis of race, religion, national origin, or disability. In implementing public access,
reasonable accommodation to qualified disabled persons shall be made in consultation with
the STATE.

7. The agreement shall be enforceable in specific performance by a court of competent
Jjurisdiction.

8. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE - It is understood and agreed by the parties thereto that is
any part, term, or provision of this agreement is held to be illegal by the courts, the validity
of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations
of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the contract did not contain the particular
part, term, or provision held to be invalid,

/ Wi, . :
9. These restraints shall run with the property and are binding upon the SUBGRANTEE and

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 17



any and all successors, heirs, assignees, or lessees.

10. The STATE shall have the right to file suit in law or equity, if the SUBGRANTEE
violates any of the restraints of these Covenants. The purpose of the suit shall be to cause
the SUBGRANTEE to cure said violations or to obtain the return of funds granted to the
SUBGRANTEE by the STATE.

11. The SUBGRANTEE sha.ll record these Covenants in the Recorder’s Office of the
County in which the subject prépeﬁyf is located. The STATE’S obligations with regard to
the subject property shall not become effective until the SUBGRANTEE has furnished the

STATE satisfactory proof of the aforementioned recordation,

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 18



These Covenants are entered into this day of , 20

SUBGRANTEE-STOREY COUNTY

Signature:

Name (print):

Title (print):

Date (print):

STATE-NEVADA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE

Signature:

Name (print):

Title (prine):

Date (print):

REVIEWED AS TO FORM ONLY:
Adam Paul Laxalt, Attorney General

By:

Deputy Attorney General Date

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 19



Witnessed by Notary Public
State of Nevada

County of

On » personally appeared before me, a Notary Public in

and for said County and State,

Known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument,
who acknowledged to me that executed the same freely and voluntarily and for the uses and

purposes therein mentioned.

Notary Public
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
State of Nevada
County of
On » personally appeared before me, Notary Public in and for
said County and State, , known to me to be the person described

in and who executed the foregoing instrument, who acknowledged to me that he executed the same

and freely and voluntarily and for the uses and purposed therein mentioned.

Notary Public

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 20



ATTACHMENT C
CIVIL RIGHTS ASSURANCE

As the authorized representative of the SUBGRANTEE, I certify that, as a condition to receiving any
Federal financial assistance from the Department of the Interior, the SUBGRANTEE will comply
with all Federal laws relating to nondiscrimination. These laws include, but are not limited to: (a)
Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-1), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended (29 U.S.C. 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicap; (c) the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101et. seq.), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age; and applicable regulatory requirements to the end that no person in the United States
shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, handicap or age, be excluded from participation
in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or
activity conducted by the applicant. The SUBGRANTEE hereby gives assurance that it will
immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement.

This assurance shall apply to all aspects of the applicant's operations including those parts that have
not received or benefited from Federal financial assistance.

If any real property or structure ther.eio.ﬁ is provided or improved with the aid of Federal financial
assistance extended to the SUBGRANTEE by the Department, this assurance shall obligate the
SUBGRANTEE, or in the case of any transfer of such property, any transferee, for the period
during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial
assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits. If
any personal property is so provided, this assurance shall obligate the SUBGRANTEE for the
period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this
assurance shall obligate the SUBGRANTEE for the period during which the Federal financial

assistance is extended to it by the Department.

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 21

N
i



This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal
grants, loans, contracts, property, discounts or other federal financial assistance extended after the
date hereof to the SUBGRANTEE by the Department, including installment payments after such

date on account of applicants for Federal financial assistance which were approved before such date.

The SUBGRANTEE recognizes and agrees that such Federal financial assistance will be extended
in reliance on the representations and agreements made in this assurance, and that the United States
shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the

SUBGRANTEE, its successors, fr;ahs;férees, assignees, and subrecipients and the person whose

signature appears below who is authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the SUBGRANTEE.

Signature of Authorized Certifying Official Title
Authorized Certifying Official (print name) Date Submitted
STOREY COUNTY

Applicant/Organization

P.0. BOX 176]26 S. B STREET; VIRGINIA CITY. NV 89440
Applicant/Organization Mailing Address ‘

-w N
NEVADA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE
Bureau or Office Extending Assistance

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 22



ATTACHMENT D
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

This statement is to certify that as a subgrantee of historic preservation funding, I am aware of the
following federal policies regarding procurement procedures and contracting with small and minority
firms, women’s business enterprise, and labor surplus area items. It is National policy to award a fair
share of contracts involving Federal funds to small and minority business firms, Accordingly,
affirmative steps must be taken to assure that small and minority businesses are utilized when
possible as sources of supplies, equipment, construction and services. Affirmative steps shall
include, but not be limited to the following:

a, Including qualified small and minority businesses and solicitation lists,

b. Assuring that small and minority businesses are solicited whenever they are

potential sources.

e When econ‘<).‘rn;i<;élly feasible, divide total requirements into smaller tasks or

quantities so as to permit maximum small and minority business participation.

d. When the situation permits, establish permits; establish delivery schedules,

which will encourage participation by small and minority businesses.

e. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, the

Office of Minority Business Enterprise of the Department of Commerce and the

Community Services Administration as required.

f. Any and all subcontractors shall also take the affirmative steps listed in (a)

through (e) above.
Subgrantees shall take similar appropriate affirmative action in support of businesses owned and
operated by women (women’s busin§s§ enterprises). Subgrantees are encouraged to procure goods

T IR et IR
and services from areas of high unemployment (labor surplus areas).

Additionally, subgrantees shall comply with requirements of 43 CFR 12, subpart E (Buy American

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 23



Act) when purchasing supplies, equipment, and construction materials with Federal funds. The
subgrantee is responsible for determining whether items are available for domestic sources and that

costs are reasonable. Exceptions must be approved prior to purchase.

All procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner that provides maximum open and free
competition. Procurement procedures shall not restrict or eliminate competition. Activities that
can restrict competition include, but aré n'c.>tfll.ir'nited to: (1) placing unreasonable requirements on
firms in order for them to qualify to do business: (2) involvement in organizational conflicts of
interest; and (3) requirement of unnecessary experience and bonding.
Method of Procurement - Procurement under a grant involving Federal funds shall be made by one
of the following methods: (1) small purchase procedures; (2) competitive sealed bids; (3)
competitive negotiation; (4) non-competitive negotiation, Small purchase procedures are those
relatively simple and informal procurement methods that are sound and appropriate for a
procurement of services, supplies, or other property, costing in the aggregate not more than
$25,000.00 overall. Price or rate quotations shall be obtained from at least three qualified sources,
1. Competitive sealed bids are required if a procurement of services, supplies or other
property costs in the aggrég;té; of more than $25,000.00. Competitive sealed bids must be
publicly solicited by means of .t;orfnal advertising in at least one local newspaper of
general circulation once a week for a period of two weeks. A fixed-contract shall be
awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid, confirming with all the material terms and
conditions of the invitation for bids, is lowest in price,
2. Competitive negotiation is an alternate form of procurement that may be employed if
the cost of services, supplies or other property is in the aggregate of more than
$25,000.00. The SUBGRANTEE shall enter into negotiations with two or more potential
contractors that have submitted offers. Either a fixed price or a cost reimbursable type

contract shall be awarded. Award of the contract may be made to the responsible bidder

20 1:7 HP.F' Fu.nding Agreement- 24



whose proposal will be most advantageous to the procuring party considering price and
other factors. Unsuccessful bidders should be notified promptly by the SUBGRANTEE.
3. After solicitation of a number of sources, noncompetitive negotiation may be entered
into if competition is determined to be inadequate. Noncompetitive negotiation may only
be used when the award of a contract is infeasible under small purchase, competitive
bidding or competitive negotiation procedures. Other circumstances under which a
contract may be awarded by non-competitive negotiation are limited to the following:
a.  The item is available only from a single source.
b. In case of an emergency, or in case of a public exigency when the urgency
for the requirement will not permit a delay incident to competitive solicitation.
¢.  The State authorizes noncompetitive negotiation,
4. Additional innovative procurement methods may be used by grantees with the
written approval of the STATE. A copy of the approval shall be sent by the STATE to
NPS and by NPS to the Office of Federal Procurement Policy.
Subgrantee Procurement Records — Subgrantee shall maintain records sufficient to detail the history
of a procurement. These records shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, information
pertinent to the following: rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type,

contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for the cost or price.

Contract Provisions - Any recipient of Federal grant funds shall include the following contract

JEAST LT

provisions or conditions in all procurement contracts and subcontracts.

1. Contracts other than small purchases shall contain provisions or conditions, which
will allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for the termination of the
contract and any other such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate.

2. All negotiated contracts (except those awarded by small purchases procedures)

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 25



awarded by grantees utilizing federal funds shall include a provision to the effect that the
STATE shall have accc;s to any book, documents, papers, and records of the contractor
directly pertinent to that specific contract, for the purpose of examination, audit, and
transcriptions. Subgrantee shall require contractors to maintain all required records for
three years after grantees make final Agreement,
3. Prior to reimbursement grantees shall forward the SHPO evidence documenting
compliance with Federal competitive procurement requirement for professional services
and contracts.

I hereby acknowledge that I have read the foregoing procurement procedures and promise that I shall

comply with all of the provisions by which the terms of this Agreement apply to my particular

project.

Signature of Subgrantee Date

Subgrantee Name (print)

Title (print)

STOREY COUNTY
Organization

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 26



ATTACHMENT E

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE ANTI-KICKBACK ACT OF 1934

This statement is to certify that as subgrantee of historic preservation funding, I will abide by the
provisions of the Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. 874). The act provides that each
contractor or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in
any aspect of the project to give up any part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled.

[ hereby acknowledge that I will comply, and notify all contractors of their need to comply with this

act.

Signature of Subgrantee Date (print)

Subgrantee (print)

Title (priny)

STOREY COUNTY
Organization

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 27



ATTACHMENT F
LOBBYING WITH APPROPRIATED FUNDS

Historic Preservation Fund grants must conform to provisions of 18 USC 1913.

“No part of the money appropriated by any enactment of Congress shall, in the absence of express
authorization by Congress, be used directly or indirectly to pay for any personal service,
advertisement, telegram, telephone, letter, printed or written matter, or other device, intended or
designed to influence in any manner a Member of Congress, to favor or oppose, by vote or
otherwise, any legislation or appropriation by Congress, whether before or after the introduction of
any bill or resolution proposing such legislation or appropriation; but this shall not prevent officers
or employees of the United States or its Departments or agencies from communicating to Members
of Congress at the request of any Member, or to Congress through the proper official channels,
requests for legislation or appropriation which they deem necessary for the efficient conduct of the
public business.”

Thus, costs associated with activities to influence legislation pending before the Congress,
commonly referred to as “lobbying,” are unallowable as charges to Historic Preservation Fund —

assisted grants, either on a direct or indirect cost basis.

Signature of Subgrantee Date (print)

Subgrantee (print)

Title (print)

STOREY COUNTY
Organization

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 28



ATTACHMENT G
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Effective October 1, 1990 the following provision will apply:
The subgrantee agrees to the following and will include the following language in any contracts
supported by is grant.
Neither the grantee, nor its subgrantees or subcontractors, shall enter into any contract, subcontract,
or arrangement in connection with a project in which any board or commission member, or employee
of the State Historic Preservation Office organization has any financial or private interest.
No member, officer, or employee of the State Historic Preservation Office, including the Board for
Museum’s and History shall have an interest in this agreement or the proceeds thereof, except that
such persons may provide technical, consultative, or oversight assistance in a voluntary capacity (i.e.,
unpaid and the time not charged to the required matching share for the Historic Preservation Fund

grant.)

Signature of Applicant Date (print)

Applicant (print)

Title (print)

STOREY COUNTY
Organization

2017 HPF Funding Agreement- 29






DocuSign Envelope ID: AE75968C-66E8-4547-BF8C-8FFF6ESADC4C

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RIGHTS-OF-WAY LICENSE AGREEMENT
FOR POWER LINE TRANSMISSION GRANTED TO
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC

THIS RIGHTS-OF-WAY LICENSE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is granted this
day of 2018, by Storey County, Nevada, a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada (the “County”), acting by and through the Board of County Commissioners, its
governing body (the “Board”), and Switch Business Solutions, LLC (the “Licensee™), a
domestic limited liability company authorized to do business in the State of Nevada.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Licensee, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Nevada, has applied to the County for permission to construct, install,
operate, add to, modify, maintain, repair, relocate and remove an underground or
overhead electrical or data communications line and related facilities to provide lawful
services within the County’s rights-of-way; and with all proper licensing if providing
subscription services as that term is defined in the attached Exhibit 1 which exhibit is
made a part of this agreement by this reference, and

WHEREAS, the County is prepared to grant a non-exclusive privilege to
construct, install, operate, add to, modify, maintain, repair, relocate and remove an
underground or overhead electrical or data communications line and related facilities in the
County’s rights-of-way including as depicted within the attached Exhibit.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the performance by
Licensee of the requirements hereinafter set forth, and subject to the following terms and
conditions, the County hereby grants to the Licensee this License Agreement.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1 Definitions

Definitions of terms in this Agreement shall be the same as those definitions listed in the
attached Exhibit 1.

2 Agreement Duration, Conditions and Extension

2.1 This Agreement shall be non-exclusive and revocable pursuant to Section 6 of this
Agreement, and shall be in force and effect from the date first written above. The
term of this Agreement, unless modified by the parties in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement, will be for twenty (20) years beginning on the
commencement date. The Agreement will automatically be renewed on the first
day following the twenty (20) year period for an additional (5) years, unless
terminated by the parties in accordance with Section 14 of this Agreement. If not
terminated, the Agreement will automatically be renewed on the first day
following each succeeding five (5) year period, unless terminated by either party in

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE1OF 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: AE75968C-66E8-4547-BF8C-8FFF6ESADC4C

accordance with Section 14 of this agreement, until and not exceeding, May 1,
2041.

2.2 All currently applicable provisions of County Code, if any, and all provisions of
this Agreement shall be binding upon the Licensee, its successors, or assignees. In
the event of any conflict between any provisions in Storey County Code, as
amended from time to time, and any provisions of this Agreement, the Agreement
shall be grandfathered and control.

2.3 Licensee is hereby granted a non-exclusive, revocable license, during the term of
this Agreement, to construct, install, operate, add to, modify, maintain, repair,
relocate and remove an underground or overhead electrical or data communications
lines and related facilities in those right-of-ways owned by Storey County
including as depicted in the attached Exhibit 2 and pursuant to the requirements
of this Agreement. All installation of Licensees facilities may be above-ground
or underground. Licensee may apply to expand the license to include
additional rights-of-way by submitting in writing to the County Manager or
the County’s Manager’s designee, a request to amend the Agreement. The
County Manager may approve a request for expansion of license based on
rights-of-way availability, street cut limitations, and public improvements
planned in the rights-of-ways requested.

2.4 Licensee acknowledges that this Agreement is for installation of underground
or aboveground facilities in rights-of-way identified in Exhibit 2 only, and
that installation in, on, along, above or below other County property may be
permitted only through separate agreement and payment of rental fees.
Licensee further acknowledges that this License does not authorize Licensee,
or permit the use by other persons to provide any other services without first
amending this Agreement or applying for a franchise agreement and
complying with the provisions of NRS 709.050 through 709.170.

2.5 In the event that the Licensee pursues and receives a franchise granted by the
Board to construct, maintain and operate its facilities in the rights-of-way of the
County, the provisions of this Agreement shall be superseded by the terms and
conditions of the franchise so granted.

2.6 Licensee is responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of any of Licensee’s
facilities.

3 Licensee’s Work in County Rights-of-Way

The Licensee shall, in the installation, construction, operation, maintenance,
reconstruction, removal, relocation or abandonment of its facilities in the County’s
rights-of-way, comply with all applicable provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes,
and County Code as it applies to such activities, as currently set forth and
hereafter amended.

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
S‘I'()RI-',Y COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE2 OF 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: AE75968C-66E8-4547-BF8C-8FFF6E5ADC4C

4 Rights-Of-Way License Payments and Fees

The Licensee shall pay to the County an annual rental fee of the greater of (i) $500
total or (ii) the sum of $1.00 for each linear foot of rights-of-way in, on, along, above
or below which Licensee has installed its facilities under this Agreement. Payment
may be paid on or before June 1*' of each applicable year.

5 Rights-Of-Way License Reporting

Licensee shall submit by March 31" of each year a written report to the County Manager,
or the County’s designated recipient which shall be deemed strictly confidential, and
shall be made available only to County officers and employees in the performance of
their duties. The written report shall identify the number of linear feet of County rights-
of-way in, on, along, above or below which the Licensee has installed its facilities
during the previous 12-month period. The information shall include copies of
encroachment permits, as-built maps indicating stationing and actual lengths of
facilities installed, and any other relevant information necessary to verify the number
of linear feet claimed.

Upon verification, the County’s Comptroller’s Office shall issue an invoice to the
Licensee for annual rental of County rights-of-way in which Licensee has installed its
facilities, at the rate per linear foot specified in Section 4. The rental fee shall be
delivered to the County Comptroller and made payable to the County Treasurer within
thirty (30) days of date of invoice.

6 Revocation and Penalties

If the Board finds that the Licensee has failed to comply with the provisions of this
Agreement, or applicable provisions of the County Code, after providing ninety (90)
days’ written notice and an opportunity for the Licensee to be heard and a
reasonable opportunity to cure, the Board may impose fines or penalties upon the
Licensee in an amount deemed appropriate by the Board, but not to exceed the amount
of the security deposit established in Section 8 of this Agreement. Any such fines or
penalties shall be due within sixty (60) days of written notification by County, made
payable to the County Treasurer, and delivered to the County's Comptroller at the
County's address indicated in Section 13 of this Agreement. A late charge of five percent
(5%) of the fine or penalty imposed shall be assessed if the fine or penalty is not
paid within sixty (60) days of the written notification. If a fine or penalty which has
been imposed by the Board is not paid within thirty (30) days from the date of written
notification, Licensee hereby grants the County authorization to deduct the amount of
the fine or penalty plus late charges, if any, from the security deposit provided for
such purposes, pursuant to Section 8 of this Agreement. If at any time the County has
drawn upon such security deposit, the Licensee shall within thirty (30) days of
notification from the Comptroller replenish such security deposit to the original
minimum amount established in Section 8 of this Agreement.

In addition to the grounds for revocation set forth in Storey County Code, this
Agreement may be revoked if, after providing notice and an opportunity for the
Licensee to be heard, and a reasonable opportunity to cure, the Board finds that the

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE3 OF 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: AE75968C-66E8-4547-BF8C-8FFF6ESADC4C

Licensee failed to make payment of fines or penalties due under this Agreement or to
comply with the provisions of this Agreement.

7 Transfers and Assignments

Licensee may only transfer the License granted by this Agreement or assign control of
this Agreement in accordance with County approval, or as a part of a merger, acquisition
or financing.

8 Security for Performance

The Licensce shall provide to the County’s Comptroller security for performance in
the amount of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) within three (3) days following
execution of this Agreement. Licensee hereby grants the County authorization to
deduct assessed fines or penalties and late charges, if any, from such security deposit.

9 Severability

If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Agreement is
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
Agreement. It is the intent of the Licensee in requesting this Agreement and the Board
in approving this Agreement that no portion or provision thereof shall become
inoperative or fails by reason of any invalidity or unconstitutionality of any other portion
or provision, and to this end all provisions of this Agreement are declared to be
severable.

10 Indemnification

(a) To the maximum extent permitted by Nevada law, the rights-of-way licensee shall
indemnify, save harmless, and defend the county, its officers and employees,
individually and collectively, from all damages, fines, liens, suits, claims, demands,
actions, reasonable costs of investigation and litigation, reasonable attorneys' fees and
expenses, reasonable consultants' fees and expenses, and reasonable expert witnesses'
fees and expenses, judgments or liability of any kind arising out of or in any way
connected with the installation, construction, operations, maintenance, or condition of
the system. The rights-of-way licensee is not required to indemnify or hold harmless
the county, its officers and employees as provided herein, to the extent caused by,
resulting from or arising out of the active negligence or intentional actions of one or
more officers or employees of the county.

(b) The rights-of-way licensee shall assume all risks in the operation of the system and
shall be solely responsible and answerable for any and all injuries to persons or
property arising out of the existence or performance of the franchise or rights-of-way
license agreement. The amounts and types of required insurance coverage, as set
forth in Section 11, shall in no way be construed as limiting the scope of indemnity
set forth in this section.

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE4 OF 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: AE75968C-66E8-4547-BF8C-8FFF6E5ADC4C

(c¢) The rights-of-way licensee shall have no recourse whatsoever against the county for
any loss, cost, expense, or damage arising out of the enforcement or lack of
enforcement of any provision or requirement of this rights-of-way license agreement.

(d) The rights-of-way licensee shall indemnify, save harmless, and defend the county, its
officers and employees, individually and collectively, from damages which are
incurred by or attributed to the county, including but not limited to costs, expenses,
fees, and the actual amount of damage, arising from delays of such reconstruction,
removal, or relocation work of the rights-of-way licensee, beyond the time period
provided for completion of such work, except to the extent that this provision is
addressed otherwise in the rights-of-way license agreement.

11. Insurance

During the term of this Agreement, Licensce shall carry and maintain, at Licensee's sole
cost and expense, with deductibles for its own account, the following types of insurance:
(i) Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined single limit for bodily
injury property damage of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence, (limits may be met
with any combination of commercial general liability, umbrella liability and excess
liability insurance); and (ii) worker's compensation insurance as required by applicable
Law. The parties agree that they waive the right to bring claims for damages against each
other which are covered by insurance. Licensee shall cause County to be named as an
additional insured on licensee policy of Commercial General Liability Insurance to cover
the liability of County arising out of the operations of Licensee. Licensees policies of
insurance shall be primarily responsible for covering any damages suffered by the parties
and without contribution from County’s insurance which will be considered excess
coverage. This Paragraph 11 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement.

12. Reconstruction, Removal or Relocation
Reconstruction, removal or relocation of a rights-of-way licensee's facilities to
accommodate a public improvement shall be provided for in the following manner:

(1) The County or Tahoe Reno Industrial Center General Improvement District
(TRIGID) shall issue to the rights-of-way licensee written notice of a need to
reconstruct, remove, or relocate any of rights-of-way licensee's facilities which
may be in conflict with an existing or proposed public improvement in order to
accommodate the installation, maintenance, or use of the public improvement.
Such written notice shall include project information equivalent in detail to fifty
percent or more of final design for the public improvement. The rights-of-way
licensee shall, within thirty days after receiving such written notice from the
County or TRGID as described in this paragraph, present to the director of
public works a notice of intent to reconstruct, remove, or relocate said facilities,
and shall, within six months after receipt of written notice from the County or
TRIGID or such shorter time period as may be reasonable, reconstruct, remove,

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGES OF 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: AE75968C-66E8-4547-BF8C-8FFF6ESADCAC

@

©)

“

)

or relocate said facilities. Upon request from the rights-of-way licensee
identifying a recommended location for its facilities, the director of public works
shall provide that location or an alternate location within the right-of-way for the
rights-of-way licensee, if space is available.

Within thirty days after receipt of such written notice from the County or
TRIGID as described in paragraph (1) of this subsection, the rights-of-way
licensee may present a written application and supporting documentation to the
director of public works for an extension of time in which to complete
reconstruction, removal or relocation of its facilities. The director of public
works may grant additional time beyond the time period provided if the
additional time requested is due to service, equipment, or material delivery
constraints beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the rights-
of-way licensee, or if the project described in the written notice is of such a size
that the work to be performed by the rights-of-way licensee cannot be completed
within the allowable time.

[f, after the issuance of the initial written notice, the County or TRGID as
described in paragraph (1) of this subsection, makes a substantial change in the
design of the public improvement project, including but not limited to changes
in elevation, changes affecting rights-of-way alignment and widths of alignment,
the County or TRIGID, as described in paragraph (1) of this subsection, shall
notify the rights-of-way licensee of the details of the substantial change. If the
rights-of-way licensee determines that such change would cause a delay in
reconstruction, removal or relocation of its facilities beyond the time period
provided, the rights-of-way licensee may, within fourteen days from receipt of
notice of such change, petition the director of public works for an extension of
time in which to complete reconstruction, removal or relocation of facilities. If
the additional time is requested due to service, equipment, or material delivery
constraints beyond the control of the rights-of-way licensee, or if the public
improvement design change is of such a scope that the work to be performed by
the rights-of-way licensee cannot be completed within the time period allowed,
the director of public works may grant an extension of time. If the request for
extension of time is denied, the rights-of-way licensee may appeal the denial to
the county commission within fourteen days from receipt of notice of denial.
The decision of the county commission shall be final.

The County or TRIGID as described in paragraph (1) of this subsection, shall
provide the rights-of-way licensee with a final design of the public
improvement as soon as it becomes available.

If the rights-of-way licensee fails to reconstruct, remove, or relocate its facilities
as required by this section within the time period agreed upon, the county may
reconstruct, remove, or relocate said facilities and charge the cost of
reconstruction, removal, or relocation to the rights-of-way licensee. The county
will not be held liable for any losses or damages due to reconstruction, removal,
or relocation of such facilities.

(k) Whenever, in case of emergency, it becomes necessary to remove any of the rights-
of-way licensee's facilities, no charge shall be made by the rights-of-way licensee
against the county for loss, damage, restoration, and repair.

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE6 OF 8



DocusSign Envelope |D: AE75968C-66E8-4547-BF8C-8FFFBESADCAC

(I) The rights-of-way licensee shall maintain and provide to the county, upon request
and at no cost, as-built plans indicating the location of its facilities. The rights-of-
way licensee may provide, on a voluntary basis, electronic plans showing the general
location of its facilities in rights-of-way.

13. Gifts

No officer or employee of Licensee shall offer to any officer or employee of the
County, either directly or indirectly, any rebate, contribution, gift, money, service without
charge, or other thing of value whatsoever, except where given for the use and benefit of the
County.

14. Notice

All notices shall be sent to the County or the Licensee at the addresses indicated below.
The Licensee shall notify the County Manager of any change of address within ten (10)
working days of such occurrence. Failure to provide notification, and any resulting delay in
receipt of notice, shall not excuse the Licensee from any obligation imposed by this Agreement,
nor shall it serve as cause for reduction or removal of any restriction, fine or penalty imposed
by the County.

LICENSEE:

Switch Business Solutions, LLC
P.O. Box 42250

Las Vegas, NV 89116

(702) 444-4111
legal@supernap.com

STOREY COUNTY:

Storey County Comptroller’s Office
P.O. Box 432

Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-1006

15. Termination

At the end of the initial twenty-year period of this contract and, if renewed, at the end
of any subsequent renewal period, either party may terminate this contract by sending
a notice of termination to the other party at the address given for receipt of notice not
less than 90 days in advance of the renewal date that the party is terminating the
license given by this agreement.

16. Warranty of Authority to Sign

Both parties hereto warrant that the person signing this agreement on behalf of a
party is authorized to bind that party to the terms of this agreement.

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE7 OF 8



DocuSign Envelope ID: AE75968C-66E8-4547-BF 8C-8FFF6ESADCAC

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hands the day and year
first above written.

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

By

Chairman
ATTEST:

, Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

By:
Deputy District Attorney

SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC

Aabve Nadp
By:

Name: Gabriel Nacht
Title: Chief Financial Officer

siich

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE8 OF 8



EXHIBIT 1

For the purpose of this Exhibit, the following definitions shall apply. Terms phrases, words, and
their derivations shall have the meanings set forth therein, unless the context clearly indicates
that another meaning is intended. Words used in the present tense include the future, words in the
plural number include the singular number and words in the singular number include the plural
number. The words "shall" and "will" are mandatory and "may" is permissive:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(2

()

)
(9]

"Abandoned" means the relinquishing of facilities owned by a public utility that no
longer has a business license, or franchise or rights-of-way license agreement, or
certificate of public convenience and necessity from the Public Utilities Commission, if
required by the laws of the state of Nevada, or of a facility which the public utility has
agreed to transfer to the county.

"Applicant" means the person who submits the completed application as set forth in this
Exhibit.

"Application" means all written documentation, statements, representations and
warranties provided to the county, in accordance with this exhibit, by a prospective
franchisee or rights-of-way licensee, which are relied upon by the county in making its
determination of whether to grant or withhold a franchise or rights-of-way license.

"Business license" means the written authorization required by the county for any
person who commences, carries on, engages in, or conducts a business, occupation,
trade, or employment, as delineated in Title 5 of the code, within Storey County,
Nevada.

“ County Code" or "code" or "county code" means the titles chapters and sections of the
Storey County Code and ordinances referenced herein, or their successor titles,
chapters and sections, adopted by the county commission, and as amended from time to
time.

"Commence construction" means that time and date when the first connection is
physically made to a utility pole for overhead facilities, when trenching is initiated for
underground facilities, or when foundations are excavated for transmission facilities,
provided all of these facilities are part of a public utility system, and the appropriate
permits are issued for such work. -

"Commence operation” means that time and date, after construction completion, when
the public utility system is first used to provide subscription service.

"Construction completion” means that time and date when all facilities have been
installed and all public rights-of-way and properties have been restored to their former
appearance and condition in a manner acceptable to the county.

"County" means the county of Storey, Nevada.
"County commission" means the board of county commissioners of the county.

"County manager" means the county manager appointed by county commission to
perform such administrative functions of the county government as may be required of
him by the county commission, or his/her designee.



)

(m)
(n)

(0)

(P

(@

®

()

®

(u)

W)

(W)

"Director of Community Development” or "director of public works" means the county
departmental director specifically named, or his/her designee.

"Easement" means the right to use the real property of another.

"Facility" or "facilities" means antennae, transmitters, poles, pipes, wires, cables,
conduits, amplifiers, instruments, equipment, and other appliances used in connection
therewith or appurtenant thereto to provide public utility service in the county.

"Franchise" means the nonexclusive authorization granted by the county commission to
a public utility to construct, operate, and maintain its system in the rights-of-way within
the county for the provision of subscription services to persons, other than themselves,
and to use the rights-of-way for the installation, operation, and maintenance of its
facilities. The conditions and requirements of such authorization will be described
within a franchise agreement for such purpose.

"Franchise agreement" means an agreement granting use of public rights-of-way to
provide subscription services.

"Franchisee" means the person to whom a franchise is granted, and its agents, including
but not limited to contractors licensed by the State Contractors Board and providing
construction, installation, or maintenance services on facilities located in rights-of-way
on behalf of a franchisee.

"Person” means a natural person, any form of business or social organization and any
other nongovernmental legal entity, including but not limited to the estate of a natural
person, a corporation, partnership, association, trust, or unincorporated organization.
The term "person" does not include a government, governmental agency, or political
subdivision of a government.

"Public improvement" means new roadways and pavements, sidewalks, curbs and
gutters, landscaping, street lights, foundations, poles and traffic signal conduits, water
mains, sanitary and storm sewers, tunnels, subways, people movers, viaducts, bridges,
underpasses, and overpasses, or other public facilities across, along, over or under any
street or streets, or other such improvements which are to be used by the general public.

"Public Utilities Commission" means the Public Utilities Commission of the State of
Nevada, and its predecessors and successors.

"Public utility" means any person that provides electric energy or natural gas,
telecommunications services, interactive computer services, or sells or resells personal
wireless services, regardless of whether that person is subject to the regulations of, or
holds a certificatc of public convenience and necessity from, the Public Utilities
Commission.

"Public utility service" means the provision of electric energy, natural gas,
telecommunications, interactive computer service, or personal wireless service over or
through facilities located in rights-of-way.

"Public utility system" or "system" means any facilities, in whole or in part, constructed
to provide public utility services and using rights-of-way to provide such service.



(x) "Right-of-way" or "rights-of-way" means public property, including air space,
dedicated, granted, held, prescriptively used, or authorized by patent of the United
States of America, for county public street, and public utility purposes, except as limited
by any underlying grant and except public streets predominantly used for public
freeway or expressway purposes

(y) "Rights-of-way license" means the nonexclusive authorization granted by the county
commission in exchange for a rental fee to a public utility to construct, operate, and
maintain its system in specific streets and rights-of-way as authorized routes for
nonsubscription service. The conditions and requirements of such authorization will be
described within a license agreement for such purpose.

(z) "Rights-of-way license agreement" means an agreement granting use of public rights-
of-way to provide nonsubscription public utility services.

(aa) "Rights-of-way licensee" means the person to whom a rights-of-way license is granted
and its agents, including but not limited to contractors licensed by the State Contractors
Board and providing construction, installation, or maintenance services on facilities
located in rights-of-way on behalf of a rights-of-way licensee.

(bb)"Street" means the surface, the air space above the surface and the area below the
surface of the full width of the right-of-way, including sidewalks and thoroughfares,
places or ways of any kind used by the public or open to the public as a matter of right
for the purpose of vehicular traffic or vehicular and pedestrian traffic.

(cc) "Subscription service" means any service provided by a public utility over or through
facilities located in rights-of-way to persons or governmental entities within Storey
County.

(dd) "Transfer or assign" shall not include any mortgage, pledge, or other encumbrance of
the assets, stocks, or the franchise or rights-of-way license agreement of the franchisee
or right-of-way licensee as security for moneys borrowed.



Exhibit 2
Twelve Poles on Storey County ROW

Switch has placed 12 poles on Storey County ROW.

Beginning on the west side of Ireland drive at GPS location of 39 32°47.99722” N and 119 29’
47,8444” W for the northern most pole. Continuing Southwest approx. 400 feet to the third
pole, Across Peru Drive on the west side at GPS_39 32°44.499387”N and 119 29'50.00469"W ,
continuing Southeast along the west side of Peru Dr. to a point approximately 1000’ north of
Denmark drive.

The survey map showing the pole locations and offsets from the CL of the two named roads
(Ireland and Peru Dr.) clarifies the exact locations of the poles, see exhibit B attached.

The exact GPS coordinates for each pole are below.

Pole # Location GPS Coordinates
1 Ireland Drive 39932'47.99722"N 119029'47.84444"W
2 treland Drive 39¢32'46.05837"N 119¢29'47.93087"W
3 Peru Drive 39932'44.49387"N 119¢929'50.00469"W
4 Peru Drive 39¢32'42.70440"N 119¢29'46.41989"W
5 Peru Drive 39932'41.13579"N 119¢29'43.25645"W
6 Peru Drive 39¢932'39.31154"N 119929'41.42257"W
7 Peru Drive 39¢32'37.49418"N 119¢29'39.60051"W
8 Peru Drive 39¢32'34.97746"N 119929'38.19170"W
9 Peru Drive 39p32'32.44752"N 119¢29'36.78629"W
10 Peru Drive 39¢32'30.49203"N 119¢29'33.94453"W
11 Peru Drive 39¢932'28.52777"N 119¢29'31.12402"W
12 Peru Drive 39¢32'26.38606"N 119¢29'29.90252"W






Agreement Number NM535-17-016
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

This Agreement, made and entered into on , by and between the
State of Nevada, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the
‘DEPARTMENT,” and Storey County, 26 South B Street, Virginia City, NV hereinafter called
the “COUNTY,” collectively, parties or Parties.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, an Interlocal Agreement is defined as an agreement by public agencies to
“obtain a service” from another public agency, hereinafter called parties; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions contained in Chapter 408 of the Nevada Revised
Statutes, the Director of the DEPARTMENT may enter into agreements necessary to carry out
the provisions of the Chapter; and

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to contract with
any one or more other public agencies to perform any govemmental service, activity, or
undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the agreement is authorized by law
to perform and refers to such as an Interlocal Contract, hereinafter called the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is for the shared development and operation
of a Public Safety Communications facility; and

WHEREAS, the services of the COUNTY will be of benefit to the DEPARTMENT and to
the people of the State of Nevada; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY is willing and able to perform the services described herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants
herein contained, it is agreed as follows:

ARTICLE | - COUNTY AGREES

1. To provide the DEPARTMENT with access, at no cost, to COUNTY-owned or
leased property as described in ARTICLE 1, Pargraph 2 of this AGREEMENT for the purpose of
building a joint communications site (hereinafter, the SITE) which will benefit both the COUNTY
and the DEPARTMENT.

2. To accept a donation of property from the Tahoe Regional Industrial Center
described as MDM, T. 27 N., R. 23 e, sec. 28, SE 1/4 and the sec. 27 SW %, which is
hereinafter called the “SITE.”

3. To construct an access road to the SITE and to grade the SITE area to create a
100’ x100’ pad.

4. To install two (2) four (4) inch conduits from SR 439 to the SITE for future fiber
and commercial power.

5. To maintain the access road to the SITE.

1 NM535-17-016
NDOT
Rev. 0572017



6. To install and maintain communications and electronic equipment which is
owned and operated by the COUNTY

7. To provide the DEPARTMENT, at no cost, an exclusive and irrevocable (except
as set forth in the termination provisions) right to use the property, facilities, and systems on the
COUNTY property with the understanding that granting this does not convey legal title to
COUNTY property(s).

ARTICLE [I - DEPARTMENT AGREES

1. To retain ownership of facilites and system constructed by the DEPARTMENT
located at the SITE, to fund one hundred percent (100%) of the communications shelter, tower
and back up power system (hereinafter the INFRASTRUCTURE), and to fund one hundred
percent (100%) of the annual and montly INFRASTRUCTURE maintenance, shore power, and
refueling costs with State funds.

2. To construct two equipment shelters. One will provide controlled space to install
communications and electronic equipment and the other will provide controlled space to install
generator and battery back up power systems (hereinafter the “PROJECT”) at the SITE for the
use by both parties.

3. To install and maintain communications and electronic equipment which is
owned and operated by the DEPARTMENT.

4. To supply and install a communications tower to meet the mutually agreed upon
design critieria and loading limits.

ot To provide two (2) copies of the preliminary INFRASTRUCTURE plans and
specifications for review and comment, and to invite the COUNTY to the specification review
meeting to address such comments.

6. To aliow the COUNTY to observe, review, and inspect PROJECT construction
work with the understanding that all items of concem are to be reported to the DEPARTMENT's
Traffic Operations Technology Manager and not to the Contractor.

i The Department shall provide the COUNTY an exclusive and irrevocable (except
as set forth in the termination provisions) right to use the INFRASTRUCTURE, at no cost to the
COUNTY, on the COUNTY praperty with the understanding that granting this does not convey
legal title to the DEPARTMENT's INFRASTRUCTURE installed on COUNTY property.

8. To allow the COUNTY to review and comment on the PROJECT change orders
which involve features or items related to the PROJECT for which COUNTY assumes a
maintenance responsibility. The COUNTY's written response shall be made within five (5)
working days of the DEPARTMENT’s service of a change order. No response from the
COUNTY within this time frame shall constitute the COUNTY’s consent and acceptance for the
DEPARTMENT to proceed.

ARTICLE It - 1T IS MUTUALLY AGREED

1. The COUNTY and the DEPARTMENT agree that the SITE is designated for use
as a public safety communication only facility. It is expressly agreed that the facility shall not be
used for any commercial or private purposes. Additional public safety agencies requesting use
of the SITE are subject to joint approval by the COUNTY and the DEPARTMENT and will be
responsible for their proportionate share of the additional operation, repair, and maintenance

2 NM535-17-016
NDOT
Rev. 0522017



costs. Any lease fees will be shared by COUNTY and the DEPARTMENT equally to offset
capital improvements.

2. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above for an initial
term of ten (10) years. This Agreement shall automatically renew for an additional ten (10) year
term on the last day of each subsequent ten (10) year term, unless either of the parties notifies
the other party (ies) in writing thirty (30) calendar days prior to the end of the then current ten-
year-term of its desire that this Agreement not be renewed for an additional ten-year term. The
term of this Agreement is subject to the requirements of NRS 244.320.

3. This Agreement shall not become effective until and unless approved by
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party.

4. This Agreement may be terminated by either party prior to the date set forth
above, provided that a termination shall not be effective until thirty (30) calendar days after a
party has served written notice upon the other party. This Agreement may be terminated by
mutual consent of both parties or unilaterally by either party without cause. The parties
expressly agree that this Agreement shall be terminated immediately if for any reason Federal
and/or State Legislature and/or COUNTY funding ability to satisfy this Agreement is withdrawn,
limited, or impaired.

5. Upon termination or expiration of the initial or any extended term of this
Agreement, any party may remove its own SITE Improvements and communications equipment
installed on either the radio tower or shelters, and any damage caused by such removal shall be
promptly repaired by the party who caused the damage. An Itemization of the ownership of all
SITE improvements and equipment is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by
reference.

6. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered
personally in hand, by facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or by certified mail, retum
receipt requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the
address set forth below:

FOR DEPARTMENT: Rudy Malfabon, P.E., Director
Attn.: Dan Berger
Nevada Department of Transportation
Traffic Operations Division:
1263 South Stewart Street
Carson City, Nevada 89712
Phone: 775-888-7884
Fax:775-888-7090
E-mail: dberger@dot.nv.gov

FOR STOREY COUNTY: Pat Whitten, County Manager
Storey County
PO Box 176
26 South B Street
Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Phone: 775-847-0964
Fax:
E-mail: pwhitten@storeycounty.org

3 NM535-17-016
NDOT
Rev. 052017



7. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under generally accepted accounting
principles full, true, and complete records and documents (written, electronic, computer related,
or otherwise) pertaining to this Agreement and present, at any reasonable time, such
information for inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office where such
records and documentation are maintained. Such records and documentation shall be retained
for three (3) years after final payment is made.

8. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Agreement shall be
deemed a breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Agreement, the rights and
remedies of the parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and
remedies provided by law or equity, including but not limited to the recovery of actual damages,
and the prevailing party’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.

9. The parties do not waive and intend to assert available NRS Chapter 41 liability
limitations in all cases. Agreement liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive
damages. Actual damages for any DEPARTMENT breach shall never exceed the amount of
funds which have been appropriated for payment under this Agreement, but not yet paid, for the
fiscal year budget in existence at the time of the breach.

10. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Agreement if it is
prevented from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts
of God, including without limitations, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event
the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and
the excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement after the intervening cause ceases.

11.  To the fullest extent of NRS Chapter 41 liability limitations, each party shall
indemnify, hold harmless, and defend, not excluding the other’s right to participate, the other
from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not
limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful
acts or omissions of the party, its officers, employees, and agents. Such obligation shall not be
construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity,
which would otherwise exist as to any party or person, described herein. This indemnification
obligation is conditioned upon service of written notice to the other party within thirty (30)
calendar days of the indemnified party’s notice of actual or pending claim or cause of action.
The indemnifying party shall not be liable for reimbursement of any attomey's fees and costs
incurred by the indemnified party due to said party exercising its right to participate with legal
counsel.

12. The parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the
extent set forth in this Agreement. Each party is and shall be a public agency separate and
distinct from the other party and shall have the right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and
direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this Agreement. Nothing contained
in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to
create relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any
liability for one agency whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations
of the other agency or any other party.

13.  Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of the
Agreement or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a waiver by
such party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

4 NM535-17-016
NDOT
Rev. 0572017



14.  The illegality or invalidity of any provision or portion of this Agreement shall not
affect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement and this Agreement shall be construed as if
such provision did not exist. The unenforceability of such provision or provisions shall not be
held to render any other provision or provisions of this Agreement unenforceable.

15. Neither party shall assign, transfer, or delegate any rights, obligations, or duties
under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

16. Except as otherwise provided by this Agreement, all or any property presently
owned by either party shall remain in such ownership upon termination of this Agreement, and
there shall be no transfer of property between the parties during the course of this Agreement.

17.  Pursuant to NRS Chapter 239, information or documents may be open to public
inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is
confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

18.  Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form, produced,
prepared, observed, or received by that party to the extent that such information is confidential
by law or otherwise required by this Agreement.

19.  The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this
Agreement on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and
that the parties are authorized by law to perform the services set forth herein.

20.  This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be
governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada. The parties consent
to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Nevada state district courls for enforcement of this
Agreement.

21.  Any alteration considered extra work shall be addressed through an amendment
to this Agreement. The amount and payment for extra work, as well as designation of
responsibility for payment of such work, shall be specified in such written amendment.

22.  Any recipient or subrecipient of funds under this Agreement agrees to comply
with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act and implementing regulations at
2 CFR Part 170, including Appendix A available at
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdfi2010-22705. pdf.

23. In connection with the performance of work under this Agreement, the parties
agree not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race,
creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, or age, including, without limitation, with
regard to employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising,
layoff, or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training,
including, without limitation, apprenticeship. The parties further agree to insert this provision in
all subcontracts hereunder, except subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw
materials.

24.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and such is
intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations, negotiations,
discussions, and other agreements that may have been made in connection with the subject
matter hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this Agreement specifically displays a mutual
intent to amend a particular part of this Agreement, general conflicts in language between any
such attachment and this Agreement shall be construed consistent with the terms of this
Agreement. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this Agreement, no

5 NM535-17-016
NOOT
Rov. 052017



maodification or amendment to this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless the same
is in writing and signed by the respective parties hereto and approved by the Attorney General.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year first

above written.

STOREY COUNTY

Name (Print)

Title (Print)

Name (Print)

Title (Print)

Approved as to Form:

Deputy District Attorney

NDOT
Rev. 052017

State of Nevada, acting by and through its
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Director

Approved as to Legality & Form:

Deputy Attorney General

NM535-17-016






























Enclosure A: Draft Resolution 18-461.

Resolution No. 18-461
A resolution consolidating fees for Storey County services.

Whereas, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners (the Board) has detecrmined
that the county has many different fees in various parts of the Storey County Code and that many
fees are set by resolution of the Board. The Board has determined that it would be more effective
to have a single resolution with all the fees for services contained in that resolution.

Whereas, the Board has determined that consolidating all the fees into the fee resolution is
a large project and that by incrementally adding the fees to the resolution as sections of the Storey
County Code are revised would be an effective method for consolidating fees that are set by
resolution. The Board has further determined that the fee resolution should be reviewed annually
in May or June before the start of the fiscal year.

Whereas, the Board is in the process of amending titles 16 and 17 of the Storcy County
Code and finds that the fees for planning and zoning under NRS 278 and for signs should be taken
out of the Storey County Code and consolidated in a fee resolution. These fees are not considered
a rule and are exempt from the NRS 237 requirement of a business impact statement.

Whereas, the Board desires to review fees before adding the fees to the fee resolution.

The Board resolves and agrees to set the fees as follows:

Planning Department development application fees:

Application Type Applica_tion Fee
Abandonment $200
Amended map N No fee
- Billboards See SUP -
Boundary line adjustii(eﬂt N $250 + $25 per lot
"~ Condition amendment No fee
Development agreement $1,000
Extension of time request -  50% of original fee
___ (omeyearonly) . . 4 . .
Land division map creating 5 or $500 + $25 per lot
__ more parcels .
Lot consolidation No fee
Master plan map amendment $2,900 -
Master plan text amendment $800
Minor amendment/deviation ~ Nofee o
Small O-p'e'ratii-(r)‘nvsi Mining Permit | $65 per hour
~ Parcel map $250 + $25 per lot =
Record of Survey I B
Parcel map-final No fee
B Planned unit development (PUD) $500 + $1 per lot
Tentativemap e
Planned unit development (PUD) $200 + $25 per lot

Pége 20f3



Final map
[ Signs No fee ]
Special use permit (SUP) minor $250
| SUP routine $450
~ SUP major - $750 )
~ SUP major industrial $2,500
Street name request No fee o
Variance administrative L No fee
Variance $100
~ Wireless communication facility o
Wireless communication facility No fee
modification
Zoning map amendment $1,000
Zoning text amendment No fee -
Adopted and effective this__ day of 2018 by the

following vote:

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners:

Nays: Commissioners:

Absent: Commissioners:

Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of

Page 3 of 3






Enclosure A: Staff Summary
PURPOSE

Storey County has experienced significant industrial, commercial, and residential growth over the past
two decades and this trend is expected to continue. This design manual was developed in accordance
with the goals and objectives of the 2016 Storey County Master Plan in order to provide property
owners, designers, and developers of industrial, commercial, and residential planned unit
developments, and developers of multi-family complexes, clear and concise development standards
that are consistent with the master plan.

The objective of the design standards manual is to enhance and promote the aesthetic and economic
viability of Storey County and protect its historic, cultural, and scenic resources. The design manual
also encourages the highest level of quality while also providing flexibility and uniqueness of
individual projects. The design manual will be used by community development and planning staff
during review of planned unit development proposals in the county.

APPLICABILITY

The design manual is not to be construed as a county code of regulations, but rather a document
providing county leaders, staff, and land developers guidelines for development to occur within the
goals and objectives of the county master plan.

This design manual applies to new commercial, industrial, residential, and mixed-use planned unit
developments and also to new multi-family complexes consisting of two or more principal buildings.
This design manual does not apply to new commercial, industrial, and residential construction, or
significant improvements or expansions to existing structures.

GOALS

The Planning Design Criteria attempts to achieve the following goals and objectives laid out in the
Storey County Master Plan.

1. Provide design standards which conform with and implement the goals, objectives, and
policies of the Storey County Master Plan.

Direct and manage orderly, efficient, and sustainable development in the county.
Create and maintain livable and sustainable communities.

Create and maintain complete communities.

Facilitate pedestrian-friendly communities.

Facilitate existing and future automobile-alternative transportation systems.

P~ LV T N

To ensure safe and sustainable water resources for each community and natural
ecosystem in the county.

8. Design communities which attract diverse people and workforce.

9. Create and maintain a diverse economy.

10. Create integrated public facilities.

11. Maintain distinct communities in the county.

12. Maintain compatibility between uses.

13. Implement design and performance standards that minimizes use conflicts.

14. Balance renewable energy systems with other uses.

Page 2 of 2



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 2, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Division of Large Parcels Map 2017-055 by Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center. The applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-055.
Onc cxisting large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels over 40 acres.
The subject property extends west from USA Parkway, having Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-171-
16, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of Parcel 2016-25 as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 125044, and as described in Document Number 125418, within portions of Sections
28,31, 32,33 & 34, TI9N, R23E, M.D.M.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning
Commission, the Findings under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all
Conditions of Approval, I [County Commissioner], hereby move to waive the requirement for filing a
Tentative Map and I hereby move to approve the Final Map Division of Land into Large Parcels, File
2017-055. One cxisting large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels
over 40 acrcs. The subject property extends west from USA Parkway, having Assessor’s Parcel
Number 004-171-16, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of Parcel 2016-25 as shown on
Record of Survey Map No. 125044, and as described in Document Number 125418, within portions
of Sections 28, 31, 32, 33 & 34, TI9N, R23E, M.D.M.

3.  Prepared by: Kathy Canfield
4, Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-055
6. Supporting materials: Sce enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-055
7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: ____ Comptroller

8.  Legal review required: District Attorney

9.  Reviewed by:
/aﬁment Head Department Name: Planning

/A;UVL 1 County Manager Other agency review:

Board action:
[] Approved
(] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Conltinued

——
e s

Agenda Item No. 2.2



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775)

STOREY COUNTY '
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Storey County Courthouse

847-1144 — Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owners:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

January 2, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, Virginia City, Nevada
Kathy Canfieid

2017-055

Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, LLC

Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, LLC

The property is located along USA Parkway at the county line between Storey
County and Lyon County. The property extends west from USA Parkway and has
Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-171-16, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a
division of Parcel 2016-25 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 125044, and
as described in Document Number 125418, within portions of Sections 28, 31,
32,33 & 34, T19N, R23E, M.D.M,

The applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-055.
One existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large
parcels over 40 acres. The subject property extends west from USA Parkway,
having Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-171-16, Storey County, Nevada. The
project is a division of Parcel 2016-25 as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
125044, and as described in Document Number 125418, within portions of
Sections 28, 31, 32, 33 & 34, T19N, R23E, M.D.M.

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics. The existing parcel extends west from USA Parkway at

the Storey/Lyon County line, Storey County, Nevada. The existing parcel is approximately
1,653.69 acres per the Storey County Assessor’s Office. There is no development on the
property. APN 004-171-16 is zoned Forestry. Surrounding land uses include vacant Heavy
Industrial zoned property to the north, vacant Forestry zoned property to the west and



south and vacant Lyon County land and vacant Forestry zoned land to the east.

Although the property is owned by the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, LLC, the property is
not a part of the Industrial Center and is not subject to the Development Agreement
between the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center and Storey County. The 2015 Storey County
Zoning Ordinance applies to this property.

Vicinity and Zoning Map




Site Location

TI9ON ,R23E _ ) 04 -7
& < R23E |R24E

Ny A
e, ! -

ol O )
Jretee gt o)

i

1’ £
e,
5 1

STOREY (OUNTY

STUNEY CXANIY NEVADA

e v ittt e L 1 [ ——
T o e Sl araey purpoues UMY 1 Sttt pprwasnt & wway M babidiy
A ¢ L L T R L e S .

Existing configuration, Assessor’s Map for APN 004-171-16



Proposed Project. The applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels. One
existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided and reconfigured to a total of three large
parcels over 40 acres. One parcel is proposed to be approximately 40.01 acres and the
second parcel is proposed to be approximately 533.72 acres, with the third parcel to be the
remaining approximate 1,079.96 acres. All three resultant parcels will have frontage along
the USA Parkway right-of-way. Per Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), this division of land is
considered a Division of Land into Large Parcels (NRS 278.471 through 278.4725), and
follows the requirements of that section. It is anticipated one of the parcels will be utilized
for a fire station, however, the proposed uses for the parcels are not a part of this requested
approval. A separate review and approval for any uses on the parcels will be required at the
time of proposed development.

N

Proposed Parcels

C.

Application for a Division of Land into Large Parcels. Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS)
278.471 through 278.4725 defines the requirements for Division of Land into Large Parcels.
Storey County Code (SCC) does not specifically require an application for a Division of Land
into Large Parcel, however, NRS states a proposed Division must comply with NRS 278.471
through 278.4725, which requires planning commission and governing body approval. This
project is not defined as a “Subdivision” by either Nevada Revised Statutes or Title 16 of the




Storey County Code because it is not creating five or more parcels from a single parcel of
land. The division is not considered a “Parcel Map” because of the large size of the
proposed parcels. Division of land into large parcels is exempt from planning commission
and board review and approval if the county adopts an ordinance allowing for such
exemption for parcels of 10 and/or 40 acres in area. Storey County has not adopted such an
ordinance; therefore, the request for division of land into large parcels is subject to planning
commission and board action.

Request for Waiver of Requirement to File a Tentative Map. NRS 278.4715 allows for
Board of County Commissioners to waive the requirement to file a Tentative Map. The
applicant provided a Tentative Map to both staff and the Planning Commission for review.
The items identified by staff to include on the Tentative Map have been added and are
documented on the Final Map which the applicant will provide at the Board of County
Commissioners meeting for consideration.

Use Compatibility and Compliance

A,

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land uses,
zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding the
proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and Storey
County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan. The proposed division of land into large
parcels is consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations.

Land Use Master Plan Zoning
Applicant’s Land vacant Transition from Forestry
Resources to Industrial
Land to the north vacant Heavy Industrial and Heavy Industrial and
Transition from Forestry
Resources to Industrial
Land to the east vacant Transition from Forestry and Lyon

Resources to Industrial | County®
and Lyon County™®
Land to the south vacant Transition from Forestry and Lyon
Resources to Industrial | County*

and Lyon County*
Land to the west vacant Transition from Forestry
Resources to industrial

*Lyon County land is to the east and south of this location and is identified as “Joint Planning Area”
land in the County-Wide Land Use Map — Fernley. No specific zoning designation is provided and
the property is vacant.

Compliance with the Storey County Code - Section 17.32 —Forestry Zones.

The zoning for the proposed new lots will be the existing F- Forestry.

(1) Storey County Code 17.32 Forestry Zones. The proposed Division of Land into Large
Parcels is compliant with the zoning outlined in the Storey County Code. The
properties are currently vacant and any proposed use would be required to comply
with the permissible uses as outlined in the zoning code. Any development would
be required to meet the required setbacks and building heights. No development is
proposed with this application. Any proposed permissible use in the Forestry zone
will require a Special Use Permit to be obtained.



(2) Minimum Lot Size. The Forestry zoning requires a minimum lot area of 40 acres.
The proposed parcels meet the minimum of 40 acres which is consistent with this
requirement.

Compliance with 2016 Storey County Master Plan

The 2016 Storey County Master Plan identifies this land as a Transition Zone from
Resources to Industrial. Although that may be desired in the future, no change in zoning, or
transition in zoning from the existing Forestry designation, is proposed at this time. The
Division of Land into Large Parcels is not expected to change the character of the
neighborhood and is consistent with the Master Plan.

Findings of Fact

The Storey County Board of County Commissioners shall cite Findings in a recommended motion for
approval, approval with conditions, or denial. The recommended approval, approval with conditions
or denial of the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels must be based on Findings. The
Findings listed in the following subsections are the minimum to be cited. The Board of County
Commissioners may include additional Findings in their decision.

A.

Motion for Approval. The following Findings of Fact are the minimum to be cited for a
recommendation of approval or approval with conditions. The following Findings are
evident with regard to the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels when the
recommended conditions in Section 4 are applied. At a minimum, an approval or conditional
approval must be based on the following Findings:

(1) The applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-055. One
existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels
over 40 acres. The subject property extends west from USA Parkway, having
Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-171-16, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a
division of Parcel 2016-25 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 125044, and as
described in Document Number 125418, within portions of Sections 28, 31, 32,33 &
34, T19N, R23E, M.D.M.

(2) The Division of Land into Large Parcels complies with NRS 278.471 through 278.4725
relating to the adjustment of one parcel to three parcels, all 40 acres or more in size.

(3) The Division of Land into Large Parcels complies with all Federal, State, and County
regulations pertalning to Parcel Maps and allowed land uses.

(4) The Division of Land into Large Parcels will not impose substantial adverse impacts
or safety hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding vicinity.

(5) The conditions of approval for the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels do
not conflict with the minimum requirements in Storey County Code Chapter 17.32
Forestry Zone or any other Federal, State, or County regulations.

Motion for Denial. Should a recommended motion be made to deny the Division of Land
into Large Parcels request, the following Findings with explanation of why should be
included in that motion.




(D Substantial evidence shows that the Division of Land into Large Parcels conflicts with
the purpose, intent, and other specific requirement of Storey County Code Chapter
17.32 Forestry Zone, or any other Federal, State, or County regulations, including
NRS 278.471 through 278.4725.

(2) The Recommended Conditions of Approval for the Division of Land into Large
Parcels does not adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses
or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless
otherwise stated.

A.

Approval. This approval is for a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-055. One
existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels over 40
acres. The subject property extends west from USA Parkway, having Assessor’s Parcel
Number 004-171-16, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of Parcel 2016-25 as
shown on Record of Survey Map No. 125044, and as described in Document Number
125418, within portions of Sections 28, 31, 32, 33 & 34, T19N, R23E, M.D.M.

General requirements. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must comply with Nevada
Revised Statues (NRS) 278.471 through 278.4725 relating to the division and adjustment of
land. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must comply with Federal, State, and County
regulations pertaining to boundary line adjustments and allowed land uses.

Final Map. The applicant shall submit to the Storey County Planning Department a Final
Map for review and approval, whether or not the Board of County Commissioners waives
the requirement of a Tentative Map, before the Final Map is recorded with the Office of the
Storey County Recorder. The Final Map must show all parcel boundaries, easements, and
right-of-ways. Upon acceptance of the format, and completion of all other conditions of
approval, the Final Map may be recorded. The Final Map must meet the form and contents
pursuant to NRS 278.472.

Access and Easements. All existing streets, easements, and utility easements, whether
public or private, must remain in effect and be delineated clearly on the Final Map. All
utility corridor easements, including those identified in the Storey County Master Plan, shall
be shown on the Final Map. Per NRS 278.4725, all proposed access roads shall be suitable
for use by emergency vehicles as determined by the Storey County Fire Protection District.

Taxes Paid. Prior to the recording of the proposed Division of Land into Large Parcels, the
Applicant shall submit to the Planning Department evidence that property taxes on the land
have been paid in full for the fiscal year.

Duties of the Parcel Map Preparer. The preparer of the proposed Parcel Map shall meet all
requirements pursuant to NRS 278.471 through 278.4725.

Null and Void. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must be recorded with the Storey
County Recorder within 12 months of the Board’s approval. If the Final Map is not recorded
by that time, this approval will become null and void.



H. Indemnification. The Property Owners warrant that the future use of land will conform to
requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicabie federal regulatory and legal
requirements; further, the Property Owners warrant that continued and future use of the
land shall so conform. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and
representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or
liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this
Approval.

I Corners. Per NRS 278.4725, the corners of each lot are to be set by a professional land
surveyor.

Public Comment
As of December 5, 2017, Staff has not received any comments on the proposed project

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action thereon
as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County Commissioners upon
which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This Section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended
by Staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this
report. Those findings should bemade part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and
that motion should cite one ormore of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Planning Commission should be made part of either motion.

A Recommended Motion (motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings
under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, |
[County Commissioner], hereby move to waive the requirement for filing a Tentative Map
and | hereby move to approve the Final Map Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-
055. One existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels
over 40 acres. The subject property extends west from USA Parkway, having Assessor’s
Parcel Number 004-171-16, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of Parcel 2016-
25 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 125044, and as described in Document Number
125418, within portions of Sections 28, 31, 32, 33 & 34, T19N, R23E, M.D.M.

B. Alternative Motion (motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under section 3.B of this report and other Findings against
the recommendation for approval with conditions by Staff and the Planning Commission, |
[County Commissioner], hereby move to deny waiving the requirement for filing a Tentative
Map and | hereby move to deny the Final Map Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-
055. One existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels
over 40 acres. The subject property extends west from USA Parkway, having Assessor’s



Parcel Number 004-171-16, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of Parcel 2016-
25 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 125044, and as described in Document Number
125418, within portions of Sections 28, 31, 32, 33 & 34, T19N, R23E, M.D.M.



APPENDIX 1

PROPOSED TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP FOR DIVISION OF LAND INTO LARGE PARCELS

g »

GLT TDNLAAARTS ALVLS N.II.O

ITT SLINT) PAUSIAN ONFN-J0ETL
LTZIARL FIXYY JM““ PRy S0 TR
e |

2OV IS L9991 =VIYY TViod

JAVIIATLBAD S HINCGISSIAAG) LN 100 IIHOLS

FLFSIAILRT s AV

JVR ALINIA
FIVIILILUTY S HAOIFANS

g b IVANTE 41 b

T mmiae s pevac

FLIVUNILHT G S TVL0V

FAVIILILHF G NHINAQ

10



Lo
& AT

= (L] NLUIANTS SLVAS :t.o [

‘ll». aw
- —— T .
- [T - - : . .
i 4 Bs Neo x A

—_— -
- "t - =l
e

TEriTee -

& s
= “on
O * “ uh

o -
' — ivareer ey .

R L L s ¢ .
<and . il ¥ -
o - e A —

L 3
e :
»

11




APPENDIX 2

NRS 278.471 through 278.4725

Division of Land Into Large Parcels

NRS 278.471 Divisions of land subject to NRS 278.471 to 278.4725, inclusive; exemption.

1. Except as provided in subsections 2 and 3, a proposed division of land is subject to the provisions of
NRS 278.471 to 278.4725, inclusive, if each proposed lot is at least:

(a) One-sixteenth of a section as described by a government land office survey; or

(b) Forty acres in area, including roads and easements.

2. The governing body of a city, the board of county commissioners with respect to the unincorporated
area, may by ordinance elect to make NRS 278.471 to 278.4725, inclusive, apply to each proposed division of
land where each proposed lot is at least:

(a) One-sixty-fourth of a section as described by a government land office survey; or

(b) Ten acres in area, including roads and easements.

3. A proposed division of land into lots or parcels, each of which contains not less than one section or
640 acres, is not subject to NRS 278.471 to 278.4725, inclusive.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 1504)

NRS 278.4713 Preparation, contents and filing of tentative map; affidavit required.

1. Unless the filing of a tentative map is waived, a person who proposes to make a division of land
pursuant to NRS 278.471 to 278.4725, inclusive, must first:

(a) File a tentative map for the area in which the land is located with the planning commission or its
designated representative or with the clerk of the governing body if there is no planning commission;

(b) Submit an affidavit stating that the person will make provision for the payment of the tax imposed by
chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance with the disclosure and recording requirements of subsection 5 of
NRS 598.0923, if applicable, by the person who proposes to make a division of land or any successor in
interest; and

(c) Pay a filing fee of no more than $750 set by the governing body.

2. This map must be:

(a) Entitled “Tentative Map of Division into Large Parcels”; and

(b) Prepared and certified by a professional land surveyor.

3. This map must show:

(a) The approximate, calculated or actual acreage of each lot and the total acreage of the land to be
divided.

(b) Any roads or easements of access which exist, are proposed in the applicable master plan or are
proposed by the person who intends to divide the land.

(c) Except as otherwise provided in NRS 278.329, an easement for public utilities that provide gas,
electric and telecommunications services and for any video service providers that are authorized pursuant
to chapter 711 of NRS to operate a video service network in that area.

(d) Except as otherwise provided in NRS 278.329, an easement for public utilities that provide water and
sewer services.

(e) Any existing easements for irrigation or drainage, and any normally continuously flowing
watercourses.

(f) An indication of any existing road or easement which the owner does not intend to dedicate.

12



(g) The name and address of the owner of the land.

4. The planning commission and the governing body or its authorized representative shall not approve
the tentative map unless the person proposing to divide the land has submitted an affidavit stating that the
person will make provision for the payment of the tax imposed by chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance
with the disclosure and recording requirements of subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if applicable, by the person

proposing to divide the land or any successor in interest.
(Added to NRS by 1979, 1504; A 1989, 794; 1993, 2574; 1997, 2429; 1999, 895; 2003, 2347; 2007. 1381; 2009,
1117)

NRS 278.4715 Waiver of requirement to file tentative map; designation of easements.

1. The planning commission or, if there is no planning commission, the governing body or its authorized
representative may waive the requirement of filing the tentative map.

2. If the tentative map is filed with the planning commission or with the governing body or its
authorized representative, the planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative
may within 60 days after the filing of the tentative map designate the location and width of any easements
for roads and public utilities as shown on the master plan if there is one applicable to the area to be divided,
or designate the location and width of any easements for roads and public utilities which may be reasonably
necessary to serve the area to be divided if there is no master plan.

3. The planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative shall not designate
an easement after the expiration of 60 days from the filing of the tentative map.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 1505; A 1997, 2429)

NRS 278.472 Final map: Filing; form and contents.

1. After the planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative has approved
the tentative map or waived the requirement of its filing, or 60 days after the date of its filing, whichever is
earlier, the person who proposes to divide the land may file a final map of the division with the governing
body or its authorized representative or, if authorized by the governing body, with the planning commission.
The map must be accompanied by a written statement signed by the treasurer of the county in which the
land to be divided is located indicating that all property taxes on the land for the fiscal year have been paid.

2. This map must be:

(a) Entitled “Map of Division into Large Parcels.”

(b) Filed with the governing body or its authorized representative or, if authorized by the governing
body, with the planning commission not later than 1 year after the date that the tentative map was first filed
with the planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative or that the
requirement of its filing was waived.

(c) Prepared by a professional land surveyor.

(d) Based upon an actual survey by the preparer and show the date of the survey and contain the
certificate of the surveyor required pursuant to NRS 278.375.

(e} Clearly and legibly drawn in permanent black ink upon good tracing cloth or produced by the use of
other materials of a permanent nature generally used for this purpose in the engineering profession.
Affidavits, certificates and acknowledgments must be legibly stamped or printed upon the map with
permanent black ink.

(f) Twenty-four by 32 inches in size with a marginal line drawn completely around each sheet, leaving an
entirely blank margin of 1 inch at the top, bottom, and right edges, and of 2 inches at the left edge along the
24-inch dimension.

(g) Of scale large enough to show clearly all details.

3. The particular number of the sheet and the total number of sheets comprising the map must be
stated on each of the sheets, and its relation to each adjoining sheet must be clearly shown.

4. This map must show and define:

(a) All subdivision lots by the number and actual acreage of each lot.

13



(b) Any roads or easements of access which exist and which the owner intends to offer for dedication,
any roads or easements of access which are shown on the applicable master plan and any roads or
easements of access which are specially required by the planning commission or the governing body or its
authorized representative.

(c) Except as otherwise provided in NRS 278.329, an easement for public utilities that provide gas,
electric and telecommunications services and for any video service providers that are authorized pursuant
to chapter 711 of NRS to operate a video service network in that area.

(d) Except as otherwise provided in NRS 278.329, an easement for public utilities that provide water and
sewer services.

(e) Any existing easements for irrigation or drainage, and any normally continuously flowing
watercourses.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 1505; A 1989. 502, 795; 1991, 280, 1384; 1993, 2575; 1997, 2430; 2003, 2348; 2007,
1382)

NRS 278.4725 Final map: Action by planning commission or governing body; appeal; procedures
in event of disapproval; conditions for approval; filing; contents; fee for recording; county recorder to
provide copy of final map or access to digital final map to county assessor.

1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, if the governing body has authorized the planning
commission to take final action on a final map, the planning commission shall approve, conditionally
approve or disapprove the final map, basing its action upon the requirements of NRS 278.472:

(a) Ina county whose population is 700,000 or more, within 45 days; or

(b) In a county whose population is less than 700,000, within 60 days,
= after accepting the final map as a complete application. The planning commission shall file its written
decision with the governing body. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, or unless the time is
extended by mutual agreement, if the planning commission is authorized to take final action and it fails to
take action within the period specified in this subsection, the final map shall be deemed approved
unconditionally.

2. If there is no planning commission or if the governing body has not authorized the planning
commission to take final action, the governing body or its authorized representative shall approve,
conditionally approve or disapprove the final map, basing its action upon the requirements of NRS 278.472:

(a) Ina county whose population is 700,000 or more, within 45 days; or

(b) In a county whose population is less than 700,000, within 60 days,
= after the final map is accepted as a complete application. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5 or
unless the time is extended by mutual agreement, if the governing body or its authorized representative
fails to take action within the period specified in this subsection, the final map shall be deemed approved
unconditionally.

3. An applicant or other person aggrieved by a decision of the authorized representative of the
governing body or by a final act of the planning commission may appeal the decision in accordance with the
ordinance adopted pursuant to NRS 278.3195.

4. If the map is disapproved, the governing body or its authorized representative or the planning
commission shall return the map to the person who proposes to divide the land, with the reason for its
action and a statement of the changes necessary to render the map acceptable.

5. If the final map divides the land into 16 lots or more, the governing body or its authorized
representative or the planning commission shall not approve a map, and a map shall not be deemed
approved, unless:

(a) Each lot contains an access road that is suitable for use by emergency vehicles; and

(b) The corners of each lot are set by a professional land surveyor.

6. If the final map divides the land into 15 lots or less, the governing body or its authorized
representative or the planning commission may, if reasonably necessary, require the map to comply with
the provisions of subsection 5.

14



7. Upon approval, the map must be filed with the county recorder. Filing with the county recorder
operates as a continuing:

(a) Offer to dedicate for public roads the areas shown as proposed roads or easements of access, which
the governing body may accept in whole or in part at any time or from time to time.

(b) Offer to grant the easements shown for public utilities, which any public utility may similarly accept
without excluding any other public utility whose presence is physically compatible.

8. The map filed with the county recorder must include:

(a) A certificate signed and acknowledged by each owner of land to be divided consenting to the
preparation of the map, the dedication of the roads and the granting of the easements.

(b) A certificate signed by the clerk of the governing body or authorized representative of the governing
body or the secretary to the planning commission that the map was approved, or the affidavit of the person
presenting the map for filing that the time limited by subsection 1 or 2 for action by the governing body or
its authorized representative or the planning commission has expired and that the requirements of
subsection 5 have been met. A certificate signed pursuant to this paragraph must also indicate, if applicable,
that the governing body or planning commission determined that a public street, easement or utility
easement which will not remain in effect after a merger and resubdivision of parcels conducted pursuant to
NRS 278.4925, has been vacated or abandoned in accordance with NRS 278.480.

(c) A written statement signed by the treasurer of the county in which the land to be divided is located
indicating that all property taxes on the land for the fiscal year have been paid.

9. Agoverning body may by local ordinance require a final map to include:

(a) Areport from a title company which lists the names of:

(1) Each owner of record of the land to be divided; and
(2) Each holder of record of a security interest in the land to be divided, if the security interest was
created by a mortgage or a deed of trust.

(b) The signature of each owner of record of the land to be divided.

(c) The written consent of each holder of record of a security interest listed pursuant to subparagraph
(2) of paragraph (a), to the preparation and recordation of the final map. A holder of record may consent by
signing:

(1) The final map; or
(2) A separate document that is filed with the final map and declares his or her consent to the
division of land.

10. After a map has been filed with the county recorder, any lot shown thereon may be conveyed by
reference to the map, without further description.

11. The county recorder shall charge and collect for recording the map a fee set by the board of county
commissioners of not more than $50 for the first sheet of the map plus $10 for each additional sheet.

12. A county recorder who records a final map pursuant to this section shall, within 7 working days
after he or she records the final map, provide to the county assessor at no charge:

(a) A duplicate copy of the final map and any supporting documents; or

(b) Access to the digital final map and any digital supporting documents. The map and supporting

documents must be in a form that is acceptable to the county recorder and the county assessor.
(Added to NRS by 1979, 1506; A 1979, 1506; 1989, 503; 1991, 281, 1385; 1993, 1358, 2576; 1995, 199, 710; 1997,
2430; 1999, 790; 2001, 1561, 1970, 2813, 3218; 2003, 227,2787; 2011, 1199)

15





















Request for Waiver of Reguirement to File a Tentative Map. NRS 278.4715 allows for
Board of County Commissioners to waive the requirement to file a Tentative Map. The
applicant provided a Tentative Map to both staff and the Planning Commission for review.
The items identified by staff to include on the Tentative Map have been added and are
documented on the Final Map which the applicant will provide at the Board of County
Commissioners meeting for consideration.

Use Compatibility and Compliance

A.

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land uses,
zaning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding the

proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and Storey
County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan. The proposed division of land into large
parcels is consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations.

Land Use Master Plan Zoning

Applicant’s Land vacant Transition from Forestry
Resources to Industrial

Land to the north vacant Transition from Forestry
Resaurces to Industrial

Land to the east vacant Lyon County® Lyon County*

Land to the south vacant Lyon County™ Lyon County*

Land to the west vacant Industrial & Transition Heavy Industrial &
from Resources to Forestry|
industrial

*Lyon County land is to the east and south of this location and is identified as “Joint Planning Area”
land in the County-Wide Land Use Map — Fernley. No specific zoning designation is provided and
the property is vacant.

Compliance with the Storey County Code - Section 17.32 — Forestry Zones.

The zoning for the proposed new lots will be the existing F- Forestry.

(1) Storey County Code 17.32 Forestry Zones. The proposed Division of Land into Large
Parcels is compliant with the zoning outlined in the Storey County Code. The
properties are currently vacant and any proposed use would be required to comply
with the permissible uses as outlined in the zoning code. Any development would
be required to meet the required setbacks and building heights. No development is
proposed with this application. Any proposed allowed use in the Forestry zone will
require a Special Use Permit to be obtained.

(2) Minimum Lot Size. The Forestry zoning requires a minimum lot area of 40 acres.
The proposed parcels meet the minimum of 40 acres which is consistent with this
requirement.

Compliance with 2016 Storey County Master Plan

The 2016 Storey County Master Plan identifies this land as a Transition Zone from
Resources to Industrial. Although that may be desired in the future, no change in zoning, or
transition in zoning from the existing Forestry designation, is proposed at this time. The
Division of Land into Large Parcels is not expected to change the character of the



3.

neighborhood and is consistent with the Master Plan.

Findings of Fact

The Storey County Board of County Commissioners shall cite Findings in a recommended motion for
approval, approval with conditions, or denial. The recommended approval, approval with conditions
or denial of the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels must be based on Findings. The
Findings listed in the following subsections are the minimum to be cited. The Board of County
Commissioners may include additional Findings in their decision.

A. Motion for Approval. The following Findings of Fact are the minimum to be cited for a

recommendation of approval or approval with conditions. The following Findings are
evident with regard to the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels when the
recommended conditions in Section 4 are applied. At a minimum, an approval or conditional
approval must be based on the following Findings:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

The applicant is requesting a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-054. One
existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels
over 40 acres. The project is a division of parcel 2016-24 as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 125044, and as described in Document Number 125418, within
portions of Sec. 1, 2, 3, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 22, 23, 27 & 28, TI9N, R24E, M.D.M.
The subject property is located along USA Parkway at the Storey/Lyon County line
and extends northeast along the county boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel Number
004-171-14, Storey County, Nevada.

The Division of Land into Large Parcels complies with NRS 278.471 through 278.4725
relating to the adjustment of one parcel to three parcels, all 40 acres or more in size.

The Division of Land into Large Parcels complies with all Federal, State, and County
regulations pertaining to Parcel Maps and allowed land uses.

The Division of Land into Large Parcels will not impose substantial adverse impacts
or safety hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding vicinity.

The conditions of approval for the requested Division of Land into Large Parcels do
not conflict with the minimum requirements in Storey County Code Chapter 17.32
Forestry Zone or any other Federal, State, or County regulations.

B. Motion for Denial. Should a recommended motion be made to deny the Division of Land
into Large Parcels request, the following Findings with explanation of why should be
included in that motian.

@)

(2)

Substantial evidence shows that the Division of Land into Large Parcels conflicts with
the purpose, intent, and other specific requirement of Storey County Code Chapter
17.32 Forestry Zone, or any other Federal, State, or County regulations, including
NRS 278.471 through 278.4725.

The Recommended Conditions of Approval for the Division of Land into Large
Parcels does not adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses
or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.



Recommended Conditions of Approval

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless
otherwise stated.

A.

Approval. This approval is for a Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-054. One
existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels over 40
acres. The project is a division of parcel 2016-24 as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
125044, and as described in Document Number 125418, within portions of Sec. 1, 2, 3, 10,
11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 22, 23, 27 & 28, T19N, R24E, M.D.M. The subject property is located
along USA Parkway at the Storey/Lyon County line and extends northeast along the county
boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-171-14, Storey County, Nevada.

General requirements. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must comply with Nevada
Revised Statues (NRS) 278.471 through 278.4725 relating to the division and adjustment of
land. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must comply with Federal, State, and County
regulations pertaining to boundary line adjustments and allowed land uses.

Final Map. The applicant shall submit to the Storey County Planning Department a Final
Map for review and approval, whether or not the Board of County Commissioners waives
the requirement of a Tentative Map, before the Final Map is recorded with the Office of the
Storey County Recorder. The Final Map must show all parcel boundaries, easements, and
right-of-ways. Upon acceptance of the format, and completion of all other conditions of
approval, the Final Map may be recorded. The Final Map must meet the form and contents
pursuant to NRS 278.472.

Access and Easements. All existing streets, easements, and utility easements, whether
public or private, must remain in effect and be delineated clearly on the Final Map. All
utility corridor easements, including those identified in the Storey County Master Plan, shall
be shown on the Final Map. Per NRS 278.4725, all proposed access roads shall be suitable
for use by emergency vehicles as determined by the Storey County Fire Protection District.

Taxes Paid. Prior to the recording of the proposed Division of Land into Large Parcels, the
Applicant shall submit to the Planning Department evidence that property taxes on the land
have been paid in full for the fiscal year.

Duties of the Parcel Map Preparer. The preparer of the proposed Parcel Map shall meet all
requirements pursuant to NRS 278.471 through 278.4725.

Null and Void. The Division of Land into Large Parcels must be recorded with the Storey
County Recorder within 12 months of the Board’s approval. If the Final Map is not recorded
by that time, this approval will become null and void.

Indemnification. The Property Owners warrant that the future use of land will conform to
requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal regulatory and legal
requirements; further, the Property Owners warrant that continued and future use of the
land shall so conform. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and
representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or
liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this



Approval.

I Corners. Per NRS 278.4725, the corners of each lot are to be set by a professional land
surveyor,

Public Comment
As of December 5, 2017, Staff has not received any comments on the proposed project

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action thereon
as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County Commissioners upon
which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This Section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended
by Staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this
report. Those findings shouldbe made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and
that motion should cite one ormore of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Planning Commission should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended Motion (motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings
under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, |
[County Commissioner], hereby move to waive the requirement for filing a Tentative Map
and | hereby move to approve the Final Map Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-
054. One existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels
over 40 acres. The project is a division of parcel 2016-24 as shown on Record of Survey Map
No. 125044, and as described in Document Number 125418, within portions of Sec. 1, 2, 3,
10,11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 22, 23, 27 & 28, T19N, R24E, M.D.M. The subject property is located
along USA Parkway at the Storey/Lyon County line and extends northeast along the county
boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-171-14, Storey County, Nevada.

B. Alternative Motion {(motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under section 3.B of this report and other Findings against
the recommendation for approval with conditions by Staff and the Planning Commission, |
[County Commissioner], hereby move to deny waiving the requirement for filing a Tentative
Map and | hereby move to deny the Final Map Division of Land into Large Parcels, File 2017-
054. One existing large parcel over 40 acres will be divided into a total of three large parcels
over 40 acres. The project is a division of parcel 2016-24 as shown on Record of Survey
Map No. 125044, and as described in Document Number 125418, within portions of Sec. 1,
2,3,10,11, 12,13, 14, 15, 22, 23, 27 & 28, T19N, R24E, M.D.M. The subject property is
located along USA Parkway at the Storey/Lyon County line and extends northeast along the
county boundary, having Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-171-14, Storey County, Nevada.















the disclosure and recording requirements of subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if applicable, by the person
proposing to divide the land or any successor in interest.
(Added to NRS by 1979, 1504; A 1989, 794; 1993, 2574; 1997, 2429; 1999, 895; 2003, 2347; 2007, 1381; 2009, 1117)

NRS 278.4715 Waiver of requirement to file tentative map; designation of easements.

1. The planning commission or, if there is no planning commission, the governing body or its authorized
representative may waive the requirement of filing the tentative map.

2. |If the tentative map is filed with the planning commission or with the governing body or its authorized
representative, the planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative may within
60 days after the filing of the tentative map designate the location and width of any easements for roads and
public utilities as shown on the master plan if there is one applicable to the area to be divided, or designate
the location and width of any easements for roads and public utilities which may be reasonably necessary to
serve the area to be divided if there is no master plan.

3. The planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative shall not designate

an easement after the expiration of 60 days from the filing of the tentative map.
(Added to NRS by 1979, 1505; A 1997, 2429)

NRS 278.472 Final map: Filing; form and contents.

1. After the planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative has approved
the tentative map or waived the requirement of its filing, or 60 days after the date of its filing, whichever is
earlier, the person who proposes to divide the land may file a final map of the division with the governing
body or its authorized representative or, if authorized by the governing body, with the planning commission.
The map must be accompanied by a written statement signed by the treasurer of the county in which the land
to be divided is located indicating that all property taxes on the land for the fiscal year have been paid.

2. This map must be:

(a) Entitled “Map of Division into Large Parcels.”

(b) Filed with the governing body or its authorized representative or, if authorized by the governing body,
with the planning commission not later than 1 year after the date that the tentative map was first filed with
the planning commission or the governing body or its authorized representative or that the requirement of
its filing was waived.

(c) Prepared by a professional land surveyor.

(d) Based upon an actual survey by the preparer and show the date of the survey and contain the
certificate of the surveyor required pursuant to NRS 278.375.

(e) Clearly and legibly drawn in permanent black ink upon goed tracing cloth or produced by the use of
other materials of a permanent nature generally used for this purpose in the engineering profession.
Affidavits, certificates and acknowledgments must be legibly stamped or printed upon the map with
permanent black ink.

(f) Twenty-four by 32 inches in size with a marginal line drawn completely around each sheet, leaving an
entirely blank margin of 1 inch at the top, bottom, and right edges, and of 2 inches at the left edge along the
24-inch dimension.

(g) Of scale large enough to show clearly all details.

3. The particular number of the sheet and the total number of sheets comprising the map must be stated
on each of the sheets, and its relation to each adjoining sheet must be clearly shown.

4. This map must show and define:

(a) All subdivision lots by the number and actual acreage of each lot.

(b) Any roads or easements of access which exist and which the owner intends to offer for dedication, any
roads or easements of access which are shown on the applicable master plan and any roads or easements of
access which are specially required by the planning commission or the governing body or its authorized
representative.

13















